
 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, April 10, 2019 
201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado 

 
 
 
OATH OF OFFICE     
 
The Town Clerk will administer the oath of office to recently elected Councilors Tessa Cheek, 
Ninah Hunter, Eric Johnson, Beth Lakin and Russ Meyer. 

 
5:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Robb Austin, Tessa Cheek, Ninah Hunter, Beth Lakin, Russ Meyer, 

Mayor Pro Tem Eric Johnson and Mayor John Clark 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Council will enter into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes 24-6-402(b) 
and (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice and to 
determine positions relative to matters subject to negotiations regarding park improvements, 
signage and water utility operations.   
 

6:00 p.m.  
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered 

to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has received and considered 
reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar designations.  Copies of the reports are on 
file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the public.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items.  If discussion is requested, that item will be removed from the consent calendar and considered 
separately. 

 
1.   Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 13, 2019. 
 
2.   Minutes of the Special Meeting held March 12, 2019. 
 
3.   Register of Demands for April 2019. 
 
4.   Renewal of tavern liquor license for Steps.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Thank you to Jacquie Mace for her dedicated service to the Town.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item not 

otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 

PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per 

person; discussion of each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 

5.   Update on Ridgway Old West Fest - Eve Becker-Doyle.  
 
 



Town Council Agenda 
April 10, 2019 
Page 2 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; hearings may be limited to 

20 minutes. 
 

6.   Application for Tavern Liquor License for The Patio at Steps Tavern; Applicant: Steps LLC,  
shareholder: Daniel Easton; Location: 566 Sherman Street - Town Clerk.  

 

 7.  Adoption of Ordinance Amending Chapters 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the Ridgway Municipal 
Code Regarding Fees for Sales Tax, Lodging Tax, Building Regulations, Planning and Zoning, 
Marijuana, Nuisances and Animals - Town Manager and Town Clerk. 

  
LAND USE MATTERS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; hearings may be limited 

to 20 minutes. 

 
8.   Recommendation from the Planning Commission to approve an Amended Plat; Location: True 

Grit Subdivision, Lot A; Address: 109 N. Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street; Zoned: Historic 
Business (HB); Applicant and Owner: Nathan Worswick - Town Planner.  

 
POLICY MATTERS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of each 

item may be limited to 20 minutes. 

 
9.     Award of contract and approval of Professional Services Agreement for development of the 

stormwater master plan - Public Works Services Administrator. 
 
10.  Review and ratification of the 2019 Capital Assessment Report - Public Works Services 

Administrator and Town Manager. 
 
11.   Approval of option for ground lease with ArtSpace Projects Inc. for the Town owned property 

located on Lots 6 - 10, Block 28, for the Space to Create Project, with amendments from the 
Council approved March 2019 Option for Ground Lease - Town Manager.  

 
12.   Approval of contract for purchase of dump truck - Town Manager. 
 
13.   Discussion regarding Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee in follow up to November 8, 

2018 joint meeting and publication of the Draft Ridgway Master Plan - Town Manager.  
 
14.   Follow up discussion regarding plastic bag prohibition ordinance and format for the forum on 

single use plastics on April 22nd - Mayor Clark. 
 
15.   Update and review of staffing and 2019 budget - Town Manager.  
 
16.   Discussion pertaining to requests for letters of support, and providing information to specific 

agencies on specific topics - Mayor Clark.  
 
17.    Invitation to join the Colorado Coalition for Climate Action (CC4CA) - Mayor Clark. 
 
18.   Creation of Ridgway Youth Council - Mayor Clark.  
 
19.   Annual appointment of Mayor Pro Tem and review of Council representation on commissions, 

committees and boards - Mayor Clark.   
 
 
 
 



Town Council Agenda 
April 10, 2019 
Page 3 

 
 

MANAGERS UPDATE 
   
Space to Create initiative update 
Newsletter update 
Single Use Plastics Forum on April 22nd, 6:00 pm, in Ridgway Community Center 
CML Annual Conference - June 18-21, 2019   
   
STAFF REPORT   Written report is provided for informational purposes prior to the meeting updating 

Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion and action. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 

following committees, commissions and organizations: 
 

Council Appointed Committees, Commissions, Task Forces: 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilors Austin, N. Hunter and Mayor Pro 

Tem Johnson 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor E. Hunter and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor N. Hunter 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilors Malone, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Mayor Clark 
Council Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor E. Hunter; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor E. Hunter, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom 

McKenney; alternate-Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Sneffels Energy Board - Mayor Clark and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Ouray County Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Advisory Committee - Councilor Heffernan; alternate - 
Town Manager 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Community Initiatives Facilitator; alternate - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor E. Hunter 
Council Participation and Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Malone 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Hunter 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, May 1, 2019 at 4:00 p.m., Town 
Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
MARCH 13, 2019 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. in the Community Center at 201 N. Railroad 
Street, Ridgway, Colorado.  In attendance Councilors Austin, Heffernan, E. Hunter, N. Hunter, 
Malone, and Mayor Clark.  Mayor Pro Tem Johnson was absent.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Town Attorney requested entering into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(b) and (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of 
receiving legal advice regarding Council actions, and to discuss matters subject to 
negotiations regarding public property, water rights and water supply.   

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor N. Hunter, seconded by Councilor E. Hunter and unanimously carried 
to enter into closed session.  
 
The Council entered into executive session at 5:35 p.m. with the Town Attorney and Town 
Manager. 
 
The Council reconvened to open session at 6:00 p.m.  
 
The regular meeting began at 6:05 p.m.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.   Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 13, 2019. 
 
2.   Minutes of the Workshop Meeting held February 20, 2019. 
 
3.   Minutes of the Joint Workshop with the Planning Commission on February 27, 2019. 
 
4.   Minutes of Special Meeting of March 5, 2019.  
 
5.   Register of Demands for March 2019. 
 
6.   Resolution No. 19-04 Cancelling the April 2, 2019 Regular Election.  
 
7.   Renewal of restaurant liquor license for the True Grit Cafe.  
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor E. Hunter and seconded by Councilmember N. Hunter to approve the 
consent agenda.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Mayor Clark thanked the three outgoing Councilors Ellen Hunter, Tom Heffernan and Tim 
Malone.  



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 2 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
  Robyn Cascade asked the Council to consider offering an option to purchase a smaller size 

bear proof refuse container or allow for the use of different containers during winter months 
when bears are hibernating.  

 
  Sheriff Fitzgerald presented an update on the closure of County Road 17 due to a rock slide.  
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
8.   Request for letter of support for the Colorado Outdoor Recreation and Economy (CORE) Act  
 
 Robyn Cascade representing the Northern San Juan Region of Great Old Broads for the 

Wilderness and Ridgway Ouray Community Council presented the Council with a proposed 
letter to State elected officials and maps depicting the Colorado Outdoor Recreation and 
Economy (CORE) Act.  She explained the San Juan Mountains Wilderness Bill is now part of 
the CORE Act, along with three other ‘landscapes’ in the State, and is being reviewed by 
Congress.  The act includes approximately 400,000 acres of public land, 73,000 of which are 
designated wilderness areas.  She noted “for a decade”’ the Council has been supporting the 
San Juan Addition of 23,000 acres to the San Juan Wilderness, and asked for Council’s 
continued support.   

 
 There were questions and discussion by the Council. 
 
 Ms. Cascade asked for approval of the draft letter, and if the Council feel it appropriate, a 

separate letter to Senator Gardner urging co-support of the bill.  The Mayor offered to prepare 
a letter to the Senator. 

 
ACTION: 

 
Councilor E. Hunter moved, with Councilmember Austin seconding to approve the letter of support 
for the Colorado Outdoor Recreation and Economy Act (CORE) which includes the San Juan 
Mountains Wilderness Bill.  On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS    
 

9.     Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Section 2-1-4 of the Ridgway Municipal Code Regarding 
Compensation to Members of the Ridgway Town Council  

 
  The Town Clerk explained during budget discussions the Council increased the stipend for 

new members of the Council, and noted the ordinance will codify the change. 
 
  There were no comments from the audience. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor E. Hunter moved to approve the Ordinance Amending Section 2-1-4 of the Ridgway 
Municipal Code Regarding Compensation to Members of the Ridgway Town Council.   
Councilmember N. Hunter seconded the motion which carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 3 
 

10.  Recommendation from the Planning Commission for approval of PUD/Minor Subdivision of 
Lot 5, Parkside Subdivision, 791 and 795 N. Laura Street 

 
  Staff Report dated 3-7-19 from the Town Planner presenting a recommendation from the 

Planning Commission meeting held 3-6-19 to approve a request from applicants Bryce and 
Ryan Jones for PUD and Minor Subdivision of Lot 5, Parkside Subdivision. Planner Coburn 
explained the request is to subdivide into Townhomes, a recently constructed duplex to assist 
with financing.  The structure has two separate water taps and a shared sewer tap, it was 
noted. 

 
  There were no comments from the audience. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Heffernan moved to approve the PUD/Minor Subdivision of Lot 5, Parkside Subdivision, 
791 and 795 N. Laura Street, zoned low density residential.  Councilor N. Hunter seconded, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  
  
LAND USE MATTERS  
 
11.   Amendment to Subdivision Improvements and Lien Agreement for Trail Town Condominiums 

and Subdivision of Lot 26-A 
  
 Town Planner Coburn reported at the previous meeting Council reviewed the details of a 

Subdivision Improvements and Lien Agreement (SIA) for Trail Town Condominiums and 
Subdivision of Lot 26-A recorded on 10-05-2015 and amended 3-15-2017.  The Council 
identified items requiring improvements, established an expiration date of 7-1-19 and 
directed staff to draft a second amendment to the SIA.  She presented and reviewed the draft 
document with the Council. 

 
 John Peters representing Trail Town Partners LLC expressed concerns with a number of the 

required improvements contained in the draft amendment.  There was discussion between 
the Council and developers.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by E. Hunter to approve the Second Amendment to Subdivision Improvements and Lien 
Agreements: the Subdivision Improvements and Lien Agreement recorded on 10/05/2015 at 
Reception Number 214991 and amended as the First Amendment to the Subdivision 
Improvements and Lien Agreement recorded on 3/15/2017 at Reception Number 218140 for Trail 
Town Condominiums and Subdivision of Lot 26-A. Councilor N. Hunter seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously.  
 
12.   Amendment to Subdivision Improvements and Lien Agreement for Trail Town Condominiums 

and Subdivision of Lot 26-B 
 
 Planner Coburn explained similar to the previous SIA, the original agreement was recorded 

in 2012 and amended in 2017.   She presented a draft second amendment to the SIA which 
expires 7-1-19 and reviewed the improvements to be completed with the Council.  She noted 
the light bollards are similar to the existing lights in the downtown core area. 

 
 John Peters noted some of the items in the draft amendment have been completed, and 

questioned the light bollard requirements. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 4 
 

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor E. Hunter, seconded by Councilmember N. Hunter and unanimously 
carried to approve Amendment Two to Subdivision Improvements and Lien Agreement recorded 
on 07/19/2012 and amended on 02/08/2017 at reception number 218141 and recorded on 
03/15/2017 for Trail Town Subdivision Lot 26-B with items already completed removed from the 
document and edit the bollard requirements.    
 
POLICY MATTERS 
 
14.   Art Loan Agreement with Public Art Ridgway Colorado (PARC)  
 
 Town Manager Coates presented an agreement with Public Art Ridgway Colorado (PARC) 

to continue to place art in public places on Town owned property.  The agreement is a 
renewal for a five year time frame, and will expire in 2024. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Austin moved to approve the art loan agreement between the Town and Public Art 
Ridgway Colorado for a five year term Councilmember E. Hunter seconded, and the motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
15.   Option to Ground Lease with ArtSpace Projects, Inc.  
 
 The Town Attorney presented an option to grant a ground lease to ArtSpace for Town   

property.  He explained ArtSpace is applying to Colorado Housing Financing Authority for 
low income tax credits on behalf of the Town, to construct 26 apartments and live work space 
on Town owned property at the corner of Clinton and Laura, for the project known as Space 
to Create.  The application is due in June and requires that ArtSpace “show property control”.   
The lease would be changed as the project progresses, he noted.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilmember E. Hunter, seconded by Councilor N. Hunter to enter into an Option to 
Ground Lease with ArtSpace Projects Inc.   On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.   
  
14.  Resolution No. 19-05 Adopting Amendment Three to the Town of Ridgway Personnel Manual 

Amending Certain Provisions Regarding Accrual and Use of Vacation and Sick Time  
 
 The Town Manager explained the annual audit identified accrual and carry over of sick and 

vacation time.  The Council directed staff to meet with Councilor Austin and Mayor Pro Tem 
Johnson to review Personnel Policies and create new regulations.   She presented proposed 
changes in the form of a resolution, and reviewed them with the Council.  

 
 There was discussion by the Council.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Austin moved to adopt Resolution 2019-05 Adopting Amendment Three to the Town of 
Ridgway Personnel Manual Amending Certain Provisions Regarding Accrual and Use of Vacation 
and Sick Time. Councilor N. Hunter seconded the motion which carried unanimously.  

  
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 5 
 

 
  
16.  Resolution No. 19-06 Repealing and Replacing Certain Fee and Penalty Schedules  
 
 Manager Coates reported at a workshop in January Council reviewed and discussed staff 

proposed changes to fee schedules.  She presented a resolution addressing changes to fee 
and penalty schedules, and reviewed items with the Council.  

 
 There was discussion by the Council.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor E. Hunter moved to approve Resolution No. 19-06 Repealing and Replacing Certain 
Fee and Penalty Schedules. Councilmember N. Hunter seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
17.  Introduction of Ordinance Amending Chapters 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the Ridgway Municipal 

Code Regarding Fees for Sales Tax, Lodging Tax, Building Regulations, Planning and 
Zoning, Marijuana, Nuisances and Animals  

 
 The Town Manager noted in conjunction with amending the fee schedules, fees and penalties 

defined within the Municipal Code were also proposed for changes at the January workshop. 
Staff was directed to identify and determine actual costs to provide specific services. She 
presented a draft ordinance containing the proposed changes for each section of the code.   

 
 There was discussion by Council and staff. The Council directed staff to include in the 

ordinance a provision for fee waivers for affordable housing, either deferring or reducing fees 
for new construction identified as being “perpetual” affordable housing. 

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor N. Hunter, seconded by Councilor E. Hunter and unanimously carried 
to introduce the Ordinance Amending Chapters 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the Ridgway Municipal 
Code Regarding Fees for Sales Tax, Lodging Tax, Building Regulations, Planning and Zoning, 
Marijuana, Nuisances and Animals, with the changes as noted. 
  
18.  Resolution No. 19-07 Amending and Replacing the Town of Ridgway Procurement Policy 

with the Town of Ridgway Procurement Manual and Policy  
 
 Manager Coates explained during a workshop last month the Council reviewed proposed 

changes to the Town’s procurement policy.  The new document clarifies purchasing policies 
and procedures, and continues to designate the Town Clerk/Treasurer as the Town’s 
purchasing agent.  The Council reviewed the procedures with staff. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor E. Hunter, seconded by Councilor Austin to approve Resolution No. 19-07 
Amending and Replacing the Town of Ridgway Procurement Policy with the Town of Ridgway 
Procurement Manual and Policy, the motion carried unanimously.  
   
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 6 
 

19.  Resolution No. 19-08 Adopting the Town of Ridgway Travel Reimbursement and Per Diem 
Policy  

 
  The Town Manager presented a travel reimbursement and per diem policy requested by the 

Council.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember N. Hunter moved to adopt Resolution No. 19-08 Adopting the Town of Ridgway 
Travel Reimbursement and Per Diem Policy, Councilor E. Hunter seconded and the motion was 
carried unanimously.  
 
20.    Use of Town alley rights of ways for Ridgway 1K for the Arts event 
 

The Town Clerk presented a request from Weehawken Creative Arts and the Ridgway 
Chautauqua Society for use of Town alleys for a one hour period on May 11th for a fund 
raising arts event, to happen prior to the Town’s Love Your Valley Festival. 
 

Councilor Austin stepped down due to a conflict of interest. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember E. Hunter moved to approve the request from Weehawken and the Chautauqua 
Society to use the Town right of way for a 1K event.  Councilor Heffernan seconded, and on a call 
for the vote the motion passed with Councilor Austin not voting.  
 
Councilor Austin returned to sit with the Council.  
 
21.    Request for support of Senate Bill 19-181 “Additional Public Welfare Protections Regarding 

the Conduct of Oil and Gas Operations” 
 

Mayor Clark asked for Council endorsement to support Senate Bill 19-181 which would 
restructure gas and oil operations.  He explained the bill is supported by the Colorado 
Municipal League as it will provide local control over oil and gas extraction in proximity to 
municipalities.   He requested Council approval to send a letter of support to the Senate.  

 
ACTION:  
 
It was moved by Councilor N. Hunter, seconded by Councilor E. Hunter and carried unanimously 
to approve a letter of support for SB 19-181 “Additional Public Welfare Protections Regarding the 
Conduct of Oil and Gas Operations” .  
 
TOWN MANAGERS REPORT 
 

Manager Coates reported on project water supply from the winter snow pack; changes to 
Town water rates and preparation of water history use for utility users; the annual CML 
conference in June; and requests for proposals to prepare the Town’s storm water master 
plan.  
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 
  The Town Clerk presented an update on upcoming Town events - Love Your Valley Festival, 

Ridgway Concert Series and the weekly movies in the park series.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 13, 2019 
Page 7 
 

 
   
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Town Attorney requested entering into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(b), (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving 
legal advice to a determine position subject to negotiations.   

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Heffernan, seconded by Councilor E. Hunter and unanimously 
carried to enter into closed session.  
 
The Council entered into executive session at 8:50 p.m. with the Town Attorney and Town 
Manager. 
 
The Council reconvened to open session at 9:20 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.  
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL 
  

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
 

MARCH 12, 2019 
 

 
The Town Council convened for a special meeting at 6:05 p.m. in the Ridgway Community 
Center at 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado.  In attendance E. Hunter, N. Hunter, 
Heffernan and Mayor Clark.  Councilors Austin, Malone and Mayor Pro Tem Johnson were 
absent. 
 
Town Clerk’s Notice of Special Meeting dated February 27, 2019. 
 
Prior to the meeting staff invited residents on North Lena Street to attend the meeting to 
discuss the proposed design for upgrades and paving between Charles and Otto Streets. 
 
Town Manager Jen Coates explained last year the Council approved preparation of design 
for the paving of N. Lena Street by Consolidated Consulting Services (CCS) which was part 
of preliminary plat approval for Lena Street Commons PUD.  Staff displayed renderings,  
model and displays of the development, and a proposed street design. 
 
Manager Coates reported preliminary plat approval allows the developers to install all 
infrastructure.  Once completed the developer will request Council approval for final plat, and 
then construction of structures can begin.   Construction of the road, sidewalk and gutters will 
take place in approximately three years, after final plat approval, though sub surfacing work 
and installation of sewer lines in the street will be completed prior to construction, she noted. 
 
The Town Manager explained the Town has a eighty foot right of way, and the street design 
carries forward the profile of the downtown RAMP Project. The roadway will be sixty feet of 
pavement with five foot sidewalks on both sides, with two foot landscape strips and two and 
half feet of curb and gutter.  Nineteen foot wide diagonal parking spaces on both sides of the 
roadway, eleven foot drive lanes, sixteen foot wide driveway accesses, and all work will be 
done within the Town right of way, not on public property.  The project will be ADA accessible, 
include cross walks at cross streets and mid street, and corner bulb out areas for traffic 
calming.  The road will crown for drainage to both sides of the street, and be channeled into 
inlets and piped to a manhole and taken from Lena to Roundhouse Street.   
 
The Council and staff answered questions from the audience regarding driveway aprons and 
access to private property; building height in the development; number of proposed parking 
spaces; commercial parking in front of residences; handicap parking; landscape plans; 
development parking; snow removal from sidewalks; fencing in the existing right-of-way. 
 
Council directed staff to research access points on to private property and include in the plan 
more driveway accesses to homes facing on to Lena Street.  The Town Manager noted as 
the street project progresses, the Town will again reach out to property owners. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

XPO Logistics Freight, Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

picnic tables - freight 775POO · Park Improvements -98.50

TOTAL -98.50

Weehawken Alpine-Operating Account

Alpenglow promotion 532GOO · Creative District -92.98

TOTAL -92.98

Federal Express Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -133.48

TOTAL -133.48

Black Hills Energy-Town Hall Alpine-Operating Account

742PO1 · Utilities - community center -58.29
842GO3 · Utilities -58.29
542GOO · Utilities -58.30

TOTAL -174.88

Black Hills Energy-Hartwell Park Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -60.59

TOTAL -60.59

Black Hills Energy-PW Building Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -54.53
642GO2 · Utilities -54.52
942SOO · Utilities -54.53
942WOO · Utilities -54.53

TOTAL -218.11

Black Hills Energy-Lift Station Alpine-Operating Account

942SOO · Utilities -27.63

TOTAL -27.63

Black Hills Energy-PW Office Alpine-Operating Account

642GO2 · Utilities -18.25
942SOO · Utilities -18.24
942WOO · Utilities -18.25

TOTAL -54.74

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

943WOO · Telephone -35.04

TOTAL -35.04

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Apr 2019 543GOO · Telephone -56.00
Apr 2019 643GO2 · Telephone -56.00
Apr 2019 843GO3 · Telephone -56.00
Apr 2019 943WOO · Telephone -56.00
Apr 2019 943SOO · Telephone -56.00
Apr 2019 556GOO · IT Services -165.00
Apr 2019 615GO2 · IT Services -15.00
Apr 2019 729POO · IT -15.00
Apr 2019 820GO3 · IT Services -75.00
Apr 2019 917WOO · IT Services -15.00
Apr 2019 917SOO · IT Services -15.00
Apr 2019 917WOO · IT Services -50.00
Apr 2019 917SOO · IT Services -25.00
Apr 2019 615GO2 · IT Services -25.00
Apr 2019 843GO3 · Telephone -55.00

TOTAL -735.00

Walmart Alpine-Operating Account

732PO1 · Supplies - community center -105.22
732POO · Supplies & Materials -7.91
632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -9.51
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -9.50
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -9.51

TOTAL -141.65

Impact Promotional Products Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF glasses 781POO · Events & Festivals -1,353.70

TOTAL -1,353.70

Employers Council Alpine-Operating Account

dues 4/1/19-3/31/20 539GOO · Human Resources Consulting -2,608.21

TOTAL -2,608.21

Uncompahgre Watershed Parte... Alpine-Operating Account

5110GO1 · UncompahgreWatershedPart... -3,000.00

TOTAL -3,000.00

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

943SOO · Telephone -74.07
943WOO · Telephone -124.04
843GO3 · Telephone -210.78
543GOO · Telephone -115.42
643GO2 · Telephone -52.71
552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -10.00
952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -10.00
952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -10.01

TOTAL -607.03

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

San Miguel Power Assoc, Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

2/18-3/18/19 542GOO · Utilities -75.42
2/18-3/18/19 638GO2 · Street Lighting -332.34
2/18-3/18/19 642GO2 · Utilities -242.20
2/18-3/18/19 742POO · Utilities -253.24
2/18-3/18/19 742PO1 · Utilities - community center -75.42
2/18-3/18/19 842GO3 · Utilities -75.42
2/18-3/18/19 942SOO · Utilities -2,863.93
2/18-3/18/19 942WOO · Utilities -595.94

TOTAL -4,513.91

Alsco Alpine-Operating Account

932WOO · Supplies & Materials -36.64
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -36.64
732PO1 · Supplies - community center -36.64
632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -36.64

TOTAL -146.56

550 Publishing Inc Alpine-Operating Account

cancel election notice 544GOO · Elections -25.23
ads - multiple 527GOO · Personnel - Recruitment/Testi... -127.25

540GOO · Printing & Publishing -40.02

TOTAL -192.50

Caselle Inc Alpine-Operating Account

create usage graph 914WOO · Consulting & Engineering Ser... -787.50

TOTAL -787.50

Mesa County HDR Laboratory Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -20.00

TOTAL -20.00

Rocky Mountain Aggregate & C... Alpine-Operating Account

635GO2 · Gravel & Sand -423.25

TOTAL -423.25

City of Delta Alpine-Operating Account

918SOO · Testing & Permits - sewer -364.00

TOTAL -364.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -19.87
732POO · Supplies & Materials -25.18
732PO1 · Supplies - community center -15.48
832GO3 · Equipment & Supplies -35.88

wiper blades - 2017 Explorer 861GO3 · Vehicle Maintanence & Repair -46.47
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -32.41
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -36.03

TOTAL -211.32

USABlueBook Alpine-Operating Account

chemicals 932WOO · Supplies & Materials -54.46

TOTAL -54.46

International Inst. of Municipal ... Alpine-Operating Account

522GOO · Dues & Memberships -170.00

TOTAL -170.00

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -7.10
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -7.10

TOTAL -14.20

Eurofins Eaton Analytical Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -150.00

TOTAL -150.00

Caselle Inc Alpine-Operating Account

May 2019 914SOO · Consulting & Engineering Servs -159.50
May 2019 914WOO · Consulting & Engineering Ser... -159.50

TOTAL -319.00

Ouray County Road & Bridge Alpine-Operating Account

Mar 2019 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -567.96
Mar 2019 760POO · Gas & Oil -60.18
Mar 2019 960WOO · Gas & Oil -677.26
Mar 2019 960SOO · Gas & Oil -377.82
Mar 2019 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -566.06

TOTAL -2,249.28

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 4



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Deeply Digital LLC Alpine-Operating Account

May 2019 maintenance 556GOO · IT Services -210.65
May 2019 maintenance 615GO2 · IT Services -19.15
May 2019 maintenance 729POO · IT -19.15
May 2019 maintenance 820GO3 · IT Services -95.75
May 2019 maintenance 917WOO · IT Services -19.15
May 2019 maintenance 917SOO · IT Services -19.15

TOTAL -383.00

Honnen Equipment Company Alpine-Operating Account

electrical - backhoe 661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -2,079.34
electrical - backhoe 961SOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -2,079.35
electrical - backhoe 961WOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -2,079.34

TOTAL -6,238.03

Clarion Associates LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Feb 2019 513GOO · Planning Consulting -893.31

TOTAL -893.31

Parish Oil Co. Alpine-Operating Account

oil - all vehicles 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -100.74
oil - all vehicles 760POO · Gas & Oil -100.74
oil - all vehicles 960WOO · Gas & Oil -100.74
oil - all vehicles 960SOO · Gas & Oil -100.74

TOTAL -402.96

SGM Alpine-Operating Account

thru 3/16/19 552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -439.33
thru 3/16/19 952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -439.34
thru 3/16/19 952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -439.33

TOTAL -1,318.00

Intermountain Environmental, I... Alpine-Operating Account

flume ramp - Lake O 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -757.00

TOTAL -757.00

City of Grand Junction Alpine-Operating Account

918SOO · Testing & Permits - sewer -125.00

TOTAL -125.00

Galls Alpine-Operating Account

shirt 883GO3 · Uniforms -69.99
shirts (2) 883GO3 · Uniforms -139.98
polos, pants, belts 883GO3 · Uniforms -346.02
shirt 883GO3 · Uniforms -69.99

TOTAL -625.98

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 5



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

The Paper Clip LLC Alpine-Operating Account

541GOO · Office Supplies -48.28
941WOO · Office Supplies -11.10
941SOO · Office Supplies -11.09
541GOO · Office Supplies -23.88
541GOO · Office Supplies -168.88
941WOO · Office Supplies -126.99
941SOO · Office Supplies -126.99
541GOO · Office Supplies -8.89
941WOO · Office Supplies -8.88
941SOO · Office Supplies -8.88

TOTAL -543.86

United States Postal Service Alpine-Operating Account

Mar 2019 billing 951WOO · Postage - water -119.63
Mar 2019 billing 951SOO · Postage - sewer -119.63

TOTAL -239.26

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

April 2019

Page 6



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
 



















 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 AND 11 OF THE RIDGWAY MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING FEES 

FOR SALES TAX, LODGING TAX, BUILDING REGULATIONS, PLANNING AND ZONING, MARIJUANA, 
NUISANCES AND ANIMALS 

 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of the Town of Ridgway adopted numerous ordinances and 

resolutions establishing various fees and costs for Town service; and  
 
WHEREAS, it has been almost twenty years since the Town undertook a comprehensive review of 

its fees, and many fees are out of date; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to bring current the fees in order to come closer to covering 

the cost of services provided by the Town; and  
 
WHEREAS, the cost of delivering the various services for the Town of Ridgway has increased over 

time; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council reviewed a draft schedule of proposed fees at the regular meeting of 

the Town Council on December 12th, 2018, adopting a resolution for fees established by 
resolution on March 13th, 2019, and introducing this ordinance 2019-02 for various fees 
described and established herein on March 13th, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to review fee schedules every three years and update fees as 

necessary in follow up to such review; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to provide for the deferral, reduction or waiving of fees as 

appropriate for projects providing significant public benefits, such as permanently restricted 
affordable or workforce housing.  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Sales Tax 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 3-2-3(A) Sales Tax: Sales Tax License, is amended, as follows: 
 
 (A)  It shall be unlawful for any retailer to engage in the business of selling at retail, without 
first having obtained an annual license therefore, which license shall be granted and issued by the 
Town and shall be in force until December 31 of the year issued or until revoked or suspended.  
Such license shall be granted or renewed only upon application stating the name and mailing 
address of the person desiring such a license, the name of such business and the location, including 
the street number of such business, and such other facts as the Town may require.  Each 



application shall be accompanied by a new application fee of $30 or renewal fee in the amount of 
$25. 

* * * 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 3-2-18(B)(1) Sales Tax: Recovery of Taxes, Penalties and Interest, 
is amended, as follows: 
 
(B) (1) If any person neglects or refuses to make a return in payment of the tax or to pay 
any tax, as required by this Section, the Town shall make an  estimate based on such information 
as may be available of the amount of taxes due for the period for which the taxpayer is delinquent 
and shall add thereto a penalty equal to the sum of fifty dollars ($50.00) for such failure or fifteen 
percent (15%) thereof plus one-half percent (1/2%) per month from the date when due, not 
exceeding eighteen percent (18%) in the aggregate and interest on such delinquent taxes at the 
rate set under Subsection 3-2-7.  Promptly thereafter, the Town shall give to the delinquent 
taxpayer written notice of such estimated taxes, penalty and interest, which notice shall be sent 
by first class mail, directed to the last address of such person on file with the Town. 
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 3-2-23(C) Sales Tax: Penalty and Remedies, is amended, as 
follows: 
 
(C)   The Town may assess an administration penalty of $50 for each day any person required 
to have a license engages in the business of selling retail within the Town without a license. 
 

* * * 
 
SECTION 2. Lodging Tax 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 3-3-4(B) Lodging Tax: Enforcement is amended, as follows: 
 (B) A penalty in the amount of 15% of the tax due or the sum of $50.00, whichever is 
greater, shall be imposed upon the vendor and become due in the event the tax is not remitted 
by the 20th of the month, as required by this Section and interest at 1.5%/month shall accrue on 
the unpaid balance. 
 

* * * 
 
SECTION 3. Building Regulations 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-1-3(A)(5) Building Regulations: Changes, Deletions and 
Exceptions to the Codes Adopted by Reference – The International Building Code, 2006 Edition, is 
amended, as follows: 
 
 (5)  Subsection 105.2 Work Exempt From Permit. is hereby amended as follows:  
 



  Item number 1: Replace 120 square feet (11 m2 ), with 150 square feet (13.9 m2), 
and append the sentence: Provided, however, a site permit must be obtained for such structures 
from the Town, which shall be subject to a permit fee of $75 and shall be issued only for lawfully 
located structures. 
 
  Item number 4: Replace 4 feet (1219 mm), with 2 feet (610 mm). 
   
             Add the following Items 14 and 15: 
 
   14. Re-roofing without alteration of roof deck structure. 
 
   15. Re-siding without alteration of wall structure. 
 

* * * 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-1-3(A)(8) Building Regulations: Changes, Deletions and 
Exceptions to the Codes Adopted by Reference – The International Building Code, 2006 Edition,  is 
amended, as follows: 
 
(8) Subsection 108.2 Schedule of permit fees. is hereby amended to read as follows: 108.2 
Schedule of permit fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, and plumbing 
systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in 
accordance with Table 1-A-Building Permit Fees, as established by the Uniform Building Code, 
1997 Edition.  
 
Plan review fees shall be 65% of the building permit fee as shown in Table 1-A. When submittal 
documents are incomplete or changed so as to require additional plan review or when the project 
involves deferred submittal items as defined in Subsection 106.3.4.2, an additional plan review fee 
shall be charged at the rate shown in Table 1-A. In all cases involving new construction, if the 
Building Official finds that any of the permits required by any of the codes adopted by the Town 
are duplicative or redundant, the Building Official is empowered to waive the permit requirement 
or the fee for the permit or both. 
 
The Town Council, in its sole discretion, may defer, reduce and/or waive certain building fees 
within this Chapter 6 for projects demonstrating significant public benefit such as perpetual, deed-
restricted affordable or workforce housing projects.  
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-1-3(A)(10) Building Regulations: Changes, Deletions and 
Exceptions to the Codes Adopted by Reference – The International Building Code, 2006 Edition,  is 
amended, as follows: 
 
 (10) Subsection 108.4 Work commencing before permit issuance. is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 



 
   108.4 Work commencing before permit issuance. Any person who commences any 
work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the 
necessary permits shall be subject to a fee established by the building official that shall be in 
addition to the required permit fees. The amount of the fee shall be equal to the permit fee or 
$150, whichever is greater. 
 

* * * 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-1-3(B)(6) Building Regulations: Changes, Deletions and 
Exceptions to the Codes Adopted by Reference – The International Residential Code, 2006 Edition,  
is amended, as follows: 
 
(6) Section R108.2 Schedule of permit fees is hereby amended to read as follows: R108.2 Schedule 
of permit fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
Table 1-A-Building Permit Fees, as established by the Uniform Building Code, 1997 Edition. Plan 
review fees shall be 65% of the building permit fee as shown in Table 1-A. When submittal 
documents are incomplete or changed so as to require additional plan review or when the project 
involves deferred submittal items, an additional plan review fee shall be charged at the rate shown 
in Table 1-A. 
 
The Town Council, in its sole discretion, may defer, reduce and/or waive certain building fees 
within this Chapter 6 for projects demonstrating significant public benefit such as perpetual, deed-
restricted affordable or workforce housing projects.  
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-2-2(C) Flood Plain Management Regulations: Development 
Permits, is amended to add a new subsection (6), as follows: 
 
 (C) Submitted with the application for a development permit or other applicable permit for 
property within said Zones A and A-5 shall be the following information: 
 
  (1) Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the lowest floor (including basement) of all 
structures. 
 
  (2) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any structure has been floodproofed. 
 
  (3) Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing 
methods of any non-residential structure meet the criteria of Subsection 6-2-4(M). 
 
  (4) Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a 
result of the proposed development. 
 



  (5) Other information required by the Town as necessary to administer and enforce the 
provision of these regulations. 
 
  (6) An application fee of $250. 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-2-5(C) Flood Plain Management Regulations: Variances, is 
amended, as follows: 
 
 (C)  Application for a variance shall be accompanied by an application fee of $150 and 
by all information necessary to show that the variance is justified in accordance with the criteria 
of this Subsection.                                                                                                                          
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-3-2(B) Building and Occupancy Permits for Factory Built 
Structures, is amended, as follows: 
 
 (B) Application for a building permit shall be made in accordance with the requirements of the 
Town's Building Code to the extent applicable and a building permit shall be required regardless 
of the value of the work.  Accompanying the application shall be a site plan drawn to scale showing 
the dimensions of the mobile home lot or space, the dimensions of the mobile home itself, 
setbacks and the location of any other structures, easements or improvements on the lot or space.  
Building permit fees shall also be due determined as follows: 
 
  (1) Mobile homes or factory-built housing set up within a lawful mobile home park: $200 
building permit fee.  No plan check fee. 
 
  (2) All other mobile homes or factory-built structures - the building permit fee determined 
according to the current Building Code fee schedule based upon the value of the work to be 
performed, plus the value of the mobile home or the factory built structure.  No plan check fee 
shall be charged for the structure itself. 
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-5-4 Outdoor Lighting Regulations Appeals and Variances, is 
amended, as follows: 
 
 (A) Any person aggrieved by an interpretation of this Section or decision of the Town made in 
the administration of this Section, may appeal the interpretation or decision to the Planning 
Commission pursuant to the review procedure of Section 7-3-18 of the Ridgway Municipal Code 
upon payment of a $250.00 application fee.  
 



 (B) (1) Any person may apply for a variance to the Planning Commission from the 
provisions of this Section upon payment of the $250.00 application fee in accordance with the 
review procedure of Section 7-3-18 of the Ridgway Municipal Code. 
 
  (2) The Planning Commission may grant a variance only upon a determination that the 
following criteria are met: 
 
   (a) The variance will be consistent with the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
   (b) The variance is justified by unreasonable hardship not created by the activities of 
the applicant or strict compliance is unfeasible. 
 
   (c) The variance will be substantially consistent with the purposes of this Section to 
avoid nuisances to others, preserve the ability to observe the night sky, conserve energy, reduce 
glare, promote traffic and pedestrian safety, preserve the small-town character of Ridgway and 
promote the Town's master plan.    
  

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 6-6-6 Enforcement and Administration is amended to add 
Subsection (G), as follows: 
 
 (G)  In addition to the fees contained in this Chapter 6, the applicant shall reimburse the 
Town for all out-of-pocket costs incurred during the review including legal fees, postage, notice 
and publishing costs, map costs, engineering fees, etc., together with wages and associated payroll 
costs for contract employees, plus ten percent to cover overhead and administration.  The Town 
shall bill the applicant periodically as such costs are incurred.  Payment is due within 30 days.  Bills 
not paid by the due date shall accrue interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month 
or part thereof.  No plat shall be recorded, improvement accepted, lien released, building permit 
issues, tap approved or other final approval action taken until all fees then due are paid to the 
Town.  Such fees may be certified to the County Treasurer for collection as delinquent charges 
against the property concerned.        
 

* * * 
 
SECTION 4. Planning and Zoning 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 7-3-12(E)(1) Permits, is amended as follows: 
 
  (1)  Except for the signs specified in Subsection (B), no sign may be erected and maintained 
until a Sign Permit has been issued by the building official.  Applications for a standard sign permit 
issued pursuant to this subsection 7-3-12(E) shall be submitted to the Town on forms supplied by 
the Town accompanied by an application fee of $35.00.  Applications for permits issued pursuant 
to Ridgway Municipal Code Section 7-3-12(G), for signs erected over Town-owned streets and alley 



rights-of-way pursuant to a revocable right-of-way permit, shall be submitted to the Town on 
forms supplied by the Town accompanied by an application fee of $75.00. 
  

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 7-3-20 is repealed and replaced, as follows: 
 
(A)  The following fees shall be submitted with respect to the indicated application, request or 
action: 
 
  (1)  Temporary Use Permit pursuant to 7-3-13(C):  $150.00 
 
  (2)  Conditional Use Permit pursuant to 7-3-14:  $250.00                   
 
  (3)  Change in a Nonconforming Use pursuant to 7-3-15(B)(3) and (4):  $150.00 
 
  (4)  Variances and Appeals pursuant to 7-3-16:  $250.00                         
 
  (5)  Rezoning pursuant to 7-3-17(A) and (B):  $250.00                               
 
  (6)  Other Reviews conducted pursuant to the 7-3-18 Review Procedure:   $250.00 
 
  (7)  Variance from Flood Plain Regulation pursuant to 6-2-5:   $150.00       
  
  (8)  Master Sign Plan pursuant to 7-3-12: $150.00 
 
  (9) Zoning or Land Use Compliance letters: $50.00 
 
  (10) Deviation to Single Family Home Design Standards pursuant to 6-6: $175.00 
 
                     
         (B)  In addition to the above fees, the applicant shall reimburse the Town for all out-of-
pocket costs incurred during the review including legal fees, postage, notice and publishing costs, 
map costs, engineering fees, etc., together with wages and associated payroll costs for contract 
employees, plus ten percent to cover overhead and administration.  The Town shall bill the 
applicant periodically as such costs are incurred.  Payment is due within 30 days.  Bills not paid by 
the due date shall accrue interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month or part 
thereof.  No plat shall be recorded, improvement accepted, lien released, building permit issues, 
tap approved or other final approval action taken until all fees then due are paid to the Town.  
Such fees may be certified to the County Treasurer for collection as delinquent charges against 
the property concerned.  
 



The Town Council, in its sole discretion, may defer, reduce and/or waive certain land use fees 
within this Chapter 7 for projects demonstrating significant public benefit such as perpetual, deed-
restricted affordable or workforce housing projects.  
 

* * * 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 7-4-12 is repealed and amended, as follows: 
 
(A) The following submittal fees shall apply to these regulations: 
 
  (1) Sketch Plan:    $300 plus $10 per lot or unit    
  (2) Preliminary Plat:   $1,500 plus $25 per lot or unit    
  (3) Resubmittal of Preliminary Plat: $750 plus $25 per lot or unit 
  (4) Final Plat:    $600            
  (5) Minor Subdivision:   $450 plus $25 per lot or unit            
  (6) Lot Split:    $450    
  (7) (a) Replats    $150 plus $25 per lot or unit    
   (b) Plat Amendments:   $250 
  (8) Statutory Vested Rights  $1,500             
  (9) Planned Unit Developments:      Same as paragraph (A)(2) and (4), above. 
 
    
 (B) In addition to the above fees, the subdivider shall reimburse the Town for all out-
of-pocket costs incurred during review of the subdivision, including legal fees, postage, notice and 
publishing costs, map costs, engineering fees, etc., together with wages and associated costs for 
contract employees, plus 10% to cover overhead and administration.  The Town shall bill the 
subdivider periodically as such costs are incurred.   Each bill shall be due 30 days after its date.  
Bills not paid by the due date shall accrue interest at the rate of 1-1/2% per month or part thereof.   
No plat shall be recorded, improvements accepted, lien released, building permit issued, tap 
approved, or other approval action taken until all fees then due are paid to the Town.  The Town 
may suspend review of submittals, inspection of improvements, and processing of the subdivision, 
as it deems appropriate, unless all amounts are paid as due. Such fees may be certified to the 
County Treasurer for collection as delinquent charges. 
 
The Town Council, in its sole discretion, may defer, reduce and/or waive certain land use fees 
within this Chapter 7 for projects demonstrating significant public benefit such as perpetual, deed-
restricted affordable or workforce housing projects.  
 
                 

* * * 
 
SECTION 5. Marijuana 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 8-4-1(B) is amended, as follows: 



 
 The local application review fee for all Retail Marijuana businesses, with licenses to be 
issued by the state pursuant to Article 43.4, Title 12, CRS, shall be enacted by Town Council 
Resolution.  

* * * 
 
SECTION 6. Nuisances 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 10-2-2 Nuisances: Abatement of Nuisances is amended, as 
follows: 
 
 
(A) In addition to any other powers granted to the Town by law to abate nuisances, any nuisance 
may be abated in accordance with the provisions of this Subsection. A penalty schedule for such 
nuisances may be enacted by Town Council Resolution. 
 

* * * 
SECTION 7. Animals 
 
Ridgway Municipal Code Section 11-1-14(A) Animals: Penalty is amended, as follows:  
 
(A)    Any person convicted of a violation of any of the provisions of this Section shall be punished 
by a fine not to exceed $300. A penalty schedule for such violations may be enacted by Town 
Council Resolution. 
 

* * * 
SECTION 8. 
 
 Effective Date and Duration.  Pursuant to Article III, Section 3-7 of the Charter, this 
Ordinance shall take effect 30 days following adoption. The rates provided for herein shall be 
effective as of the effective date of contract rate changes. 
 
SECTION 9. 
 

Publication of Notice.  Pursuant to Article III, Section 3-8 of the Charter, the Town Clerk 
shall publish this Ordinance by title upon adoption by the Town Council. 
 
SECTION 10. 
 

Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and the invalidity of any 
section, phrase, clause or portion of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
 



INTRODUCED before the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado on the 13th day of March, 
2019. 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO,  
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

   By _____________________________  
       John Clark, Mayor 
        John I. Clark, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Pam Kraft, MMC, Town Clerk 
 
Approved As to Form:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
BO JAMES NERLIN, Town Attorney 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, this 10th day 
of April, 2019. 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

   By _____________________________  
  John I. Clark, Mayor    

    
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Pam Kraft, MMC, Town Clerk 
Approved As to Form:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
BO JAMES NERLIN, Town Attorney 



 
 

CERTIFICATE OF TOWN CLERK 
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a meeting of the Ridgway Town Council on March 13, 
2019, published by title and posted thereafter, and adopted by the Ridgway Town Council on April 
10, 2019. 

 
(SEAL)     ______________________________ 
           Pam Kraft, MMC, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ridgway Town Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at the 

Town Hall Community Center,  201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado, on Wednesday, April 

10th, 2019 at 6:00 p.m., to receive and consider all evidence and reports relative to the 

application described below: 

  

Application for:  Amended Plat  
 
Location:  True Grit Subdivision, Lot A 
 
Address: 10 N Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street  

Zoned:   Historic Business (HB) 

Applicant:   Nathan Worswick     

Property Owner: Nathan Worswick  
 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES are invited to attend said hearing and express opinions or submit 

written testimony for or against the proposal, to the Town Clerk. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION on the above application may be obtained or viewed at Ridgway Town 

Hall, or by phoning 626-5308, Ext. 222. 

 
DATED:  March 27, 2019   Shay Coburn, Town Planner 



Page 1 of 1 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Request:   Amended Plat   
Legal: True Grit Subdivision, Lot A 
Address: 106 N Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street 
Parcel #: 430516314002 
Zone: Historic Business (HB) 
Applicant: Nathan Worswick  
Owner: Nathan Worswick 
Initiated By:   Shay Coburn, Planner 
Date:   April 10, 2019 

BACKGROUND 

This plat amendment request was heard by the Planning Commission on March 26, 2019. This request also 
included a variance request for the rear setback on both proposed Lots A1 and A2.  The Planning Commission 
approved the variance request and recommended approval of the plat amendment to the Town Council.  
The full hearing packet, including the staff report to the Planning Commission, is attached to this report.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of this plat amendment given that the requirements of the municipal code have 
been met.    



NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ridgway Planning Commission will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at 

the Town Hall Community Center,  201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado, on Tuesday, March 

26th, 2019 at 5:30 p.m., to receive and consider all evidence and reports relative to the 

application described below: 

  

Application for:  Amended Plat  
 
Location:  True Grit Subdivision, Lot A 
 
Address: 10 N Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street  

Zoned:   Historic Business (HB) 

Applicant:   Nathan Worswick     

Property Owner: Nathan Worswick  
 

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES are invited to attend said hearing and express opinions or submit 

written testimony for or against the proposal, to the Town Clerk. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION on the above application may be obtained or viewed at Ridgway Town 

Hall, or by phoning 626-5308, Ext. 222. 

 
DATED:  March 14, 2019   Shay Coburn, Town Planner 







��������� �����	


�

�����������	
�����������������������
�����������	
����������	
����������� ���

 !!"#$%&'())*+),

-"!.%/"$ 01$23'4$5"36.%/"$  7727762$%'8/7%"39

:/%#7' ;;3277<=>?<@<AB@C<DE<
FGF<DHBIJC@<DE

K/%9<ILMNOPQ<
ILMNOPQ

R.S' 32.'4;<T>=<U<T>=

V.3!2W'X#6Y23<GZ>F=[Z=G>>T

-2\.W':#66.39<D]̂M_<EÌ B<aIbE<Acd_
C<D_<=[<E_<GF<I_<e

01$23'X.62<fgIDfbhi<@CEHC@

01$23' ;;3277<jg<kgl<Z>><<

IbmafCno<hg<e=GZTU>Z>>

 !%#.W<pT>=eq rF=so?F>

 772772; r?FoeG>

R.S' 32.&<T>=<<<<t/WW'-2u9_<[>v=Ts

R9w2  !%#.W  772772; !327:xyR z$/%7

b{|}c~�{��d�rGG[oG=> re>o>e>>v>>>Gsesv>>>=v>>>

AP�M rs=oFG> r=Fos[> FTTTv=[>>v>>>

<

R3.$75237

(2!2w%/"$'X#6Y23 :.W2'�.%2 :.W2'V3/!2 �"!'�27!3/w%/"$

=[Ts=[ >?�=T�=??[ rTZo=>> fCIIC@En<mBBm

=[Ts>[ >?�=T�=??[ r> jACE

=[TZ[= >[�TF�=??[ �̀ bE<hACbJ

=Zs=F[ hg�<hg@m<�<IBDE

=Zs=ZZ >Z�==�=?eF jACE

>[�>T�=?>? EIBCD̀ IBI�D<mBBm

R.S'8/7%"39 46.\27

R.S'�2.3 R.S27

T>=e rFos[TvFe

T>=s rFo[s[v?>

accN��<JP|<pJPQ<�cd<̂�<P��]}Pd�q
j�cdc
D��d��
abD

�c�]�L�N<g�_<������������������������ ¡¢



2351.8 Sq. Feet

2870.4 Sq. Feet

LOT A1

LOT A2

SHERMAN STREET

L
E

N
A

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

A
L
L
E

Y

TRUE GRIT SUBDIVISION AMENDED

LOT B

N

FORT SMITH BUILDING AMENDED

AN AMENDMENT OF LOT A, TRUE GRIT SUBDIVISION AMENDED

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO

VICINITY MAP

N

Scale in feet

1" = 10' 

10'

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP

ATTORNEY'S CERTIFICATE:

APPROVAL OF TOWN ATTORNEY:

APPROVAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION:

CERTIFICATE OF IMPROVEMENTS:

APPROVAL OF TOWN COUNCIL:

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE:

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE:

DATE:

JOB NO.:

DRAWN BY:

FILE:

ADDRESS & PHONE:

TYPE:

SHEET:

TITLE:

CLIENT:

FIELD BOOK: DATE:

JOB NO.:

DRAWN BY:

FILE:

ADDRESS & PHONE:

TYPE:

SHEET:

TITLE:

CLIENT:

DEL-MONT CONSULTANTS, INC.
E  N  G  I  N  E  E  R  I  N  G     ▼     S  U  R  V  E  Y  I  N  G

125 Colorado Ave.▼ Montrose, CO 81401 ▼ (970) 249-2251 ▼ (970) 249-2342 FAX

www.del-mont.com ▼ service@del-mont.com

F.A.B. 8 MARCH 2019

18158V_BASE 18158

NATHAN WORSWICK

SUB

FORT SMITH BUILDING

AMENDED

1 of 1

P.O. Box 300

Ridgway CO. 81432

763

0 20' 30'

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

LINEAL UNITS STATEMENT:

PLAT NOTES:

PRELIMINARY

PRELIMINARY

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°26'12"W  142.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°26'12"E  70.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°33'48"W  33.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°26'12"E  48.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°33'48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A=18.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=12.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
D=90°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B=N46°33'48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=16.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°33'48"W  25.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°33'48"E  R=44.5  M=45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°26'12"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°33'48"E  37.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°26'12"E  29.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEPTION #162706

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEPTION #162706

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD. 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP PLS20698 N13°45'28"E 0.30' FEETFROM CALCULATED POSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°33'48"E  45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°33'48"E  25.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERMAN STREET (HIGHWAY 62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD STREET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
 HIGHWAY 550

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE: According to Colorado Law (13-80-105, CRS) you must commence any legal action According to Colorado Law (13-80-105, CRS) you must commence any legal action based upon any defect in this survey within three (3) years after you first discover such defect.  In no event may any action based upon any defect in this survey be commenced more than ten (10) years from the date of the certification shown hereon.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned, being the owner of certain lands in the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, to wit: LOT A, TRUE GRIT SUBDIVISION AMENDED, as recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Ouray County Reception No. 162706 Have by these presents laid out, platted and subdivided the same into lots, as shown on this plat, under the name of FORT SMITH BUILDING AMENDED. Executed this _____ day of _______________, A.D. 20___. Nathan Worswick by____________________________ Nathan Worswick      STATE OF COLORADO  )                    )  ss. COUNTY OF Ouray    ) The foregoing signature of Ownership was acknowledged before me this _______ day of  __________ ________, A.D. 20__, by Nathan Worswick ________, A.D. 20__, by Nathan Worswick Witness my hand and official seal.  My Commission expires ____________        _____________________________                                                     Notary Public Notary Public I,_____________________________, an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before the courts of record of Colorado, do hereby certify that I have examined the title of all land herein platted and that title to such land is in the dedicator(s) and owners, and that the property dedicated hereon has been dedicated free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as follows:_________________________________________ _______________________________________________________________ _______________________________________________________________ _______________________________________________________________ Dated this ________ day of _______________________, A.D., 20___.  __________ ____________________ Attorney at Law  ____________________ Attorney at Law  Approved for recording this _____ day of  _________________________AD, 20____, by  __________ ___________________________, Town Attorney ___________________________, Town Attorney Approved by the Ridgway Town Planning Commission this _____ day of _________________________AD, 20____,  by___________________________, Chairman The undersigned, Town Manager of the Town of Ridgway, certifies that all required improvements are installed, available and adequate to serve each lot. Date: __________________,  Town Manager:___________________________ Approved by the Ridgway Town Council this _____ day of ____________, A.D. 20___, by  __________ ___________, Mayor. ___________, Mayor. I certify that as of the _____ day of  _________________________, 20____ there are no delinquent taxes due, nor are there any tax liens, against the property described herein or any part thereof, and that all current taxes and special assessments have been paid in full.  Date:___________________________, ___________________________. Ouray County Treasurer This plat was filed for record in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Ouray County at ______ __.m. on the _____ day of ___________________________________AD,  20_____, under Reception No. _________________. by___________________________________   County Clerk & Recorder       ___________________________________   Deputy

AutoCAD SHX Text
The bearing between the rebar and cap PLS37690 at the SW corner of Lot 1 hereon to the rebar and cap PLS37690 at the NW corner of Lot 1, bears N01°33'48"E (ASSUMED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
The Lineal Unit used on this plat is U.S. Survey Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. All outdoor lighting fixtures shall comply with Town regulations. All outdoor lighting fixtures shall comply with Town regulations. 2. The property platted hereon is subject to the prior easements as shown hereon. The property platted hereon is subject to the prior easements as shown hereon. 3. The maximum number of dwelling units is one (1) for which excise tax has been paid. The maximum number of dwelling units is one (1) for which excise tax has been paid. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
I Frederick A. Ballard, hereby certify that this plat was prepared under my direct supervision and that said survey is accurate to the best of my knowledge, conforms to all requirements of the Colorado Revised Statutes, and applicable Town of Ridgway regulations, and that all required monuments have been set as shown. _________________________________ Frederick A. Ballard               P.L.S. 37690

AutoCAD SHX Text
= FD. 5/8" REBAR W/ 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP PLS20698

AutoCAD SHX Text
= SET 5/8"x18" REBAR W/ 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP PLS37690





From: nathan worswick <unicasbuyer@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2019 11:35 AM 
To: Shay Coburn <scoburn@town.ridgway.co.us> 
Subject: Re: All set? 
  
Hi 
  
Thought that I sent a note stating that after consulting with yourself and surveyor that a variance was 
sought for both properties. 
  
Both structures were built and approved at their respective times and neither had any setback 
requirements at the time.  
  
The 2001 building is built with a zero lot line requirement on the northern side. All other codes were 
addressed. There is no space for any setback, this requirement was passed recently, on our alley none of 
the lots are in compliance, they are all built back to the alley. 
  
 The Ft Smith building has a 16' non build able easement to its west. Although an 8' setback could be 
achieved, both the town staff and surveyor recommended that a variance be sought. 
 
There was no setback requirement when the original building was built, added onto or the additional 
building constructed. 
 
My question is if I need to write up an additional 'letter' ? Thought that my note to you covered that.  
 
Will pop by this afternoon, 
 
Nathan  
 

mailto:unicasbuyer@hotmail.com
mailto:unicasbuyer@hotmail.com
mailto:scoburn@town.ridgway.co.us
mailto:scoburn@town.ridgway.co.us


                     Agenda Item 1 

 

Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Request:   Amended Plat   
Legal: True Grit Subdivision, Lot A 
Address: 106 N Lena Street and 545 Sherman Street 
Parcel #s: 430516314002 
Zone: Historic Business (HB) 
Applicant: Nathan Worswick  
Owner: Nathan Worswick 
Initiated By:   Shay Coburn, Planner 
Date:   March 26, 2019 

REQUEST  

Applicant is requesting to amend Lot A of the True 
Grit Subdivision by splitting it into two lots. Lot A1 
will be approximately 2,350 square feet and Lot 
A2 will be approximately 2,870 square feet. Each 
lot has an existing building on it. This property is 
located at the corner of N Lena and Sherman 
Street/Hwy 62 in the Historic Business district 
surrounded by other commercial and mixed uses.  

An application was submitted March 22, 2019 
accompanied by draft of the new plat map and an 
explanation of the request. The property and 
public hearing have been noticed in compliance 
with the Town Municipal Code.  

CODE REQUIREMENTS 

Amended Plats are considered under Ridgway Municipal Code (RMC) §7-4-10 

(A) Replats which reduce the number of separately described contiguous parcels of property may be approved 
and recorded pursuant to this Subsection in lieu of other procedures for subdivisions provided in these 
Regulations, if all required improvements are in and available to serve the lot, and the Design Standards of 
these regulations are met. 

(B) Amended plats of subdivision plats previously approved by the Town, or parts of such plats, which do not 
make or require a material change in the extent, location, or type of public improvements and easements 
provided, and are consistent with the Design Standards of these Regulations may be submitted, approved 
and recorded in accordance with the provisions of this Subsection in lieu of other procedures provided for 
subdivision by these regulations, if all required improvements are in and available to serve each lot. 

(C) Requirements: 

(1) "Replats" or "amended plats" must also meet applicable dimensional requirements of Town zoning 
regulations.  

(2) The subdivider shall submit the plat, fees, and supporting documents, as applicable, in substantial 
conformity with Subsection 7-4-5(C), with the exception that a certificate of improvements completed or 

Subject 
Property 



          

Page 2 of 4 

security for completion are not required; and instead, there must be a certification that all required 
improvements are already installed, available and adequate to serve each lot of the subdivision to be 
signed by the Town.  

(3) The plat shall be reviewed in accordance with the procedures and requirements of Subsection 7-4-
5(C). 

ANALYSIS 

Based on the criteria above for an amended plat, the following items need to be addressed:  

• The plat cannot make or require a material change in the extent, location, or type of public 
improvements and easements provided.  

This plat does not appear to make or require a material 
change to the extent, location or type of public 
improvement or easements. There is an existing utility 
easement between the two buildings that is not 
proposed to change with the plat amendment. No 
additional utility easements will be needed as water, 
sewer and gas are separate for each building and electric 
is provided from the existing utility easement. 

• The subdivision must be consistent with the Design 
Standards of the subdivision regulations (RMC 7-4-7).  

This subdivision does not contain any internal streets or 
alleys. Each lot has access to a street connected to the 
public street system. The proposed new lot line is at a right angle to the street line. Utilities are 
existing including a utility easement between the two properties that is in place today and is not 
proposed to be modified. This property in right downtown where a lot of streetscape improvements 
were recently completed including sidewalks, curb and gutter. Monuments will need to be placed 
upon approval and before recording of the plat map. Plat notes required per this section have been 
addressed. All of the design standards have been met.  

• All required improvements within the subdivision regulations (RMC 7-4-6) must be in and available 
to serve each lot.  

Survey monuments will be placed upon approval but before final recording of the plat. Utilities are 
existing and already installed to the subject property and each building. Streets, sidewalks, curb and 
gutter were just improved by Town and no further improvements are necessary at this time. Street 
lights are also adequate in this area. All required improvements are in in place and available to serve 
each lot.  

• All lots must meet applicable dimensional requirements of Town zoning regulations (RMC 7-3-10).  

The proposal is to split the one existing lot into two lots. Each new lot will meet the minimum 
requirement for lot width. There are no requirements for lot size and lot coverage in this Historic 
Business district. Front and side setbacks can be as little as 0 feet so the existing buildings will be in 
compliance. However, Lots 1 and 2 would not meet the 8’ (or 2’ when abutting an alley) rear setback. 
This application also includes a variance request for the rear setback of both lots. As proposed, Lot 
A1 will have a 0’ rear setback and Lot A2 will have a 4’ setback. The criteria that must be met for a 
variance to dimensional standards include:  

Existing utility easement area 
between the two buildings 



          

Page 3 of 4 

1. There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict 
letter of the Zoning Ordinance; and  

2. The spirit of the ordinance will be observed, the public health, safety and welfare secured and 
substantial justice done by granting the variance.  

The practical difficulty could be due to the buildings already being built and that they were built to 
the dimensional requirements considering both units were on one property. Although the 8-foot 
setback could be achieved on Lot A2 by moving the property line, this doesn’t make practical sense 
as then an access easement would be needed for the building on Lot A1 or the existing deck would 
need to be modified. Given these buildings were built to code on one lot, the spirit of the ordinance 
is still observed. See the explanation letter from the applicant.  

The Applicant should note that excise tax of $1,500 per RMC 3-4 will be do upon final approval of this 
Application.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The criteria for an amended plat have been met as explained above. The criteria for the variance to rear 
setbacks appears to have been met. Note that two separate motions will need to be made, one for the 
amended plat request and one for the variances, or two for the variances if there are different actions.  

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to Town Council of this plat 
amendment for the True Grit Subdivision Lot A for owner Nathan Worswick as presented in this staff report.  

Staff recommends approval of the variance request for rear setback for proposed Lots A1 and A2 of the Fort 
Smith Building Amended plat for owner Nathan Worswick as proposed.  

 

Posted property from North Lena Street looking west.  



          

Page 4 of 4 

 

Posted property from Sherman Street/Hwy 62 looking northwest.  

 

Posted property from Sherman Street/Hwy 62 looking north.  



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
Town of Ridgway, Colorado 

 

Date   
 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME:    
 

Re: Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

Dear <<CONTRACTOR>>: 

You are hereby notified that the Town of Ridgway has accepted your bid for the above-referenced 
project in the amount of $  . 

 

Within 7 calendar days, you are required to provide the following items to the Town: 
 

a. Executed Agreement (2 originals); 
b. Proof of Liability and Workers’ Compensation coverage or exemption; 
c. Completed W-9 

 
 

If you fail to return the above-described items within 7 calendar days from the date of this Notice, the 
Town of Ridgway will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the acceptance of your bid 
as abandoned. The Town of Ridgway will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law. 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Jen Coates, Town Manager 
 
 
 

Enclosures: Agreement/Contract, W-9 Form 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Stormwater Management Plan 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT  is entered into as  of this  day of  , 2019, by  and 

 
between   the   Town   of   Ridgway,   State  of   Colorado,   hereinafter   referred   to   as   “Town” and 

 

  ,  , hereinafter referred to as "Contractor". 
 
 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations herein expressed, it is agreed by and between 
the parties hereto as follows: 

 
 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Contactor agrees to perform services in accordance with the Scope of Consulting Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

2. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 

The services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement by Contractor shall be initiated upon 
execution of this Agreement, shall be pursued with due diligence thereafter, and shall be 
continued until November 30, 2019, unless terminated prior. 

 

3. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

Contractor shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion and coordination 
of all services as outlined in Exhibit A and shall without additional compensation promptly remedy 
and correct any errors, omissions or other deficiencies. Contractor is solely responsible for the 
timing, means and methods of performing the work. Contractor shall meet or exceed industry 
standards applicable to the services and shall provide for all training and education needed and 
provide all tools necessary to perform the services. Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
laws. 

 

5. RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Contractor hereby waives any claims for damage to Contractor's property or injury to Contractor's 
person against the Town, its officers, agents and employees arising out of the performance of the 
services under this Agreement. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Town, and its officers and its employees, from and against all 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

liability, claims, and demands, on account of any injury, loss, or damage, which arise out of or 
are connected with the Services, if such injury, loss, or damage, or any portion thereof, is 
caused by, or claimed to be caused by, the act, omission, or other fault of the Contractor or 
any subcontractor of the Contractor, or any officer, employee, or agent of the Contractor or 
any subcontractor, or any other person for whom Contractor is responsible. The Contractor 
shall investigate, handle, respond to, and provide defense for and defend against any such 
liability, claims, and demands, and to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, 
including court costs and attorneys' fees. The Contractor’s indemnification obligation shall not 
be construed to extend to any injury, loss, or damage which is caused by the act, omission, or 
other fault of the Town. The Town shall be listed as additional insured in the General and 
Professional Liability insurance, a copy of which shall be provided to the Town. 

 

6. WORKER’S COMPENSATION 
 

Contractor shall obtain statutorily required Worker’s compensation insurance to cover 
Contractor's employees and provide the Town a certificate of such insurance. Contractor hereby 
agrees to release, waive, save, hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Town, its officers, agents 
or employees on account of any claims arising under the Worker’s compensation laws of the State 
of Colorado on behalf of Contractor or any of Contractor's employees, subcontractors or 
subcontractor's employees. 

 

7. PAYMENT 
 

In consideration of the proper performance of the Contractor's services, Town agrees to pay 
the Contractor for time expended by Contractor’s principals and subcontractors as defined in 
Exhibit A, billable in ¼ hour increments. Payment shall be made upon itemized monthly billing 
statements allowing for 30 days processing time by the Town, in a total amount not to exceed 
$  for the complete Scope of Services described in this Agreement. 
Contractor is not entitled to reimbursement for supplies, materials or expenses without the 
prior approval of the Town Manager. Contractor shall pass along any project savings to the 
Town. 

 

7. TOWN REPRESENTATIVE 
 

The Town hereby designates its Town Manager, or her designee as its representative and 
authorizes her to make all necessary and proper decisions with reference to this Agreement. 

 

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

The services to be performed by the Contractor are those of an independent contractor and not 
as an employee of the Town. As an independent contractor, Contractor is not entitled to worker's 
compensation benefits except as may be provided by the independent contractor nor to 
unemployment insurance benefits. The Contractor is obligated to pay all federal and state 
income tax on any moneys paid pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
 

9. ASSIGNMENT 
 

This Agreement may not be assigned nor subcontracted by either party without the written 
consent of the other party. Provided, however, Contractor shall arrange for substitute service in 
those instances when Contractor is not able to perform the services due to temporary absence. 

 

10. NON-WAIVER 
 

  Contractor is not responsible for rental fees or other costs associated with using Town Hall 
and the Community Center for meeting and working space for the duration of the project. 

 
11. DEFAULT 

 
Each and every term and condition shall be deemed a material element of this Agreement. In the 
event either party should fail or refuse to perform according to the terms of this Agreement, such 
party may be declared in default. 

 

12. REMEDIES 
 

In the event a party has been declared in default, the defaulting party shall be allowed a period of 
five (5) days within which to cure said default. In the event the default remains uncorrected, the 
non-defaulting party may elect to (a) terminate the agreement and seek damages; (b) avail himself 
of any other remedy available at law or equity. In the event the Contractor fails or neglects to carry 
out the work in accordance with this Agreement, the Town may elect to make good such 
deficiencies and charge the Contractor therefore. 

 

13. TERMINATION BY TOWN 
 

The Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for its convenience by giving written 
notice to Contractor of the termination date. Upon termination under this paragraph, Contractor 
shall be paid to the date of termination for services properly performed. 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

14. CONTRACTOR'S OFFICE 
 

Contractor shall maintain its own office, utilize Contractor's own office equipment and supplies 
and shall keep the Town advised of Contractor's office address, mailing address and telephone 
number. 

 

15. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Contractor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations relating to the 
performance of this Agreement, use of premises and public places and safety of persons and 
property. 

 
16. DATE 

 
This Agreement is dated  , 2019. 

 
 

17. ILLEGAL ALIEN PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 8-17.5-102, AS 
AMENDED. 

 

A. Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 
this Agreement. 

 

B. Contractor shall not enter into a contract with a Subcontractor that fails to certify to the 
Contractor that the Subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien 
to perform work under this Agreement. 

 

C. Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under this agreement through participation in either (1) the e- 
verify program, (the electronic employment verification program created in Public Law 104- 
208 as amended and expanded in Public Law 108-156, as amended, and jointly administered 
by the US Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration, or its 
successor program) or (2) the Department Program (the employment verification program 
established pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5)(c)). 

 

D.  Contractor is prohibited from using the e-verify program or the Department program 
procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is 
being performed. 

 

E. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a Subcontractor performing work under this 
Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be 
required to: (a) notify the Subcontractor and the Town within three days that the Contractor 
has actual knowledge that the Subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

and (b) terminate the subcontract with the Subcontractor if within three days of receiving  
the notice required pursuant to (a) of this paragraph (E), the Subcontractor does not stop 
employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall not terminate 
the contract with the Subcontractor if during such three days the Subcontractor provides 
information to establish that the Subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted 
with an illegal alien. 

 
F. Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department of Labor and 

Employment in the course of an investigation that the Department is undertaking pursuant 
to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). 

 

G. If Contractor violates these illegal alien provisions, the Town may terminate this Agreement 
for a breach of contract. If this Agreement is so terminated, Contractor shall be liable for 
actual and consequential damages to the Town. The Town will notify the Office of the 
Secretary of State if Contractor violates these provisions and the Town terminates this 
Agreement for that reason. 

 

H. Contractor shall notify the Town of participation in the Department program and shall within 
20 days after hiring an employee who is newly hired for employment to perform work under 
this Agreement affirm that the Contractor has examined the legal work status of such 
employee, retained file copies of the documents required by 8 USC 1324a and not altered or 
falsified the identification documents for such employee. Contractor shall provide a written, 
notarized copy of the affirmation to the Town. 

 

18. APPROPRIATION REQUIRED 
 

This Agreement shall NOT be construed to constitute a debt of the Town beyond any current fiscal 
year and shall be subject to the availability of an annual appropriation therefore by the Town. 

 

19. ADDITIONAL GRANT REQUIREMENTS 
 

Contractor and Town understand that this Agreement including the Scope of Work 
described in Exhibit A are subject to all terms and agreements described in the grant and 
funding awards provided to and executed by the Town of Ridgway. Town and Contractor 
agree that before expending the awarded funding, the Town and Contractor will insure that 
the terms of this Agreement are aligned with the funding requirements, and if such terms 
are not in alignment and the parties so desire to expend and utilize those funds, Town and 
Contractor will work together to comply with such terms, including amending this 
Agreement. 

 
 

 

 

 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY 

 

By   _______________________ 
 

Jen Coates, Town Manager 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

By    
 

Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 
 

CONTRACTOR:    
 
 
 

By    
 

  ,    
 

Name, Title  
 

    



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
 

<<insert scope and details from successful bid>>  
 
 
 

Scope of Work 
The primary focus area includes the south Town boundary, the Uncompahgre River on the east, the 
Town boundary west of Amelia Street, and north to the River Park PUD. The Stormwater Master Plan 
will take a comprehensive look at stormwater management within the study area, focused on the 
historic platted Town but including subsequent annexations and subdivisions surrounding the Historic 
Town Core. The following is a basic description of tasks to be provided by the chosen consultant(s). 
Listing does not occur in any particular order and should be used by the consultant(s) to prepare a 
proposal. Once selected, the consultant(s) will work with the Town to refine and finalize this list. 

 

Consultant shall: 
 

1. Evaluate past and predicted storm events to develop a stormwater design storm, which 
identifies storm size, frequency, runoff, detention needs, impact, etc. 

2. Inventory and assess existing physical conditions and locations of the Town’s stormwater 
system including; sub-basins, barrow ditches, culverts, piping, valley pans, curbs and gutters, 
elevations, outfalls, etc. 

3. Within each sub-basin, determine peak flows and design infrastructure needed to handle 
those flows. 

4. Anticipate runoff and water quality changes associated with future property development 
aligning with the most recent Town Master Plan and Land Use Map. 

5. Examine and incorporate into the design the optimization and use of existing space, 
equipment, rights-of-way and Town properties. 

6. Incorporate functional “green” solutions or alternatives where and when applicable. 
7. Evaluate installation and maintenance of improvements relative to other infrastructure 

including; potable and non-potable water lines, sewer, gas, electric, fiber optic, CATV, etc. 
8. Determine and address; current discharge permit requirements, anticipated discharge permit 

requirements, and other regulatory matters applicable to stormwater systems. 
9. Prioritize and develop a timeframe for stormwater system implementation, ensuring new 

features won’t negatively impact unimproved portions of stormwater system, and identifying 
critical areas of concern. 

10. Conduct public outreach to explain stormwater management issues and receive input on 
proposed design criteria. 

11. Create a financial analysis and pro-forma providing cost estimates, alternatives and 
reasonable funding sources to capitalize the needed improvements, including costs to be 
incurred by new development. 

12. Develop standard design criteria with typical drawings and schematics of any stormwater 
related infrastructure, which will be used to construct the stormwater plan and that the 
Town will make available to developers. 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

13. Minimum requirements for new development to tie into existing and future infrastructure 
and updates to the Town’s Municipal Code. 

14. Provide professional advice to the Town on any supplementary information or work 
needed for a successful project, and include that information or work as a supplement in 
the bid package. 

 
Deliverables 
Preliminary drafts of the following documents shall be submitted for review by Town staff: 

 
1. Storm event evaluation. 
2. Summary of existing conditions. 
3. Sub-basin delineation, analysis of peak flows and design infrastructure needed. 
4. Land use development analysis and projections on runoff and water quality impacts. 
5. Town property analysis and role in stormwater management, including: rights-of-ways, 

parks, town-owned properties. 
6. Summary of “green” solutions including; projected benefit, added cost, maintenance 

needs and alternatives for consideration. 
7. Utility conflicts analysis. 
8. Regulatory discharge requirements and analysis. 
9. Implementation plan and critical location analysis. 
10. Summary of public outreach and inputs. 
11. Financial pro-forma, including implementation and construction costs, potential funding 

sources and estimated costs for new development. 
12. Standards and Specifications for the stormwater system. 
13. Development standards and Municipal Code Updates. 
14. Bidders are encouraged to suggest additional documents that the Town has overlooked 

with this bid package. 
 
 

After each of the sections listed above have been reviewed by Town staff, the Consultant shall 
prepare a combined draft of the document inclusive of all sections listed above and an executive 
summary. This draft will be reviewed by Town staff. Then the Consultant will prepare and submit a 
final document for Town Council review and consideration. 

 

In addition, the following toolset shall be developed and delivered to the Town: 
1. An interactive, intuitive and editable electronic model of current conditions and proposed 

changes to the Town’s stormwater system, which Town staff can update over time as 
improvements are installed and environments change. 

2. GIS data layers of current and proposed stormwater infrastructure. 
3. Improvement cost estimating calculator. 
4. Bidders are encouraged to suggest additional tools that the Town has overlooked with this 

bid package. 



Town of Ridgway Stormwater Master Plan 

 

 

 

 

CRS 8-17.5-102 Certification 
 

Name of Project: Town of Ridgway: Stormwater Master Plan 

Date:    

 
 

Pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(1) the undersigned hereby certifies that at this date it does not knowingly 
employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under the contract for the above 
referenced project and that the Contractor will participate in the E-Verify Program or the Department 
Program in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for work 
under the contract for the above referenced project. 

 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR:    
 
 
 
 
 

By:    
 

      Name, Title  



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 























Table 1.0-1 Town List of Parks 





  



o
o
o
o





do not 









o
o
o
o











o
o
o
o
o





o
o

o

o
o

o
o
o



o
o
o
o
o



o
o
o
o





















Exterior finishes 

Interior finishes 

Remodel 



Maintenance examples 





Structural 

Electrical 

Miscellaneous 



Maintenance examples 

Exterior finishes 



Interior finishes 

HVAC 

Maintenance examples 



Exterior finishes 

Interior finishes 

Maintenance examples 



Exterior finishes 

Interior finishes 

Electrical 
HVAC 



Exterior finishes 

Interior finishes 

HVAC 

Maintenance examples 



Exterior finishes 

Interior finishes 

HVAC 

Maintenance examples 









  



  







Town of Ridgway March 2019 

Capital Assessment Final Report 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
Assessment Observations 

And Recommendations 



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Broadband Internet 1 = High,           
5 = Lower

Broadband Civil/Infrastructure Internet Broadband Internet distribution will have a 'carrier 
neutral' location at the wastewater treatment plant 
in early 2019. The Town has worked with Deeply 
Digital to install underground conduit in the 
downtown area, down Hwy 62 and across Hwy 
550 through the Eastside and Ridgway USA 
subdivisions in 2017-2018. Need to expand fiber to 
the rest of town. Town hall and public works have 
fiber connection, and the water plant now has 
wireless broadband via a connection at the PW 
yard. Need to push underground fiber connection 
to water treatment plant.

Need to eventually get wire connection to Water 
Treatment Plant

X 5

Infrastructure
Infrastructure Planning Ouray County/Ridgway have agreement for 

Ridgway to densify and take in the majority of 
development over time.  Acquisition/Annexation is 
really limited to small adjacent parcels, and those 
parcels must give the Town water rights for 
growth.

Include max build out into capital planning for long-term 
road maintenance and costs

X 5

Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Drainage Stormwater Infrastructure is an issue that requires 
improvements.  Downtown street project has 
helped significantly, plan on getting consultant to 
do a stormwater master plan in 2019

Town applied for a DOLA Grant and do a stormwater 
assessment master plan in 2019.  Begin saving for 
capital stormwater improvements and planning for a 
revenue source now. Received DOLA grant for SW 
plan, improvement costs are part of its scope.

X 2

Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Drainage Some roads are curb/guttered without plan for 
drainage

Install Drainage, Gutter Pans, and Curbs before 
installing any asphalt X 1

Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure General Issues Town Marshal has Traffic Counts, but can't deliver 
because the counter machine is broken

Encourage regular preventative maintenance, or 
asking for help from other departments X 5

Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Roads Roads observed: Many Gravel roads are in very 
good condition, but ditches are in need of 
maintenance.  Asphalt roads are also in good 
condition

As most roads have only been recently paved, forecast 
their replacement cycle now to prepare for costs of 
replacement/overlays in the next 10-15 years; ditches 
should be included in the stormwater drainage 
assessment and plan in 2019.

X 1

Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Roads Future plans to chip seal secondary streets within 
next ten years.  Goals were pushed back to give 
priority to the storm water work.

Install Drainage, Gutter Pans, and Curbs before 
spending money on other permanent road 
improvements.

X 1
Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Roads Gravel streets are high maintenance. Plan to pave 

gravel roads within ten years, require new 
development to pave their roads.  Collector streets 
are priority, Amelia Street has been on the priority 
list for many years as a collector street.

Save Money now for paving of town and identify 
revenue sources for the work.  Assess total paving cost 
for all streets, and time to do them.  Suggest waiting on 
any paving until stormwater assessment is performed. X 1

3/12/2019

1 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Infrastructure
Infrastructure Civil/Infrastructure Roads Heavy Use Roads:

- Sherman Street/ Highway 62
- County Route 5
- County Route 23
- Highway 550
- Moffat Street                                                   - 
North Railroad Street                                                 
- Amelia Street                                                                                
- Lena Street

Focus on paving these first. 550 and Sherman are 
CDOT's responsibility and are fully paved. CR5 is a 
County Road subject to County regulations, funding 
and maintenance/improvements and CR5 is driving the 
most siginificant use of Amelia Street. Paving of CR 23 
shall be included with any future development in the 
Town boundary and/or future annexation into the Town. 
Paving projects will need to be accompanied by traffic 
calming elements as hard-surfacing has shown 
historically to increase speed limits unless traffic-
calming elements are included. 

X 1

Infrastructure Public Works Funding Capital Expenditures are funded from a 0.6% 
Capital Improvements (CIP) tax implemented in 
2005 and augmented by the General Fund, whose 
2018 combined Revenues were approximately 
$2,100,000, including the capital improvements 
revenues, which are estimated to be at just under 
$200k by year end 2018. The Town leverages and 
augments these revenues with significant outside 
funding. The fund balance for the capital projects 
revenues is diminished ($0 in 2018 and 2019) with 
the construction of a number of improvements in 
the last decade as well as committing 50% of the 
CIP revenues annually to the bond repayment for 
the downtown project. 

Explore increasing the revenues for capital 
improvements through in increase in the 0.6% or other 
revenue source(s).

X 1

Infrastructure Public Works Workflow Asphalt Replacement Cycle is in PW Street 
Supervisor's head

Add data to GIS for town or spreadsheet to keep 
organized X 4

Parks and Recreation
Parks/Rec Parks/Trails Funding The Town has a tax on Food for Home 

Consumption, which is dedicated to Parks 
improvements. In 2018, this revenue source is 
approximately $73,000 while the anticipated 
expenses for Parks in 2018 is over $200,000. The 
Town leverages these revenues for special 
projects; however the cost of managing and 
maintaining the parks far exceeds this dedicated 
revenue source.

Explore increasing the revenues for parks via other 
revenue sources.

X 5

Parks/Rec Parks/Trails Amenities Future plans for storage and concessions for 
athletic fields and soccer club

Site built new building, addition to restroom building, 
Consider Storage Containers for storage, temporary 
mobile concessions, etc. Insure Soccer program 
participates significantly in upfront cost and fully in 
maintenance costs.

X 3

Parks/Rec Parks/Trails Amenities Nowhere to sit during soccer games and meets. Add Bleachers to the soccer field; insure Soccer 
program participates in cost and maintenance. X 5

3/12/2019

2 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Parks and Recreation
Parks/Rec Structural Athletic Field Restroom CMU block building with wood frame roof.  

Structural condition assessment = good. Is 
settling, needs paint, future addition for storage, 
lockers and concessions, add bleachers.

Budget for routine maintenance, painting trim, etc. 
Walls look perfect for a mural.

X 5

Parks/Rec Structural Gazebo Structure at 
Hartwell Park

Log frame on concrete pier foundation.  Logs 
showing fair amount of weathering at base where 
exposed to weather.  Structural Condition 
assessment = fair to good.

Continued maintenance should be performed.  Logs 
should be regularly sealed to protect from weathering X 5

Parks/Rec Structural Picnic Shelter and 
Bathroom Building at 
Hartwell Park:

Heavy Timber trusses and columns.  Some water 
damage, minor timber damage, and mis drilled 
columns.  Column bases on West side have 
displaced and moved due to tree root issues.  
Column caps have peeling paint.  Structural 
Condition assessment = good with continued 
maintenance.

Continued maintenance of exposed timber needed.  
Column bases on west side that have moved appear to 
be caused by tree roots.  Removal of trees impacting 
the building should be considered. The wooden 
pavilion portoin of the picnic shelter was re-built in 
2015 - this seems significant given how recent this 
rebuild occured?

X 5

Parks/Rec Structural Stage Structure at 
Hartwell Park

Combined wood and steel structure of recent 
construction.  ICF foundation has exposed 
styrofoam.  Decking appears to be weathering and 
unsealed.  Structural Condition assessment = 
good

Exposed foam of ICF foundation should be protected 
from UV/weather by covering with flashing or siding.  
Decking should be maintained and sealed regularly. X 5

Parks/Rec Structural Greenstreet Park 
Pumphouse

Green Street Park pumphouse:  pumps irrigation 
water to school.  Wood frame building on concrete 
foundation.  Water damage and likely structural 
damage observed to corner of building at base.  
Structural condition assessment = fair

Repairs to plumbing and piping to prevent further water 
damage.  Structural repairs are likely needed at this 
time. X 5

Police Department
Police Department Operations Equipment Patrol car Explorers need a trailer hitch to be able 

to tow radar trailer
Purchase and Install hitches for at least one vehicle X 5

Police Department Architectural Evidence Vault Has no fireproofing, the door would burn. Replace door with site improvements X 5
Police Department Architectural Evidence vault Marshal said they cannot fit all the evidence they 

acquire. 
Create secure location with off-site storage for a larger 
evidence vault.  Possible location could be a storage 
container at public works yard. Possibly convert the 
area above the vault and incorporate it into the secure 
storage area.

X 3

Police Department MEP Evidence Vault Isn't ventilated so odors from crime scenes, 
accidents and drugs can carry over into office 
space.

Install ventilation (exhaust fan) for evidence or identify 
location to build, or explore opportunities for 
containment of specific evidence that bleeds into the 
office space, or identify / lease space elsewhere to 
contain smelly evidence. 

X 4

Police Department MEP Evidence vault Does not have cold storage - must take samples to 
Montrose to maintain Chain of Custody.

Buy/acquire a dedicated refrigerator
X 5

Police Department Operations Evidence vault Items are destroyed at end if no claimant Hold a town vault sale to raise funds and repurpose 
items that are unclaimed. X 5

Police Department MEP Office Space Marshal's office cold in winter hot in summer Add AC, correct Town Hall mechanical, electrical, and 
plumbing (MEP). Issues described below. X 3

3/12/2019

3 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Police Department
Police Department MEP Office Space AC is unsecured in window. Cardboard currently 

fills the empty window.
Secure AC or replace with mini split. X 5

Police Department Operations Office Space Department has no private meeting space – 
nonexistent in Town Hall. Need space to interview 
suspects, witnesses, investigators.

Create multiuse conference space in Town Hall to 
meet this need.  Possible repurposing of document 
storage room in building to create conference room. 
Look offsite for a private location for interviews, 
perhaps could be incoporated with the Sheriff's Office 
and any future construction on the County Land Use 
Property.

X 2

Police Department Operations Office Space Prefer to stay in Town Hall, enables open door 
policy and comraderie between departments of the 
Town; however, the Department will likely have 
longer term needs that requires additional and /or 
private space.

Improve workspace for Marshal and deputies at Town 
Hall to fit needs. See Figure 1.

X 2

Police Department Operations Staffing Workload is likely to change over time based on 
many factors including population changes, 
tourism, events, regional impacts, etc.

Conduct detailed analysis of department to ascertain 
efficiencies, improvements, staffing needs for future, 
etc.

X 4
Police Department Operations Staffing Lack of a jail or holding facility in Ouray County 

creates longer transport times to Montrose Jail 
when need arises.

Explore regional opportunities with the City of Ouray 
and Ouray County such as shared services with Ouray 
County for transport or a detention facility in Ouray 
County.

4

Police Department Operations Technology Current software prevents Marshal from 
communicating with other agencies to identify 
recurrent incidents across towns by the same 
suspects.  Only one user can be on program at a 
time.

The Town has budgeted to purchase Spillman software 
in 2019 at significant up front cost and with significantly 
higher annual maintenace fees. X 3

Police Department Operations Technology Department would like to establish a budget or 
regular process for upgrading equipment, such as 
Tasers, or for adding modern equipment

Identify regular funding sources. See report for other 
funding grants and programs. X 5

Police Department Operations Technology Radar trailer unable to provide traffic counts, Dead 
batteries so historic counts in memory are lost.

Get a new battery for street count data.  Ask for 
assistance from Public works crew in fixing it. X 5

Police Department Operations Vehicles Cars are useful but not all-weather.  Would prefer 
to have all vehicles with 4wd or AWD.

Explore opportunities to acquire 4-wheel drive or all-
wheel drive vehicles over time, and explore the 
functionality of studded, snow tires, etc. Town Council 
has previously expressed an interest in having an 
alternative fuel fleet and reducing the Town's carbon 
footprint with the Regional Sneffels Energy Board so 
reconciling the needs of the Department with the 
desires of the elected officials is important.

X 3

Police Department Operations Vehicles Fleet has 2 Ford Explorers, 2 cars (Ford Fusion 
and Chevy Impala) and a 2006 Dodge Durango. 
The Impala does not work well. The emergency 
lights on the Fusion don't always work. The 
vehicles are heavily used and generally require 
quite a bit of maintenance. 

As resources allow, plan to replace two (2) vehicles 
with vehicles that meet the Department's needs and 
the Council's goals. Repair vehicles in interim. X X 3

3/12/2019

4 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Police Department
Police Department Architectural Workflow No document storage offsite. Add offsite storage.  Consider collaborating with the 

Administrative Offices for sharing of off-site storage, or 
utilizing Public Works Hut Building for document 
storage.

X 4

Police Department Operations Workflow Marshal and Deputies don't live in Ridgway. Continue efforts to secure affordable work force 
housing in Ridgway or at least an overnight spot for 
one Marshal (in addition to what is available in the Fire 
Department or consider a longer term arrangement 
with the Fire Department).  Salaries were adjusted in 
2016  with all other town employees to insure 
competitive salaries for the Marshal and Deputies, and 
which are in place. The Marshals have been provided a 
housing stipend that is not available to other Town 
employees to help offset the cost of housing. The 
current housing stipend was reviewed with the Town's 
salary survey in 2016, and may be revisited in the 
future . 

X 3

Public Works Yard
Public Works Yard Structural Public Works Office / 

Hut
CMU block pier style temporary foundation with 
wood frame building - structural condition 
assessment = fair, foundation doesn't meet code 
for permanent building

Budget for routine maintenance. 

X 5

Public Works Yard Structural Public Works Shop Public Works Shop - Manufactured roof trusses 
with 2X6 wood frame walls and exterior 2x girts, 
slab on grade floor.  Structural condition 
assessment = good

Budget for routine maintenance.

X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Equipment Crew sometimes damages infrastructure during 
emergency repairs because the bucket contacts or 
hits underground infrastructure.

Consider purchasing/leasing an 8” Vacuum Truck to 
use for excavating utility and water breaks.

X 1

Public Works Yard Public Works Equipment Purchases are generally reactive at time of failure. 
Typically purchase used vehicles and equipment. 
Most have 100,000 miles when acquired and are 
retained by PW 10 years.

Consider a capital reserve program for vehicle 
replacement. This will promote an inventory of newer 
vehicles for fleet user which are more reliable and 
better suited for their specific use. Vehicles purchases 
can be staggered for scheduled replacement.

X 2

Public Works Yard Public Works Staffing There are 3 operators who rotate being on call for 
a week at a time, with an additional full-time 
employee who does not take on-call and part time 
employee whom assists on an as-needed basis 
with utility work and who also does not take on-call 
duty.

Eventually hire the part time employee to full-time to 
prevent loss of training invested in him.

X 2

3/12/2019

5 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Public Works Yard
Public Works Yard Public Works Staffing The potential for retirement exists within the Public 

Works Department, with most employees having a 
very long tenure.

Plan ahead for succession, document, cross-train and 
pass knowledge to other Public Works employees. X 4

Public Works Yard Public Works Staffing Water main repairs are delayed due to lack of 
markout skills. 

1) Need to utilize Private contractors who can provide 
emergency locates for non-town utilities when waiting 
to repair water breaks and 2) Develop the GIS 
database and asset management program rather to 
minimize future contracting out locates for the town. 
Finally communicate with other utility providers and 
convey the urgency for locates to be completd on-time. 

X 4

Public Works Yard Public Works Technology PW has two computer workstations shared by 
Town Engineer and all field staff which seems to 
be adequate.

Insure workstation is up to date and protected and 
accessible to all PW employees. 4

Public Works Yard Public Works Vehicles Small vehicle repairs are taken care of in-house by 
PW streets staff if time allows.

Make sure all records are accurate and complete for all 
repairs. 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Vehicles Yellow Equipment repairs, and Diesel truck repairs 
are outsourced to the OEM Service Department 
and a field tech from the dealer responds to 
complete repairs on site.

Continue with this plan, it seems to be working.  
Improve Maintenance record keeping. X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Vehicles Repairs for gasoline and light vehicles are serviced 
at a local auto repair service, Sunset Automotive in 
RW and Valvoline in Montrose.

Consider filing repair invoices in folders assigned to 
each vehicle, or tracking in a log. Recommend 
developing a maintenance schedule for the whole fleet 
at least monitored manually or an inexpensive vehicle 
maintenance program that the Public Works 
Administrator or Manager could maintain. Insure Town 
is getting the best value for repairs. An agreement with 
the City of Montrose Fleet maintenance may be an 
opportunity for the Town to save money on 
maintenance and repairs.

X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Vehicles 1991 Ford F150 needs to be scrapped. Scheduled 
to be crushed. No replacement scheduled.

No replacement needed for this vehicle. On crew's 
radar will address when able. X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow The Town tries to control additional costs of 
overtime to operate within their budget.

Improvements in efficiencies and additional cross-
training and communication within the department can 
help to work smart and reduce much of the need for 
overtime. 

X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow Documentation - It appears that all the ROW 
improvements including overlays, chip seals, 
drainage improvements, etc. are not documented. 
Same for vehicle and equipment repairs and street 
crew daily activity. Same for Parks/ Trails and 
Special Projects 

Incorporate necessary details into GIS Asset 
Management Database and insure it is maintained and 
there is systematic monitoring, reporting, budgeting 
and follow up. X 4

3/12/2019

6 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Public Works Yard
Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow - Winter Front End Loading of trucks to clear downtown 

streets is arduous and time-consuming.  The 
downtown area along the highway corridor from 
Laura Street through the Uncompahgre Bridge 
requires that snow be plowed to the centerline, 
loaded into trucks and hauled away. The operation 
will require a wheel loader and at least two trucks 
with significant snowfall. The Town leases a loader 
for the winter season and has contracts ready for a 
supplemental dump truck and driver when needed.

Continue as needed. Consider Purchasing or Lease 
option for a Snow Blower Attachment to improve 
efficiency. An engine driven snow blower mounted on 
said wheel loader would simplify the process and 
reduce the time required for the snow removal in the 
downtown and State Highway situations, although this 
is very expensive and if the Town does not own the 
loader for the attachment, the Town may want to 
consider purchasing the loader first and then the snow 
blower attachment.

X 2

Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow - Winter Snow removal equipment is stored indoors in the 
winter. This includes 2 backhoe loaders, 1 wheel 
loader, 1 motor grader and 1 plow truck with 
sander and tire chains. Not enough indoor storage 
for all this equipment. The shop only has 3 bays. 
Believe grader is too large to fit inside. 

Expansion of indoor storage space will be needed as 
the fleet and services grow. 

X 1

Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow - Winter In addition to hauling snow the staff must haul 
sanding material from Colona at Rocky Mountain 
Aggregate.

Continue as needed. Consider contracting private 
dump trucks to perform this task if the Town Staff are 
not available to do it in the future. 

X 3
Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow - Winter Snow removal performed on trails/sidewalks 

utilizes 2 Skid steer Loaders equipped with 
buckets, a snow blower and a rotating broom to 
enhance the efficiency of the work process. 
Current snowblower is too big for most sidewalks 
but too small to move windrows into trucks. 

Additional equipment is needed to plow the sidewalks 
from Laura to Amelia on Highway 62 as the sidewalks 
are too narrow for the equipment currently owned by 
the town. Consider purchasing a 4-wheeler with blade 
to remove snow on sidewalks. If snowblower 
technology improves or conditions change, a push 
behind snowblower could be another opportunity.

X 3

Public Works Yard Public Works Workflow - Winter PW currently participates with the Municipal 
annual trade out program offered on their S650 
Skid steer loader.

The Bobcat Corporation anticipates extending this offer 
to the Bobcat Tool cat. When this opportunity arises, 
this would be an excellent chance to add the Tool cat 
to the new machine program for $4,000 a year. The 
machine is always under warranty, so fuel is the only 
expense.

X 5

Public Works Yard Public Works Yard Public Works Yard has a lot of space, some of 
which is used for laydown of projects (such as pipe 
delivery),  heavy equipment, junk, plow equipment.

Could create additional "inside" storage and organize 
the yard by getting some 40' "shipping containers" or 
insulated containers in corner of yard to meet other 
town storage needs

X 3

Public Works Yard Public Works Equipment Have a small portable generator which is presently 
not used often.

Repair it for emergency preparedness. X 5
Town Hall
Town Hall MEP Building Offices only have one or two plugs. Breakers 

commonly blow from overloading.
Additional circuits needed / could trigger new service 
with AC upgrade. X 3

3/12/2019

7 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Town Hall
Town Hall MEP Electrical Fire Liability - Extension cords stapled all over the 

Town Hall.
Get and electrician to run conduit for these circuits. X 5

Town Hall MEP HVAC Office staff need space heaters in the winter and 
fans in the summer

Trouble shoot Infloor heat, rezone areas if possible, 
add AC. X 3

Town Hall MEP HVAC Office supply room - also records storage - High 
temperatures due to server.

Add mini split AC. X 3
Town Hall MEP HVAC Marshal's office cold in winter hot in summer. Add AC (mini-split) with secondary heating element. X 3
Town Hall Architectural Storage There is not enough storage in TH to store tables 

and chairs, so they are stored against the walls in 
the community center in the open meeting areas.

Consider expanding Storage at town hall, or creating 
off-site storage.  Possible location for on-site is 
enclosure of the Community Center area that has exit 
door to the front of the building facing Railroad Street. 

X 4

Town Hall Civil/Infrastructure Use of Space - Building Marshals Office is full with one Marshal, 2 
Deputies and 1 Victim Advocate with limited space 
to grow over time; no separation and privacy for 
interrogation.

Consider reworking file storage room into a conference 
room for all departments.  Scan and digitally store files, 
locate hard copies off site. Storage room is windowless 
and without ventilation and will need some 
improvements. Another option may be to convert the 
supply/copy room into additional shared office space 
for all employees and could accommodate an 
interrogation room, private work space, etc. The copy / 
supply room will need to be relocated - perhaps the 
archive/storage/server room is a better location for the 
copy/supply/server room, although it still needs better 
ventilation and would need some work to have access 
that doesn't impact the more private uses in the new 
space. 

X 4

Town Hall Civil/Infrastructure Use of Space - Building Town Hall (TH) was previously available to the 
public as a community room. This has been 
discontinued to accommodate town business 
schedules. This leaves the community with limited 
options on space to conduct meetings, 
celebrations and special events

Consider adding space either at Town Hall, at Visitor 
Center, once train museum has moved,or other 
location such as in the future Space to Create building 
or encourage others such as the Fire, School and/or 
Library Districts, Ouray County, and/or the private 
sector such as Proximity Space or others, to contribute 
to community space. If the US Postal Service relocates 
in the future, the current Post Office building may be 
converted into public, community space. 

X 1

Town Hall Civil/Infrastructure Use of Space - Building The TH has been expanded to try to meet the 
needs of staff. Closets and storage areas have 
been modified to become offices. It continues to be 
inefficient due to crowding in work spaces.

Build or rent additional space to meet the needs of the 
organization. Where? How? How Big? How much? 
For what purpose? X 3

Town Hall Civil/Infrastructure Use of Space - Building Town Council (TC) holds 2 – 3 meetings per 
month. If there is a meeting which has anticipated 
turnout exceeding TH capacity TC can meet in the 
Elementary School or 4H Event Center.

Begin planning for an expansion or a new building.  
Where? How? How Big? How much? For what 
purpose? X 2

3/12/2019

8 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Town Hall
Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building Town Hall has a poor use of functional space Observations or short term modifications to Town Hall: 

- Break down wall in between planning and community 
initatives/public works, create more efficient space in 
there. 
- Hire Scanning company to archive all paper records, 
move file archival off site (sea? - not sure what this is 
"sea"? - box storage in Public Works Yard)
- Install cooling system for server, relocate copy and 
supply room into the archive room
- shrink kitchen space in Town Hall to use the "second 
half" to use for office spaces / private conference room. 
- use 5' high cubicle spaces for staff, create way of 
noise canceling or dampening to enable more quiet 
and private workspace
- modify reception window to prevent everyone from 
being in each others business - 

X 3

Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building Front Office has no privacy; gets noisy and 
crowded when there are people in there.

Re-organize front office, see Figure 1 for conceptual 
solution. X 3

Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building Pam's Office - missing storage, only two plugs, 
extension cords everywhere

Add storage shelves, see Figure 1 for conceptual 
solution. X 3

Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building File Storage - missing office supply closet, space 
to lay out projects.

Create conference room for meetings and project 
layout.  Identify space for copier and office supplies - 
see Figure 1 for conceptual. 

X 3
Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building The Vault needs a new shelving system Purchase or build better shelving. X 5
Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building No airlock door for community room in Town Hall Add airlock/vestibule - at Railroad Street where primary 

traffic access the building. X 4
Town Hall Architectural Use of Space - Building Public wanders throughout the Town Hall.  Public 

comes in to use just the restrooms. Need limited 
access.

Consider a vestibule. Wall partition to secure front of 
building - see Figure 1 for conceptual. Improve signage 
to pavilion restrooms and/or build more restrooms in 
Hartwell Park.

X 4

Town Hall Architectural Building Front door gets blown open and broken by the 
wind.

Change door orientation due to wind so it still open 
outward and install a door closer device. Add airlock / 
vestibule at south parking lot entry to Town Hall. X 5

Town Hall Structural Town Hall Building Vault may be settling, repeat cracks in drywall Not a structural issue currently. Monitor and reevaluate 
if it gets larger. X 5

Town Hall Structural Town Hall Building Town Hall building:  Wood frame on concrete 
foundation with manufactured siding and standing 
seam metal roof.  Structural condition assessment 
= good.  Minor exception for cracks in wall 
adjacent to vault

Budget for routine maintenance (i.e. Painting exterior, 
plumbing, HVAC semi annual service, electrical circuits 
to replace extension cords, more electrical outlets). X 5

Town Hall Planning Future "Space to Create" Building at Laura & 
Clinton may be usable as a office space for the 
building

Dedicate some of the space for town government 
offices. X 5

3/12/2019

9 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Visitor Center
Visitor Center MEP Building Fire Liability -Visitor Center Electric extension 

cords everywhere
Get and electrician to run conduit for these circuits, if 
the building is to remain. X 5

Visitor Center Civil/Infrastructure Amenities Parking lot is multiple use (Staging, Shuttling, 
Share Parking) and dirt.

Coordinate areas, grade and improve drainage, and 
pave the parking lot. Add signage and landscaping etc. 
Improve visibility and access and integrate with the 
remainder of Heritage Park.

X 4

Visitor Center Civil/Infrastructure Amenities Share entry with Fairgrounds Opportunity to share costs of upgrades to parking and 
landscape with Ouray County and Ridgdway Area 
Chamber of Commerce and user groups.

X 2
Visitor Center Civil/Infrastructure Function Chamber of Commerce would love to offer electric 

charging (EV) station at visitor center
Explore supplemental funding opportunities with the 
Charge Ahead Colorado program, the program used to 
fund the EV station in Hartwell Park, as well as SMPA 
who also contributed to the Hartwell Park station, and 
other interested stakeholders.

X 2

Visitor Center Civil/Infrastructure Visibility Most visitors drive by not knowing Visitor Center 
exists.

Add landscaping that is more inviting, picnic tables, 
solar flower array, electric car charging station, more 
bicycle racks, creative signage and gateway 
improvments/artwork, etc.

X 5

Visitor Center Civil/Infrastructure Visibility Most visitors drive by not knowing Visitor Center 
exists.

Improve attractiveness of building, perhaps by turning 
building around or add an addition to the front to invite 
public in, or remove the building altogether and create 
a reason for visitor's to stop and learn more about the 
Ridgway Area through interactive and creative spaces 
and placemaking and wayfinding efforts.

X 2

Visitor Center Architectural Building RACC is interested in creating a more welcoming 
and visible gateway area with or without a specific 
building for a visitor center, either through 
upgrades or a new structure or other reimagined 
space for all of Heritage Park and the Park and 
Ride.

RACC is open to idea of a new visitor center to being a 
flexible space which is open to community and 
business meetings.  Many of these events occur after 
'visitor center' hours, which might duly ease pressure of 
the town hall as a meeting space. RACC is also open 
to completely reinventing this space and dispensing 
with a building specific to tourism or a visitor's center. 
Engage the community and the Chamber to create a 
plan for this key gateway area that can serve a 
multitude of uses and purposes for the Ridgway 
community, the Town, and visitors. 

X 4

Visitor Center Architectural Building The current Visitor Center should be evaluated for 
repairs needed to structure, electrical, roof, and 
siding, if desired.

Analysis and life cycle analysis of the current building 
versus a new building or structure, or no building at all 
for this space, should be performed. 

X 5
Visitor Center Structural Building Fairgrounds visitor center:  Historic wood frame 

building, appears to have concrete foundation.  
Noticeable bow and sag in roof.  Structural 
condition assessment = fair.

Likely repairs to roof framing needed at some point.  
Bow and sag is likely due to insufficient structural 
strength of roof framing and age of structure. X 4

3/12/2019

10 of 11



SGM
Ridgway Facilities Assessment
Assessment Observations

Asset / Location Discipline
Asset / Area of 

Concern Comments / Observations Possible Solution / Future Needs

Near Term 
Goal (1-5 

year)

Mid Term 
Goal (5-10 

year)

Long Term 
Goal (20+ 

year)
Financial 
Impact

Visitor Center
Visitor Center Operations Amenities Crossroads, gateway, Ridgway is the destination 

and key gateway for travel to Ridgway and also the 
intersection point for travel to Ouray or Telluride.

Coordinate with CDOT at light and ride sharing to get 
the focal point to turn and come into the Town by 
planning and improving this key gateway area. The 
Town has the park and ride facility listed on the 
regional transit and CDOT improvements plan and 
should continue to insure this remains a statewide and 
regional priority.

X 1

Visitor Center Operations Amenities Ridgway does not have overnight hookups at 
Fairgrounds for specific overnight visitors to the 
Fairgrounds (not for an RV Park) and hookups/RV 
stations are not in the Fairgrounds Master Plan.

If the community, Town and County are supportive, 
maybe look at adding hookups and charging for 
overnight stays for those using the Fairgrounds 
property for specific events on the Fairgrounds property 
and for limited time periods. Dumping stations are not 
recommended for the Town's lagoon system.

X 3

Visitor Center Operations Building Visitor Center property currently does not promote 
sustainability or necessarily promote "what is 
Ridgway" in this location.

Develop a Master plan for the property with community 
input; Coordinate with the schools and set up programs 
for Xeriscaping, rain water catchment, power 
generation - small wind mill, solar flower array, or other 
priorities that reflect the character and spirit of the 
Ridgway community.

X 4

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Wastewater Treatment Pl MEP Generator Emergency generator not working, apparently 

purchased used and circuit board fails each time it 
is replaced.

Acquisition of adequately size portable unit that could 
power other facilities, or permanent back-up power 
generations, possibly as part of next WWTP upgrade. X 3

3/12/2019

11 of 11



Town of Ridgway March 2019 

Capital Assessment Final Report 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
Street Options and Costs 

 



Unpaved surfaces: Code #
Primitive Road       13
Unimproved Road 14
Graded Road, natural 
earth 15
Soil, gravel, or Stone 
(best unimproved road 
surface) 16 Road Classification

A = Arterial
Paved Surfaces C = Collector
Asphalt 1 L = Local

Road LENGTH Area Gravel Overlay Total
ROUTE ROUTENAME SEGMID FROMFEATURE SEGMDIR TOFEATURE PRISURF Class Miles sq.ft. Cost Cost Cost
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 100 SCL N STREET ONE 16 C 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 150 STREET ONE N SH 62 16 C 0.3 38,016 $37,547 $105,600 $143,147
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 200 SH 62 N CHARLES ST 16 C 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 300 CHARLES ST N NCL 16 C 0.4 50,688 $50,062 $140,800 $190,862
AMY      WY AMY WY 100 CDS N CDS 1 L 0.08 10,982 $20,338 $20,338
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 100 AMELIA ST E ALLEY WEST OF LENA 16 L 0.404 51,195 $50,563 $142,208 $192,771
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 150 ALLEY WEST OF LENAE LENA 1 L 0.03 4,435 $8,213 $8,213
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 200 LENA E RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.066 17,772 $32,912 $32,912
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 100 MOFFAT ST N HYDE ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $8,761 $24,640 $33,401
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 200 HYDE ST N SH 62 16 L 0.07 8,870 $8,761 $24,640 $33,401
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 300 SH 62 N CHARLES ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
CHIPETA  DR CHIPETA DR 100 CDS E LENA ST 16 L 0.3 50,688 $50,062 $140,800 $190,862
CHIPETA  DR CHIPETA DR 200 LENA ST E CR 23 16 L 0.081 15,396 $15,206 $42,768 $57,974
CIMARRON DR CIMARRON DR 200 VISTA DR NW CDS 16 L 0.26 21,965 $21,694 $61,013 $82,707
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 100 SH 62 E AMELIA ST 16 L 0.09 11,405 $11,264 $31,680 $42,944
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 200 AMELIA ST E LAURA ST 16 L 0.287 36,369 $35,920 $101,024 $136,944
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 300 LAURA ST E LENA ST 1 L 0.133 23,876 $44,215 $44,215
CORA     ST CORA ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
CORA     ST CORA ST 200 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.069 16,759 $31,035 $31,035
CORA     ST CORA ST 225 CLINTON N 100' N OF CLINTON 1 L 0.02 3,802 $7,040 $7,040
CORA     ST CORA ST 250 100' N OF CLINTON N CHARLES ST 16 L 0.088 11,151 $11,014 $30,976 $41,990
CORA     ST CORA ST 300 CHARLES ST N OTTO ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
CORA     ST CORA ST 400 CDS N ROUNDHOUSE DR 1 L 0.03 5,069 $9,387 $9,387
CORA     ST CORA ST 500 ROUNDHOUSE DR N RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.16 27,034 $50,062 $50,062
CORA     ST CORA ST 700 END N ESCALANTE CI 1 L 0.03 4,118 $7,627 $7,627
ELIZABETHST ELIZABETH ST 50 AMELIA ST NE MOFFAT ST 16 L 0.1 16,896 $16,687 $46,933 $63,621
ELIZABETHST ELIZABETH ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
ESCALANTECI ESCALANTE CI 100 RIVER PARK DR E CDS 1 L 0.07 9,610 $17,796 $17,796
FREDERICKST FREDERICK ST 50 MARY ST E LAURA ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $8,761 $24,640 $33,401
FREDERICKST FREDERICK ST 100 CORA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $8,761 $24,640 $33,401
GREEN    ST GREEN ST 100 RAILROAD ST N SCHOOL 1 L 0.26 35,693 $66,098 $66,098
HUNTER   PY HUNTER PY 100 SH 550 E END 1 C 0.16 32,102 $59,449 $59,449
HYDE     ST HYDE ST 50 MARIE ST E AMELIA ST 1 L 0.04 6,758 $12,516 $12,516
HYDE     ST HYDE ST 100 AMELIA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.42 62,093 $61,326 $172,480 $233,806
KISMET   ST KISMET ST 100 RIVER PARK DR N MARION ST 1 L 0.19 26,083 $48,302 $48,302
LANDS ENDDR LANDS END DR 100 VISTA DR SE TERRACE DR 16 L 0.08 6,758 $6,675 $18,773 $25,448
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 200 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.069 16,759 $31,035 $31,035
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 300 CLINTON N 120' N OF CLINTON 1 L 0.046 11,172 $20,690 $20,690
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 350 120' N OF CLINTON N FREDERICK ST 16 L 0.095 12,038 $11,890 $33,440 $45,330
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 400 RAILROAD ST NE KISMET ST 1 L 0.21 28,829 $53,387 $53,387

Streets Option 1 - All Asphalt



Unpaved surfaces: Code #
Primitive Road       13
Unimproved Road 14
Graded Road, natural 
earth 15
Soil, gravel, or Stone 
(best unimproved road 
surface) 16 Road Classification

A = Arterial
Paved Surfaces C = Collector
Asphalt 1 L = Local

Streets Option 1 - All Asphalt

LE RANCH BD LE RANCH BD 100 AMELIA ST W AMY WY 1 L 0.05 6,864 $12,711 $12,711
LENA     ST LENA ST 100 CHIPETA DR N MOFFAT ST 1 C 0.06 8,237 $15,253 $15,253
LENA     ST LENA ST 200 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 1 C 0.13 17,846 $33,049 $33,049
LENA     ST LENA ST 300 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.078 22,651 $41,947 $41,947
LENA     ST LENA ST 350 CLINTON N CHARLES ST 1 L 0.082 23,813 $44,098 $44,098
LENA     ST LENA ST 400 CHARLES ST N OTTO ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
LIDDELL  DR LIDDELL DR 100 SH 62 S CDS 16 L 0.14 22,176 $21,902 $61,600 $83,502
MALL     RD MALL RD 100 REDCLIFF DR N SRFCH 1 L 0.04 5,491 $10,169 $10,169
MALL     RD MALL RD 200 SRFCH N END 16 L 0.06 8,237 $8,135 $22,880 $31,015
MARIE    ST MARIE ST 100 AMELIA ST W HYDE ST 1 L 0.14 23,654 $43,804 $43,804
MARION   ST MARION ST 100 RIVER PARK DR W GREEN ST 1 L 0.23 31,574 $58,471 $58,471
MARY     ST MARY ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
MARY     ST MARY ST 200 SH 62 N FREDERICK ST 16 L 0.21 26,611 $26,283 $73,920 $100,203
MCCALL   DR MCCALL DR 100 ALLEY A E CORA ST 1 L 0.03 4,435 $8,213 $8,213
MOFFAT   ST MOFFAT ST 100 AMELIA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.42 39,917 $39,424 $110,880 $150,304
OLDHWY23 OLD HWY 23 100 CL NW MOFFAT ST 1 L 0.31 39,283 $72,747 $72,747
OTTO     ST OTTO ST 100 CORA ST E LENA ST 1 L 0.08 13,517 $25,031 $25,031
OTTO     ST OTTO ST 200 LENA ST E RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.06 10,138 $18,773 $18,773
PALOMINO TR PALOMINO TR 100 HUNTER PY SE CR 12 1 L 0.32 64,205 $118,898 $118,898
PARK     AV PARK AV 100 VISTA DR NE TERRACE DR 16 L 0.16 20,275 $20,025 $56,320 $76,345
PARKSIDE ST PARKSIDE ST 100 GREEN ST E LAURA ST 1 L 0.03 4,118 $7,627 $7,627
RABBITBRUCT RABBITBRUSH CT 100 VISTA DR NW CDS 16 L 0.08 6,758 $6,675 $18,773 $25,448
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 100 SH 62 N OTTO ST 1 C 0.28 41,395 $76,658 $76,658
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 200 OTTO ST NW RIVER PARK DR 1 C 0.36 49,421 $91,520 $91,520
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 300 RIVER PARK DR W GREEN ST 1 C 0.1 13,728 $25,422 $25,422
REDCLIFF DR REDCLIFF DR 100 HUNTER PY N END 1 C 0.3 60,192 $111,467 $111,467
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 100 RAILROAD ST N KISMET ST 1 L 0.06 8,554 $15,840 $15,840
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 200 KISMET ST NE MARION ST 1 L 0.16 21,965 $40,676 $40,676
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 300 MARION ST E END 1 L 0.13 17,846 $33,049 $33,049
RIVERSAGEDR RIVER SAGE DR 100 SH 50 SW STR 1 L 0.37 39,072 $72,356 $72,356
RIVERSAGEDR RIVER SAGE DR 200 STR NW CDS 16 L 0.92 106,867 $105,548 $296,853 $402,401
ROUNDHOUSDR ROUNDHOUSE DR 100 OTTO ST NW ALLEY A 1 L 0.15 25,344 $46,933 $46,933
RUSTYSPURST RUSTY SPUR ST 100 RIVER SAGE DR W CDS 16 L 0.23 26,717 $26,387 $74,213 $100,600
SABETA   DR SABETA DR 100 AMELIA ST E CHIPETA DR 16 L 0.66 111,514 $110,137 $309,760 $419,897
STREETONE STREET ONE 100 WCL E AMELIA ST 16 L 0.24 30,413 $30,037 $84,480 $114,517
STREETTWO STREET TWO 100 BGN SE AMELIA ST 16 L 0.15 12,672 $12,516 $35,200 $47,716
TABERNASHLN TABERNASH LN 100 SABETA DR N SABETA DR 16 L 0.29 48,998 $48,393 $136,107 $184,500
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 100 SH 550 SE VISTA DR 16 L 0.33 41,818 $41,301 $116,160 $157,461
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 200 VISTA DR NE PARK AV 16 L 0.31 39,283 $38,798 $109,120 $147,918
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 300 PARK AV SE LANDS END DR 16 L 0.02 1,690 $1,669 $4,693 $6,362
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 400 LANDS END DR SE END 16 L 0.26 21,965 $21,694 $61,013 $82,707
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 100 TERRACE DR SW RABBITBRUSH CT 16 L 0.04 5,069 $5,006 $14,080 $19,086
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 200 RABBITBRUSH CT SE CIMARRON DR 16 L 0.09 11,405 $11,264 $31,680 $42,944
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 300 CIMARRON DR SE PARK AV 16 L 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 400 PARK AV NE LANDS END DR 16 L 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 500 LANDS END DR SE CDS 16 L 0.14 17,741 $17,522 $49,280 $66,802
Total 14.728 $1,205,415 $4,935,040 $6,140,455

Assumptions
1 All gravel streets received 4" of gravel and 3" of asphalt
2 All streets paved with asphalt received just a 2" asphalt overlay
3 Costs do not include any improvements to sub-base, drianiage, or storm and sanitary sewer



Streets Option 2 - Asphalt Collectors Unpaved surfaces: Code #

Primitive Road       13
Unimproved Road 14
Graded Road, natural 
earth 15

Soil, gravel, or Stone 
(best unimproved 
road surface) 16 Road Classification

A = Arterial
Paved Surfaces C = Collector
Asphalt 1 L = Local

Road LENGTH Area Gravel Overlay Total
ROUTE ROUTENAME SEGMID FROMFEATURE SEGMDIR TOFEATURE PRISURF Class Miles sq.ft. Cost Cost Cost
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 100 SCL N STREET ONE 16 C 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 150 STREET ONE N SH 62 16 C 0.3 38,016 $37,547 $105,600 $143,147
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 200 SH 62 N CHARLES ST 16 C 0.15 19,008 $18,773 $52,800 $71,573
AMELIA   ST AMELIA ST 300 CHARLES ST N NCL 16 C 0.4 50,688 $0
AMY      WY AMY WY 100 CDS N CDS 1 L 0.08 10,982 $20,338 $20,338
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 100 AMELIA ST E ALLEY WEST OF LENA 16 L 0.404 51,195 $0
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 150 ALLEY WEST OF LENAE LENA 1 L 0.03 4,435 $8,213 $8,213
CHARLES  ST CHARLES ST 200 LENA E RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.066 17,772 $32,912 $32,912
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 100 MOFFAT ST N HYDE ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $0
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 200 HYDE ST N SH 62 16 L 0.07 8,870 $0
CHARLOTTEST CHARLOTTE ST 300 SH 62 N CHARLES ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
CHIPETA  DR CHIPETA DR 100 CDS E LENA ST 16 L 0.3 50,688 $0
CHIPETA  DR CHIPETA DR 200 LENA ST E CR 23 16 L 0.081 15,396 $0
CIMARRON DR CIMARRON DR 200 VISTA DR NW CDS 16 L 0.26 21,965 $0
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 100 SH 62 E AMELIA ST 16 L 0.09 11,405 $0
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 200 AMELIA ST E LAURA ST 16 L 0.287 36,369 $0
CLINTON  ST CLINTON ST 300 LAURA ST E LENA ST 1 L 0.133 23,876 $44,215 $44,215
CORA     ST CORA ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
CORA     ST CORA ST 200 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.069 16,759 $31,035 $31,035
CORA     ST CORA ST 225 CLINTON N 100' N OF CLINTON 1 L 0.02 3,802 $7,040 $7,040
CORA     ST CORA ST 250 100' N OF CLINTON N CHARLES ST 16 L 0.088 11,151 $0
CORA     ST CORA ST 300 CHARLES ST N OTTO ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
CORA     ST CORA ST 400 CDS N ROUNDHOUSE DR 1 L 0.03 5,069 $9,387 $9,387
CORA     ST CORA ST 500 ROUNDHOUSE DR N RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.16 27,034 $50,062 $50,062
CORA     ST CORA ST 700 END N ESCALANTE CI 1 L 0.03 4,118 $7,627 $7,627
ELIZABETHST ELIZABETH ST 50 AMELIA ST NE MOFFAT ST 16 L 0.1 16,896 $0
ELIZABETHST ELIZABETH ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
ESCALANTECI ESCALANTE CI 100 RIVER PARK DR E CDS 1 L 0.07 9,610 $17,796 $17,796
FREDERICKST FREDERICK ST 50 MARY ST E LAURA ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $0
FREDERICKST FREDERICK ST 100 CORA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.07 8,870 $0
GREEN    ST GREEN ST 100 RAILROAD ST N SCHOOL 1 L 0.26 35,693 $66,098 $66,098
HUNTER   PY HUNTER PY 100 SH 550 E END 1 C 0.16 32,102 $59,449 $59,449
HYDE     ST HYDE ST 50 MARIE ST E AMELIA ST 1 L 0.04 6,758 $12,516 $12,516
HYDE     ST HYDE ST 100 AMELIA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.42 62,093 $0
KISMET   ST KISMET ST 100 RIVER PARK DR N MARION ST 1 L 0.19 26,083 $48,302 $48,302
LANDS ENDDR LANDS END DR 100 VISTA DR SE TERRACE DR 16 L 0.08 6,758 $0
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 200 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.069 16,759 $31,035 $31,035
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 300 CLINTON N 120' N OF CLINTON 1 L 0.046 11,172 $20,690 $20,690
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 350 120' N OF CLINTON N FREDERICK ST 16 L 0.095 12,038 $0
LAURA    ST LAURA ST 400 RAILROAD ST NE KISMET ST 1 L 0.21 28,829 $53,387 $53,387



LE RANCH BD LE RANCH BD 100 AMELIA ST W AMY WY 1 L 0.05 6,864 $12,711 $12,711
LENA     ST LENA ST 100 CHIPETA DR N MOFFAT ST 1 C 0.06 8,237 $15,253 $15,253
LENA     ST LENA ST 200 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 1 C 0.13 17,846 $33,049 $33,049
LENA     ST LENA ST 300 SH 62 N CLINTON 1 L 0.078 22,651 $41,947 $41,947
LENA     ST LENA ST 350 CLINTON N CHARLES ST 1 L 0.082 23,813 $44,098 $44,098
LENA     ST LENA ST 400 CHARLES ST N OTTO ST 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
LIDDELL  DR LIDDELL DR 100 SH 62 S CDS 16 L 0.14 22,176 $0
MALL     RD MALL RD 100 REDCLIFF DR N SRFCH 1 L 0.04 5,491 $10,169 $10,169
MALL     RD MALL RD 200 SRFCH N END 16 L 0.06 8,237 $0
MARIE    ST MARIE ST 100 AMELIA ST W HYDE ST 1 L 0.14 23,654 $43,804 $43,804
MARION   ST MARION ST 100 RIVER PARK DR W GREEN ST 1 L 0.23 31,574 $58,471 $58,471
MARY     ST MARY ST 100 MOFFAT ST N SH 62 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
MARY     ST MARY ST 200 SH 62 N FREDERICK ST 16 L 0.21 26,611 $0
MCCALL   DR MCCALL DR 100 ALLEY A E CORA ST 1 L 0.03 4,435 $0
MOFFAT   ST MOFFAT ST 100 AMELIA ST E LENA ST 16 L 0.42 39,917 $0
OLDHWY23 OLD HWY 23 100 CL NW MOFFAT ST 1 L 0.31 39,283 $72,747 $72,747
OTTO     ST OTTO ST 100 CORA ST E LENA ST 1 L 0.08 13,517 $25,031 $25,031
OTTO     ST OTTO ST 200 LENA ST E RAILROAD ST 1 L 0.06 10,138 $18,773 $18,773
PALOMINO TR PALOMINO TR 100 HUNTER PY SE CR 12 1 L 0.32 64,205 $118,898 $118,898
PARK     AV PARK AV 100 VISTA DR NE TERRACE DR 16 L 0.16 20,275 $0
PARKSIDE ST PARKSIDE ST 100 GREEN ST E LAURA ST 1 L 0.03 4,118 $7,627 $7,627
RABBITBRUCT RABBITBRUSH CT 100 VISTA DR NW CDS 16 L 0.08 6,758 $0
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 100 SH 62 N OTTO ST 1 C 0.28 41,395 $76,658 $76,658
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 200 OTTO ST NW RIVER PARK DR 1 C 0.36 49,421 $91,520 $91,520
RAILROAD ST RAILROAD ST 300 RIVER PARK DR W GREEN ST 1 C 0.1 13,728 $25,422 $25,422
REDCLIFF DR REDCLIFF DR 100 HUNTER PY N END 1 C 0.3 60,192 $111,467 $111,467
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 100 RAILROAD ST N KISMET ST 1 L 0.06 8,554 $15,840 $15,840
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 200 KISMET ST NE MARION ST 1 L 0.16 21,965 $40,676 $40,676
RIVERPARKDR RIVER PARK DR 300 MARION ST E END 1 L 0.13 17,846 $33,049 $33,049
RIVERSAGEDR RIVER SAGE DR 100 SH 50 SW STR 1 L 0.37 39,072 $72,356 $72,356
RIVERSAGEDR RIVER SAGE DR 200 STR NW CDS 16 L 0.92 106,867 $0
ROUNDHOUSDRROUNDHOUSE DR 100 OTTO ST NW ALLEY A 1 L 0.15 25,344 $46,933 $46,933
RUSTYSPURST RUSTY SPUR ST 100 RIVER SAGE DR W CDS 16 L 0.23 26,717 $0
SABETA   DR SABETA DR 100 AMELIA ST E CHIPETA DR 16 L 0.66 111,514 $0
STREETONE STREET ONE 100 WCL E AMELIA ST 16 L 0.24 30,413 $0
STREETTWO STREET TWO 100 BGN SE AMELIA ST 16 L 0.15 12,672 $0
TABERNASHLN TABERNASH LN 100 SABETA DR N SABETA DR 16 L 0.29 48,998 $0
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 100 SH 550 SE VISTA DR 16 L 0.33 41,818 $0
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 200 VISTA DR NE PARK AV 16 L 0.31 39,283 $0
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 300 PARK AV SE LANDS END DR 16 L 0.02 1,690 $0
TERRACE  DR TERRACE DR 400 LANDS END DR SE END 16 L 0.26 21,965 $0
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 100 TERRACE DR SW RABBITBRUSH CT 16 L 0.04 5,069 $0
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 200 RABBITBRUSH CT SE CIMARRON DR 16 L 0.09 11,405 $0
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 300 CIMARRON DR SE PARK AV 16 L 0.15 19,008 $0
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 400 PARK AV NE LANDS END DR 16 L 0.15 19,008 $0
VISTA    DR VISTA DR 500 LANDS END DR SE CDS 16 L 0.14 17,741 $0
Total 14.728 $75,093 $1,747,797 $1,822,891

Assumptions
1 All streets paved with asphalt received just a 2" asphalt overlay
2 All Local gravel streets remained unchanged.
3 Gravel Collector streets received 4" of gravel and a 3" asphalt overly. Amelia Street only road to meet this condition.
4 Costs do not include any improvements to sub-base, drianiage, or storm and sanitary sewer



Assumptions

Cost per ton Cost per sq. yd.
Depth in 
inches Depth in feetLineal Foot Notes

Asphalt $150.00 3 provided by RC with SGM
Asphalt $150.00 2 provided by RC with SGM
Gravel $40.00 4 0.33 provided by RC with SGM
3/4 chip $5.06 2015 GMCO quote   of 4.60 x 10%
3/8 chip $3.58 2015 GMCO quote   of 3.25 x 10%
Doulbe chip $7.70 Estimate of $7 x 10%
Drainage $0.00 TBD
Sub-grade $0.00 TBD
Sewer 0 TBD

Formula’s:

Asphalt L x W  x D X        D  = tons
81 2

Gravel L x W X D (ft.) x 2 = tons
27

Chip Seal Sq, yds. X unit cost    

Ouray County 1 mill = $ 156,202.48

Used for Op1 and Op2 sheets



Town of Ridgway March 2019 

Capital Assessment Final Report 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Appendix C 
Funding Sources



Colorado Water and Wastewater Funding Sources 
Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network, July 2018 

Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network. For the most up-to-date information, contact program managers or see 
http://efcnetwork.org/funding-sources-by-state/. To make corrections, contact waterfundingprograms@unc.edu. Page 1 

 

 

 

 
Organization Program 

(key words) 

 
Gov. 

Entity 

 
Non- 
Profit 

 
For- 

Profit 

 
Purpose or Use of Funds 

 
How to Apply 

 
Website 

 
Contact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Colorado Department of 

Public Health and 
Environment 

 
 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund Loan 
(DWSRF) Program 
 
(water) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  
The purpose of DWSRF program is to provide financial 
assistance to eligible water systems for the construction of 
water projects for public health and compliance purposes as 
described in the DWRF Rules, and to set aside funds from the 
capitalization grant to fund a variety of activities that are 
necessary to accomplish the requirements of the SDWA. 

 

An applicant must complete a Pre- 
Qualification Form to begin. The SRF 
process takes 12-18 months from 
pre-qualification to construction to 
start. Loan application deadlines are 
the 15th of January, February, April, 
June, August, October, and 
November. Planning and Design and 
Engineering grants are available for 
disadvantaged communities. 

 
 
 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi 
c/cdphe/wq-general-srf- 
information  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Colorado Department of Public Health and 
Environment 
cdphe_grantsandloans@state.co.us 
303-692-3653 
 
For regional specific contact see this map: 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/defa 
ult/files/WQ_GLU_Contact_Map.pdf 

Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Fund 
 
(stormwater) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

The Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund provides low 
interest loans to governmental agencies for construction of 
wastewater, stormwater, and non-point source projects. 

 
 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi 
c/cdphe/wq-eligibility-survey 

     
Water Quality Grants and Loans Unit are available for Natural 
Disaster Grant, which must be funded by the legislature, Small 
Communities Grant, Water Quality Improvement Fund Grant, 
Lead Testing in Public Schools Grant. Technical assistance can 
be provided as well. 

  

 Water Quality Grants and 
Loans Unit 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The different grants have various 
requests for application times, and 
funding is dependent on the fund 
balance availability. 

 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi 
c/cdphe/wq-grants-and-loans 

 

 
 
 
 

U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency 

 
 

Water Infrastructure 
Finance and Innovation 
 
(water, wastewater) 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
The Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 2014 
(WIFIA) established the WIFIA program, a federal credit 
program administered by EPA for eligible water and wastewater 
infrastructure projects. The WIFIA program offers loans with 
low, fixed interest rates and flexible financial terms. The 
minimum project size for small communities, population of 
25,000 or less, is $5 million. 

 
The WIFIA application process is 
three phases. Prospective borrowers 
must submit a letter of interest for 
their project to the WIFIA program 
by July 6, 2018. If EPA selects the 
projects, the prospective borrower 
is invited to submit an application. 

 
 
 
 
 
https://www.epa.gov/wifia 

 
 
Karen Fligger 
wifia@epa.gov 
202-564-2992 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, Northwest 
Mailcode 4201T 
Washington, District of Columbia 20460 

  
Waste and Water Disposal 
Direct Loans and Grants 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

  
The purpose of this program is to develop water and waste 
disposal systems in rural areas with populations less than 
10,000. Fixed, low interest rates. Repayment - up to 40 years. 
Grants may be available. 

  

http://www.rd.usda.gov/program 
s-services/water-waste-disposal- 
loan-grant-program/co 

 

 
 
 
 

USDA Rural 
Development 

 
 

Water and Waste Disposal 
Guaranteed Loan Program 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  
The purpose of this program is to provide a loan guarantee for 
the construction or improvement of water and waste disposal 
projects serving the financially needed communities of rural 
areas. This is achieved through bolstering existing private credit 
structure through the guarantee of quality loans. Guarantees up 
to 90% available to eligible lenders. 

 
 
Applications are accepted on a 
rolling basis using the RD Apply 
electronic application system. 
Information is available here: 
http://www.rd.usda.gov/programs- 
services/rd-apply 

 
 
 
http://www.rd.usda.gov/program 
s-services/water-waste-disposal- 
loan-guarantees/co 

 
April Dahlager 
april.dahlager@co.usda.gov 
720-544-2909 
Denver Federal Center, Building 56, Room 
2300 
P.O. Box 25426 
Denver, Colorado 80225 

  
Water and Waste Disposal 
Predevelopment Planning 
Grants 
 
(water, wastewater) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

  
This program assists low-income communities with initial 
planning and development of an application for USDA Rural 
Development Water and Waste Disposal direct loan/grant and 
loan guarantee programs. The maximum is $30,000 or 75% of 
the predevelopment planning costs. 

  
 
http://www.rd.usda.gov/program 
s-services/water-waste-disposal- 
predevelopment-planning- 
grants/co 

 



Colorado Water and Wastewater Funding Sources 
Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network, July 2018 

Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network. For the most up-to-date information, contact program managers or see 
http://efcnetwork.org/funding-sources-by-state/. To make corrections, contact waterfundingprograms@unc.edu. Page 2 

 

 

 

 
Organization Program 

(key words) 

 
Gov. Non-  For- 

Entity Profit Profit 

 
Purpose or Use of Funds 

 
How to Apply 

 
Website 

 
Contact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

USDA Rural 
Development 

 
 
 
Emergency Community 
Water Assistance Grants 
 
(water) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  
This grant program is designed to assist rural communities that 
have experienced a significant decline in quantity or quality of 
drinking water due to an emergency, or in which such decline is 
considered imminent, to obtain or maintain adequate 
quantities of water that meets the standards set by the Safe 
Drinking Water Act. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Applications are accepted on a 
rolling basis using the RD Apply 
electronic application system. 
Information is available here: 
http://www.rd.usda.gov/programs- 
services/rd-apply 

 
 
 
http://www.rd.usda.gov/program 
s-services/emergency-community- 
water-assistance-grants/co 

 
 
 
 
 
 
April Dahlager 
april.dahlager@co.usda.gov 
720-544-2909 
Denver Federal Center, Building 56, Room 
2300 
P.O. Box 25426 
Denver, Colorado 80225 

 
 
 
Business and Industry 
Guaranteed Loan 
 
(small business) 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
This program improves the economic health of rural 
communities by increasing access to business capital through 
loan guarantees that enable commercial lenders to provide 
affordable financing for businesses in eligible rural areas. 
Lenders such as federal or state-chartered banks, savings and 
loans, farm credit banks, and credit unions can apply for the 
program. Businesses can qualify for loan guarantees. 

 
 
 
 
https://www.rd.usda.gov/progra 
ms-services/business-industry- 
loan-guarantees/co 

  
 
 
Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
The primary objective of the CDBG Program is to develop viable 
communities by providing the following, principally to persons 
of low and moderate income: decent housing, a suitable living 
environment, and expanded economic opportunities. 

 

Applicants should consult with the 
Department's Regional Manager in 
their area prior to submitting an 
application. The application deadline 
for CDBG funding consideration is in 
February. 

 
 
 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi 
c/dola/community-development- 
block-grant-cdbg 

 
Jodi Adkins 
jodi.adkins@state.co.us 
303-864-7745 
 
For regional specific contact: 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/dola/regio 
nal-managers 

Colorado Department of 
Local Affairs (DOLA) 

       

        

  
Energy and Mineral Impact 
Assistance Fund Grant 
(EIAF) Program 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

The purpose of the EIAF Program is to assist political 
subdivisions that are socially and/or economically impacted by 
the development, processing, or energy conversion of minerals 
and mineral fuels. 

 
Applications can be accessed on 
website; contact your regional 
manager with questions. Application 
deadlines are the first of April and 
August annually. 

 
 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi 
c/dola/energymineral-impact- 
assistance-fund-eiaf 

Leah Smith 
leah.smith@state.co.us 
303-864-7757 
 
For regional specific contact see this map: 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/dola/regio 
nal-managers 

 
 
 
 

Economic Development 
Administration, 
Department of 

Commerce 

 
Public Works Program 
 
(water, sewer) 

 

 
 

 

  
This program empowers distressed communities to revitalize, 
expand, and upgrade their physical infrastructure, and generate 
or retain long-term, private sector jobs and investment. 

 
 
 
 
Application packages are available 
at www.grants.gov. Applications will 
be accepted on an ongoing basis 
until the publication of a new EDAP 
Federal Funding Opportunity. 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.eda.gov/funding- 
opportunities/ 

 
 
 
 
Trent Thompson 
tthompson@eda.gov 
303-844-5452 
1244 Speer Boulevard, Suite 431 
Denver, Colorado 80204 

 
Economic Adjustment 
Assistance Program 
 
(water, sewer) 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
This program assists state and local interests in designing and 
implementing strategies to adjust or bring about change to an 
economy. The program focuses on areas that have experienced 
or are under threat of serious structural damage to the 
underlying economic base. 



Colorado Water and Wastewater Funding Sources 
Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network, July 2018 

Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network. For the most up-to-date information, contact program managers or see 
http://efcnetwork.org/funding-sources-by-state/. To make corrections, contact waterfundingprograms@unc.edu. Page 3 

 

 

 

 
Organization Program 

(key words) 

 
Gov. Non-  For- 

Entity Profit Profit 

 
Purpose or Use of Funds 

 
How to Apply 

 
Website 

 
Contact 

 
 
 
 

National Rural Water 
Association 

 
 
 
NRWA Revolving Loan 
Fund 
 
(water, wastewater) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

  
The Rural Water Loan Fund (RWLF) is a funding program 
specifically designed to meet the unique needs of small water 
and wastewater utilities. The RWLF provides low-cost loans for 
short-term repair costs, small capital projects, or pre- 
development costs associated with larger projects. The RWLF 
was established through a grant from the USDA/Rural Utilities 
Service, and repaid funds used to replenish the fund and make 
new loans. 

 
 
 
 

Applications can be accessed on 
website and sent by mail or e-mail. 

 
 
 
 

http://nrwa.org/initiatives/revolv 
ing-loan-fund/ 

 
 

Steve Harper 
sharper@crwa.net 
719-545-6748 
176 West Palmer Lake Drive 
Pueblo West, Colorado 81007 

 
 
 

CoBank 

 

Rural Water and 
Wastewater Lending 
 
(water,  wastewater) 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

CoBank works with rural water and wastewater not-for-profit 
systems, municipalities, and investor-owned utility companies 
to provide interim and bridge financing, refinance of existing 
debt, term loans for system upgrades, and lines of credit. 

 

Applications are accepted 
continuously. To apply, complete an 
online Loan Request Form at: 
www.cobank.com/h2oloan 

 
 
http://www.cobank.com/About- 
CoBank/Industries-We- 
Serve/Water.aspx 

 
Hunter Hook 
hhook@cobank.com 
303-793-2242 
6340 South Fiddlers Green Circle 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

 
 
 
 

Rural Community 
Assistance Partnership 

(RCAP) 

 
 
Rural Community 
Assistance Corporation 
(RCAC) Environmental 
Infrastructure Loans 
 
(water,  wastewater) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

  
 
 
RCAC provides loans to finance water and waste facility 
projects. RCAC’s loan programs are unique — they provide the 
early funds that small rural communities need to determine 
feasibility and pay pre-development costs prior to receiving 
state and federal program funding. 

 
 
 
Applications can be accessed on the 
website and sent to the loan officer 
serving your state. Applications are 
accepted on a rolling basis. 

 
 
 
 

http://www.rcac.org/lending/env 
ironmental-loans/ 

 
 
 
Darryl English 
denglish@rcac.org 
435-649-0515 
3120 Freeboard Drive, Suite 201 
West Sacramento, California 95691 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

US Department of the 
Interior - Bureau of 

Reclamation 

 
 
 
 
WaterSMART Grants: 
Water & Energy Efficiency 
Grants 
 
(water, energy efficiency) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  
 

Through Water and Energy Efficiency Grants, Reclamation 
provides 50/50 cost share funding to irrigation and water 
districts, tribes, states and other entities with water or power 
delivery authority. Projects should seek to conserve and use 
water more efficiently, increase the production of hydropower; 
mitigate conflict risk in areas at high risk of future water 
conflict; and accomplish other benefits that contribute to water 
supply reliability in the western United States. 

 
 
 
 
Funding Opportunity Announcement 
(BOR-DO-18-F006) was posted to 
grants.gov on March 19, 2018. 
Proposals will be accepted until the 
application submission deadline of 
May 10, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
https://www.usbr.gov/watersma 
rt/weeg/index.html 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Josh German 
jgerman@usbr.gov 
303-445-2839 
 
or 
 
Robin Graber 
rgraber@usbr.gov 
303-445-2764 
 
Building 67 (84-51000) 
P.O. Box 25007 
Denver, Colorado 80225 

 
 
 
 

WaterSMART Grants: Small-
Scale Efficiency Projects 
 
(water efficiency) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  

Through Small-Scale Water Efficiency Projects, Reclamation 
provides 50/50 cost share funding to irrigation and water 
districts, tribes, states and other entities with water or power 
delivery authority. Projects support small-scale water 
management efforts (up to $75,000 in Federal funding for each 
project) that have been identified through previous planning 
efforts. Reclamation has developed a streamlined selection and 
review process to reflect the small-scale nature of these 
projects. 

 
 
 
Funding Opportunity Announcement 
(BOR-DO-18-F009) was posted to 
grants.gov on March 19, 2018. 
Proposals will be accepted until the 
application submission deadline of 
July 31, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
https://www.usbr.gov/watersma 
rt/swep/index.html 



Colorado Water and Wastewater Funding Sources 
Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network, July 2018 

Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network. For the most up-to-date information, contact program managers or see 
http://efcnetwork.org/funding-sources-by-state/. To make corrections, contact waterfundingprograms@unc.edu. Page 4 

 

 

 

 
Organization Program 

(key words) 

 
Gov. 

Entity 

 
Non- 
Profit 

 
For- 

Profit 

 
Purpose or Use of Funds 

 
How to Apply 

 
Website 

 
Contact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

US Department of the 
Interior - Bureau of 

Reclamation 

 
 
 
 
WaterSMART Grants: 
Water Marketing 
 
(water marketing) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Through Water Marketing Strategy grants Reclamation provides 
50/50 cost share funding to irrigation and water districts, tribes, 
states and other entities with water or power delivery 
authority. These grants provide meaningful support for entities 
exploring actions that can be taken to develop or facilitate 
water marketing. Under this funding opportunity applicants will 
be invited to conduct planning activities to develop a water 
marketing strategy to establish or expand water markets or 
water marketing transactions. 

 
 

Funding Opportunity Announcement 
(BOR-DO-18-F010) was posted to 
grants.gov on March 19, 2018. 
Proposals will be accepted until the 
application submission deadline of 
July 18, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
https://www.usbr.gov/watersma 
rt/watermarketing/index.html 

 
 

Avra Morgan 
aomorgan@usbr.gov 
303-445-2906 
Building 67 (84-51000) 
P.O. Box 25007 
Denver, Colorado 80225 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title XVI Water 
Reclamation & Reuse 
Program 
 
(water, wastewater) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
Title XVI is Reclamation’s water recycling and reuse program. 
Reclamation works with non-Federal partners to identify and 
investigate opportunities to reclaim and reuse wastewaters and 
impaired ground and surface water in the 17 Western states 
and Hawaii. Entities with Congressionally authorized projects or 
that are eligible under section 4009(c) of the Water 
Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (WIIN) may 
seek competitive, cost-shared funding to plan, design and 
construct projects. 

 
 
Three Funding Opportunity 
Announcements may be offered 
under the Title XVI Program: (1) 
planning, design, and construction 
of congressionally authorized or 
WIIN Title XVI Projects; (2) 
Feasibility Studies; and (3) Research. 
In FY 2018 Reclamation does not 
plan to offer feasibility study or 
research funding opportunity 
announcements. The funding 
opportunity announcement for 
planning, design, and construction 
of Title XVI projects is expected to 
be posted on grants.gov in May. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.usbr.gov/watersmart 
/title/index.html 

 
 
 
 
 
Amanda Erath 
aerath@usbr.gov 
303-445-2766 
Building 67 (84-51000) 
P.O. Box 25007 
Denver, Colorado 80225 
 
For regional specific contact: 
http://www.usbr.gov/watersmart/title/conta 
cts.html 

 
 
 
 
Drought Response 
Program: Drought 
Resiliency Projects 
 
(water, drought) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  
 

Through the Drought Response Program, Reclamation provides 
50/50 cost share funding to irrigation and water districts, tribes, 
states and other entities with water or power delivery 
authority. Projects should increase the reliability of water 
supplies; improve water management; and provide benefits for 
fish, wildlife, and the environment to mitigate impacts caused 
by drought. 

 
 

Funding Opportunity Announcement 
was posted to grants.gov in 
November 2017, and closed in 
February 2018. Send an email to the 
program contact to be added to the 
email list of entities interested in 
WaterSMART announcements.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.usbr.gov/drought 

 
 
 
Darion Mayhorn 
dmayhorn@usbr.gov 
303-445-3121 
Building 67 (84-51000) 
PO Box 25007 
Denver, Colorado 80225 

 
 
 
 
 
Colorado Enterprise Fund 

 
 
 
 
Small Business Loans 
 
(small business) 

  
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
Colorado Enterprise Fund is a non-profit lending institution that 
lends to start-ups and existing small businesses throughout 
Colorado. The small business loans range from $1,000 to 
$500,000, with variable rates and terms. The lending guidelines 
are more flexible than traditional banks and all aspects are 
reviewed in the decision making process. 

 
 
 
 
For more information, contact the 
main office. Applications can be 
accessed on website. 

 
 
 
 

http://www.coloradoenterprisefu 
nd.org/our-loans/ 

 
 

Robin Ramsouer 
info@coloradoenterprisefund.org 
303-860-0242 
1888 Sherman Street, Suite 530 
Denver, Colorado 80203 



Colorado Water and Wastewater Funding Sources 
Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network, July 2018 

Compiled by the Environmental Finance Center Network. For the most up-to-date information, contact program managers or see 
http://efcnetwork.org/funding-sources-by-state/. To make corrections, contact waterfundingprograms@unc.edu. Page 5 

 

 

 

 
Organization Program 

(key words) 

 
Gov. 

Entity 

 
Non- 
Profit 

 
For- 

Profit 

 
Purpose or Use of Funds 

 
How to Apply 

 
Website 

 
Contact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Small Business 
Administration (SBA) 

 
 
504 Fixed Asset Program 
(Certified Development 
Company) 
 
(small business) 

   
 
 

 

 

The 504 Loan Program provides approved small businesses with 
long-term, fixed-rate financing used to acquire fixed assets for 
expansion or modernization. 504 loans are made available 
through Certified Development Companies (CDCs), SBA's 
community based partners for providing 504 Loans and SBA 
participating lenders. 

 
For additional information on 
eligibility criteria and loan 
application requirements, please 
contact your local Certified 
Development Company (CDC) at: 
https://www.sba.gov/offices/headq 
uarters/ofa/resources/4049 

 
 
 
 
https://www.sba.gov/offices/hea 
dquarters/ofa/resources/4049 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven White 
steven.white@sba.gov 
303-844-2607 
721 19th Street Suite 426 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

 
 
 
 
 
 
7(a) Loan Guarantee 
 
(small business) 

   
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
The 7(a) program is a flexible tool that can be used to finance a 
variety of business purposes. The proceeds of a 7(a) guaranteed 
loan may be used to purchase machinery, fixtures, and supplies; 
make improvements to land and buildings; finance receivables 
and augment working capital; acquire and start businesses; and 
refinance existing debt under certain conditions. The regular 
7(a) program’s maximum loan amount is $5 million. There is no 
minimum amount. SBA's 50% to 90% guaranty helps provide 
entrepreneurs accesss to capital. 

 
 
 
Borrowers must submit SBA From 
1919 for a 7(a) business loan to 
private lenders. The lender will 
review the application, complete 
SBA Form 1920, and then submit it 
to to the SBA's Loan Guaranty 
Processing Zcenter through SBA's E- 
Tran website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
https://www.sba.gov/document/ 
?program=7(a) 

 
 
 
Community Advantage 
Pilot 
 
(small business) 

   
 
 

 

 
Community Advantage is a pilot initiative aimed at increasing 
the number of SBA 7(a) lenders who reach underserved 
communities, targeting mission-focused financial institutions 
which were previously not able to offer SBA loans. The 
maximum loan size is $250,000. Guarantee can be up to 85 
percent for loans up to $150,000 and 75 percent for those 
greater than $150,000. 

 

All small business applicants must 
complete SBA Form 1919, Borrower 
Information Form, and 2449, 
Community Advantage Addendum. 
Lenders must complete SBA Form 
1920. 

 
 

Microloan Program 

(small business ) 

   
 

 

 
The purpose of the Microloan Program is to assist women, low 
income, veteran, and minority entrepreneurs, and other small 
businesses in need of small amounts of financial assistance. 
Under the Microloan Program, SBA makes direct loans to 
Intermediaries that, in turn, use the proceeds to make small 
loans to eligible microborrowers. 

 
For additional information on 
eligibility criteria, loan application 
requirements, participating 
microlenders please visit 
www.sba.gov/co 

 
 
 
https://www.sba.gov/tools/local- 
assistance 



Town of Ridgway March 2019 

Capital Assessment Final Report 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix D 
Proposed Town Hall Layout 

 



PU
BL

IC
 M

EE
TI

N
G

 S
PA

C
E

1,
58

7.
33

 s
f

10
.3

5 
ft

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
/P

LA
N

N
IN

G
/P

U
BL

IC
 W

O
R

KS
73

6.
87

 s
f

M
AR

SH
AL

L
53

8.
1 

sf

TO
W

N
 M

AN
AG

ER
28

0.
48

 s
f

TO
W

N
 C

LE
R

K 
/ T

R
EA

SU
R

ER
15

8.
49

 s
f

C
LE

R
KS

/T
R

EA
SU

R
ER

S 
O

FF
IC

ES
52

9.
33

 s
f

KI
TC

H
EN

14
2.

48
 s

f

91
.2

3 
sf

FU
TU

R
E 

ST
O

R
AG

E?
64

.1
 s

f
FU

TU
R

E 
ST

O
R

AG
E?

58
.8

8 
sf

90
.9

1 
sf

C
op

y 
A

re
a 

an
d 

Su
pp

ly
Sh

el
ve

s 
(8

' X
 4

')

36
.0

2 
sf

PR
O

P.
 V

ES
TI

BU
LE

58
.7

 s
f

D
EP

U
TY

 C
LE

R
K

74
.5

6 
sf

FU
TU

R
E 

EM
PL

O
YE

E
58

.5
5 

sf

4.19 ft

O
PE

N
 W

O
R

K
 T

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

ST
A

FF
 T

O
 S

PR
EA

D
 O

U
T

PL
A

N
S,

 E
TC

. (
6'

X9
')

IT
 C

LO
SE

T,
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

, F
IL

E
ST

O
R

A
G

E 
C

LO
SE

T 
(4

' D
EE

P)
38

 S
F

AL
TE

R
N

AT
E 

/L
O

N
G

 T
ER

M
 ID

EA
S:

IF
 A

 N
EW

 M
EE

TI
N

G
 / 

PU
BL

IC
 S

PA
C

E 
IS

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TE

D
 A

T 
AN

AL
TE

R
N

AT
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
, T

H
E 

TO
W

N
 H

AL
L 

ST
AF

F 
C

AN
 T

H
EN

EX
PA

N
D

 IN
TO

 T
H

E 
PU

BL
IC

 M
EE

TI
N

G
 S

PA
C

E,
 U

SI
N

G
SE

C
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R
 S

TO
R

AG
E,

 M
O

R
E 

FO
R

M
AL

 O
FF

IC
E 

SP
AC

ES
FO

R
 K

EY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
, D

ED
IC

AT
ED

 C
O

N
FE

R
EN

C
E 

R
O

O
M

SP
AC

E.

SE
C

O
N

D
 O

PT
IO

N
 T

O
 E

VA
LU

AT
E 

IS
 "G

O
IN

G
 U

P"
 - 

AD
D

IN
G

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

TO
R

Y 
TO

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 
TO

 C
R

EA
TE

 F
U

N
C

TI
O

N
 

SP
AC

ES
 T

H
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 C

U
R

R
EN

TL
Y 

IS
 S

TR
ES

SE
D

 F
O

R
.

BO
O

KS
H

EL
F

N
EW

SO
U

N
D

PA
R

TI
TI

O
N

C
U

ST
. S

ER
VI

C
E 

C
LE

R
K

12
7.

13
 s

f
FU

TU
R

E 
EM

PL
O

YE
E

10
2.

74
 s

f

D
EP

U
TY

 T
R

EA
SU

R
ER

73
.2

6 
sf

N
EW

 / 
R

EL
O

C
AT

ED
SL

ID
IN

G
 G

LA
SS

EN
TR

Y 
W

IN
D

O
W

AN
D

 V
ES

TI
BU

LE
PA

R
TI

TI
O

N

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 IN

SP
EC

TO
R

55
.8

2 
sf

C
O

M
M

. I
N

IT
. F

AC
IL

.
55

.9
8 

sf

FU
TU

R
E 

EM
PL

O
YE

E
55

.8
2 

sf

SH
R

IN
K 

FU
N

C
TI

O
N

 O
F

KI
TC

H
EN

 B
AC

K 
D

O
W

N
TO

 S
TA

FF
-O

N
LY

 N
EE

D
S,

O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
(9

2 
SF

)
IN

TO
 M

AI
N

 O
FF

IC
E

SP
AC

E

PW
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

54
.5

2 
sf

TO
W

N
 P

LA
N

N
ER

58
.0

7 
sf

SE
R

VE
R

 C
LO

SE
T 

/
C

O
N

FE
R

EN
C

E 
/ 

W
O

R
K

 R
O

O
M

16
8 

SF

R
EM

O
VE

 C
O

PY
AN

D
 S

TO
R

AG
E

FR
O

M
 H

AL
LW

AY

SC
AN

 / 
D

IG
IT

IZ
E 

FI
LE

S 
AN

D
M

O
VE

 H
AR

D
 C

O
PI

ES
 T

O
O

FF
-S

IT
E 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
, S

U
C

H
AS

 H
U

T 
IN

 P
U

BL
IC

 W
O

R
KS

YA
R

D

FU
TU

R
E 

ST
O

R
AG

E
SP

AC
ES

 L
O

SE
FU

N
C

IT
O

N
 O

F
W

IN
D

O
W

S

R
EM

O
VE

 C
EN

TE
R

PA
R

TI
TI

O
N

 F
R

O
M

R
O

O
M

 T
O

 U
TI

LI
ZE

O
PE

N
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

AD
D

 V
EN

TI
LA

TI
O

N
 T

O
EV

ID
EN

C
E 

VA
U

LT

PU
R

C
H

AS
E 

/
R

EP
U

R
PO

SE
EV

ID
EN

C
E 

FR
ID

G
E

U
PG

R
AD

E 
EL

EC
TR

IC
AL

AN
D

 IN
TE

R
N

ET
 W

IR
IN

G
TO

 A
C

C
O

M
O

D
AT

E 
PO

W
ER

N
EE

D
S 

FO
R

 A
LL

EM
PL

O
YE

ES

BO
O

KS
H

EL
F



Town of Ridgway March 2019 

Capital Assessment Final Report 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix E 
Repair and Replacement Schedule 

 
 



Town of Ridgway period present yr inflation 
Streets 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3%

Asset

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs) Treatment  Technique Recommendation
Repair unit 

cost ($)
1 time Repair 

cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Replacement 
unit cost ($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
1 Streets Option 1 Option 2 8,252,258

A.1 AMELIA   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $71,573 1 $71,573 $71,573.33 2029 96,189 0 0 96,189              
A.2 AMELIA   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $143,147 1 $143,147 $143,146.67 2029 192,377 0 0 192,377            
A.3 AMELIA   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $71,573 1 $71,573 $71,573.33 2029 96,189 0 0 96,189              
A.4 AMELIA   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $0 0 $190,862 $190,862.22 2029 256,503 0 0 256,503            
A.5 AMY      WY 20 10 2" Overlay $20,338 10 $20,338 $20,337.78 2029 27,332 0 0 27,332              
A.6 CHARLES  ST 20 10 2" Overlay $0 10 $192,771 $192,770.84 2029 259,068 0 0 259,068            
A.7 CHARLES  ST 20 10 2" Overlay $8,213 10 $8,213 $8,213.33 2029 11,038 0 0 11,038              
A.8 CHARLES  ST 20 10 2" Overlay $32,912 10 $32,912 $32,912.00 2029 44,231 0 0 44,231              
A.9 CHARLOTTEST 20 10 $0 10 $33,401 $33,400.89 2029 44,888 0 0 44,888              
A.10 CHARLOTTEST 20 10 $0 10 $33,401 $33,400.89 2029 44,888 0 0 44,888              
A.11 CHARLOTTEST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
A.12 CHIPETA  DR 20 10 $0 10 $190,862 $190,862.22 2029 256,503 0 0 256,503            
A.13 CHIPETA  DR 20 10 $0 10 $57,974 $57,974.40 2029 77,913 0 0 77,913              
A.14 CIMARRON DR 20 10 $0 10 $82,707 $82,706.96 2029 111,151 0 0 111,151            
A.15 CLINTON  ST 20 10 $0 10 $42,944 $42,944.00 2029 57,713 0 0 57,713              
A.16 CLINTON  ST 20 10 $0 10 $136,944 $136,943.64 2029 184,041 0 0 184,041            
C.1 CLINTON  ST 20 10 2" Overlay $44,215 10 $44,215 $44,215.11 2029 59,421 0 0 59,421              
C.2 CORA     ST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
C.3 CORA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $31,035 10 $31,035 $31,034.67 2029 41,708 0 0 41,708              

CORA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $7,040 10 $7,040 $7,040.00 2029 9,461 0 0 9,461                
CORA     ST 20 10 $0 10 $41,990 $41,989.69 2029 56,431 0 0 56,431              
CORA     ST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              

D.1 CORA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $9,387 10 $9,387 $9,386.67 2029 12,615 0 0 12,615              
D.2 CORA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $50,062 10 $50,062 $50,062.22 2029 67,279 0 0 67,279              
D.3 CORA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $7,627 10 $7,627 $7,626.67 2029 10,250 0 0 10,250              
25 ELIZABETHST 20 10 $0 10 $63,621 $63,620.74 2029 85,501 0 0 85,501              
26 ELIZABETHST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
27 ESCALANTECI 20 10 2" Overlay $17,796 10 $17,796 $17,795.56 2029 23,916 0 0 23,916              
28 FREDERICKST 20 10 $0 10 $33,401 $33,400.89 2029 44,888 0 0 44,888              
29 FREDERICKST 20 10 $0 10 $33,401 $33,400.89 2029 44,888 0 0 44,888              
30 GREEN    ST 20 10 2" Overlay $66,098 10 $66,098 $66,097.78 2029 88,830 0 0 88,830              
31 HUNTER   PY 20 10 2" Overlay $59,449 10 $59,449 $59,448.89 2029 79,894 0 0 79,894              
32 HYDE     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $12,516 10 $12,516 $12,515.56 2029 16,820 0 0 16,820              
33 HYDE     ST 20 10 $0 10 $233,806 $233,806.22 2029 314,216 0 0 314,216            
34 KISMET   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $48,302 10 $48,302 $48,302.22 2029 64,914 0 0 64,914              
35 LANDS ENDDR 20 10 $0 10 $25,448 $25,448.30 2029 34,200 0 0 34,200              
36 LAURA    ST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
37 LAURA    ST 20 10 2" Overlay $31,035 10 $31,035 $31,034.67 2029 41,708 0 0 41,708              
38 LAURA    ST 20 10 2" Overlay $20,690 10 $20,690 $20,689.78 2029 27,805 0 0 27,805              
39 LAURA    ST 20 10 $0 10 $45,330 $45,329.78 2029 60,919 0 0 60,919              
40 LAURA    ST 20 10 2" Overlay $53,387 10 $53,387 $53,386.67 2029 71,747 0 0 71,747              
41 LE RANCH BD 20 10 2" Overlay $12,711 10 $12,711 $12,711.11 2029 17,083 0 0 17,083              
42 LENA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $15,253 10 $15,253 $15,253.33 2029 20,499 0 0 20,499              
43 LENA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $33,049 10 $33,049 $33,048.89 2029 44,415 0 0 44,415              
44 LENA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $41,947 10 $41,947 $41,946.67 2029 56,373 0 0 56,373              
45 LENA     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $44,098 10 $44,098 $44,097.78 2029 59,264 0 0 59,264              
46 LENA     ST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
47 LIDDELL  DR 20 10 $0 10 $83,502 $83,502.22 2029 112,220 0 0 112,220            
48 MALL     RD 20 10 2" Overlay $10,169 10 $10,169 $10,168.89 2029 13,666 0 0 13,666              
49 MALL     RD 20 10 $0 10 $31,015 $31,015.11 2029 41,682 0 0 41,682              
50 MARIE    ST 20 10 2" Overlay $43,804 10 $43,804 $43,804.44 2029 58,870 0 0 58,870              
51 MARION   ST 20 10 2" Overlay $58,471 10 $58,471 $58,471.11 2029 78,580 0 0 78,580              
52 MARY     ST 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
53 MARY     ST 20 10 $0 10 $100,203 $100,202.67 2029 134,664 0 0 134,664            
54 MCCALL   DR 20 10 $0 10 $8,213 $8,213.33 2029 11,038 0 0 11,038              
55 MOFFAT   ST 20 10 $0 10 $150,304 $150,304.00 2029 201,996 0 0 201,996            

OLDHWY23 20 10 2" Overlay $72,747 10 $72,747 $72,746.67 2029 97,765 0 0 97,765              
1 OTTO     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $25,031 10 $25,031 $25,031.11 2029 33,640 0 0 33,640              
2 OTTO     ST 20 10 2" Overlay $18,773 10 $18,773 $18,773.33 2029 25,230 0 0 25,230              
3 PALOMINO TR 20 10 2" Overlay $118,898 10 $118,898 $118,897.78 2029 159,789 0 0 159,789            
4 PARK     AV 20 10 $0 10 $76,345 $76,344.89 2029 102,601 0 0 102,601            
5 PARKSIDE ST 20 10 2" Overlay $7,627 10 $7,627 $7,626.67 2029 10,250 0 0 10,250              
6 RABBITBRUCT 20 10 $0 10 $25,448 $25,448.30 2029 34,200 0 0 34,200              
7 RAILROAD ST 20 10 2" Overlay $76,658 10 $76,658 $76,657.78 2029 103,022 0 0 103,022            
8 RAILROAD ST 20 10 2" Overlay $91,520 10 $91,520 $91,520.00 2029 122,995 0 0 122,995            
9 RAILROAD ST 20 10 2" Overlay $25,422 10 $25,422 $25,422.22 2029 34,165 0 0 34,165              
10 REDCLIFF DR 20 10 2" Overlay $111,467 10 $111,467 $111,466.67 2029 149,802 0 0 149,802            
11 RIVERPARKDR 20 10 2" Overlay $15,840 10 $15,840 $15,840.00 2029 21,288 0 0 21,288              
12 RIVERPARKDR 20 10 2" Overlay $40,676 10 $40,676 $40,675.56 2029 54,665 0 0 54,665              
13 RIVERPARKDR 20 10 2" Overlay $33,049 10 $33,049 $33,048.89 2029 44,415 0 0 44,415              
14 RIVERSAGEDR 20 10 2" Overlay $72,356 10 $72,356 $72,355.56 2029 97,240 0 0 97,240              
15 RIVERSAGEDR 20 10 $0 10 $402,401 $402,401.19 2029 540,794 0 0 540,794            
16 ROUNDHOUSDR 20 10 2" Overlay $46,933 10 $46,933 $46,933.33 2029 63,074 0 0 63,074              
17 RUSTYSPURST 20 10 $0 10 $100,600 $100,600.30 2029 135,198 0 0 135,198            
18 SABETA   DR 20 10 $0 10 $419,897 $419,896.89 2029 564,306 0 0 564,306            
19 STREETONE 20 10 $0 10 $114,517 $114,517.33 2029 153,902 0 0 153,902            
20 STREETTWO 20 10 $0 10 $47,716 $47,715.56 2029 64,126 0 0 64,126              
21 TABERNASHLN 20 10 $0 10 $184,500 $184,500.15 2029 247,953 0 0 247,953            
22 TERRACE  DR 20 10 $0 10 $157,461 $157,461.33 2029 211,615 0 0 211,615            
23 TERRACE  DR 20 10 $0 10 $147,918 $147,918.22 2029 198,790 0 0 198,790            
24 TERRACE  DR 20 10 $0 10 $6,362 $6,362.07 2029 8,550 0 0 8,550                
25 TERRACE  DR 20 10 $0 10 $82,707 $82,706.96 2029 111,151 0 0 111,151            
26 VISTA    DR 20 10 $0 10 $19,086 $19,086.22 2029 25,650 0 0 25,650              
27 VISTA    DR 20 10 $0 10 $42,944 $42,944.00 2029 57,713 0 0 57,713              
28 VISTA    DR 20 10 $0 10 $71,573 $71,573.33 2029 96,189 0 0 96,189              
29 VISTA    DR 20 10 $0 10 $71,573 $71,573.33 2029 96,189 0 0 96,189              
30 VISTA    DR 20 10 $0 10 $66,802 $66,801.78 2029 89,776 0 0 89,776              
31 1,822,894          6,140,455 0 2019 0 2019 0 -                    

Repair  0 Replacement  -                  
Total 1,822,894 6,140,455         8,252,258



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 
Vehicles General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3% 3%

Model Make Year Value  ($) Dept. Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs)
Repair 
notes

Repair 
cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes  Unit cost ($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

 3rd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 3rd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
1  Trucks Subtototal 1,800 501,637

1 2001 Ford F-250 Ford 2001 $2,206 PW 1 12 2 Quarterly oil 200 0 $22,065 22,065 2021 $23,409 2033 31,459 0 0 54,868
2 2005 Ford Ranger Ford 2005 $5,554 PW 1 12 7 200 0 $16,663 16,663 2026 $20,493 2038 23,757 0 0 44,251
3 2005 Ford Ranger Ford 2005 $5,554 PW 1 12 7 200 0 $16,663 16,663 2026 $20,493 2038 23,757 0 0 44,251
4 2001 Ford Ranger 4x4 Ford 2005 $7,050 PW 1 12 8 200 0 $19,387 19,387 2027 $24,558 0 0 0 0 24,558
5 2010 Ford F-150 Ford 2010 $8,374 PW 1 12 4 200 0 $27,214 27,214 2023 $30,630 2035 38,801 0 0 69,431
6 2011 Chevy 2500 Chev 2011 $11,405 PW 1 12 5 200 0 $29,653 29,653 2024 $34,376 2036 42,279 0 0 76,655
7 2011 Ford F-350 Ford 2011 $12,031 PW 1 12 5 200 0 $31,280 31,280 2024 $36,262 2036 44,597 0 0 80,859
8 2001 Ford F-350 Ford 2001 $2,328 PW 1 12 2 200 0 $23,275 23,275 2021 $24,693 2033 33,185 0 0 57,877
9 2000 Ford F-150 Ford 2000 $1,872 PW 1 12 2 200 0 $19,660 19,660 2021 $20,857 2033 28,030 0 0 48,888
10 $205,860 0 0 0 0 0

2 Emergency Vehicles Subtototal 1,000 540,928
1 2017 Ford Explorer Ford 2017 $37,911 ES 1 8 9 Quarterly oil 200 0 $42,650 42,650 2028 $55,649 2036 54,028 0 0 109,677
2 2018 Ford Explorer Ford 2018 $39,048 ES 1 8 10 200 0 $43,929 43,929 2029 $57,318 2037 55,649 0 0 112,967
3 2006 Dodge Durango Dodge 2006 $4,740 ES 1 8 2 200 0 $30,811 30,811 2021 $45,247 2029 39,030 2037 39,030 123,308
4 2012 Chevy Impala Chev 2012 $16,351 ES 1 8 4 200 0 $36,790 36,790 2023 $48,003 2031 46,605 0 0 94,608
5 2014 Ford Fusion Ford 2014 $26,020 ES 1 8 6 200 0 $39,031 39,031 2025 $50,926 2033 49,443 0 0 100,369
6 $193,212 0 0 0 0 0

3 Heavy Equipment Subtototal 3,300 1,986,444
1 2016 Bobcat Skid Steer S650 Bobcat 2016 $43,202 PW 1 15 10 Semi annual 300 0 $51,842 51,842 2029 $73,915 0 0 0 0 73,915
2 2006 John Deere 320 Skid Steer Loader JD 2006 $5,511 PW 1 15 2 300 0 $38,576 38,576 2021 $58,350 2036 60,101 0 0 118,451
3 1991 IHC Tandem Dump IHC 1991 $6,078 PW 1 15 3 300 0 $60,775 60,775 2022 $147,518 2037 94,686 0 0 242,204
4 1983 IHC Single Axle Dump IHC 1983 $3,832 PW 1 15 3 300 0 $48,542 48,542 2022 $136,591 2037 75,627 0 0 212,218
5 1975 Mack Water Truck Mack 1975 $6,223 PW 1 15 5 300 0 $59,738 59,738 2024 $168,095 0 0 0 0 168,095
6 1997 Cat CS 433C Roller CAT 1997 $16,740 PW 1 15 8 300 0 $60,683 60,683 2027 $143,003 0 0 0 0 143,003
7 2013 Cat Backhoe Loader CAT 2013 $57,987 PW 1 15 10 300 0 $86,980 86,980 2029 $135,512 0 0 0 0 135,512
8 2012  Bobcat Toolcat Bobcat 2012 $40,518 PW 1 15 9 300 0 $67,530 67,530 2028 $105,210 0 0 0 0 105,210
9 2015 John Deere 524K JD 2015 Lease PW 1 15 12 300 0 $169,903 169,903 2031 $264,703 0 0 0 0 264,703
10 2006 John Deere 670 Motor Grader JD 2006 $62,819 PW 1 15 7 300 0 $161,534 161,534 2026 $275,000 0 0 0 0 275,000
11 2006 John Deere 310G Backhoe JD 2006 $20,608 PW 1 15 4 300 0 $77,281 77,281 2023 $127,733 2038 120,401 0 0 248,134
12 $883,385 0 0 0 0 0

4 Off Road Equipment Subtototal 1,200 120,149
1 2007 John Deere Ztrak 797 JD 2007 $7,360 PW 1 15 12 Semi annual 300 0 $9,200 9,200 2031 $13,946 0 0 0 0 13,946
2 2015 John Deere Ztrak 930 JD 2015 $10,583 PW 1 15 17 300 0 $12,450 12,450 2036 $16,244 0 0 0 0 16,244
3 1991 Kubota Kubota 1991 $776 PW 1 15 2 300 0 $11,255 11,255 2021 $26,523 2036 17,535 0 0 44,058
4 2001 Kubota Kubota 2001 $4,840 PW 1 15 8 300 0 $15,125 15,125 2027 $31,669 0 0 0 0 31,669
5 golf cart (unknown) 1995 $593 PW 1 15 4 $4,000 4,000 2023 $8,000 2038 6,232 0 0 14,232
6 $52,030 0 0 0 0 0

5 Extra $120,000
Snow blower attachement 120,000

Total $468,114 7,300 1,334,486         2,224,926       2,647,521



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 
Park Facilities General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3%

Asset
Location or 

Notes
Manufacturer or 

Notes

Model # / 
Product # or 

Notes Serial # Value ($) Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs) Repair notes Repair cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Unit cost 
($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
1 Rollins Park Restroom 500 0

1 Precast concrete 50 33 Paint and caulk 500 5 15,000 0 0 0 0 0
2 Athletic Park Restroom 4,500 18,636

15 Roofing Steel 360 50 29 11 3,960 0 0 0 0 0
16 Siding CMU and Stuco 1,000 50 29 Paint and caulk trim 1,500 5 5,000 0 0 0 0 0
17 Windows 1 40 35 14 75 3,000 2033 4,538 0 0 4,538
18 Exterior Doors 3 30 9 2,500 7,500 2028 9,786 0 0 9,786
20 Common Flooring cement 360 50 29 8 2,880 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 3 10 5 50 150 2024 174 2034 202 375
22 Ceiling and Wall 1,500 50 29 Paint 3,000                  5 0 0 0 0 0 0
24 Bathroom sink 2 30 9 300 600 2028 783 0 0 783
25 Bathroom faucet 2 30 9 175 350 2028 457 0 0 457
26 Toilet 3 30 9 100 300 2028 391 0 0 391
27 Urinal 1 30 9 250 250 2028 326 0 0 326
28 Urinal flush valve 1 30 9 250 250 2028 326 0 0 326
29 Drinking fountain 1 30 9 500 500 2028 652 0 0 652
30 Interior lighting 2 10 5 200 400 2024 464 2034 538 1,001
30 Tennis Court Resurfacing 1 10 3 200 200 2022 219 2032 269 487

3 Athletic Park Gazebo 2,100 125
15 Roofing Steel 700 50 42 11 7,700 0 0 0 0 0
16 Structure Wood 700 50 42 Stain wood 2,100                  65 45,500 0 0 0 0 0
20 Common Flooring wood 700 50 42 25 17,500 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 1 10 5 50 50 2024 58 2034 67 125
44 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

4 Hartwell Park Restroom Facilities and Pavilion 5,500 47,600
15 Roofing Flat/Metal 1,366 50 2 11 15,026 2021 15,941 0 0 15,941
16 Siding CMU and Stuco 1,660 50 29 Paint/stain trim 2,500 5 8,300 0 0 0 0 0
17 Windows 1 144 35 14 75 10,800 2033 16,336 0 0 16,336
18 Exterior Doors 3 30 9 2,500 7,500 2028 9,786 0 0 9,786
20 Common Flooring cement 400 50 29 8 3,200 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 10 10 5 50 500 2024 580 2034 672 1,252
22 Ceiling and Wall 1,500 50 29 Paint 3,000                  5 0 0 0 0 0 0
24 Bathroom sink 2 30 9 300 600 2028 783 0 0 783
25 Bathroom faucet 2 30 9 175 350 2028 457 0 0 457
26 Toilet 3 30 9 100 300 2028 391 0 0 391
27 Urinal 1 30 9 250 250 2028 326 0 0 326
28 Urinal flush valve 1 30 9 250 250 2028 326 0 0 326
30 Interior lighting 4 10 5 200 800 2024 927 2034 1,075 2,003
9 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

4 Hartwell Park Restroom Facilities HVAC 500 10,415
11 Burnham Boiler Burham P-202-W No Data 1800 1 25 5 Annual Maint 500                     4,320 4,320 2024 5,008 0 0 5,008
12 DHW tank heater AO Smith (Electric) ELJF 6 ELJF  6 (1.5 kW   700 1 10 5 1,260 1,260 2024 1,461 2034 1,693 3,154
13 Pumps 500 1 10 5 900 900 2024 1,043 2034 1,210 2,253
14 2019 0 2019 0 0

5 Hartwell Park Gazebo 2,100 125
15 Roofing Steel 700 50 29 11 7,700 0 0 0 0 0
16 Structure Wood 700 50 29 Stain wood 2,100                  65 45,500 0 0 0 0 0
20 Common Flooring wood 700 50 29 25 17,500 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 1 10 5 50 50 2024 58 2034 67 125
21 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

6 Hartwell Park Concert Stage 1,800 125
15 Roofing Steel 1,050 50 45 11 11,550 0 0 0 0 0
16 Structure Wood 600 50 45 Stain wood 1,800                  65 39,000 0 0 0 0 0
20 Common Flooring wood 600 50 45 25 15,000 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 1 10 5 50 50 2024 58 2034 67 125
30 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
31 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

7 Green Park Irrigation BLDG 3,600 7,609
15 Roofing Steel 1,050 50 29 11 11,550 0 0 0 0 0
16 Structure Wood 600 50 29 Stain wood 1,800                  65 39,000 0 0 0 0 0
20 Common Flooring cement 600 50 29 25 15,000 0 0 0 0 0
21 Exterior Lighting 1 10 5 50 50 2024 58 2034 67 125
4 Exterior Doors 1 30 15 Paint 300                     5 2,500 2,500 2034 3,895 0 0 3,895
6 Garage doors 1 20 15 Paint 1,500                  5 1,500 1,500 2034 2,337 0 0 2,337
39 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

3 Tennis Courts 20,000 0
1 Surface Rubber 1 7 2 Resurface 20,000 2 0 2021 0 2028 0 0
2 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

Equipment sub-total General Repair  0 Replacement  -                   
Total 40,600 371,396             84,635



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 
Town Buildings General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3%

Asset
Location 
or Notes

Manufacturer 
or Notes

Year in 
service

Model # / Product # or 
Notes Value ($) Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs) Repair notes Repair cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Unit cost 
($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
1 Town Hall 33,800 173,070

1 Roofing Steel 8,000 50 45 11 88,000 0 0 0 0 0
2 Siding wood 4,000 20 15 Paint 8,000              5 5 20,000 2034 31,159 0 0 31,159
3 Windows 1 510 50 15 75 38,250 2034 59,592 0 0 59,592
4 Exterior Doors 6 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 15,000 2034 23,370 0 0 23,370
6 Common Flooring 1 tile 3,376 20 20 8 27,008 0 0 0 0 0
7 Common Flooring 2 carpet 3,376 10 10 8 27,008 2029 36,296 0 0 36,296
8 Exterior Lighting 6 10 5 50 300 2024 348 2034 403 751
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 12,000 10 5 Paint 24,000            5 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
9 Interior Doors 19 30 20 300 5,700 0 0 0 0 0
29 Bathroom sink wall hung 4 30 10 175 700 2029 941 0 0 941
30 Bathroom faucet 4 20 10 100 400 2029 538 0 0 538
31 Toilet 6 30 15 250 1,500 2034 2,337 0 0 2,337
32 Urinal 1 20 15 250 250 2034 389 0 0 389
33 Urinal flush valve 1 10 5 n/a 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
15 Drinking fountain porcelain 1 15 10 500 500 2029 672 0 0 672
16 Interior lighting 50 20 18 Maintenance 1,500              200 10,000 2037 17,024 0 0 17,024
17 Interior $21,901 exterior $150,765 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

1 Town Hall HVAC 11,696
1 Lockinvar Boiler 5 Knight KBN286 8236.8 1 25 20 19,768 19,768 0 0 0 0 0
2 Shield DHW tank 5 Lochinvar Squire SITO040 1200 1 10 20 2,880 2,880 0 0 0 0 0
3 Pumps DHW, Hydronic Primary Loo   5 UPS-26-99FC, UPS43-100F  500 3 10 3 1,200 3,600 2022 3,934 2032 4,838 8,772
4 Zone Valves 5 250 2 10 3 600 1,200 2022 1,311 2032 1,613 2,924

5 HVAC $5,245 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
2 Visitor Center 12,500 64,085

1 Roofing Steel 1,500 50 5 11 16,500 2024 19,128 0 0 19,128
2 Siding wood 1,000 20 5 Paint 2,000              5 5 5,000 2024 5,796 0 0 5,796
3 Windows 1 200 50 10 75 15,000 2029 20,159 0 0 20,159
4 Exterior Doors 3 30 5 Paint 300                 5 2,500 7,500 2024 8,695 0 0 8,695
6 Common Flooring 1 tile 360 20 15 8 2,880 2034 4,487 0 0 4,487
7 Common Flooring 2 cement 850 50 20 Paint 1,700              5 8 6,800 0 0 0 0 0
8 Exterior Lighting 2 10 5 50 100 2024 116 2034 134 250
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 3,500 10 5 Paint 7,000              5 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
9 Interior Doors 2 30 10 300 600 2029 806 0 0 806
29 Bathroom sink wall hung 1 30 10 175 175 2029 235 0 0 235
30 Bathroom faucet 1 20 10 100 100 2029 134 0 0 134
31 Toilet 1 30 15 250 250 2034 389 0 0 389
16 Interior lighting 8 10 5 Maintenance 1,500              200 1,600 2024 1,855 2034 2,150 4,005
17 Interior $3,420 exterior $58,381 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

2 Visitor Center HVAC 17,272
1 Laars Boiler Laars No Data JVT75P DII (75 MBH Propa 1800 1 25 10 4,320 4,320 2029 5,806 0 0 5,806
2  DHW tank heater AO Smith (Electr 5 EES 52 917 (5 kW, 58 Gallo 748.8 1 10 5 1,797 1,797 2024 2,083 2034 2,415 4,499
3 Pumps No Data Generic (Taco?) Circulator 300 1 15 10 720 720 2029 968 0 0 968
4 Zone Valves No Data Generic Solenoid Valve 250 2 10 5 600 1,200 2024 1,391 2034 1,613 3,004
5 Portable Wall AC Behind Reception Desk 500 1 10 5 500 500 2024 580 2034 672 1,252
6 Heat Trace on hose bibb West Exterior wall 500 1 7 1 500 500 2020 515 2027 615 1,745
6 HVAC $10,827 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

3 Public Works 4,800 66,330
1 Roofing Steel 4,500 50 45 11 49,500 0 0 0 0 0
2 Siding wood 4,000 30 15 Stain and wood replacement 1,500              5 5 20,000 2034 31,159 0 0 31,159
3 Windows 1 80 50 15 75 6,000 2034 9,348 0 0 9,348
4 Exterior Doors 2 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 5,000 2034 7,790 0 0 7,790
6 Garage doors 3 20 15 Paint 1,500              5 1,500 4,500 2034 7,011 0 0 7,011
7 Common Flooring cement 3,000 50 40 8 24,000 0 0 0 0 0
8 Exterior Lighting 6 10 5 150 900 2024 1,043 2034 1,210 2,253
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 3,000 10 5 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
9 Interior Doors 19 30 20 300 5,700 0 0 0 0 0
29 Bathroom sink 1 30 10 175 175 2029 235 0 0 235
30 Bathroom faucet 1 20 10 100 100 2029 134 0 0 134
31 Toilet 1 30 15 250 250 2034 389 0 0 389
16 Interior lighting 16 10 5 200 3,200 2024 3,710 2034 4,301 8,010

Maintenance 1,500              1
17 Interior $4,469 exterior $56,351 0 2019 0 2019 0 0



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 
Town Buildings General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3%

Asset
Location 
or Notes

Manufacturer 
or Notes

Year in 
service

Model # / Product # or 
Notes Value ($) Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs) Repair notes Repair cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Unit cost 
($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
3 Public Works HVAC 4,572

1 Unit heaters 150 MBH Modine 15 High Efficiency II 1350 2 15 7 1,350 2,700 2026 3,321 0 0 3,321
2 DHW tank heater 3 kW, 10 Gallon 500 1 10 5 500 500 2024 580 2034 672 1,252
3 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
4 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
5 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
6 HVAC $3,900 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

4 Public Works Hut 5,900 34,754
1 Roofing Asphalt Shingle 700 20 10 7 4,900 2029 6,585 0 0 6,585
2 Siding wood 800 20 20 Stain 1,600              5 5 4,000 0 0 0 0 0
3 Windows 1 32 50 20 0 0 0 0 0 0
4 Exterior Doors 3 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 7,500 2034 11,685 0 0 11,685
7 Common Flooring 2 carpet 575 10 7 8 4,600 2026 5,657 2036 6,182 11,839
8 Exterior Lighting 2 10 5 50 100 2024 116 2034 134 250
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 1,500 10 5 Paint 3,000              5 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
15 Refrigerator 1 30 15 250 250 2034 389 0 0 389
16 Interior lighting 8 10 5 200 1,600 2024 1,855 2034 2,150 4,005

Maintenance 1,000              1
17 Interior $2,244 exterior $24,043 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

4 Public Works Hut HVAC 3,895
1 Decorative Gas Heating StoveAdjacent Dwelling Unit 22 2500 1 30 15 2,500 2,500 2034 3,895 0 0 3,895
2 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
3 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
4 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
5 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
6 HVAC $3,895 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

5 WWTP Chlorination BLDG 6,740 12,096
1 Roofing Steel 100 50 45 11 1,100 0 0 0 0 0
2 Siding wood 360 20 15 Paint 720                 5 5 1,800 2034 2,804 0 0 2,804
3 Windows 1 64 30 18 0 2037 0 0 0 0
4 Exterior Doors 2 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 5,000 2034 7,790 0 0 7,790
6 Common Flooring cement 100 50 40 8 800 0 0 0 0 0
8 Exterior Lighting 4 10 5 50 200 2024 232 2034 269 501
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 360 10 8 Paint 720                 0 0 2027 0 2037 0 0
16 Interior lighting 2 10 5 200 400 2024 464 2034 538 1,001
17 Interior $464 exterior $10,826 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

5 WWTP Chlorination HVAC 2,200
1 Electric Baseboard 0 1 15 1 350 350 2020 361 2035 545 906
2 Exhaust fan 0 1 15 1 500 500 2020 515 2035 779 1,294
3 Generator 0 1 20 3 repair generator 5,000              0 2022 0 0 0 0
4 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
5 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
6 HVAC $876 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

6 WWTP Lab/Control BLDG 5,740 13,501
1 Roofing Steel 300 50 45 11 3,300 0 0 0 0 0
2 Siding wood 960 20 15 Paint 1,920              5 5 4,800 2034 7,478 0 0 7,478
3 Windows 1 4 30 18 0 2037 0 0 0 0
4 Exterior Doors 1 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 2,500 2034 3,895 0 0 3,895
6 Common Flooring cement 300 50 40 8 2,400 0 0 0 0 0
8 Exterior Lighting 1 10 5 50 50 2024 58 2034 67 125
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 1,260 10 8 Paint 2,520              5 0 2027 0 2037 0 0
16 Interior lighting 4 10 5 Maintenance 1,000              200 800 2024 927 2034 1,075 2,003
17 Interior $927 exterior $11,431 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

6 WWTP Lab/Control HVAC 906
1 Electric Baseboard 0 1 15 1 350 350 2020 361 2035 545 906
2 2019 0 2019 0 0
3 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
4 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
5 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
6 HVAC $361 0 2019 0 2019 0 0



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 
Town Buildings General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  3% 3% 3%

Asset
Location 
or Notes

Manufacturer 
or Notes

Year in 
service

Model # / Product # or 
Notes Value ($) Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs) Repair notes Repair cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Unit cost 
($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
7 WTP 16,580 88,537

1 Roofing Steel 3,000 50 45 11 33,000 0 0 0 0 0
2 Siding Steel 3,890 20 15 Paint 7,780              5 5 19,450 2034 30,302 0 0 30,302
3 Windows 1 132 50 10 0 2029 0 0 0 0
4 Exterior Doors 2 30 15 Paint 300                 5 2,500 5,000 2034 7,790 0 0 7,790
6 Garage doors 2 20 15 Paint 1,500              5 1,500 3,000 2034 4,674 0 0 4,674
6 Common Flooring 1 concrete 3,000 20 15 8 24,000 2034 37,391 0 0 37,391
8 Exterior Lighting 4 10 5 50 200 2024 232 2034 269 501
8 Ceiling and Wall drywall 2,000 10 5 Paint 4,000              5 0 2024 0 2034 0 0
9 Interior Doors 3 30 20 300 900 0 0 0 0 0
29 Kitchen sink 1 30 10 175 175 2029 235 0 0 235
30 Kitchen faucet 1 20 10 100 100 2029 134 0 0 134
16 Interior lighting 15 10 5 Maintenance 3,000              200 3,000 2024 3,478 2034 4,032 7,510
17 Interior $3,847 exterior $80,389 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

7 WTP HVAC 44,098
1 Gas Fired Unit Heater East ~75MBH, Corrod 15 Beacon Morris 675 2 15 3 Corroded due to chlorination 675 1,350 2022 1,475 2037 2,103 3,578
2 Gas Fired Unit Heater West ~75MBH, good c 10 Beacon Morris 675 2 15 10 675 1,350 2029 1,814 0 0 1,814
3 Heat Recovery Unit East RenewAire 10 Not accessible 19200 1 20 10 This unit appears to have mitig              28,800 28,800 2029 38,705 0 0 38,705
4 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
5 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
6 HVAC $41,994 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

-                   
Total 86,060 620,256            537,012          



Town of Ridgway Repair & Replacement Schedule period present yr inflation 

Other CIP General 20 2019 Repair Replacement  0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asset
Location or 

Notes
Manufacturer or 

Notes
Model # / Product 

# or Notes Serial # Qnty

Expected 
useful life        

(yrs)

Remaining 
useful life        

(yrs)
Repair 
notes Repair cost ($)

Repair 
sched.    
(yrs) Replacement notes

 Unit cost 
($) 

 1 time Replcmnt 
cost ($) 

 1st 
repl. 
(yr)  1st repl. ($) 

 2nd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 2nd repl. 
($) 

 3rd 
repl. 
(yr) 

 3rd repl. 
($) 

 4th repl. 
(yr) 

 4th repl. 
($) 

 5th repl. 
(yr) 

 5th repl. 
($) 

 6th repl. 
(yr) 

 6th repl. 
($) 

 7th repl. 
(yr) 

 7th repl. 
($) 

 8th repl. 
(yr) 

 8th repl. 
($) 

 9th repl. 
(yr) 

 9th repl. 
($) 

 10th 
repl. (yr) 

 10th repl. 
($) 

Period 
Replcmnt. cost 

($)
1 Public Works 0 233,820

1 Cold Vehicle Storage 2000 50 0 40 80,000 2019 80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,000
3 Snow Blower Attachment 1 20 0 120,000 2019 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 120,000
4 PW Shop Vehicle  Exhaust Ventilation 1 20 0 8,820 8,820 2019 8,820 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,820
5 PW Shop  Ventilation 1 20 0 25,000 25,000 2019 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000
6 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 0
8 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

2 Marshal 0 447,510
2 Uniforms belts vests 5 5 5 394 1,970 2024 1,970 2029 1,970 2034 1,970 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,910
3 Tazers 5 5 5 1,440 7,200 2024 7,200 2029 7,200 2034 7,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,600
4 Software 1 10 1 40,000 40,000 2020 40,000 2030 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,000
5 Software annual fee 1 1 1 15,000 15,000 2020 15,000 2021 15,000 2022 15,000 2023 15,000 2024 15,000 2025 15,000 2026 15,000 2027 15,000 2028 15,000 2029 15,000 300,000
50 Police hardware in vehicle upgrades 1 10 1 20,000 20,000 2020 20,000 2030 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000

3 Parks 0 353,750
1 Green Street Restroom 400 50 0 0 300 120,000 2019 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 120,000
2 Green Street Gazebo 300 50 0 105 31,500 2019 31,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31,500
3 DWMP Restroom 400 50 0 300 120,000 2019 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 120,000
4 DWMP Street Gazebo 300 50 0 105 31,500 2019 31,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31,500
5 Athletic Park Bleachers 1 20 0 750 750 2019 750 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 750
6 Athletic Park Storage 1 20 0 20,000 20,000 2019 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
7 Athletic Park Concessions 1 20 0 30,000 30,000 2019 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000

4 Buildings 0 51,560 858,000
1 Town Hall Vestibule 100 20 0 35 3,500 2019 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,500
2 Town Hall Remodel 2500 20 0 85 212,500 2019 212,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 212,500
3 TH offsite storage 1 20 0 20,000 20,000 2019 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000
4 TH digitize records 1 20 0 15,000 15,000 2019 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
5 Visitors Center Parking Lot 10000 20 0 6 60,000 2019 60,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000
6 Visitors Center Addition 2000 50 0 150 300,000 2019 300,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300,000
7 VC Grass area 1000 30 0 50 50,000 2019 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000
41 VC Gazebo 300 50 0 105 31,500 2019 31,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31,500
42 VC Bicycle rack/shelter 1 20 0 3,500 3,500 2019 3,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,500
43 Overnight hookups at the Fairgrounds 5 30 0 20,000 100,000 2019 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
44 Solar array and EV parking Stations 2 30 0 31,000 62,000 2019 62,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62,000
45 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 2019 0 0

Fixed Asset sub-total General Repair  0 Replacement 1,893,080      
Total 0 1,529,740         1,893,080



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



1 

OPTION TO GROUND LEASE 
 
 

THIS OPTION TO GROUND LEASE (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
___ day of __________, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the TOWN OF 
RIDGWAY, COLORADO (hereinafter the “Town”), a home rule municipal corporation existing 
under the laws of the State of Colorado having an address at 201 N. Railroad Street, P.O. Box 10, 
Ridgway Colorado 81432, and ARTSPACE PROJECTS, INC. (hereinafter “API”), a Minnesota 
nonprofit corporation having an address at 250 Third Avenue North, Suite 400, Minneapolis, 
Minnesota 55401.   Hereinafter the Town and API shall individually be referred to as “Party” or 
collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Warranty Deed between Peter R. Decker Living Trust 
Dated March 18, 1991, Restated as of August 9, 2004 and the Town dated October 3, 2017, which 
deed is attached hereto as Exhibit A, the Town is the owner of certain real property more 
particularly described on Exhibit B (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, API intends to ground lease the Property and develop at the Property an 
mixed-use affordable live/work project for individuals and their families, consisting of, but not 
necessarily limited to, approximately 26 apartments, commercial uses and related uses (the 
“Project”), which Project shall be funded, in part, with possible use of (i) proceeds from the 
syndication of federal tax credits allocated for the development of Project pursuant to Section 42 
of the Internal Revenue Code and the Qualified Allocation Plan promulgated by CHFA (the “Tax 
Credits”) and (ii) other financing necessary for the development and operation of the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, API has requested, and the Town has agreed to grant API an option to ground 
lease the Property for purposes of developing the Project on the Property, all in accordance with 
the terms set forth herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and the mutual 
covenants and agreements herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the 
meanings ascribed thereto: 
 

a. Affiliate Person shall mean an individual or entity, legally authorized to 
receive and use the Tax Credits, which will own the Project in lieu of API. 
 

b. CHFA shall mean the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority. 
 

c. Commencement Date shall mean the date API delivers notice of the exercise 
of the Option. 

jennifercoates
Highlight

jennifercoates
Highlight

jennifercoates
Highlight



2 

 
d. Encumbrances shall mean all liens, security, interests, claims, 

encumbrances, easements, rights-of-way, encroachments, reservations, restrictions, covenants, 
conditions and any other matters affecting title to the Property. 
 

e. Environment shall mean water or water vapor, land surface or subsurface, 
air, wildlife, biota and all other natural resources. 

 
f. Environmental Law shall mean any applicable, or relevant and appropriate, 

statutes, ordinances, by-laws, directives or other written, published laws, any written, published 
rules or regulations, orders, and any licenses, permits, orders, judgments, notices or other 
requirements issued pursuant thereto, enacted, promulgated or issued by any Governmental 
Authority, in effect as of the Effective Date, relating to pollution or protection of public health or 
the Environment from Hazardous Materials (including, but not limited to, any air, surface water, 
groundwater, land surface or sub-surface strata, whether outside, inside or under any structure), or 
to the identification, reporting, generation, manufacture, processing, distribution, use, handling, 
treatment, storage, disposal, transporting, presence, Release or threatened Release, of any 
Hazardous Substances.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Environmental Laws 
shall include the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 
1980, as amended, the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended, the Hazardous Materials 
Transportation Act, as amended, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, the 
Clean Water Act, as amended, the Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended, the Clean Air Act, as 
amended, and all analogous laws enacted, promulgated or lawfully issued by any Governmental 
Authority, but shall exclude the Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amended, and similar state 
laws. 
 

g. Governmental Authority shall mean any federal, state or local governmental 
court, agency or other entity, body, organization or group exercising any executive, legislative, 
judicial, quasi-judicial, regulatory or administrative government function. 
 

h. Ground Lease shall have the meaning provided in Section 3. 
 

i. Hazardous Material shall mean any petroleum, PCBs, asbestos, chemical 
substance, waste, pollutant or contaminant, as defined in, or regulated by, any Environmental Law 
or as determined by any Governmental Authority. 
 

j. Option shall have the meaning provided in Section 2. 
 

k. Option Term shall mean the period from the Effective Date to the 
Termination Date. 
 

l. Permitted Encumbrances shall mean the Encumbrances listed on the 
schedule of exceptions to be contained in the leasehold title policy to be dated as of the 
Commencement Date, or as described as a Permitted Encumbrance in this Agreement.  
 



3 

m. Person shall mean a natural person, a partnership, a joint venture, an 
unincorporated association, a limited liability company, a corporation, a trust, any other legal 
entity, or any Governmental Authority. 
 

n. Project shall have the meaning provided in the Recitals. 
 

o. Property shall have the meaning provided in the Recitals. 
 

p. Taking shall mean any taking or pending or threatened taking, in 
condemnation or under the right of eminent domain of the Property or any portion thereof. 
 

q. Tax Credits shall have the meaning provided in the Recitals. 
 

r. Termination Date shall have the meaning provided in Section 2. 
 

2. Option to Ground Lease: The Town hereby grants to API an exclusive option to 
ground lease the Property (the “Option”).  The Option shall remain in full force and effect and 
may be exercised by API at any time until the first to occur of (i) the closing of the primary 
construction financing (excluding predevelopment financing) for the Project, (ii) syndication and 
sale of Tax Credits allocated for the development of the Project, or (iii) December 31, 2020 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Termination Date”).  API has the right to extend the 
date in item (iii) above by twelve (12) months upon securing financing necessary to complete the 
Project. 
 

3. Terms and Conditions of Lease: The Town and API shall negotiate in good faith to 
finalize the terms and conditions of a ground lease for the Property (the “Ground Lease”) no later 
than the Termination Date.  On the Commencement Date the mutually acceptable finalized version 
of the Ground Lease shall take effect. Parties understand that the Property was purchased in-part 
with grant funds from the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs and as such is 
encumbered by a Property Use Covenant approved by the Ridgway Town Council on September 
13, 2017 and attached hereto as Exhibit C. For purposes of this Agreement, this Exhibit C is a 
Permitted Encumbrance. While not specific to this Option, API understands that the Town may be 
interested in additional terms for the Ground Lease including but not limited to: local preference 
in procurement of goods and services as is reasonable for the construction of any future 
improvements; the right of first refusal for the Town to acquire any future improvements to the 
property; the Town’s participation in design, architecture, financing and construction of future 
improvements; the Town’s interest in any non-residential space or other town-funded 
improvements, etc.; the final term of the lease and the timing of project construction; lease renewal 
options; etc. 
 

4. Ground Lease Rent and Term: The rent payable under the Ground Lease is 
anticipated to be ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) per year.  The term of the Ground Lease shall be no less 
than thirty-five (35) years from the Commencement Date.  The Ground Lease’s rent and term shall 
ultimately be decided in consultation with the Tax Credit investor and the Town of Ridgway.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement and the terms contained herein shall not constitute 
a multiyear fiscal obligation for the Town.   

jennifercoates
Highlight

jennifercoates
Highlight



4 

 
5. Restrictive Covenants.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that API will record 

restrictive covenants (as contained in a certain land use restriction agreement required by CHFA 
(the “LURA”)) on the land and all improvements and that the LURA shall be binding on the Town 
and any successor in interest to the Town’s interest in the Property.  The Parties further 
acknowledge and agree that upon the termination of the LURA by foreclosure or deed in lieu 
thereof, the Parties agree not to evict any residential tenants without cause and likewise 
acknowledge and agree that they will not increase the gross rent for a period of three (3) years. 
 

6. Right to Inspect Property.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Option is 
subject to a determination by the API on the desirability of the Property for the Project, including 
API’s environmental review of the Property. During the Option Term, API may conduct 
inspections, tests, and studies with respect to the physical and environmental condition of the 
Property, including all environmental, surveying, engineering, soil borings and other tests with 
respect to the Property.  API and its consultants, agents, engineers, inspectors, contractors, and 
employees, upon notice to the Town, shall be given reasonable access to the Property for the 
purpose of performing such due diligence.   
 

7. Warranties and Representations of the Town.  As a material inducement to cause 
API to enter into this Agreement, the Town represents to API that: 

 
a. The Town has full right, power and authority to execute, deliver and 

perform this Agreement without obtaining any consents or approvals from, or the taking of any 
other actions with respect to, any third parties, and this Agreement when fully executed will 
constitute a valid and binding agreement of the Town, enforceable against the Town according to 
its terms.  
 

b. The Town has good and indefeasible title in fee simple to the Property.  The 
Town is not aware of any party that has or shall have any right in, or to acquire the Property.  At 
the Commencement Date, the Property shall be free and clear of all Encumbrances except 
Permitted Encumbrances.  
 

c. There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or threatened 
before any Governmental Authority which relates to the Property or the Town’s use of the 
Property.  
 

d. There is no known Taking affecting the Property. 
 

e. The Property is not situated in any area classified by any Governmental 
Authority as being a “wetland” or “flood-prone.” 
 

f. The Town has received no notice from any Governmental Authority of a 
violation of any requirement of such Governmental Authority with respect to the use or occupation 
of the Property, including, but not limited to, Environmental Law, zoning, subdivision and other 
land use requirements, and the Town has received no notice and have no knowledge of any 
violations or investigations relating to any such requirement. 



5 

 
g. The Town has received no notice of any default or breach by the Town 

under any covenant, condition, restriction, right of way or easement affecting the Property or any 
portion thereof, and no such default or breach is known by the Town to now exist. 
 

h. There are none, and, without the prior written consent of API, on the 
Commencement Date will be no service contracts, leases, purchase agreements or rights of first 
refusal affecting all or any part of the Property and there are and will be no oral or written promises, 
understandings, agreements or commitments between the Town and any third party with respect 
to the Property. 
 

i. There is no litigation or proceeding pending, threatened against or relating 
to the Property nor does the Town know or have reasonable grounds to know of any basis therefor. 
 

j. The Property is in compliance with, and the Town has not been charged 
with, has not received any notice of and is not under investigation for, failure to comply with any 
Environmental Law.  Neither the Town nor, to the best of the Town’s knowledge, any prior owners 
and occupants of the Property have stored, treated, generated, transported, processed, handled, 
produced or disposed of any Hazardous Materials (except in compliance with applicable 
Environmental Laws) at the Property.  There are no underground storage tanks at the Property of 
which the Town is aware. 
 

8. Covenants of the Town.  The Town covenants that during the Option Term: 
 

a. It shall not encumber the Property or enter into any lease or other occupancy 
agreement with respect thereto without the prior written consent of API. 
 

b. The Town shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all notices, orders 
and requirements issued by any Governmental Authority against or affecting the Property, to the 
extent such notices, orders and requirements are issued as a result of the Town’s use or ownership 
of the Property.  

c. The Town, upon knowledge of the same, shall promptly notify API of any 
material change with respect to the Property, or with respect to any information, representation or 
warranty heretofore or hereafter furnished by the Town to API concerning the Property.  
 

d. The Town shall, upon request, provide API with reasonable access to the 
Property for the purpose of verifying the Town’s performance of its obligations hereunder. 
 

9. Notice: All notices under this Agreement, including notice of the exercise of this 
Option, shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, 
Federal Express, or similar private overnight carrier, addressed to the Party for which such notice 
is intended, at such Party’s address set forth below or at such other address as may be provided by 
such Party to the other Party by notice complying with this Section.  All notices sent pursuant to 
this Section shall be deemed effective when deposited in the mail or delivered to the overnight 
carrier, as the case may be, addressed as follows: 
 



6 

To the Town:  Town of Ridgway, Colorado 
201 N. Railroad Street 
P.O. Box 10 
Ridgway Colorado 81432 
Attn:  Town Manager 

 
To API:  Artspace Projects, Inc. 

250 Third Avenue North 
Suite 400 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401 
Attn:  Andrew Michaelson 

 
With a copy to: 

 
Cannon Heyman & Weiss, LLP 
726 Exchange Street, Suite 500 
Buffalo, New York 14210 
Attn: Steven J. Weiss, Esq. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 
a. This Agreement, and all of its agreements, warranties and representations, 

shall survive the Option Term and commencement of the Ground Lease. 
 

b. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, 
the internal laws of the State of Colorado, without regard to principles of conflict of laws.  The 
Parties agree and consent that venue for purposes of resolving any dispute or controversy relating 
to this Agreement shall be Ouray County.   
 

c. This Agreement embodies and constitutes the entire understanding between 
the Parties with respect to the transaction contemplated herein, and all prior agreements, 
understandings, representations and statements, oral or written, are merged into this Agreement.  
Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be waived, modified, amended, discharged 
or terminated except by an instrument signed by the Party against whom enforcement of such 
waiver, modification, amendment, discharge or termination is sought, and then only to the extent 
set forth in such instrument.   
 

d. No waiver by either Party hereto of any failure or refusal by the other Party 
hereto to comply with its obligations hereunder shall be deemed a waiver of any other or 
subsequent failure or refusal by such Party to so comply.  
 

e. The captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference 
only and in no way define, describe or limit the scope or intent of this contract or any of the 
provisions hereof.  
 



7 

f. Upon prior written notice to the Town, API may assign all of its rights under 
this Agreement to an Affiliate Person, including, but not limited to, the eventual tax credit 
partnership, in its sole and absolute discretion, without the consent of Seller.   
 

g. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their respective heirs or successors and assigns.   
 

h. As used in this Agreement, the masculine shall include the feminine and 
neuter, the singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the singular, as the context 
may require.  
 

i. This Agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts, 
each of which for all purposes is to be deemed as original, and all of which constitute, collectively, 
one agreement. 
 

j. In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement should be found or held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the 
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein or therein shall 
not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

 
k. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

 
l. Town and API acknowledge that each Party's entry into this Agreement is 

voluntary in nature. 
 

m. This Agreement has been carefully read by the Parties, the contents hereof 
are known and understood by the Parties, and it is signed freely by each Party executing this 
Agreement.  Each Party has had the opportunity to review this Agreement with independent legal 
counsel.   
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  Signature page to follow.] 
 

 



 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and API have caused this Agreement to be executed 
under seal as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 

TOWN: 
 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 
 
 
By:         
Name:        
Title:         
 

 
API: 
 
ARTSPACE PROJECTS, INC. 
 
 
By:         
Name:        
Title:         

 



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 :ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 

On the ___ day of __________, in the year 2019, before me, the undersigned, a notary public in 
and for said state, personally appeared ____________________________, personally known to 
me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual(s) whose name(s) is 
(are) subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the 
individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2019 by 
[INSERT SIGNATORY NAME], the [INSERT TITLE] of Artspace Projects, Inc., a nonprofit 
corporation under the laws of Minnesota.  
 
 
 
 

NOTARIAL STAMP OR SEAL (OR OTHER TITLE OR RANK) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICAL 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Vesting Deed 
 

See Attached 
 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Description of Property 
 

LOTS 6, 7, 8, 9, AND 10 IN BLOCK 28, TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COUNTY OF OURAY, 
STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
  



 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Property Use Covenant 
 

See Attached 









 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 



 

 

To: Ridgway Town Council 
From:  Jen Coates, Town Manager 
Date: April 5, 2019 
 
RE: Ouray County Housing Authority/ Advisory Committee 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
 
On November 8, 2018, the Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee presented information to the 
elected officials from Ouray County, City of Ouray and Town of Ridgway. The Committee presented a 
5-year strategic plan (see attached). 
 
As a part of the discussion, and in follow up to the meeting, the elected officials and staff in 
attendance agreed to request that the City, Town and County place an item on an upcoming agenda 
to discuss what each entity would like out of a housing-related entity, and any pertinent qualifiers. 
 
The Town of Ridgway and City of Ouray requested additional time to consider the information with 
the goal of incorporating the conversation into ongoing Master Plan efforts and reporting back to the 
Ouray County Advisory Committee in the Spring 2019.  
 
The questions below were presented from Councilor Austin in Ridgway in follow up to the joint 
meeting on November 8th, 2018, and are proposed to the Town Council for discussion at the regular 
meeting of April 10, 2019: 
 
1. Goal #1. Does the town want County-wide Guidelines? Or, should Ridgway have it's own 
Guidelines? 

 
2. Goal #2. Would the town consider adopting additional new Impact Fees on new construction? 
  
3. Goal #2. How much would the Town consider contributing on an annual basis to an Authority, if 
approved? 
 
4. Goal #3. Does the Town desire to form a Housing Authority? Should the OCHAC be disbanded? 
 
5. Goal #4. Will the Town modify our current public information sheets we have for requirements,  
Town needs, etc. and compile a "At-A-Glance" sheet? 
 
6. Goal #6. Will the Town continue to work on each of the 14 Objectives in Goal #6 in the 5-Year Plan? 



 

 

 
7. How can the Town further streamline the process for builders who desire to construct housing in 
Ridgway? 
 
8. What would the TC want a Housing Authority to do, i.e. development?, admin only?, other? 
 
Additional questions the Town Council may wish to consider: 
 
9. Does the draft Master Plan support the need for a Housing Authority or Housing Advisory 
Committee? 
 
10. Will a Housing Authority or Advisory Committee have a functional and beneficial role in advancing 
the goals, objectives and action items in the Town’s Master Plan? 
 
11. If there is a need for a housing agency of some sort, is it needed today or is the need in the future? 
What structure is needed for a successful housing agency? 
 
12. What would another quasi-governmental agency do to advance the goals of the Town and how 
would it be funded?  
 
13. How would the housing agency work with the town staff to insure efforts are aligned? 
 
14. Other…. 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attachments: 
 
11/8/2018 Meeting Flyer, Meeting Agenda, and Draft 5-Year Strategic Plan 



5-YEAR STRATEGIC 
PLAN 

PRESENTATION & 
DISCUSSION OF 

FUTURE 
ASSIGNMENTS

Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee's

November 8, 2018 

5:30pm Meet & Greet, 6:00pm Presentation  

 Ouray County 4-H Event Center 
22739 Highway 550, Ridgway 

 

Two or more, or a quorum of: City of Ouray Council Members, Town of Ridgway Council 

Members, and Ouray County Board of County Commissioner members may attend and 

participate in the discussion.



Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee 
City of Ouray, Town of Ridgway, Ouray County 

November 8, 2018, 5:30PM Meet & Greet, 6:00PM Presentation 
Ouray County 4-H Event Center 

5-Year Strategic Plan Presentation & Discussion of Future Assignments 

Agenda 

 Welcome and Introductions – Commissioner Don Batchelder 

 Five Year Strategic Plan Presentation – OCHAC Members 
o History & Methodology  
o The Plan 
o Comments and Questions 

 City/Town/County Discussion of Future Assignments: 
o At-A-Glance Materials 
o White Paper of Funding Sources 
o Disband?  
o Other ideas? 

***Two or more, or a quorum of: City of Ouray Council Members, Town of Ridgway Council 
Members, and Ouray County Board of County Commissioner members may attend and participate 

in the discussion. *** 



Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee 

5 Year Strategic Plan 

 

August 23, 2018 



 



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 1 of 13 

Ouray County 5-Year Strategic Plan 
Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee (OCHAC) 

August 23, 2018 

“The Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee’s MISSION is to provide access to safe, affordable, 
ownership and rental housing for those who live or are employed in Ouray County and seek the 

opportunity to build a life as a part of our community.” 

Don Batchelder, Ouray County Commissioner; Bette Maurer, City of Ouray Council Member; Robb 
Austin/Tom Heffernan, Town of Ridgway Council Member; Shirley Diaz, Member at Large; Andrea 
Sokolowski, Member at Large.  
 
Introduction:  

On October 24, 2016, the City of Ouray, the Town of Ridgway and Ouray County met to discuss housing 
issues in Ouray County. As a result of the meeting, the Town, City and County tasked the Ouray County 
Housing Advisory Committee (“OCHAC”; “the Committee”) with creating a Five Year Strategic Plan.  

There are numerous components and steps to consider in the creation of affordable housing, both rental 
and purchase. The simplest way to address this issue is to quantify the gap between what the target 
populations can afford and the cost of available housing units; the lower the average income is of the 
target population, the harder it is to close this gap.  

Housing costs are determined by two major factors: 1) cost of the land; and, 2) cost of the structure. Land 
costs include infrastructure to the property (i.e. roads, sewer, water, power, gas, and phone). Structure 
costs include tap fees, building fees/permits, extension of infrastructure, and cost of the structure. Absent 
a monetary subsidy, the steps available to close the gap are to decrease land costs and/or decrease 
structure costs. Wherever there is a public subsidy to help offset the gap, (monetary, increased density, 
decreased regulation or structure size and quality, decrease fees or other subsidy) the governmental 
entity should ascribe a value to that subsidy and protect it via deed restriction or other mechanism so that 
the value will continue to support its original intended purpose.  

The following goals and objectives are intended to further the overall effort of closing the gap and 
preserving any subsidy.   

Survey and Public Information Gathering Processes 

As a part of the Five Year Strategic Plan process, the Committee, engaged in an information and data 
collection process. The goal was to gather information, opinions and data from a variety of sources to 
inform the Strategic Plan.  

 On May 26, 2016, a public information forum was held for the purpose of gathering information 
from builders and developers. Karl Fulmer, Gunnison Valley Regional Housing Authority Director 
and Kathryn Grosscup, Housing Development Specialist for DOLA were featured as speakers. 
Fulmer identified planning and zoning regulations as hurdles facing the development of affordable 
housing and suggested several changes to overcome these challenges. Grosscup encouraged 
residents to help inform elected officials with usable data in order to encourage approval of 
affordable housing options. She explained resources available through the DOLA and the 
Division of Housing. (05-26-2016 Forum; Exhibit 1) 

 On September 21, 2016, a forum was hosted by the Ridgway Ouray Community Council (ROCC) 
in which OCHAC was invited to share its plans and information regarding housing issues in Ouray 
County. Shirley Diaz, San Miguel Regional Housing Authority Director and OCHAC member gave 
a presentation regarding housing needs in Ouray County (09-21-2018 Housing Needs in Ouray 
County, Diaz: Exhibit 2). 

 In January 2017, a questionnaire was distributed to the City, Town and County for the purpose of 
gathering information to begin forming the Five Year Strategic Plan. The information collected 
indicated that the entities favored zoning and regulatory changes to encourage the development 
of long-term rentals. In addition, fee waivers and impact fees were to be researched and 
considered for implementation. (January 2017 Questionnaire to City, Town and County: Exhibit 3) 



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 2 of 13 

 On October 17, 2017, the Committee and ROCC held a public forum for the purpose of 
discussing “What it Takes to Buy or Rent a Home in Ouray County.” The main goal of the forum 
was to collect input from home or rental seekers in Ouray County. Shirley Diaz, SMHRA 
Executive Director and OCHAC Member provided a brief presentation on affordability and lending 
education. The remainder of the forum was spent discussing what people could afford, and what 
was available for purchase or rent.  Most homebuyers were seeking homes in the $200,000 
range. (10-17-2017 Forum Notes: Exhibit 4)  

 On February 7, 2018, the Committee hosted a “Builders and Developers Forum” for the purpose 
of gathering information regarding suggestions for land use code, building code, or other 
regulatory changes or incentives to develop more affordable housing in Ouray County. The 
information gathered encouraged the allowance of smaller lots, accessory dwelling units (ADUs), 
and conceptual code changes. (02-07-2018 Builders and Developers Forum Notes: Exhibit 5) 

 The final piece of information needed to inform the Strategic Plan was input from the Town, City 
and County elected officials. The questionnaire indicated that a housing authority/director was 
preliminary, but that the concept should be pursued, with a set list of objectives and requirements. 
Various funding mechanisms were suggested, including grants, a real estate transfer tax, and 
private contributions. (05-2018 City, Town and County Elected Official Questionnaire Responses: 
Exhibit 6)  

Resources:  

 In addition to the various surveys and forums, the Committee consulted a variety of existing 
studies and reports regarding housing and affordability. They are included in this report as 
exhibits and cited where applicable.  

 Also included in the Exhibit List are the notes, minutes and presentations from the forums and 
questionnaires/surveys. There are included with the intent to provide the reader a fuller picture of 
the input offered by residents, industry professionals, elected officials and other interested 
parties.  

 Exhibit List: 
o Exhibit 1 - 05-26-2016 Forum Notes 
o Exhibit 2 - 09-21-2016 Housing Needs in Ouray County, Diaz 
o Exhibit 3 – January 2017 Questionnaire to City, Town, and County 
o Exhibit 4 - 10-17-2017 Home Seekers and Renters Forum Notes 
o Exhibit 5 - 02-07-2018 Builders and Developers Forum Notes  
o Exhibit 6 - 05-2018 City, Town, and County Elected Official Questionnaire Responses 
o Exhibit 7 - 2009 Affordable Housing Action Plan 
o Exhibit 8 - 2011 Regional Housing Needs Assessment – Ouray and San Miguel Counties 
o Exhibit 9 - Boulder Regional Housing Partnership Resources 

Methodology:  

 Activity/Goal: These are “big picture” outcomes that that the City, Town, County and OCHAC will 
need to strive for as a united body. In order to achieve these goals, we recognize that they need 
to be broken down into intermediate steps so we can work toward achieving them in manageable 
increments.  

 Action Steps: These are the most specific components of the Plan, and indicate what needs to be 
done in order to achieve the Activity/Goal. In some circumstances, this is left blank as the steps 
are to be determined after the establishment of a housing authority or other housing-related entity 
or staff. 

 Responsible Party: This designates a person or entity specifically responsible for accomplishing 
the “Objective” within the Activity/Goal.  Some are “hypothetical” as they require the existence of 
a housing authority or other housing entity/director to administer or create. 

Note: 

This report includes two depictions/versions of the Five-Year Strategic Plan: an Outline Version and by 
Activity / Goal. Each contains the same information.   



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 3 of 13 

Five Year Strategic Plan- Outline 

I. Activity / Goal: Framework Documents:  
1. Year 1- (Note: this activity/goal must be driven by input from the entities, with OCHAC support 

and input) 
a. Simplify guidelines document  

 Responsible Party: OCHAC  
 Action Steps: 

 OCHAC meets with City, Town and County to get specific direction 
regarding the guidelines. OCHAC and the entities recognize that a “one-
size fits all” approach may not work for all three jurisdictions.   

b. Develop executive summary of guidelines 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC 
 Action Steps :  

 The purpose of an executive summary to make the guidelines 
approachable and usable by public and private entities.  

c. Develop, maintain and track list of possible deed restrictions and their applications 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC  
 Action Steps :  

 City, Town, and County to provide lists of deed restrictions. OCHAC 
members (or staff) develops and maintains a master list.  

2. Year 2-  (Year 3 assumes that the Housing Authority has been established)  
a. Prepare for transition to Housing Authority 

 Responsible Party: Initiated by OCHAC, but in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps: 
b. Continue to update Resource Materials annually 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
c.  

3. Year 3- 
a. Draft provisions for a contract for an entity to administer guidelines 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
b. Encourage and facilitate contract with the entities for administration of housing 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
c. Continue to update Resource Materials annually 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
4. Year 4- 

a. Continue to update Resource Materials annually 
 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 

County 
 Action Steps :  

5. Year 5- 
a. Continue to update Resource Materials annually 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
 

II. Activity / Goal: Develop Revenues:  
1. Year 1-  



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 4 of 13 

a. Continued collection of City, Town and County Funding 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC  
 Action Steps: 

 OCHAC develops a list of potential revenue sources with pro/con 
statement for submittal to the entities.  

2. Year 2- 
a. Develop and Submit to entities an impact fee proposal to be applied to new construction 

(i.e. building permits)  
 Responsible Party: OCHAC,  
 Action Steps : 

 A professional study will be needed to determine the viability of the 
funding source 

b. If an impact fee is determined to be a sustainable funding source, City, Town and County 
adopt impact fees 

 Responsible Party: City, Town and County, in conjunction with OCHAC input  
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town and County, in conjunction with OCHAC adopt impact fees 
into their fee structure. Public outreach efforts can be coordinated 
County-wide.  

c. Prepare a ballot initiative (mill levy, sales tax, use tax) 
 Responsible Party: Housing Authority staff; City, Town and County 
 Action Steps:  

 A professional study will be needed to determine the viability of the 
funding source, and the likelihood of approval.  

d. Evaluate Transfer Tax feasibility 
 Responsible Party: City, Town and County;  
 Action steps:  

 A professional study will be needed to determine the viability of the 
funding source.  

e. Investigate the use of marijuana tax revenues for the purpose of housing, or explore 
additional tax on marijuana sales for the purpose of housing 

 Responsible Party: City, Town and County 
 Action steps:  

 A professional study will be needed to determine the viability of the 
funding source.   

3. Year 3-   
a. Develop a Land Bank / Land Trust 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority; if no Housing Authority – City, Town and 
County  

 Action Steps :  
b. Develop a service contract for the purposes of home inspections, maintenance, etc.  

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff,  
 Action Steps :  

c. If the Transfer Tax initiative is approved, a local ballot initiative would need to be pursued 
for local approval 

 Responsible Party: Housing Authority/staff, in conjunction with City, Town and 
County 

 Action Steps :  
4. Year 4-  

a. Continue collection 
5. Year 5- 

a. Continue collection 
III. Activity / Goal: Creation of a Housing Authority (based upon the existing IGA) or Other 

Housing-Related Entity (Contingent upon existence of Housing Authority/housing-related entity 
staff)  
1. Year 1-  



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 5 of 13 

a. Preliminary work to form  a Housing Authority or Other Housing-Related Entity 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC  
 Action Steps: 

 Education, feedback, and data gathering efforts on the part of OCHAC 
from the City, Town and County, as well as public and private 
organizations.  

 The action to form a Housing Authority will be driven by the progress of 
the Housing Advisory Committee and be contingent on available funding. 
The City, Town and County will participate and help inform the process 
through input, and potentially funding, or grant match. 

b. Explore the development of a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO). 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC 
 Action Steps: 

 Research and develop a recommendation to entities.  
2. Year 2- 

a. Prepare a budget 
 Responsible Party: Housing Authority 
 Action Steps: 

 Develop a secure funding source through grants, grant match from City, 
Town, County and other local organizations, direct funding from City, 
Town and County 

b. Form an Authority or Agreement with Entities through Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) 

 Responsible Party: OCHAC/Housing Authority in conjunction with City, Town and 
County.  

 Action Steps:  
c. Develop Resource Materials; Secure Insurance; Determine Contract supplies, and other 

needed support 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC/Housing Authority  
 Action Steps: 

d. Develop partnerships within the community 
 Responsible Party: OCHAC/Housing Authority  
 Action Steps: Develop relationships and strategic partnerships with: OCHA Board 

Development/ SMRHA Partnership; Space to Create Program; Private 
Developers - Identify Property Owners for Partnerships; Low Income / Mixed 
Income Housing Tax Credit Project; Habitat for Humanity; others 

3. Years 3- 5 
a. Operation continues: address unaccomplished goals/objectives from Years 1 and 2 

IV. Activity / Goal: Develop Resource Materials (Contingent upon existence of Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff)  
1. Year 1-  

a. Develop “at-a-glance” information sheet for the City, Town and County 
 Responsible Party: Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff.  

 Action steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/Housing-related entity staff.  

 This goal was a specific request from the City, Town and County to 
create a “resource center” for home seekers and renters.  

b. Develop financial resource information for local affordable housing applicants 
 Responsible Party: Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 6 of 13 

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff.  

c. Acquire and obtain approval of various sets of plans for accessory dwelling units and tiny 
homes. 

 Responsible Party: Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 
dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  
2. Year 2 –  

a. Develop “How to Take Care of Your Property” Brochure 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

b. Develop “Expectations” Brochure for builders and developers.  
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

 Work with the builders and developers community, along with the Land 
Use/Planning Departments of the City, Town and County.  

c. Develop website 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

3. Year 3-5- 
a. Continue updating and developing needed resource materials  

V. Activity / Goal: Support Entities / Use Applications (Contingent upon existence of Housing 
Authority/hosing-related entity staff)  
1. Year 1 –  

a. Monitor Land Sales for Land Bank 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Develop and track public lands that may be utilized for the provision of 
affordable housing, subject to local jurisdiction zoning and land use 
regulations 

b. Provide guidance resource materials (crude market sales)  
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

2. Year 2 –  
a. Continue to monitor land sales for land bank 



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 7 of 13 

 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 
dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

b. Develop regional rental rate matrix by home size 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

c. Provide home sales matrix 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, it would become the 
responsibility of staff. 

 Action Steps:  

 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. 

3. Year 3- 
a. Continue to monitor land sales for land bank 

 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 
dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, or through contracted 
services. 

 Action Steps:  
 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 

Authority/housing-related entity staff 
4. Year 4- 

a. Continue to monitor land sales for land bank 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, or through contracted 
services. 

 Action Steps:  
 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 

Authority/housing-related entity staff 
5. Year 5- 

a. Continue to monitor land sales for land bank 
 Responsible Party:  Preliminarily, OCHAC will be responsible; however, 

dependent upon the creation of a Housing Authority, or through contracted 
services. 

 Action Steps:  
 Contingent upon the existence/development of a Housing 

Authority/housing-related entity staff 
VI. Activity / Goal: Zoning and Regulatory Changes 

1. Year 1 –  
a. Decrease the minimum lot size 

 Responsible Party:  City and Town 
 Action Steps:  

 City and Town processes  
b. Examine different configurations of dwelling units (i.e. cohousing, duplexes) 

 Responsible Party:  City and Town 
 Action Steps:  

 City and Town processes  
c. Continue to encourage accessory dwelling unit (ADU) development / regulatory 

processes for the provision of long term rentals 



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 8 of 13 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town and County; OCHAC 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town and County processes, with OCHAC support and input  
d. Increase allowable building density per municipal lot 

 Responsible Party:  City and Town 
 Action Steps:  

 City and Town processes  
e. Recommend adoption of inclusionary requirement for a percentage of affordable housing 

in all future subdivisions. Such requirement could be met by designating lots/units or 
money in lieu thereof.  

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
f. Allow modular housing: tiny homes, mobile homes 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
g. Reduce onsite parking requirements 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
h. Determine feasibility of financing tap fees for the purpose of funding affordable housing 

 Responsible Party:  City and Town 
 Action Steps:  

 City and Town processes  
i. Review revisions to model energy code specific to smaller homes 

 Responsible Party:  City and Town 
 Action Steps:  

 City and Town processes  
j. Review fire suppression regulations for duplexes to ensure cost effectiveness 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
k. Examine use of smaller lot sizes and allowance of mobile homes in Colona 

 Responsible Party:  County 
 Action Steps:  

 County processes  
l. Consider alignment of building and energy codes, where possible 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
2. Year 2 –  

a. Examine lands adjacent to boundaries of municipalities for the propose of developing 
affordable housing units  

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
b. Review building regulations from cost/benefit analysis; if and when there are 

contemplated changes, the City, Town and County should seek input from the builders 
and developers community 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
3. Year 3 –  



OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 9 of 13 

a. Review building regulations from cost/benefit analysis; if and when there are 
contemplated changes, the City, Town and County should seek input from the builders 
and developers community 

 Responsible Party:  City, Town, and County 
 Action Steps:  

 City, Town, and County processes  
4. Year 4- 
5. Year 5-  

 
VII. Activity / Goal: Educational Forums 

1. Year 1 –  
a. Host two educational forums per year. Topics to be decided dependent upon cultural 

environment/needs.  
 Responsible Party:  OCHAC 
 Action Steps:  

2. Year 2 –  
a. Host two educational forums per year. Topics to be decided dependent upon cultural 

environment/needs.  
 Responsible Party:  OCHAC 
 Action Steps:  

3. Year 3 –  
a. Host two educational forums per year. Topics to be decided dependent upon cultural 

environment/needs.  
 Responsible Party:  OCHAC 
 Action Steps:  

4. Year 4 –  
a. Host two educational forums per year. Topics to be decided dependent upon cultural 

environment/needs.  
 Responsible Party:  OCHAC 
 Action Steps:  

5. Year 5 –  
a. Host two educational forums per year. Topics to be decided dependent upon cultural 

environment/needs.  
 Responsible Party:  OCHAC 
 Action Steps: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Page 10 of 13 

Five Year Strategic Plan by Activity / Goal 

Pages 10-13 

Note: this depiction of the 5 Year Strategic Plan is intended to be read across the rows. The first row 
includes numbered goals/objectives. The numbers associated with the goals/objectives correlate with the 

numbered Action Steps and Responsible Party rows. Each color indicates a separate goal/objective.  



Five Year Strategic Plan: By Activity / Goal 

 
OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 

Page 11 of 13 

 

 

 

 

 

Activity / Goal Objective: Year 1  Objective: Year 2  Objective: Year 3  Objective: Year 4  Objective: Year 5 

 GOAL 1: 

Framework Documents 

 

1. Simplify guidelines document, at 
direction of entities 

2. Develop executive summary of 
guidelines 

3. List of possible deed restricts and their 
applications  

4. Prepare for transition to Housing Authority  

5. Update Resource Materials annually  

6. Draft provisions for a contract for 
entity to administer guidelines 

7. Encourage and facilitate contract 
with the entities for administration 
of housing (housing authority) 

8. Update Resource Materials 
annually  (housing authority) 

9. Update Resource 
Materials annually 

10. Update Resource 
Materials annually. 

 

 Action Steps  1.   Meet w/ entities and get specific 
direction regarding guidelines  

2.   Meet w/ entities and get specific 
direction regarding guidelines  

3.   Meet w/ entities and get specific 
direction regarding guidelines  

-NOTE: These activities must be driven by entities, 

with OCHAC support and input 

4.  In conjunction with City, Town and County  

5.  In conjunction with City, Town and County 

6.  Advisory committee, or staff  

7.  Advisory committee, or staff 

8.  Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity.  

 

   

 

 Responsible Party 1.   OCHAC 

2.   OCHAC 

3.   OCHAC 

4.  Initiated by OCHAC, but in conjunction 
with City, Town and County 

5.  OCHAC 

6.  Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity. 

7.  Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity. 

8.  Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity. 

9.  Housing Authority, or 
other housing related 
entity. 

10.  Housing Authority, or 
other housing related 
entity. 

 GOAL 2: 

Develop Revenues  

1. Continued collection of City, Town, and 
County funding 

2. Develop and submit to entities an impact 
fee applied to new construction (i.e. 
building permits)  

3. Anticipated adoption of impact fees by 
City, County and Town  

4. Prepare Ballot Initiative for funding (mill 
levy, sales tax, use tax.) 

5. Evaluate transfer tax feasibility 

6. Consider utilizing some marijuana tax 
revenues for housing, or an additional tax 
on marijuana sales for the purpose of 
housing 

 

7. Develop a Land Bank / Land Trust  

8. Develop service contract (offer 
home inspection, maintenance, 
etc.) 

9. If transfer tax passes, local ballot 
measure to approve locally.  

 

10. Continue collection 11. Continue collection 

 Action Steps  1.   Develop list of potential revenue 
sources with pro/con statement for 
submittal to entities  

*All will require professional studies*    

 Responsible Party 1. OCHAC 

 

2.  Housing Authority, or other housing 
related entity. 

3.  City, Town and  County 

4.  Housing Authority, or other housing 
related entity; City, Town and County 

5.  City, Town and County 

6.  City, Town and County 

7.  City, Town and County 

     (ideally would function better under 
housing authority. )  

8.   Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity. 

9.  City, Town and County 

  



Five Year Strategic Plan: By Activity / Goal 

 
OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 

Page 12 of 13 

 

 

*Pertinent to Housing Authority and 
contingent upon staff*  

 GOAL 3 

Create a Housing Authority / 
or some housing-related 
entity 

1. Preliminary work to form a Housing 
Authority or some housing-related 
entity.   

2. Explore the development of a 
Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO). 

3.  Prepare Budget 

4.  Form an Authority or agreement via IGA 

5.  Insurance, resource materials, contract 
supplies, support 

6.  Develop partnerships within the 
community 

6. Operation continues, address 
unaccomplished goals/objectives 
from Years 1 & 2 

7. Continue 8. Continue 

 Action Steps  1. Education, feedback data gathering, etc. 
from 3 entities 

2. Research and develop recommendation 
to entities.  

3.  Develop a secure funding source through      
different sources 

4.   

5.   

6. Develop strategic partnerships with existing      
organizations  

6.  Continue  7. Continue 8. Continue 

 Responsible Party 1. OCHAC 
2. OCHAC 

3.  Housing Authority, or other housing related 
entity. 

4.  Housing Authority, or other housing related 
entity. 

5.  Housing Authority, or other housing related 
entity. 

6.  Housing Authority, or other housing related 
entity. 

   

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff.* 

 GOAL 4 

Develop Resource Materials  
(specific request from entities for 
“resource center”) 

1. At-A-Glance information sheet by entity 

2. Financial resources for local applicants 

3. “How to Take Care of Your Property” 
Brochure 

4. Expectations Brochure for builders 

5. Develop website 

6. Continue updating and developing 
needed resource materials 

7. Continue updating and 

developing needed 

resource materials  

8. Continue updating 

and developing 

needed resource 

materials 

 Action Steps  *Contingent upon Housing Authority/housing-
related entity staff. * 

 

*Contingent upon Housing Authority/housing-
related entity staff. * 

 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. * 

 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related 
entity staff. * 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related 
entity staff. * 

 Responsible Party 1.  OCHAC – preliminarily, but if 
maintained, should be responsibility of 
Housing Authority, or other housing 
related entity. 

2.  OCHAC – preliminarily, but if 
maintained, should be responsibility of 
Housing Authority, or other housing 
related entity. 

3.   OCHAC – preliminarily, but if maintained, 
should be responsibility of Housing 
Authority, or other housing related entity. 

4.   OCHAC – preliminarily, but if maintained, 
should be responsibility of Housing 
Authority, or other housing related entity. 

5.    OCHAC – preliminarily, but if maintained, 
should be responsibility of Housing 
Authority, or other housing related entity 

6.  Housing Authority, or other 
housing related entity. 

7.  Housing Authority, or 

other housing related 

entity 

8.  Housing Authority, or 

other housing related 

entity 

*Contingent upon HA/housing-related 
entity staff. * 

 GOAL 5 
Support Entities / Use 
Applications 

1. Monitor land sales for land bank 
2. Provide guidance resource materials 

(crude market studies) 
 

3. Continue to monitor land sales for land 
bank 

4. Develop regional rental rate matrix by home 
size 

5. Provide homes sales matrix 

6. Continue to monitor land sales for 
land bank 

7. Continue to monitor 
land sales for land bank 

8. Continue to monitor land 
sales for land bank 

 Action Steps  1.  Develop and track public lands that may 
be utilized for affordable housing; 
subject to local juris zoning and 
regulations (ongoing) 

*Pertinent to Housing Authority/or contracted 
services*  

*Pertinent to Housing Authority/or contracted 
services*  

 

*Pertinent to Housing Authority/or 
contracted services*  

 

*Pertinent to Housing 
Authority/or contracted 
services*  

 

*Pertinent to Housing 
Authority/or contracted 
services*  

 

 Responsible Party *Contingent upon Housing Authority/housing-
related entity staff. * 

*Contingent upon Housing Authority/housing-
related entity staff. * 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related entity staff. * 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/ housing-related 
entity staff.* 

*Contingent upon Housing 
Authority/housing-related 
entity staff. * 



Five Year Strategic Plan: By Activity / Goal 

 
OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 

Page 13 of 13 

 

 GOAL 7 

Educational Forums 

     (one-to-two per year) 

1. Two Educational Forums per year 
(topics pertinent to cultural 
environment/needs) 

2. Two Educational Forums per year (topics 

pertinent to cultural environment/needs) 
3. Two Educational Forums per year 

(topics pertinent to cultural 
environment/needs) 

4. Two Educational 
Forums per year (topics 

pertinent to cultural 

environment/needs) 

5. Two Educational 
Forums per year (topics 

pertinent to cultural 
environment/needs) 

 Action Steps       

 Responsible Party 1. OCHAC 2. OCHAC 3. OCHAC 4. OCHAC 5.  OCHAC 

 

 GOAL 6 

Zoning and Regulatory 
Changes (i.e. density) 

1. Decrease the minimum lot size  

2. Look at different configurations of 
dwelling units (including duplexes, 
cohousing, etc.)  

3. Continue to encourage ADU 
development / regulatory process for 
long term rentals  

4. Increase allowable building density per 
municipal lot  

5. Recommend adoption of inclusionary 
requirement for a percentage of 
affordable housing in all future 
subdivisions. Such requirement could 
be met by designating lots/units or 
money in lieu thereof.  

6. Allow modular housing; tiny homes, 
mobile homes 

7. Reduce onsite parking requirements  

8. Look at financing tap fees for 
affordable housing. 

9. Look at Revisions to model energy 
code for smaller homes;  

10. Review fire suppression regulations for 
duplexes to ensure cost effectiveness  

11. Smaller lot sizes and allowance of 
mobile homes in Colona  

12. Building and energy code regulations 
should be the same for all three 
entities, where possible  

13. Look at lands adjacent to boundaries of 
municipalities for the purpose of 
affordable housing. 

14. Look at building regulations from 
cost/benefit analysis; when there are 
contemplated changes, municipalities 
and county seek input from builders 

 

15. Look at building regulations from 
cost/benefit analysis; when there 
are contemplated changes, 
municipalities  and county seek 
input from builders 

 

  

 Action Steps  City, Town and County Processes      

 Responsible Party 1. City and Town 

2. City and Town 

3. City, Town and County, OCHAC  

4. City and Town 

5. City, Town and County 

6. City, Town and County 

7. City, Town and County 

8. City and Town 

9. City and Town 

10. City, Town and County 

11. City and Town 

12. County 

13. City, Town and County 

14. City, Town and County 

 

15.   City, Town and County 

 

  



 

OCHAC Five-Year Strategic Plan 
Exhibits Table of Contents •  Page 1 of 1 

Exhibits 

o Exhibit 1 - 05-26-2016 Forum Notes………………………………………………………….........1 
o Exhibit 2 - 09-21-2016 Housing Needs in Ouray County, Diaz…………………………............2 
o Exhibit 3 – January 2017 Questionnaire to City, Town, and County…………………………..20 
o Exhibit 4 - 10-17-2017 Home Seekers and Renters Forum Notes………………………........26 
o Exhibit 5 - 02-07-2018 Builders and Developers Forum Notes…………………………..........27 
o Exhibit 6 - 05-2018 City, Town, and County Elected Official Questionnaire Responses……32 
o Exhibit 7 - 2009 Affordable Housing Action Plan…………………………................................35 
o Exhibit 8 - 2011 Regional Housing Needs Assessment – Ouray and San Miguel Counties..90 
o Exhibit 9 - Boulder Regional Housing Partnership Resources…………………………..........237 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 JUNE 2 -8, 2016 OURA't COUNTYd'\!AINDEAtER M4J.A 2.r //. 2 (")\ I", OURA'tNEWS.COM 

OURAY COUNTY or...~-"fc..' -'fOQlAIV1 

Ja-pit_1! dire' L . ,. 'L I. 
.I110llSIIIg ,l.uor-ters 

BY TORI SREETS 

tori@ourayn<ii\'8.com 

Build ... ana develpP,.Cl" in Oura{ &unty 
gained 8()m. insight mto the process pf 
bringing aJrp~l. hmlBing 10 th'e county on 
'ThunJday, May 26. Ouray County Ho,using 
Authprity,hPSte:d,two ~ ... Karl Fulmer, 
director of- Gunnison Valley Region.al 
Housing Authority, and~Katitryn. Grosscup, 
housing developmenv~for,Colofl!.do 

Dqpartmenv of Local' Affairs. ,fu~y Towii 
Hall' was pocked with local b!lilders .and 
developers as well as representatives. ,fro'll 
ru~.y lJ'O'l'" GQunciI/ Ouray CitylCouDciI 
and'the 8Qanlo~&unty Commiilsioners. 

Ji'ulmer said "challOligos faciiig develop
ment of offonlable housing ,in. C<unnisoD 
.Cqunty are similar to th'!'!!" ~'Ouray &unty, 
as well as ~v.ry resort· town 'h. hoB worlied, 
in. 

He identified 56veral. <IWlengea devel:'p
ers in Ouray '&'Jlrity mllSl>(oven;ome and, a 
f~w 'ways to tad1ie,them. 

'Th. ,fir1!j; chalIeogelis,tIia OOIIt'of'Iimit. 
"You, ~e,withdilgh~d j-..r;"'d 

from . ' develJHlOr'sl!!'~ve it\fwi'danf.n~ 
tally aJrO<;!s ,the 'baiis o~ 'liny P.~ you 
buiI<\, " ho "'!iil. 

u: .... co"""'CIion ....!+- -- o~ rmiffina ''''6'' ..... K _.....,. II!!' ...,., 
fees; and ~ leJtmlliDt liii\honiiig ~
tioils are !)Ihorrcllalleog;...facing 8frord8l)le 
housing in 6iiray ~wity. 

11'0 overcome th... challe~ IFulme~ 
said; the Il'u~lic ~rivate' .ecfors.lII~ 'to 
eslai>lioh, • ,partnon.hjp. 'fu Crested ,Buite, 
Fulmer was Dble to w~QU'" deal,wijh'the 
town 'to.,.-lnce,:t/te ,~'if ... ,fo""wa\AIP 

The OUJiy Cou_nty HouSjngrAu!h9rtty had an OP.!'n house on Thursday nlgll!\to Inform ~tra.Ct<l.fs aJ\<l iilevetDt>e/s of the ways mey 
anlP.lQl1lOte ~ffonjable hOUsing In til!! coun..ty: DQO Bakheliler. county commIS.roner. IiJHented the b;j9{9fOtInd O!t OQIA i\.nd I/tb'o-
Ilucell,the two,speaJ\ers,rKailmulmer and Kathryn GrOsscup" 'Pfalnileoler,photo byTOII S/ii!iIs 

8l1If.,'IIlIWl!ge',by .J.wo-tItitds JOr work, 'forqc' 'h,uiJding.i!! ,is th. kll)" compOm,nl>bj,fo""any 
--Ii ' - eo -I ' .~fi be ' ownng urn... p'ro.,~ ,can gm, 

"'We/re I~ying $6,000 a ,unit-,in Ilo.lk~up "It'. 'imP.l>rtan~ to pay al!el1,tion ,to what 
fe,es , @' w.Uf where it ,"ould havc been datta,tells 'you, bec;llljle yoil canJbJJild Iproj
$l8,OOj)la'uiiit,", lle said. ... ~ tWl.,~,eyeD,wthll)' are aJrorilali~: lhe 

lanning-aniho' ~oii8 "'" aM '~s&iill 
IlIl1I::cieo·1O *riI~u~en iI, ... i1" 'Private sector d"velqpers .must show 

",ji&s.arel\1,';lt.;u." die~rofluili"'th"Y .I~: officials ana :plwming Otaff cxactly 
~canm;uillhon ani,acreJ I1,jimer said",reguIa- \\,ha~a,housin.g need is and' where itlisllOcat

,tioii8~ 1);!qea~!in("rem5e the tlensitY of~ 
,dfuni" 'allow~ per acre. • ".You c;m:t just IAIll ,them Iyou ,think .itis 

'lime ,is moo.y, l8() Itlie allerovat ana ;P!"" really nej:ded," 'he said. '!GiVe\them irir_ 
i~.pr0Ce08lCo"develop~" 'caD aII.o)e tion "'11Ii1l)' can talk to the eomm_unity,inlA!ll-
~'y"£ .. p ~ilrcenli'V ... to aevei'lP""'-" JligeDdY 'll!!drdiStribute lIiei\l.ta 8() .~~"roj-

'FuImcr said1knowing,the D1fl1'k<tt)'i>JI' , <>«a 'can 'be appEQv'ld and the community 

won'li~ /lead Nt ~jt' 
'GroiIaJ:o!p 'lPl'ltc ~Ifunaing .valltlble 

to counti .. ,through DOIfA ~to dQve~1! 
alIoniablelhousing.lThelDivkion of,"~ 
'WaB lcrUteGluncieriDOrA<in,,1'l70. 

'I!lor ~ ,PniCramt ,illat,'d\'Id< on rental 
alIoriLoJIIe IIiOusidg there is 'a ~ 8() the 
Di~ 6flHOuiUig U4WIIiy pIayo • fairly 
large rOle in'~~" oI\iIoaiCL 

DOH,proviiles,pDts and,'lIil'rateo .. ,the 
state lhmiiing auihority. rlhey are able to 
olIer lProperty 'iax. abateml.ril and ihousing 
ctioko .. oti<bo", for I81hcon,lraCIors worImm 
in· communitie&. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>1

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1



HOUSING NEEDS IN OURAY COUNTY 

Shirley L. Diaz 
Ouray County Housing Authority  

And Executive Director SMRHA 

<<Exhibits - Page >>2

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 2



“We’re Building the Ability for the Community 
to be Informed.”  Wayan Vota 

¾ The 2011 Needs Assessment  
� The methodology used 
�  Projections 

¾  State Demographer Data from 2015 
¾  Rental and Ownership Needs 
¾  Whistler Housing Authority Needs   
  Assessment 

<<Exhibits - Page >>3

Presenter
Give a brief overview of the presentation. Describe the major focus of the presentation and why it is important.Introduce each of the major topics.To provide a road map for the audience, you can repeat this Overview slide throughout the presentation, highlighting the particular topic you will discuss next.



Methodology 
¾ The Study looked at: 
        1) Unfilled jobs 
        2) Number of commuters who  
             want to move here 

<<Exhibits - Page >>4

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slides using transitions.



Projections for 2015 
¾ 3 scenarios are in the study 
 1)  .5% growth  
 2)  1.5% growth 
 3)  3% growth 

<<Exhibits - Page >>5



• With .5% growth in 2015 
we’d have 2,350 1 

• With 1.5% growth we’d 
have 2,469 2 

• With 3% growth we’d 
have 2,657 3 

Jobs in 2010 in Ouray County =2,292 

<<Exhibits - Page >>6

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



State Demographer Published Jobs 
• State demographer data has our jobs 

in 2010 at 2,423 
• RRC calculated our jobs at 2,292 in 

2010 
• State demographer data for 2014 has  

2,589 jobs in the County 
• The 1.5% job growth projection was 

2,469 for 2015 in the study 
 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>7

Presenter
What will the audience be able to do after this training is complete? Briefly describe each objective how the audience will benefit from this presentation.



• 177 new jobs  1 

• Equals approximately 140 
employees 2 

• Additional units needed? 
94 or more 3 

Job Growth 2010 -2014 
(Study #s and projections) 

<<Exhibits - Page >>8

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



• 166 new jobs  1 

• Equals approximately 132 
employees 2 

• Additional units needed? 
88 or more 3 

Job Growth With State Demographer 
Data 2010 -2015 

<<Exhibits - Page >>9

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



• How do we get new 
rental units built? 1 

• How do we determine 
where they can be built 
and funded 

2 

• Public and Private 
Partnerships-OCHA 3 

Rental Needs 

<<Exhibits - Page >>10

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



• What is our need and 
what is the price point 
for  our workforce 

1 
• Does it get built at the 

expense of rental or 
along with rental 

2 

• Who builds the units and 
how does it get dispersed 
throughout the County 

3 

Ownership Needs 

<<Exhibits - Page >>11

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



• Can everyone get a 
mortgage? 1 

• Who wants to live & 
work here now? 2 

• Will the community 
support taxes to make it 
happen? 

3 

Everyone Should Be Able to Live & 
Work Here-Fact or Myth? 

<<Exhibits - Page >>12

Presenter
This is another option for an Overview slide.



    
 
 
 

    
 
 

     
   HOW TO DETERMINE 

     OUR NEED NOW 
THERE IS NO ONE WAY TO DETERMINE NEED 
- THE CALCULATIONS IN THE LAST NEEDS 

ASSESSMENT CAN BE DUPLICATED 
- OTHER CALCULATIONS CAN BE USED 

- NEW AVENUES CAN BE PURSUED      
<<Exhibits - Page >>13

Presenter
Use a section header for each of the topics, so there is a clear transition to the audience. 



  
 
 
 
 
 
               WHISTLER: AN  
   EMPLOYER FOCUSED MODEL 
 
      18 YEARS OF RESEARCH 

<<Exhibits - Page >>14

Presenter
Use a section header for each of the topics, so there is a clear transition to the audience. 



Business Survey Model 

• Assesses employment 
characteristics; and 

• Housing Needs for 
Whistler’s workforce 

<<Exhibits - Page >>15

Presenter
If there is relevant video content, such as a case study video, demo of a product, or other training materials, include it in the presentation as well. 



Whistler Survey 
• All Employers Are Contacted 
– In 2015 they had a 36% response rate 
– They survey the winter and summer 

workforce 
– The 2015 report has a comparison chart from 

02/03 season thru 14/15 season reports on 
page 24 

– The Report Can Be Found At: 
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-
more  

<<Exhibits - Page >>16

Presenter
Add a case study or class simulation to encourage discussion and apply lessons. 

https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more


Summary: 

Our Region has changed since 2010  

Things we need to know 
– Current Rental gap- who wants to live here and rent 
– Current Ownership Gap- who wants to buy & can’t 
– Number of unfilled jobs 
– Percent of in-commuters & where they want to live 
– What is the seasonal need 
– What is the year round need 

 
<<Exhibits - Page >>17

Presenter
Summarize presentation content by restating the important points from the lessons.What do you want the audience to remember when they leave your presentation?Save your presentation to a video for easy distribution (To create a video, click the File tab, and then click Share.  Under File Types, click Create a Video.)



Summary Continued: 

Things we need to know 
– How do we get housing built 
– Does zoning accommodate development 
– Is taxing an option 
– Is there Private Development interest 

   What are our next steps? 
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>18

Presenter
Summarize presentation content by restating the important points from the lessons.What do you want the audience to remember when they leave your presentation?Save your presentation to a video for easy distribution (To create a video, click the File tab, and then click Share.  Under File Types, click Create a Video.)



 REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
HTTP://SMRHA.ORG/WP-
CONTENT/UPLOADS/2016/08/NEEDSASSESSMENT
2011.PDF 
 

WHISTLER 
HTTPS://WWW.WHISTLERHOUSING.CA/PAGES/LEAR
N-MORE 

<<Exhibits - Page >>19

http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
http://smrha.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/NeedsAssessment2011.pdf
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more
https://www.whistlerhousing.ca/pages/learn-more


Minutes of Ouray City Council 
January 17, 2017 
 

X:\Clerk\Council\Minutes\2017\Minutes1-17-17.docx 3 

 

Council member Boyd moved and Council member Maurer seconded the motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as follows: 
 

 Designation of Official Posting Location – Bulletin Board Outside of City Hall Administrative Office 
 Annual Re-appointments of Parks and Recreation Committee 
 Re-appointment of City/County Joint Planning Commission – Dee Williams 
 Huckstering Permit – Mouse’s Chocolates, Ouray Ice Festival, January 19 - 22  
 Re-appointment of City/County Joint Planning Commission Alternate – Brad Clark 

 
The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Questionnaire - Ouray County Housing Authority – 5 Year Plan 
 Mayor Larson noted that the Ouray County Housing Authority has asked the Council for a consensus 
on the following questions.  
 

1. What are your goals for Affordable/Attainable Housing?  
In 2017 Council will determining the needs of the community and defining goals. 
 

2. What do you believe is needed to achieve your goals? 

__ a) rental housing 

__ b) ownership 

_x_ c) both 

 
3. What are you willing to do to attract affordable housing development?  

Explore incentive programs and other possibilities. 
 

4. What is not acceptable, i.e. modular, mobile homes, tiny homes, etc.? 
The City would consider the possibility of Code changes. 

 
5. To meet your goals for affordable housing, would you consider: 

a) an “impact fee” on building permits? Yes _x_ No __ 

b) a “use tax” on building supplies? Yes _x_ No __ 
 

6. Are you willing to reduce or forego building and/or tap fees to encourage affordable housing? Yes _x_ 
No __ 
Would consider building permit fees and a deferment plan for tap fees. 
 

7. Would you consider changing your density regulations? Yes _x_ No __ 

If “yes”, in what manner? 
Density bonus program. 
 

8. How long do you anticipate changes for adequate zoning, building, etc. regulations to be finalized and 
in place? 

<<Exhibits - Page >>20

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
City of Ouray Responses

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 3

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text



Minutes of Ouray City Council 
January 17, 2017 
 

X:\Clerk\Council\Minutes\2017\Minutes1-17-17.docx 4 

 

__ 0‐6 month’s _x_ 7‐12 month’s __ 13+ month’s 
 

9. Are you willing to expedite the process so we are not waiting on monthly meetings? Yes _x_ No __ 
 

10. Please prioritize what your community values (highest =1, next highest=2 and lowest=3): 

_1__ Housing 

_3__ Small open space/parks 

_1__ Regional transportation 
 

11. What do you believe your community values more? 

__ a) current mix of existing housing under current zoning regulations, or 

_x_ b) modify current zoning regulations to facilitate affordable housing 
 

12. Would you be willing to accept a rental subsidy development, i.e. Section 8? Yes _x_ No __ 
 

13. Would you be willing to utilize public land you own to achieve affordable housing? Yes __ No _x_ 
No land is available. 
 

14. Would you be willing to purchase land to achieve affordable housing? Yes _x_ No __ 
What would be the funding source? 

 
15. Would you prefer to see affordable housing: 

__ a) in one area, or 

_x_ b) dispersed throughout your entire community 
 

16. Would you favor: 

__ a) private sector solutions for affordable housing, or 

_x_ b) government subsidies, or 

__ c) both 
 

17. Would you utilize the proposed Guidelines as criteria moving forward? Yes _x_ No __ 
 

18. Other comments are welcome: 
Facilitate meeting to assist with the process. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 At 7:14 p.m., Council member Boyd moved and Council member Maurer seconded the motion to 
adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved.  
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>21



Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee (OCHAC) 

Questionnaire for the Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray & Ouray County elected officials, each as an entity, to answer. 

Our intent is to gather direction and definition for OCHAC's 5 Year Strategic Plan 

1. What are your goals for Affordable/Attainable Housing? 
Create affordable housing in municipalities and Colona. Housing should be available to County workforce 

and County residents. The goal is to make it sustainable for people to work and live within Ouray County 

communities. To encourage creation and use of accessible dwelling units. 

2. What do you believe is needed to achieve your goals? 
_ a) rental housing 

_ b) ownership 

X c) both 

A coordinator is needed to help achieve the goals. 

3. What are you willing to do to attract affordable housing development? 

Create a Colona Affordable Housing Zone. Receive and administer grants. Revisit County ADU regulations. 

Revisit County ADU regulations. 

Participate in a Regional Multi·County Housing Development Group. 

4. What is not acceptable, i.e. modular, mobile homes, tiny homes, etc.? 
Type does not matter as long as it is well·funded with a long-term solution. 

Remote High-density development in areas away from infrastructure or services are unacceptable. 

5. To meet your goals for affordable housing, would you consider: 

a) an "impact fee" on building permits? Yes ~ No_ 

b) a "use tax" on building supplies? Yes _ No ~ 

6. Are you willing to reduce or forego building and/or tap fees to encourage affordable housing? Yes ~ No_ 
With correct controls. 

7. Would you consider changing your density regulations? Yes ~ No_ 

If "yes", in what manner? 
On a very specific and narrow basis near Colona. 

8. How long do you anticipate changes for adequate zoning, building, etc. regulations to be finalized and in place?: 

0·6 months ~ 7-12 months ~ 13+ months 
For ADU For zoning 

9. Are you willing to expedite the process so we are not waiting on monthly meetings? Yes ~ No_ 

Depending on proposal. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>22

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Ouray County Responses



10. Please prioritize what your community values (highest =1, next highest=2 and lowest=3): 

_1_housing 

2 small open space/parks 

-.3.. regional transportation 

11. What do you believe your community values more? 

~ a) current mix of existing housing under current zoning regulations, or 

_ b) modify current zoning regulations to facilitate affordable housing 

But is willing to look at zoning modifications in Colona. 

12. Would you be willing to accept a rental subsidy development, i.e. Section 87 Ves ~ No_ 
In places as outlined in question number one above. 

13. Would you be willing to utilize public land you own to achieve affordable housing? Ves..J5 No_ 
Subject to site specific review. 

14. Would you be willing to purchase land to achieve affordable housing? Ves _ No ~ 
No, under current budget. 

15. Would you prefer to see affordable housing: 

_ a) in one area, or 

~ b) dispersed throughout your entire community 

16. Would you favor: 

_ a) private sector solutions for affordable housing, or 

_ b) government subsidies, or 

~c) both 

17. Would you utilize the proposed Guidelines as criteria moving forward? Ves ~ No_ 

Yes, subject to additional review. 

18. Other comments are welcome: 
The County recognizes that most opportunities for housing are within the municipalities and supports municipal efforts to further its 

housing opportunities. Businesses that require service workers should be encouraged to provide or contribute to employee housing solutions. 

Our expectation is to receive a response that is the consensus of the elected official body. If requested, OCHAC is willing to meet 

with you to discuss this survey. 

Thank you very muchl 

Please return your completed survey to: ouraycountvhousingauthority@gmail.com by February ZB, 2017. 

Submitted by: --..:A~Eo::::· -""~,,,,:.......LZ---::2-=~' """"~~ __ Date: _..:..cZ_-_/ ,c.j_-_Q2._0_1--,1' __ 

<<Exhibits - Page >>23



 

Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee (OCHAC)  

Town of Ridgway compiled response: February 15, 2017 

Questionnaire for the Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray & Ouray County elected officials, each as an entity, to answer. 

Our intent is to gather direction and definition for OCHAC’s 5 Year Strategic Plan 

 

1. What are your goals for Affordable/Attainable Housing? 

What we hope OCHAC can provide:  

 Keep open communication between jurisdictions 

 Facilitate guidelines/ framework for affordable housing 

 Serve as a technical resource; Space 2 Create participant 

 Facilitate ADU best practices with county, town and city 

 SMRA partnership  

 

2. What do you believe is needed to achieve your goals? 

__ a) rental housing 

__ b) ownership 

_X_ c) both 

 

 

3. What are you willing to do to attract affordable housing development? 

 Code revisions to remove barriers and provide incentives (including ADU regulations)  

 Fee waivers  

 Partnerships 

 

4. What is not acceptable, i.e. modular, mobile homes, tiny homes, etc.? 

 Discourage “cheap” looking housing  

 Concentrating too much affordable housing in one location 

 

5. To meet your goals for affordable housing, would you consider: 

 

a) an “impact fee” on building permits?  Yes _X_ No ___ Would consider with more information  

 

b) a “use tax” on building supplies?  Yes _ X _ No ____ Would consider with more information 

 

6. Are you willing to reduce or forego building and/or tap fees to encourage affordable housing?  Yes _X_ No __ 

 

7. Would you consider changing your density regulations?  Yes _X_ No __ 

If “yes”, in what manner? 

 

8. How long do you anticipate changes for adequate zoning, building, etc. regulations to be finalized and in place?: 

__ 0-6 months               __ 7-12 months              _X_ 13+ months easily one year 

 

9. Are you willing to expedite the [building/development] process so we are not waiting on monthly meetings?  Yes _X_ No 

__ 

Generally, yes – but probably challenging to fix some structural disconnects; not interested in meeting more than 

once/month 

<<Exhibits - Page >>24

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Town of Ridgway Responses 



 

 

10. Please prioritize what your community values (highest =1, next highest=2 and lowest=3):  

_1__ housing 

_2_ small open space/parks 

_3_ regional transportation 

 

 

11. What do you believe your community values more? 

__ a) current mix of existing housing under current zoning regulations, or 

_X_ b) modify current zoning regulations to facilitate affordable housing 

 

 

12. Would you be willing to accept a rental subsidy development, i.e. Section 8?  Yes _X_ No __ 

 

 

13. Would you be willing to utilize public land you own to achieve affordable housing?  Yes __ No _X_  

If the Town had land they would consider this. 

 

14. Would you be willing to purchase land to achieve affordable housing?  Yes _X_ No __ 

 

 

15. Would you prefer to see affordable housing: 

__ a) in one area, or 

               _X_ b) dispersed throughout your entire community 

 

 

16. Would you favor: 

__ a) private sector solutions for affordable housing, or 

__ b) government subsidies, or 

_X_ c) both  

 

 

17. Would you utilize the proposed Guidelines as criteria moving forward?  Yes _X_ No __ 

 

 

18. Other comments are welcome: 

 

Our expectation is to receive a response that is the consensus of the elected official body. If requested, OCHAC is willing to meet 

with you to discuss this survey.  

 

Thank you very much! 

 

Please return your completed survey to: ouraycountyhousingauthority@gmail.com by February 28, 2017.  

 

Submitted by: _Shay Coburn_________________________________          Date: __2/22/17_________________________ 

<<Exhibits - Page >>25

mailto:ouraycountyhousingauthority@gmail.com


Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee 
Public Forum: What It Takes To Buy or Rent in Ouray County 

October 17, 2017 

 What are you looking for in housing: size, location, amenities, etc.  

1. Ridgway, or sunny-side of Ouray; ideally with a yard, on an acre. 2 bedroom, 1 bathroom. Likes the houses / lot 

sizes in Ridgway (by secondary school) 

2. Ridgway, smaller home with yard, ideally looking for 1,000-1,500 square feet. Smaller lot would be great (historic 

core in Ridgway lot size-5,000-7,000 square feet).  

a. Estimated $80,000 for land; $200,000 to build = $280,000 – affordable? No. 

3. Ridgway or bike-able to town without being on highway, 1,000 square foot home with small yard, like to have 

garden. Ideally 2 bedroom 1 bathroom.  

a. Estimated $280,000-$300,000 – budget under $200,000.  

4. Looking for home for family of 3, but used to small spaces. Would like to have yard. Price per square foot puts 

them into $280,000-$300,000 range; not much in pool for purchase under that range. Ridgway is lovely and wants 

to live there, but seems like we’re paying a premium to live in a mountain town. Rental prices have increased from 

$800 to $1,200 in 3 years 

a. Budget is less than $200,000.  

 Standpoint from employers: difficult to find people to work?  

1. Finding and retaining qualified people is difficult 

2. Very difficult, particularly during “off-season” (late October – December). Difficulties are compounded by lack of 

long-term rental stock.  

3. Currently in a rental, but if I lost it, I have not seen a rental that I could afford.  

 What’s affordable and what is that based on?  

1. Rentals are driven by the market. What we’re trying to do is determine what is affordable for those seeking and 

make recommendations to municipalities and county on ways to address the gap.   

a. Not willing to pay as much in rent as a mortgage.  

b. Ridgway is suffering from a supply and demand issue. People are indicating that they want smaller 

units/homes – only way it’s going to work is to build really small units. 

i. Discussion of Ridgway Project – 25 individual units on small lots. Will be very affordable, but running into 

some issues with the Town.  

ii. Fees associated with 500 square foot home are the same as with a 5,000 square foot home  

 Tap Fees / Incentives  

1. Town of Cedaredge uses tap fees to build up reserves – possibility of Town / City deferring fee to incentivize 

affordable housing projects.  

a. Important to have the municipality identify the mechanism for affordable housing – needs to be captured and 

maintained.  

 Employer Prospective  

1. Ouray Silver Mines (OSM) intends to hire 130 new employees. Ideally, OSM would like them housed in the City, 

Town or County. Looking into multifamily options that wouldn’t drain the current community. OSM is concerned 

about increasing the already high rental rates and pushing out current residents. Need to increase supply of 

rentals. Wants to be involved with 5-Year Strategic Plan to help map out needs.  

2. Twin Peaks Lodge in Ouray has purchased home in for employee housing.  

3. Concern that families are being driven out that are tied to the community. Rentals in Montrose are becoming 

unattainable now due to the lack of housing in Ouray and San Miguel Counties.  

 Building / Land Use Code / Zoning Regulation Changes 

1. Corvallis, OR changed zoning to allow more multifamily units on smaller lots – municipality encouraged builders to 

construct rental units to help solve affordable housing crisis.  

a. Ridgway is looking into that – encouraging ADUs on historical lots. Council is discussing requiring one unit to 

be owner-occupied, and the other unit pays 72% of the fee.  

b. Ouray is looking into encouraging ADUs, but waiting until new administrator and planner have been hired.  

c. Colona – encourage County to revisit and reconsider the 25 foot lot.  

<<Exhibits - Page >>26

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 4



Ouray County Housing Advisory Committee & Ridgway Ouray Community Council 
Builders & Developers Forum 

February 7, 2018 

Zoning 

 Town of Ridgway / City of Ouray – parking requirements are deterrent to density… reduce parking 
requirements and decrease setbacks or revaluate to increase density. 

o Not realistic for City, but helpful 
 City – smaller sqft for single folks. City regulations (i.e. tap fees) becomes huge deterrent as you reduce 

sqft. 
o Smaller lots for smaller houses 
o Scale tap fees to size  
o Smaller lots as use-by-right 

 Town  Code – density, smaller lots 
o Get rid of minimum footprint for houses (anti trailer “doublewide”) 

 Propose code changes for minimum sqft of housing, and smaller lots 

 ADU – smoother paths for all municipalities 
o County – TriCounty water tap fees issue 
o Ridgway – in progress 
o Ouray – starting to look at 
o All three – goal to ease/incentivize ADU (purchase vs. rental)  
o Financing tap fees (could happen for both Town and City) 
o Information on use would be helpful 

 Lack of knowledge that it’s an option… increase publication (Town) 
 Town, ADUs cannot be short-term rental 

 County: leverage value thru density 
o Town/City work together to identify property locations to best serve community.  
o Density bonuses tied to affordable housing  
o What do partnerships look like – working to determine potential County sites for affordable 

housing sites.  
 Reasonable for County to work with Ridgway (Ouray landlocked) to ID areas for 

annexation and served by Town services to create more lots  
 Clustered workforce/ AH decreases price, but public perception is not good.  
 County –  look at allowing ADUs on lots smaller than 3 acres 

 May have to look at mobile home parks in Colona Zone (rental) 

Building Codes:  

 City and Town: Tradeoffs: size of unit and codes (for example: energy codes); have to be able to weigh 
benefits/costs 

o Energy code in number of places increases costs; fire suppression (sprinkler systems) 
o Is it achieving purpose intended?  

 Drives up cost, but good cost. Long term value (deed restricted or subsidized homes)  
 Scalability is important… less of a benefit for smaller homes.  
 Mechanical requirements – well intentioned, but increased costs for O &M.  

 Opportunities for tradeoffs… cost for satisfying regulation.  
 Other areas to address costs (i.e. tap fees, zoning); maybe savings, but not worth costs 

of entities pursing.  
 Concerns of future energy codes.  

o Process for adoption new Codes – public hearing – however, is it effective? 
 Suggest: directly contact contractors/developers/those with experience for 

recommendation on Code changes.   
 Concern that Code is simply adopted and not made specific for community.  

 Flexibility makes more sense.  

<<Exhibits - Page >>27

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 5



 Foundation conditions (ties to site) – having blanket footing depth is redundant (saves in 
cost) 

 Other redundancies?  
 Enforcement – retention of building inspectors 

 Issue w/ state inspections.  
 Generally, no real issue w/ scheduling BI; if there are issues, alternatives are outlined 

(engineer sign off – not a cost savings).  

Process: 

 Policies and systems are only as good as those administrating it 
o Ouray specific: when hiring ensure recognition of compliance and being business friendly.  
o Retention of staff (hard to address) – once staff comfortable w/ governing body, the can operate 

in more effective way.  
 Consistency in enforcement/timeliness of response/ increase access to resources.   
 Question of gray areas and application/interpretation to code 

 For example: street setbacks in City.  
o Suggestion: where Code cleanup can happen, staff keeps running list (i.e. strengthen definitions, 

clarification of conflicts) 
o Increased access to legal opinions  

Gap: 

 Vacant lots – 100k-120k;  
o Create more lots 

 Multiple family houses – condo-ize 
 Land, materials, labor costs are variable; dedicated source of housing, can’t leave variables unaddressed.  

o Developer buys land, or public entities own annexed land.  
 Series of small lots w/ deed restrictions to reduce variability.  

Lacking employees due to lack of housing? 

 Lack of skilled employees…not necessarily related to AH.  

Other: 

 Cimarron Creek Housing (MoCo) (reasonable regulations governing mobile homes) 
 Issue of financing w/ mobile homes (higher down payments) 
 Life cycle of manufactured homes is much more limited.  
 Lease land for the provision of mobile homes/manufactured homes/tiny homes – long leases 

o Reasonable recommendation for all three entities.  
 Town – square lots vs. railroad, two houses, etc.  
 Undeveloped parcels/lots, approach owners for possible provision of land 

o Tax incentive for long term land owners w/ undeveloped lots  
o USFS interested in parcel exchanges (could affect Ouray) 
o Creation of land trusts 

 Subsidy – feasible for renting, not for owning (limits salary, etc.) 
 Important for jurisdictions to reach out for input.  

Taxes 

 Short term rental taxing 

Incentives 

 Solar-ready incentives (beyond waiving sales tax)—roughing in infrastructure 

<<Exhibits - Page >>28



From: chipetajack@gmail.com [mailto:chipetajack@gmail.com] On Behalf Of Jack Young 

Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 7:26 PM 
To: Hannah Hollenbeck; dbatchelder@ouraycountyco.gov 

Subject: Re: Ouray County Builders and Developers Forum - Feb. 7 530PM 

 

 Hi Hannah  and Don  

 I really don't have specific advice, it's a tough issue !  

 

  I do want your committee to know  that we The Chipeta solar Springs Resort, have offered the 

town a trade for the  Town owned,Green Space directly north of the Chipeta (.375 ac).  

  The trade property we have offered, is what would become a .375 ac piece directly east of 

Pannys Pizza in Ridgway USA.( splitting out of  a piece owned by the fire department currently) 

and I would sell of the other remnant piece, as the fire department  won't do the lot split. 

  I would simply ask your committee members to encourage the town to "Go out of it's way a bit 

and work with us to accomplish the trade ,thus gaining a affordable housing site, owned by the 

town in Ridgway.  Note: the lot has tremendous views as a side note ! 

 

  Don, please consider encouraging the town to trade an undevelopable open space , they have to 

mow, maintain and insure it forever , verses owning a lot they could develop in 2018, should 

they have the funding. They have been saying they would like it in the historic core, but the land 

costs twice as much and is simply a deal breaker for Chipeta to have to buy land in the historic 

core to do a trade.     Best Jack 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>29

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text



February 2, 2018 

Ouray County Advisory Committee & Ridgway Ouray Community Council, 

Unfortunately I will be out of the state most of next week and will be unable to attend your Builders and 

Developers Forum regarding ideas to support affordable housing. I regret not being able to attend 

primarily due to the fact that I will not able to hear the comments and thoughts of other forum 

participants. 

None the less, I would like to submit some thoughts on the subject. 

I believe that affordable housing is a critical issue for Ouray County and its residents. Young people and 

young families simply cannot afford to live in the area and that fact has many ramifications for 

businesses in the area. 

While encouraging the construction of ADU units has some merit, in my opinion, without significant 

financial incentives for current property owners, free market capitalism dictates that after an owner has 

paid $200 to $250 per square foot to build a new ADU they will want full market rents in order to realize 

a normal profit on the project. 

As you know, not only are current market rents very high in the area, there is also almost no housing 

stock available for long term rental. Most property owners that have an ADU will seek short term rentals 

and its higher cash flow. 

In my opinion the best way forward would be for the County and the State to work together to 

encourage the development of a large apartment complex similar to the “Pondos”. A fifty to sixty unit 

complex which is deed restricted to prevent the project from being converted to condos, would go a 

long way towards providing affordable housing in the area.  

In order to provide incentives to a developer, the County should be prepared to offer a special lower 

real property tax rate for the project, a special lower building permit cost and to simplify the permit 

process for a project of this scope. 

The County should seek funding and support from the State in the form of direct project subsidies to 

offset lower rents. Similar in concept to the “rent control” system in New York, renters would need to 

qualify for participation in the program and there would need to be income limits to participate. 

Subsidized multi-family apartments will not help people hoping to “buy up in the market” but at least it 

will allow people with lower incomes to live and work in the community and would be a first good step. 

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this forum. 

Brad L. Wallis 

BTB Construction and Consulting LLC 

<<Exhibits - Page >>30



Ouray County's zoning 
• The law that requires all subdivisions to be 35 acres or more is not inclusionary. It supports 

segregation and displacement. When the only affordable parcels are found on the slopes of 
the valley. building costs such as excavation and foundation increase. Pushing "affordable" to 
the slopes surrounding town (Loghill, Vista Terrace, etc.) puts the people that work and would 
bike to work too far away from their workplace. This would l'8aacs transportation costs thus 
the cost of living. i l\C.<c~e 

Those that could afford a smaller parcel such as 5 or 10 acres can't find those size 
parcels to buy so they are forced to buy into PUDs and deal with HOAs and HOA fees. - cos.+ , S 7 

The land immediately around Ridgway should be sub dividable and not in a PUD. This 
would reduce transportation costs thus the cost of living. This can be done in an aesthetic 
manner as in houses placed around a small open space and parking on the edges (See- E>c s 

Netherlands). 
Does the county support developers and wealthy individuals over those of more modest 

means? 

ADUs and VRBOs 
• Allow ADUs and give incentive for ADUs as long term rentals to increase the supply. Ex. town 

water/trash fee is high - the cost is out on the renters. This could be reduced for long term 
rental properties. 

• Allow VRSOs if you are a full time resident, live on the property, and need help offsetting the 
cost of living/low salary 

Taxes and Subsidies 
• Maximize subsidies for developers and renters so that tile developer does not lose money on 

the project and renters do not have to pay high rents. 
• Potentially a tax or impact fee on second home owners/part time residents who make it harder 

for full time residents of modest incomes to live and own property here. This would be used to 
subsidize the renters. 

Developer 
• Explicit policies that require the savings that developers gain by dOing high density housing to 

be passed onto renters/owners 
• Allow developer to sell more units than permitted. 
• Mixed income housing where market rate units provide for the affordable housing in the 

housing area 

""The big picture is affordable life, not just housing. We need to be able to bike to work, have a 
reasonably priced grocery store, afford a couple of acres, supplement our income by renting a 
bedroom to tourists (not be penalized by the town for having short or long term rentals), etc. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>31

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Andrea Sokolowski Comments



Questionnaire to City, Town and 

County March 15, 2018 

May 7, 2018 City of Ouray Response

1. Does your entity feel it is necessary to have a housing authority/director? Yes
If yes, what time frame for implementation? Not Now

2. What services would be helpful for your entity from a housing authority/housing 
director?

a. Information resource for housing development (tax credits, grants, 
funding opportunities, etc.)

 For developers, or governmental entities, or both. Both
b. Qualification and compliance of units and home seekers (assuming there 

are units with necessary restrictions) To be determined
c. Developing / building housing units 5-10 years down the road

3. Do you have suggestions for potential revenue streams to support a housing 
authority/director?  Telluride has a real estate transfer fee.  New initiatives 
for real estate transfer fees after 1992 are not allowed under TABOR (Tax 
Amendment Bill of Rights).  City Council discussed other tax options, 
however they were concerned about additional tax burden.

The other option is CRS 29-1-204.5 Impact Fees for the Establishment of 
multi-jurisdictional housing authorities.   

City of Ouray Page 50 May 7, 2018<<Exhibits - Page >>32

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 6



Questionnaire to City, Town and County 
March 15, 2018 
Town responses 4/11/18 
 
1. Does your entity feel it is necessary to have a housing authority/director? If yes, what 
timeframe for implementation? 
 
 
TC: Maybe – need more info on what we are doing with housing. Not likely for 3-5 years. 
 
 
2. What services would be helpful for your entity from a housing authority/housing director? 
a. Information resource for housing development (tax credits, grants, funding opportunities, etc.) 

 For developers, or governmental entities, or both 
   
TC: Yes. 
 
b. Qualification and compliance of units and home seekers (assuming there are units with 
necessary restrictions) 
 
TC: Yes. 
 
c. Developing / building housing units 
 
TC: No. 
 
3. Do you have suggestions for potential revenue streams to support a housing 
authority/director? 
 
TC: referred measure to State of CO Legislature to allow RETT but only for new housing; The 
options identified at the Community Builder Housing Institute include a recreational marijuana 
tax, lodging and occupancy tax, linkage fees, and/or a use tax. However, the discussion was 
more about creating a revenue stream to support affordable housing, not just an authority or 
director. These revenue streams need to be researched so the three agencies can make a more 
informed decision. It would be good to know what these taxes may produce in terms of revenue, 
how they are collected, what resources it would take to administer, if there are any restrictions 
on how the revenue can be spent, if the community would support the added tax, etc. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>33



Questionnaire to City, Town and County 

March 15, 2018 

Ouray County BOCC Answers 

1. Does your entity feel it is necessary to have a housing authority/director? If yes, what 
timeframe for implementation?  

Yes, with a given set of objectives and tasks and limited to an agreed upon budget.  

2. What services would be helpful for your entity from a housing authority/housing director? 

A qualified person with background in housing.  

a. Information resources for housing development (tax credits, grants, funding 
opportunities, etc.) 

 For developers, or governmental entities, or both 

Yes; an individual with these skills would be helpful.  

b. Qualifications and compliance of units and home seekers (assuming there are 
units with necessary restrictions)  

Yes; assuming that there is a rental/purchase stock.  

c. Developing / building housing units 

Yes; having a person support and encourage the development of units would be helpful.  

3. Do you have suggestions for potential revenue streams to support a housing 
authority/director?   

 Have a person funded by and through first year seed money from the City, Town and 
County.  The first year funding would be used for that person to pursue grants for future 
funding.  

 Senate or House Bill- pursue and utilize enhanced State funds for housing pursuits.  

 Business contributions – encourage local businesses that may be affected by the lack of 
affordable housing for their employees to contribute to the housing authority/director.  

<<Exhibits - Page >>34



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Introduction 
 
Purpose 
 

This Affordable Housing Action Plan  is  intended  to guide  the multi‐Jurisdictional work of  the 
newly‐formed Ouray County Housing Authority and the cooperative, coordinated efforts of the 
City of Ouray, Town of Ridgway and Ouray County.  It calls for the responsibility for affordable 
housing to be broadly shared through a comprehensive combination of strategies scheduled for 
implementation by 2015. 
 
This Plan represents the next step  in a process that started with the  inclusion of objectives  in 
the Master Plans of all three  jurisdictions calling  for efforts to provide affordable housing.    In 
2002, both municipalities signed  intergovernmental agreements with Ouray County specifying 
that  these homes and other  residential development  should be  located  in established urban 
areas.   In 2008, the three jurisdictions collaboratively formed a county‐wide housing authority 
to address housing needs, and obtained grant funding for a comprehensive assessment of those 
needs, which was published later that year.  A more detailed chronology of the path leading to 
this Action Plan is included in the appendix. 
 
Organization of the Plan 
 

This document consists of five sections: 
 

I. Update of Housing Needs 
II. Policies and Guiding Principles 
III. Goals and Objectives 
IV. Priority Strategies 
V. Implementation and Administration 

 

The appendix  includes various materials  that supported  the development of  this Action Plan, 
such  as  a  review  of  the  legal  authority  for  Colorado  municipalities  and  counties  to  enact 
housing programs, and key figures from the Housing Needs Assessment. 
 
Acknowledgements 
 

This Plan was funded by a grant from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs with matching 
support from the City of Ouray, Town of Ridgway and Ouray County.  The planning process was 
coordinated and shaped by the Ouray County Housing Authority (OCHA) Board with Jen Coates, 
Planner for the Town of Ridgway.  A Task Force consisting of elected and appointed officials and 
staff considered needs, options, resources and reality when developing the direction embodied 
in this plan.  Appreciation for their work is extended to: 
 

Don Batchelder, Ouray County, OCHA Board  Mike Fedel, Ouray Planner, OCHA Board 
Mark Castrodale, County Planner  Will Clapsadl, Ouray Planning Commission 
Rani Guram, Ridgway Planning Commission  Lynn Padgett, Ouray County 
Betty Wolfe, City of Ouray, OCHA Board  Paul Hebert, Ridgway Town Council, OCHA Board 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    1 
<<Exhibits - Page >>35

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 7



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
I. Housing Needs Updated 
 
The November 2008 Ouray County Housing Needs Assessment concluded  that 149 additional 
units were  needed  to  address  existing  or  “catch‐up”  demand  for  affordable  housing.    This 
conclusion was based on  surveys conducted  the previous year.   Of  the 149 units needed, 39 
were the result of unfilled  jobs and 110 were generated by  in commuters who want to move 
into Ouray County where their jobs are located.   
 
Since  the  publication  of  the  study,  economic  conditions  have  dramatically  changed.  
Construction  activity  has  largely  come  to  a  halt.    The  unemployment  rate  has  risen  a  full 
percentage  point  and  no  longer  signals  that  Ouray  County  is  a  labor  shortage  area.    Help 
wanted notices  in the newspaper have sharply declined.   Homes that have not sold are being 
offered for rent, greatly  increasing rental availability.   Residents are having difficulty obtaining 
enough work locally and are finding it increasingly necessary to commute to Telluride for jobs.  
Most  construction workers  are  unemployed,  or  underemployed.    Though  hard  data  are  not 
available,  the decline  in  jobs has also  led  to a decline  in  in‐commuting.   Casual observations 
suggest  that  jobs are no  longer unfilled.   Because of  these  recent  factors  influencing housing 
demand,  fewer units are now needed  to address existing demand,  i.e.: “catch up”.     Housing 
needs should be revisited upon publication of 2010 Census data to adjust estimates of existing 
demand. 
 
The Housing Needs Assessment projected  that  job growth by  the  year 2015 would generate 
demand for 881 additional housing units.  It estimated that the private market would affordably 
address all but 20% to 30% of this workforce‐related housing demand leaving between 174 and 
264 units that would need to be developed through public efforts to keep‐up with demand. 
 
Ouray  County  along with  the  rest  of  the  country  and much  of  the world  is  currently  in  a 
recessionary period, making  these  job projections high.    Trending has  shown, however,  that 
Ouray County’s economy has historically rebounded from recessions faster than the rest of the 
nation and the state as a whole.  While job growth will likely be flat for a year or two, by 2015, 
new jobs should generate demand for approximately 470 units, which equates to about 53% of 
the Needs Assessment estimate of 881. 
 
Housing prices have not significantly declined despite  the steep drop  in  the number of sales.  
The median price of single‐family homes sold  in 2008 was about 6%  lower than the median  in 
2007.    The  number  sold  dropped  from  131  to  57.    Sales  of  lower‐priced  units  increased, 
however.     The number of condominiums and townhomes sold grew from 15  in 2007 to 26  in 
2008, and  the number of mobile homes  sold  increased  from  two  to  seven  in  the  same  time 
period.   
 
Home prices remain beyond the reach of many local residents.  As of mid January, the median 
price  for  the 195 homes  listed  for sale  (single  family, condos/townhomes and mobile homes) 
was $495,000, with an average of over $690,000.   Of  these  listings, only 11 or 5.6% were at 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    2 
<<Exhibits - Page >>36



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

prices affordable for households with incomes at or above 120% AMI.  Prices may drop further 
but it appears that the private market will address only about 40% of the demand, not 70% to 
80% as projected by the Housing Needs Assessment.  It now appears that the Housing Authority 
and cooperating  jurisdictions will  face a “keep‐up” demand not served by  the private market 
for approximately 270 units by 2015. 
 
 
 
II. Policies and Guiding Principles 
 
Sustainability 
 
Sustainability is a critical premise of this Action Plan.  Sustainability in housing is to be achieved 
by:  

• “Green” designs with energy‐efficient appliances, alternative energy sources, non‐toxic 
building materials,  solar orientation,  and high R‐value  insulation  and windows, which 
improve long‐term affordability and provide a healthier living environment. 
 

• Compact  developments, which  reduce  the  amount  of  land  converted  into  residential 
use,  minimize  resources  consumed  in  infrastructure  construction  and  maintenance, 
lower  water  consumption,  enhance  sense  of  neighborhood  and  preserve  land  for 
agriculture – Ouray is a right‐to‐farm county. 

 
• Location of housing in population centers in proximity to jobs where infrastructure and 

services are available.  
 
 
Primary/Second Home Relationship 
 
The  use  of  residential  units  in  Ouray  County  has  been  shifting  with  an  increase  in  the 
percentage  of  homes  used  as  second/vacation  properties.    Continuation  of  this  shift  is  not 
desirable as  it would drive housing prices even  further above  levels affordable  for  local wage 
earners  and  lead  to  undesirable  conditions  including  loss  of  the  sense  of  community  and 
neighborhood vitality with homes that sit empty much of the year.   An interim report funded 
by the Telluride Foundation on a collaborative research effort of the Harvard Graduate School 
of Design and MIT projected second home growth in Ouray County will average 7.2% per year 
over  the next 20 years.   This would be more  than double  the  rate of growth anticipated  for 
primary homes, and would outpace second home development in San Miguel County (4.4% per 
year).  The economic benefits of residential construction and part‐time residents are recognized 
yet further shift in the relationship between primary and second homes should be minimized. 
 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    3 
<<Exhibits - Page >>37



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Jobs/Housing Relationship 
 
The growth in housing for employees should at least match the rate of growth in employment‐
generating  uses,  including  residential  construction,  commercial  establishments  and  public 
facilities.   While  the  absolute  number  of  in‐commuters may  increase  under  this  policy,  the 
percentage of  the workforce housed  in Ouray County  should  remain constant at about 80%, 
with 20% of the workforce commuting from outside the County.   With the anticipated increase 
in  seniors  as  “baby  boomers”  reach  retirement  age  and  exit  the  workforce,  it  will  take 
proportionately more affordable housing units to maintain this relationship.  The overall rate of 
growth  in  housing  will  need  to  exceed  the  rate  of  growth  in  job‐generating  uses  for  the 
relationship between workforce housing  and  jobs  to be maintained.      The  current  rate of  1 
occupied home per 1.4 employees will shift, approaching closer to a 1:1 relationship.  In other 
words,  the  transition  to  fewer employees per household will require an  increased number of 
workforce housing units to keep up with an increased demand for employment. 
 
 
Priorities and Targeting 
 

• Workforce Housing ‐‐ Affordable housing efforts should focus initially on providing units 
designed for the workforce but with recognition that the retiree population will grow at 
a disproportionately high rate for at least the next 15 years, and that housing specifically 
designed for seniors could be a key component of a comprehensive approach.  The top 
priority  is  the  development  of  homes  designed  and  priced  for  essential  employees 
including teachers, health care providers and emergency responders. 

 
• Family  Housing  ‐‐  Ouray  County  and  its  communities  are  family  oriented.    This 

characteristic should be maintained  into the future as growth occurs.   To preserve this 
demographic  trait,  about  70%  of  new  units  intended  for  occupancy  as  primary 
residences should accommodate families and about 30% should be designed for singles, 
with  the  recognition  that  it  is more  affordable  and  desirable  for  units  developed  for 
single homeowners to have two bedrooms.   

 
• Income Mix  ‐  The  diversity  of  the  county’s  population  should  be  preserved with  an 

income  distribution  that  reflects  the  desire  for  growth  in  housing  opportunities  for 
moderate‐  and middle‐income  households, which  includes most  essential  employees, 
relative  to other  income groups.   The desired mix  is  roughly one‐third  for  low‐income 
households  (≤ 80% AMI), one‐third moderate/middle  income  (81%  to 120% AMI) and 
one‐third upper  income  (121% AMI and greater).   The Housing Authority’s efforts will 
focus on households with  incomes equal  to or  less  than 120% AMI, based on current 
housing  prices  and  the  assumption  that  the  private market will  address  the  housing 
needs  of  households with  higher  incomes.    It  is  likely  that  households with  incomes 
between 120% and 150% AMI will need housing assistance in the not too distant future 
as market prices resume their upward movement.  Income targets and goals should be 
revisited as prices change, and will likely need to be increased over time. 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    4 
<<Exhibits - Page >>38



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
• Owner/Renter Mix  –  Both  homeownership  and  rental  opportunities  are  needed.    To 

maintain  the  existing  relationship  into  the  future,  about  75%  of  homes  built  for 
occupancy by residents should be for sale and about 25% should be for rent. 
 

 
Location 
 
In  accordance  with  a  long‐standing  policy  for  residential  development  embodied  in 
intergovernmental agreements  in 2002, and reiterated  in the 2009 county‐wide RPI/Theobald 
Study  Group  recommendations,  higher  density  growth  is  to  be  directed  toward  the 
incorporated  communities  and  their  Urban  Growth  Boundaries  where  urban  services  and 
infrastructure are available.     Production of affordable housing  should occur primarily  in  the 
towns where it is sustainable, preserving the rural character of the county.  Income segregation 
with only the rich being able to enjoy the county’s rural lifestyle and the poor concentrated in 
town is not desired, however. 
 
Despite policies, development is occurring in the unincorporated area of the county at a faster 
rate  than  in  the  towns  ‐‐ 59% of  residential building permits  issued  from 2000  through 2007 
were for homes in unincorporated Ouray County.  This development activity generates demand 
for  workforce  housing  both  in  the  initial  construction  and  in  the  ongoing  operation  and 
maintenance of  the homes.   Opportunities  to  include  sustainable workforce housing  in ways 
that would not negatively impact the county’s rural character, should be considered.   
 
Given Colona’s distance to Ouray and proximity to Montrose, its lack of water and wastewater 
systems, and the lack of a public transit system connecting Colona with employment centers, it 
is not a desirable location for the development of housing to serve Ouray County’s workforce at 
this time.  If the necessary infrastructure is provided in the future, the development it enables 
should  include  affordable  housing  so  that  the  resulting  housing  demand  does  not  impact 
housing needs  in  the  rest of Ouray County.    If high‐density development on private  lands  in 
Colona  or  elsewhere  in  unincorporated  Ouray  County  is  proposed,  a  substantial  affordable 
housing component should be included.  
 
 
Unit Types and Density 
 
Single‐family  homes  and  duplexes  are  the most  compatible  with  the  existing  character  of 
development within the county and towns.  Greater diversity in unit types and sizes is needed, 
however,  to  achieve  affordable  price  levels.   Relatively  high  density  is  also  needed  to make 
housing  affordable.    New  subdivisions  within  the  towns  should  allow  for  mixed  density 
including opportunities  for development of multi‐family units at densities of 12  ‐ 18 units per 
acre.      Increased  density  will  enable  clustering  of  homes  within  new  development,  a 
recommendation called for in 2009 by the RPI/ Theobald Study Group. 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    5 
<<Exhibits - Page >>39



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Mixed‐use developments with multi‐family units located above or behind retail and office space 
are  desirable  as  a  way  to  provide  high‐density  housing  without  significantly  impacting  the 
amount of  land available and suitable for commercial uses.   Accessory dwelling units that can 
be developed on existing lots and in new subdivisions are also desired. 
 
High density is not available in the unincorporated areas of Ouray County where development 
is mostly  limited to one unit per six acres or one per 35 acres, nor  is  it desired.   Accessory or 
similar dwellings  that provide housing  in proportion  to  the demand generated  in  the nearby 
vicinity  are desirable.   Appropriate  standards  and  guidelines  should be established  for  these 
accessory  units  to  insure  affordability  and  maximize  rental  opportunities  in  the  county.  
Opportunities to produce single‐family homes affordable for middle‐income residents through 
minor up zoning in new rural subdivisions may also be desired in the appropriate application. 
 
 
Responsibility 
 
Responsibility for housing should be broadly shared in the community with a mechanism for the 
general public to provide  financial support.   New residential development should pay  its own 
way and  should be held  responsible  for providing affordable housing  to  sustain  the  county’s 
communities  and  its  economy.    Because  of  the  high  property  taxes  paid  by  commercial 
properties,  and  because  commercial  uses  are  so  vital  to  the  towns  and  county,  commercial 
developers will be required to provide or fund housing for only a small portion of the housing 
demand generated by development.   Neither of  the  towns nor  the county  is  in a position  to 
significantly subsidize housing efforts through general  fund revenues  in the  immediate  future 
but  will  continue  to  provide  administrative  support  and  sponsor  grants  as  available.  
Development of public/institutional uses which generate employment and  the  resulting need 
for affordable housing,  like schools, churches and government agencies, should also address a 
portion of the housing demand generated. 
 
 
 
III. Goals and Objectives 
 
This Plan herein establishes distinct goals for affordable housing units to address both existing 
needs (catch‐up) and needs that will arise in the future as growth occurs (keep‐up). 
 

• By 2015, up to 50 affordable housing units should be developed or preserved to address 
catch‐up needs.  It is recognized that this goal is less than the actual catch‐up need, but 
it  takes  into  account  the  uncertainty  of  current  demand  given  the  change  in  the 
economy since the 2008 Needs Assessment and resource availability.   It is approximate 
and should be  revisited mid way  through  the period, or  in 2011 after  release of 2010 
Census data. 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    6 
<<Exhibits - Page >>40



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

• Also by 2015,  strategies  focused on new development  should provide 160  affordable 
housing units  that would keep up with approximately 60% of  the new demand  that  is 
unlikely to be addressed by the free market.  Real estate prices and job growth for this 
period are uncertain, so this goal  is  less than 100% of the currently  identified need to 
keep‐up with the future workforce housing demand and, as such, this goal should also 
be revisited as conditions change.  

 
Applying the policies in the previous section of this document on income targeting and location 
translates into a total goal for the development or preservation of 210 affordable housing units 
by 2015 as shown on the following table. 
 

Goals by Type, Income and Area 
 
Income  Low  Moderate/Middle  Upper 

AMI  0 – 80% AMI  81% ‐ 120% AMI  121%+AMI 
       
Desired Mix  1/3  1/3  1/3 
       
Catch‐Up Goal        

50 units by 2012  25  25  Market 
Keep‐Up Goal       

160 units by 2015  80  80  Market 
Total  105  105  Market 
       
Ridgway – 55%  58  58   
Ouray – 28%  29  29   
Ouray County – 17%  18  18   
 
Based on a combination of  factors  including opportunity and demand, approximately 55% of 
affordable housing should be developed  in Ridgway, 28%  in Ouray and 17%  in Ouray County.  
These percentages do not represent a share of the burden to create affordable housing as the 
responsibility  is  proposed  here  to  be  reasonably  distributed.    Rather,  these  percentages 
represent  factors  such  as  the  availability  of  land,  opportunity  for  new  development  and 
mutually  desired  locations  for  growth.   Given  the  level  of  residential  development  that  has 
been occurring with unincorporated areas, the County should be able to generate funds from 
this development to provide support for construction of affordable housing within the towns.  
In other words, while  the goal  is  for only 17% of  the affordable housing units  to be  located 
within unincorporated areas, the County should be responsible for subsidizing a larger share to 
support development within the incorporated areas.  
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    7 
<<Exhibits - Page >>41



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

IV. Priority Strategies 
 
To address existing and future housing needs throughout Ouray County, a comprehensive plan 
has  been  developed  that  calls  for  the  implementation  of  12  different  types  of  strategies  by 
2015.      These  strategies  are  aimed  at  simultaneously  addressing both  catch‐up  and  keep‐up 
needs while broadly sharing the responsibility for affordable housing. 
 
Given  the  uncertain  economic  times  and  the  changes  that  have  occurred  since  the  2008 
Housing Needs Assessment as stated previously, quantitative objectives for the development of 
additional units to meet existing or catch‐up needs have not been set.   This Action Plan does 
not  ignore  existing  housing  needs  but  rather  outlines  a  pragmatic  approach  that  focuses 
immediately on  improvements to the existing housing  inventory and postpones plans for unit 
development  until market  indicators  suggest  that  new  construction would  be  prudent  and 
feasible.  
 
The current lull in development activity provides the time for staff and stakeholders to develop, 
and elected officials to consider and adopt, regulations aimed at keeping up with housing needs 
as growth occurs.  In accordance with the policy that development pay its own way, this Action 
Plan calls  for  the adoption of measures now  that will  insure  that affordable housing demand 
generated by new development  is at  least partially provided by  that development.   Since no 
new units would be built through these methods until such time as growth occurs, waiting for 
market  conditions  to  stabilize  before  enacting  the  requirements  is  not  necessary  or 
appropriate. 
 
The following pages contain a summary of each strategy recommended for implementation by 
2015.  The appendix includes a print out of an excel‐based model used to estimate the number 
of  affordable  units  that  would  be  produced/  preserved  if  the  recommendations  contained 
herein are enacted.  The assumptions used to develop the model on the amount of commercial 
and residential development likely to occur by 2015 were generated by the planners from each 
jurisdiction using historic  levels adjusted downward due to the recession.   These assumptions 
can  be  changed  as  the  future  unfolds,  with  the  model  instantly  adjusting  the  number  of 
affordable housing units likely to be produced. 
 
Rehabilitation and Weatherization ‐ 2009 
 
Providing assistance  for weatherization and  rehabilitation of units  is an  immediate priority  to 
address  high  utility  costs,  unsafe  surroundings,  the  potential  for  overcrowding  and 
dissatisfaction  due  to  disrepair  and  substandard  or  less  than  desirable  living  conditions.  
Assistance  for  this work  in  the  form  of  energy  audits,  grants  and  low‐interest  loans  is  now 
available through five different agencies stretching from Durango to Grand Junction.   None of 
the  agencies  have  offices  in  Ouray  County,  however,  making  it  potentially  confusing  and 
complicated  for  residents  to  take  advantage  of  the  assistance  available.    To  remedy  this 
situation and make weatherization and rehabilitation funding more accessible to the County’s 
residents, the following steps are recommended: 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    8 
<<Exhibits - Page >>42



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
• Provide staff support for coordination and administration of program services; 

 
• Identify, confirm and develop a relationship with all existing support services, providers 

and key stakeholders currently involved in providing these services for Ouray County 
• Develop a  specific operations plan outlining  the  scope,  initiation,  implementation and 

monitoring of weatherization and rehabilitation programs; 
 

• Identify  financial  partners  for  grant  and  loan  administration,  including  local  lending 
institutions, the Governor’s Energy Office, local utility providers and others; 

 
• Identify  or  develop  specific  standards  for  home  inspection,  insulation, 

construction/rehabilitation  and  other  services  necessary  for  successful  program 
implementation and solicit qualified providers for these services; 

 
• Initially target efforts to households qualified for assistance from the State of Colorado 

given funding limitations but expand to serve households earning up to 120/150% AMI 
as opportunities are identified; 

 
• Rehab and/or weatherize at  least 21 units  in total by 2015 with roughly seven  in each 

jurisdiction. 
 
 
Annexation Policy ‐‐ 2009 
 
Through policies and practices that the municipalities of Ouray and Ridgway can apply to the 
annexation of  land, new development can be required to address not only the  impacts that  it 
directly  generates  but  can  be  used  to  improve  conditions  that  currently  exist  in  the 
communities, including a shortage in the availability of affordably priced housing.  Communities 
often hold development proposed on property that must be annexed to higher standards than 
projects proposed for land already within municipal limits.  Drafting and adoption of a policy for 
future  annexations  should  be  pursued  immediately  while  neither  town  has  an  application 
before them for consideration.  To do so, the following actions are recommended: 
 

• The  desire  to  halt  the  shift  from  primary  to  second  homes  should  be  taken  into 
consideration when  setting  the policy with potentially  a Resident Occupied  (RO  – no 
income or price caps) deed restriction for a portion of the units. 

 
• The  ability  to  use  annexations  as  a means  for  addressing  existing  or  catch‐up  needs 

should  be  considered  and  the  number  of  affordable  units  required  should  be  higher 
than  if  imposed  under  IZ  and  linkage  requirements  for  in‐town  parcels,  including 
provisions for housing low income households that require the most significant subsidy. 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    9 
<<Exhibits - Page >>43



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
Homeownership Counseling and Mortgage Assistance – 2009/2010 
 
As  units  are  built  or  become  available  for  sale  to moderate‐  and middle‐income  employee 
households, potential buyers will need assistance  in order  to qualify  to purchase  the homes.  
Homebuyer education classes along will not be sufficient.     Personalized credit counseling and 
down payment or other forms of financial assistance like a shared equity injection are needed.   
 

• In 2009 the OCHA should hold an educational session on housing resources and contact 
information  for  Ouray  County.    This  session may  include  information  from  lenders, 
opportunities  with  the  Colorado  Housing  and  Finance  Authority  and  the  OCHA  on 
resources available to homeowners and renters in Ouray County.  This will primarily be a 
community outreach effort by the OCHA with the support and cooperation of the three 
jurisdictions to check in with the community on services available and desired. 

 
• OCHA should hire or contract with someone experienced at moving moderate  income 

households into homeownership.  The San Miguel Regional Housing Authority may be a 
good  resource  to  initiate  homebuyer  education  services  in  Ouray  County.    As  the 
demand  increases,  the  OCHA  may  wish  to  retain  a  certified  HUD  educator  and/or 
counselor to provide these services. 
 

• A  system  for Ouray County  residents  to access down payment assistance  through  the 
Delta Housing Authority should be established. 

 
• A grant application  should be  submitted  to  the Colorado Housing Division  for a down 

payment assistance allocation. 
 

• A pipeline should be established for accessing CHFA down payment assistance. 
 

• Local mortgage lenders should be involved in the OCHA‐initiated effort. 
 
 
Inclusionary Zoning (IZ) – 2010 
 
Inclusionary  zoning  is  the  imposition  of  a  requirement  on  new  subdivisions  or  PUD’s  that  a 
portion of all new units be affordable  for a  targeted group,  typically moderate‐ and middle‐
income  households  in  the  communities  in  Colorado  that  have  adopted  IZ.    Research  on  IZ 
programs in urban areas across the country has shown that the higher the income level served, 
the  more  units  produced.    The  most  effective  IZ  programs  have  been  complemented  by 
development incentives.  Recommendations for adoption of IZ requirements are as follows: 
 

• All  three  jurisdictions  should  impose  the  same  requirement of 20%  though  terms and 
applicability  could  vary.    A  coordinated  policy  development  effort  facilitated  by  the 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    10 
<<Exhibits - Page >>44



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Housing Authority will streamline this process for multi‐jurisdictional cohesion and can 
provide for divergent applications as appropriate.  

 
• Methods  for  satisfying  the  requirements  should be  flexible although building units on 

site is generally preferred, and could vary by jurisdiction. 
 

• Placement of a permanent voluntary transfer assessment (RETA) on subsequent sales of 
free  market  units  should  be  allowed  in  exchange  for  a  partial  reduction  in  the 
percentage of affordable units  required  (in Eagle County,  their 35%  IZ  requirement  is 
reduced to 30% in exchange for a 1% RETA). 

 
• IZ should be used to primarily provide homeownership opportunities for moderate and 

middle income households (81% ‐ 120% AMI).  
 

• IZ should be enacted in 2010 before additional subdivision applications are received. 
 

Through these steps, IZ applied to new subdivisions between now and 2015 would result in the 
eventual construction of about 105 affordable homes.  Applying a resident‐occupied (RO) deed 
restriction  to  some percentage of units  in new  subdivisions, above  the 20%  requirement  for 
moderate/middle income households, should be considered as a means for slowing the shift in 
Ouray County from primary to second homes. 
 
Development Incentives – 2010 
 
Incentives are an  important  strategy  for use with  IZ and  linkage  requirements.   They are  the 
“carrots”  that  can make  development  of  affordable  housing  a win/win  experience.      Given 
variations in code requirements, lot sizes, densities and development opportunities, incentives 
should vary among the jurisdictions in Ouray County.  For all three: 
 

• Incentives should be put into place simultaneously with IZ and linkage requirements; 
 

• Stakeholders  including  developers  and  property  owners  should  be  involved  in  their 
structure; and 
 

• Increased density with high utilization  should be allowed  for affordable housing, as a 
means to reduce development costs and promote sustainable land use. 

 
In Ridgway, incentives should include: 
 

• Deferral, reduction or waiver of building permit and plan review fees; 
 

• Deferral, reduction or waiver of excise taxes (Excise tax calls for payment of $1500 per 
new residential units created, enacted at subdivision ‐ n/a to new building permits but 
due at subdivision); 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    11 
<<Exhibits - Page >>45



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

• Density bonuses; 
 

• Expedited development and building permit review; 
 

• Flexible Development and Design Standards (lot size and coverage, street frontage, etc.) 
 
In  Ouray,  requirements  are  likely  to  be  similar  to  Ridgway  based  on  incentives  previously 
offered. 
 
In Ouray County, a minor density bonus should be considered for single‐family subdivisions on 
small  acreage,  providing  rural  homeownership  opportunities  for  moderate/middle  income 
families.   For example, where one unit per 6 acres  is allowed, the ratio could be dropped to 1 
per 5 acres if the additional unit(s) is deed restricted.  To make this palatable and feasible, open 
space requirements shall be maintained at levels consistent with the land use code.  This effort 
should  be  pursued  after  other  affordable  housing  efforts  have  established  a  track  record, 
possibly  2012,  although  IZ  policy  development  coincident  with  Town  and  City  efforts  is 
recommended to insure propagation of mutually shared goals.  
 
Residential Linkage ‐ 2010 
 
Residential  linkage  is  a  requirement  that  the  construction  of  new  homes  contributes  to  the 
provision of affordable housing based on  the demand  that new  residential development and 
the resulting permanent on‐site  jobs generate for housing.   Since most  jobs  involved  in home 
maintenance  and  operations  are  low  wage,  these  requirements  are  typically  designed  to 
provide  housing  for  low‐income  employees.    The  requirement  can  be  formula  driven where 
affordable  units  are  required  (typically  a  fraction  for  single‐family  homes  but  more  for 
condominium  projects) with  a  fee  in  lieu,  or  as  an  impact  fee  as was  done  and  upheld  in 
Gunnison  County.    Recommendations  for  residential  linkage  are  as  follows: 
 

• A  survey  of  homeowners  should  be  conducted  in  the  summer  of  2009  or  2010  to 
provide the necessary job generation rates for the housing impact formulas that are the 
basis for a linkage requirement (i.e.: linkage fee study); 

 
• All  three  jurisdictions  in  Ouray  County  should  adopt  an  identical  residential  linkage 

requirement, in 2010 while construction activity is minimal;  
 

• The mitigation rate should start out  low  for small units  (5% or about $  .05 per square 
foot) and escalate with unit size (45% or $4.00 per square foot), stepping up significantly 
for the large homes being built in unincorporated areas; 
 

• Options should be offered for ways to meet the requirement including payment of a fee, 
construction of units on or off  site, and placement of a permanent voluntary  transfer 
assessment (RETA) on subsequent sales of the free market units; 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    12 
<<Exhibits - Page >>46



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
• The program should address the housing needs of low‐income households (≤ 80% AMI) 

to partially keep‐up with housing demand generated by future residential growth; 
 

• The program should primarily be used  to produce affordable  rental housing.   Possible 
uses  for  the  funds  include  subsidizing  the  development  of  tax  credit  apartments  to 
achieve the quality and design desired, and the cost of ADU incentives; 
 

• A  housing  support  study  should  be  prepared  that  includes  a  sample  of  homeowner 
surveys  to  establish  residential  job  generation  rates  and  a  reasonable  link  between 
residential development and the requirements. 

 
Based upon a series of assumptions about future residential development, a linkage program as 
proposed would generate total revenue of approximately $1 million by 2015 providing subsidy 
for the development of seven units.  While subject to refinement, examples of the approximate 
fee for specific free‐market units are provided in the following table. 
 

Residential Linkage Examples 
 

Size  800  1200  1700  2000  2500  5000  7500 
Jobs per unit  0.1  0.14  0.14  0.19  0.19  0.46  0.85 
Housing demand  0.059  0.082  0.082  0.112  0.112  0.271  0.500 
Mitigation rate  5%  10%  13%  15%  20%  35%  45% 
Units required  0.003  0.008  0.011  0.017  0.022  0.095  0.225 
Fee required  $399  $1,118  $1,453  $2,275  $3,034  $12,853  $30,536 
Fee per Sq Ft  $0.50  $0.93  $0.85  $1.14  $1.21  $2.57  $4.07 
 
 
Commercial Linkage – 2010 
 
Commercial linkage is a requirement similar to residential linkage for addressing keep‐up needs 
– it is based on the jobs created by new development and the resulting demand generated for 
affordable housing.  It requires developers of new commercial space (does not apply to existing 
businesses or existing space) to provide or fund a portion of the affordable housing for which 
need  is  generated,  usually  by  building  it  on  site  in  mixed‐use  projects.    Structuring  the 
requirement  as  an  impact  fee  also  appears  to  be  allowable  based  on  the Gunnison  County 
decision.  Recommendations for commercial linkage are as follows: 
 

• Ridgway and Ouray should adopt similar commercial linkage requirements; commercial 
development  in the unincorporated county should be re‐evaluated at a  later date such 
that the requirements for commercial development  in the unincorporated county may 
need to be more stringent to encourage job growth within the municipalities; 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    13 
<<Exhibits - Page >>47



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

• The  requirement  should  be  based  on  only  5%  of  the  estimated  housing  demand  or 
impact generated by development in recognition of the importance of commercial uses 
to  sustainability  and  the  existing  tax  burden  on  commercial  property  under  the 
Gallagher Amendment; 

 
• The program should encourage on‐site development of units but allow fees  in  lieu and 

off  site  development  of  affordable  housing  as  options  for  compliance,  based  on 
community  benefits,  opportunities  to  utilize  and  leverage  revenue,  location  and  site 
attributes; 
 

• Affordable housing provided on  site  should primarily be  for moderate/middle  income 
households (average of 100% AMI) such that the subsidy required  is  less than  it would 
otherwise be to target households earning less than 80% of the AMI; 
 

• A  housing  support  study  should  establish  the  link  between  commercial  development 
and the requirements imposed. 

 
A commercial linkage program as proposed would generate 3.4 units, preferably on site above 
or behind commercial space.  If fees in lieu are allowed, they would equate to $340,000 in total 
by 2015, or  roughly $7.00 per  square  foot on  the  construction of new  commercial/industrial 
space.   While  it  is  recognized  that  this  fee  for commercial development  falls  far  short of  the 
housing  demand  created  by  the  development,  the  desire  is  to  broadly  share  the workforce 
housing among all sectors while supporting development activity. 
 

Commercial Linkage Examples 
 

Size ‐ square feet  500  2000 
Jobs per 1,000 sq ft  4  4 
Total jobs  2  8 
Housing demand  0.98  3.92 
Mitigation rate  5%  5% 
Units Required  0.049  0.196 
Fee Required (at 100% AMI)  $3,474  $13,896 
Fee per Sq Ft  $6.95  $6.95 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    14 
<<Exhibits - Page >>48



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
Updating Needs/Revisiting Goals – 2011 
 
Next  year,  the  economy  and  housing  market  conditions  may  be  sufficiently  stabilized  to 
determine  the housing needs  that  still exist and  to  set quantitative objectives  for addressing 
these catch‐up needs.  Information should be obtained from multiple sources and compared to 
the  2008  Needs  Assessment  to  calculate  changes  and  gaps.    The  specific  information  that 
should be obtained and considered includes: 
 

• Unemployment  rates  and  job  numbers  from  the  Colorado Department  of  Labor  and 
Employment; 

 
• Regional study with San Miguel County; 

 
• Data from the Census Bureau on housing and commuting; 

 
• MLS listings for home prices and availability; 

 
• County  Assessor  data  for  sales  in  the  prior  year  to  determine  if  prices  are  stable  or 

declining. 
 

Depending upon  conditions,  some other goals or objectives of  this plan may have  shifted as 
well.  This should be considered when revisiting the housing needs. 
 
ADU Incentives – 2010/11 
 
Offering incentives for the development of accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) could address both 
catch‐up needs and keep‐up needs.  In Ouray and Ridgway, possible incentives include:  
 

• Deferral  of waivers  of  tap  fees;  evaluation  of  programs  in  Ridgway  and  Ouray with 
possible modification and replication in the County; 
 

• Using  linkage  fees  and  IZ  fees  in  lieu  to  subsidize  construction  costs with permanent 
covenants on long‐term rental occupancy. 

 
The County does not have tap fees to waive/defer but could allow the construction of accessory 
units  as  a means  for meeting  IZ  requirements  to  offer.   Other  opportunities  for  the County 
include: 
 

• Increase maximum size of ADUs to 1000 sf; 
 

• Eliminate requirement for proximity to primary residential unit; 
 

• Close the employee housing loop hole in the land use code; 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    15 
<<Exhibits - Page >>49



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
• Waive building permit fee for ADU if permitted simultaneously with primary residence. 

 
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Apartments ‐ 2012 
 
Tax  credits  are  available  on  a  competitive  basis  from  the  Colorado  Housing  and  Finance 
Authority (CHFA) for apartment projects that target households with  incomes no greater than 
60% AMI.   Housing authorities, non‐profit organizations  (like Mercy Housing and  the Denver 
Archdiocese) and private developers can all utilize the credits.  Credits are often used to finance 
development  of  rental  units  by  public/private  partnerships.    While  development  of  an 
apartment complex would not be appropriate in rural Ouray County, opportunities exist in both 
Ouray and Ridgway.  Recommendations include: 
 

• The City of Ouray should set aside town‐owned land suitable for the development of at 
least  10  apartment  units  and  partner  with  a  developer  for  design  and  eventual 
construction. 

 
• Ouray County  should  consider  the  feasibility of using  some or  all of  a County‐owned 

parcel in within the City of Ouray for future apartment development. 
 

• The Town of Ridgway should explore opportunities for partnering with a private or non‐
profit developer for construction of a small apartment project (up to 20 units) perhaps 
through dedication of future linkage fees to subsidize the development. 

 
• Partnerships should be preferred over strictly private tax credit developments because 

the  additional  public  subsidies  could  improve  the  quality  of  construction,  reduce  the 
number  of  units  needed  to  be  feasible,  and  influence  their  location  and  density. 
Opportunities may also exist to “package” a site  in Ridgway and Ouray so that a single 
developer  could  construct  both  and  enjoy  some  economy  of  scale.    Early  on  in  the 
process, a Request for Qualifications should be issued to evaluate a number of firms and 
identify  an  appropriate  partner  for  the  development  that  will  maximize  the  funds 
available for this community asset and consider the character,  lifestyle, desires, etc. of 
the community. 

 
• It  is  recommended  that  the  OCHA work with  all  jurisdictions  to  identify  grant,  low‐

interest  loan  and  tax‐exempt  bond  opportunities  that  will  subsidize  the  LIHTC 
development.   The OCHA should also create a specific public education and evaluation 
process for the development.   
 

• Green  building  or  energy‐efficiency  objectives  should  be  incorporated  into  the  LIHTC 
development (as well as all affordable housing units); OCHA should research resources 
whereby  energy  efficiency  improvements  are  incorporated  into  the  design  and 
construction of buildings and financed over time.   

Rees Consulting, Inc.    16 
<<Exhibits - Page >>50



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
• Construction should not be pursued immediately, however, since numerous rentals are 

now available.   While most of  these units are homes  listed  for  sale with  rents above 
levels that are affordable for low‐income employees, the glut might result in a lowering 
of rents if allowed to prolong.  Also, given economic conditions, new apartments might 
not  be marketable  at  this  time.      Partnerships  should  be  formed  by  2011 when  the 
timeline for construction dependent upon economic conditions at that time. 
 
 

Use Tax ‐ 2015 
 
A tax on construction materials purchased outside of Ouray County (usually Montrose) could be 
used for affordable housing,  if approved by voters.   The tax could be  levied by either or all of 
the jurisdictions, or by the OCHA.  If the housing authority also assesses a sales tax along with 
the use tax, it could then charge an impact fee of $2.00 per square foot on all new construction.  
Summit County is the only jurisdiction to approve this tax/fee combination allowed by CRS 29‐
1‐204.5.  Reasons to consider a use tax for affordable housing include: 
 

• A tax could provide an income stream for the housing authority that could be used for a 
variety of purposes including construction, land acquisition/banking, acquisition and buy 
down of existing units and administration. 

 
• A use tax could pave the way for an impact fee, if a sales tax is also levied. 

 
• Without a use tax, local businesses that sell construction materials are at a disadvantage 

since Montrose stores are not required to charge a sales tax on materials shipped  into 
Ouray County;  it  is  assumed  that  a  use  tax will  eventually  be  passed  to  address  this 
disparity and housing would be an appropriate beneficiary of the proceeds.  
 
 

Board Development – 2009 – 2015 
 
Board members need education  in and exposure  to affordable housing efforts elsewhere.    In 
order to help guide the policies and operations of the housing authority, especially  in  light of 
limited resources to devote to staff, they must be knowledgeable about the powers of housing 
authorities,  residential  design  and  development,  market  conditions,  housing  needs  and 
financing.  Ways to develop the Board’s expertise include: 
 

• Memberships  in  the  Colorado  Housing  and  the  National  Association  of  Housing  and 
Rehabilitation Officials (NAHRO); 

 
• Attendance at the annual Housing Colorado NOW conference; 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    17 
<<Exhibits - Page >>51



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

• Presentations to the Board by representatives of the Colorado Division of Housing and 
the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (CHFA). 

 
• Participation  in bi‐annual Regional Housing Authority Meetings currently  facilitated by 

the San Miguel Regional Housing Authority 
 
 
Priority Strategies Summarized 
 
With  the  implementation  of  the  recommendations made  by  this  Action  Plan,  at  least  163 
affordable housing units  should be produced or preserved by 2015.   This estimate does not 
include  a  figure  for ADU’s or  for units produced only  through  the provision of development 
incentives.    It  is also conservative  in  that  it estimates only 7 units will  result  from  residential 
linkage.    In practice, fees  in  lieu of  just over $1 million will be paid which,  if  leveraged by the 
OCHA, could potentially produce a higher number.   
  

Strategy 
Income 
Target 

Total 
Units  Ridgway Ouray 

Ouray 
Co. 

Rehab/Weatherization  Low‐Mid  21 7 7  7
Residential Linkage  Low  7 3 1  3
Commercial Linkage  Mod/Mid  3 3 1  0
Inclusionary Zoning  Mod/Mid  104 72 8  24
Tax Credit Apartments  Low  27 18 9  0
Total    163 103 26  34

 
The  assumptions used  in  these projections  should be  reconsidered when housing needs  are 
updated in 2011. 
 
V. Administration 
 
Multi‐disciplined  expertise  and  extensive  time  will  be  needed  to  implement  the  strategies 
called for  in this Action Plan.     The most efficient and cost effective method for providing this 
expertise  is  through  the centralization and coordination of housing programs county wide by 
the  housing  authority.    Through  the Authority,  an  incremental  approach  to  development  of 
administrative capacity is recommended to: 
 

• Minimize  start‐up costs  with increases in administrative expenditures as funds become 
available through fees and program  income associated with  inclusionary zoning, rehab 
and weatherization grants and loans; 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    18 
<<Exhibits - Page >>52



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

• Reach  a  goal  of  financial  independence  from  the municipalities  and  county  through 
revenue  generation  and  cost  containment  while  continuing  to  offer  fee‐for‐service 
program administration; 
 

• Leverage local funds to pursue state and federal funding opportunities; 
 

• Develop  in‐county  capacity  to  administer  programs;  extensive  reliance  on  regional 
agencies for program funding and service delivery is not desired long term. 

This Plan recommends that all three jurisdictions allocate $26,375  in 2010 to the OCHA to put 
administrative systems into place and launch revenue‐producing strategies.  Furthermore, each 
jurisdiction should provide 51 hours of staff assistance to the effort in 2009 and 2010 on code 
drafting,  supporting  the  establishment  of  a  coordinated  housing  rehab  and  weatherization 
program, grant writing and general organizational development.  A detailed budget is included 
in the appendix.  
 
A three‐phase  incremental approach to administration  is recommended with a 2‐year start‐up 
period  followed  by  a  5‐year  growth  period  reaching  sustaining  levels  by  2015.    Each  task 
associated with these phases has been identified.  In most cases, tasks will carry forward – they 
are not one‐time jobs.  As planned, the Housing Authority will be accountable for the entire list 
of tasks by 2015, and will be responsible for them on an ongoing basis thereafter. 
 
Start‐Up Phase (2009 – 2010) 
 

Organizational Development Tasks 
• Obtain insurance, possibly in the short‐term through the Town of Ridgway’s CIRSA policy 

with the objective of carrying an insurance policy specific to the Authority by 2010 

• Amend Multi‐jurisdictional  IGA  to  provide  for  an  independent  Authority  not  subject 
solely  to  fee‐for‐service  parameters  as  is  currently  defined  but  rather  to  create  a 
sustaining,  stand‐alone  entity;  obtain  Bond  Attorney  review  for  TABOR  constraints, 
amending as applicable 

• Develop  and  execute  IGA’s/agency  agreements  with  regional  organizations  through 
which financial assistance and services are to be obtained  

• Put a  financial management/accounting  system  into place with  separate accounts  for 
each fee‐generating program 

• Establish fee collection system 

• Support Board meetings – packets, public notices, minutes 

• Create and take lead on public relations 

• Set up and maintain a web site 

• Develop 2010 budget requests for each jurisdiction 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    19 
<<Exhibits - Page >>53



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Program Implementation 
• Coordinate with the three jurisdictions on final design and drafting of code language for  

IZ, linkage requirements and incentives 

• Draft deed restrictions and restrictive covenants including mechanism for keeping rents 
affordable and for controlling occupancy of accessory dwellings. 

• Write and administer grant applications 

• Write guidelines for developers and administrative procedures for the sale and rental of 
affordable units. 

• Establish unit tracking system – address, date approved, CO date, # bdrms, sq ft, initial 
sales price, resale prices, AMI target, # occupants  

• Support    rehab/weatherization  with  coordination  among  funding  agencies,  public 
outreach and home inspections 

• Provide counseling to residents  in need of housing assistance; serve as a clearinghouse 
for all housing services 

• Annually update incomes, prices  and fee in lieu amounts  

Growth Phase ‐‐ Additional Responsibilities (2011 – 2015) 
• Review  development  applications  to  determine  compliance  with  IZ  and  linkage 

requirements 

• Negotiate compliance alternatives – on site, off site, fees in lieu, land in lieu 

• Qualify applicants 

• Conduct lotteries if needed 

• Administer deed restrictions; calculate resale prices 

• Manage revenues, report to funding agencies 

• Form partnerships for tax credit apartment projects on public land 

• Periodically update Action Plan; prioritize allocation of funds 

Sustainable Operations – Long Term  
• Develop senior housing 

• Monitor IZ/linkage/incentive  effectiveness;  make modifications as needed 

• Comply  with  quarterly  and  annual  reporting  requirements  from  various  funding 
agencies – HUD, Colorado Div. of  Housing, CHFA 

• Monitor  key  community/housing  metrics  on  regular  basis;  update  housing  needs 
assessment as appropriate 

• Manage/maintain properties 

• Negotiate for the purchase of land as opportunities become available 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    20 
<<Exhibits - Page >>54



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Timeline Summarized 
 
  Strategy Implementation  Administrative Tasks 
2009  Rehabilitation & Weatherization 

Annexation Policies 
Homeownership Counseling and 
Mortgage Assistance 
 
 

IGA’s; Insurance 
Grant applications 
Financial management system 
Fee collection system 
Public relations; web site 
Set up rehab program 

2010  Inclusionary Zoning 
Development Incentives 
Commercial Linkage 
Residential Linkage 

Code drafting – IZ & linkage 
Deed restrictions 
Development of guidelines 
Unit tracking system 
Update incomes, prices, fees in lieu 

2010/11  ADU Incentives 
Needs Updating 
 

Clearinghouse for housing assistance 
Development review/negotiation 
Applicant qualification/selection 
 

2012  Tax Credit Apartments  Partnership development 
2015+  Use Tax  Senior housing development 

Program monitoring 
Compliance reporting 
Negotiate land acquisition 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    21 
<<Exhibits - Page >>55



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
Appendix 

 
A. Path to Housing 
B. Update to Key Housing Needs Assessment Figures 
C. Strategic Plan Model 
D. Authority of Local Governments to Impose Requirements on Development to Address 

the Needs for Affordable Housing 
E. Intergovernmental Agreement  between OCHA and Ouray County 
F. 2009 Income Median Incomes and Affordable Purchase Prices 
G. Proposed 2010 OCHA Budget 

 
 
 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    22 
<<Exhibits - Page >>56



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Appendix A 
PATH LEADING TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN OURAY COUNTY 

 
Ouray County Master Plan 

• Acknowledges  attainable  housing  is more  scarce with  growth  and  recognizes  the  need  for  a 
“diverse and varied population” to achieve social and economic balance in the County 

• Stated goal “to assure  the continuing availability of diverse housing  to meet  the needs of  the 
County's growing population” and considers land use code changes to address housing needs 

 
2000 Town of Ridgway Master Plan Update  

• Arising  from  survey  data  and  public  input Goal  IX  of  the Master  Plan  states  “Encourage  the 
availability of attainable housing within the town” 

• In the Master Plan the Town states the objective to work with Ouray County toward establishing 
attainable housing 

 
City of Ouray Master Plan 

• Preserve the existing housing stock to ensure quality residential areas 
• Develop regulations to create affordable housing opportunities 

 
2002 Ridgway/ Ouray County and Ouray/ Ouray County IGAs 

• Focus growth within established municipal areas to preserve character of the County 
 

2006 Blue Ribbon Panel on Housing 
• Statewide study on housing affordability establishes format and criteria for housing assessments 

and funding for assessment becomes available through DOLA 
 

2007 Ouray County Multi‐Jurisdictional Housing Authority Established 
• Ouray County, City of Ouray and Town of Ridgway enter  into an  intergovernmental agreement 

to actively address county‐wide housing needs 
 

2008 Housing Needs Assessment Completed 
• 33% of Employees in Ouray commute from outside Ouray 
• 75% Ridgway Employees commute from outside Ridgway 
• The median sale price for ownership housing has increased 11.6 percent annually since 2003 

from $255,000 to $395,000  
• In Ouray County Real Wages up only 2.1%  (2000–2006) 
• New Residents Pay ~$1600 ‐ 1800/ mo for housing 
• No/ Little permanent affordability in Ouray County 
• “Catch Up” (149 units); “Keep Up” (176 ‐ 264 units by 2015) 
• 73% survey respondents indicate housing options as insufficient 
• 85% survey respondents say lack of affordable housing is a problem 

 
2008 Town of Ridgway Housing Task Force Established 

 
2008 Ouray County LIHTC Feasibility Assessment 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    23 
<<Exhibits - Page >>57



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Social and Environmental Costs 
• As a result of households commuting across counties to get to work the region surrounding and 

including  Ouray  County  has  completed  a  Transit  Survey  and  is  now  looking  at  Regional 
Transportation Objectives  

• Emergency  Service  providers  are  responding  from  their  homes  outside  of  Ouray  County, 
increasing the response time for emergencies 

• Etc., etc., etc. 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    24 
<<Exhibits - Page >>58



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
Appendix B 

OURAY COUNTY UPDATE TO KEY HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT FIGURES 

Population, Household and Housing Unit Estimates 

Year  Area 
Total 

Population
Average 
HH Size 

Total 
Housing 
Units 

Occupied 
Housing 
Units 

Vacant 
Housing 
Units 

Vacancy 
Rate 

               
2009   Ouray County  4,738 2.37 3,196 1,987 1,209 38%

  Ouray 891 2.14 755 412 343 45%
  Ridgway 1,147 2.50 613 459 154 25%
  Unincorporated 2,701 2.41 1,829 1,117 711 39%
               

2015   Ouray County  5,648 2.38 4,701 2,362 2,339 50%
  Ouray 960 2.14 951 444 507 53%
  Ridgway 1,581 2.50 1,157 633 524 45%
  Unincorporated 3,106 2.41 2,594 1,286 1,308 50%
 

2015  EPS – Ouray County  5,846 2,703

 
Job/Employment Estimates and Projections 

Job Type  2000  2009 est.  2015 est. 
EPS 2015 
Estimate 

Proprietors*  648  1,089  1,539  2,617 

Wage and Salary Jobs**  1,338  1,909  2,419  1,168 

Total Jobs  1,986  2,998  3,959  3,785 
Projections based on rate of growth as between 2000 and 2006/07. 
Difference w/ EPS – rate of growth in proprietors 2005 and 2006. 

 
***EPS estimated 3,785 jobs by 2015.  One main difference in our higher number is the jump in proprietors 
between 2005 and 2006, with a total of 127 new in one year (averaged an increase of 28 per year between 2000 
and 2005). 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    25 
<<Exhibits - Page >>59



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Employment by Industry 

  2006  2007 
% Change 

2006 to 2007 

Accommodation and Food Services  29.6%  28.7%  ‐0.9% 
Construction  16.5%  17.8%  1.3% 
Retail Trade  11.1%  11.4%  0.3% 
Public Administration  9.0%  9.4%  0.4% 
Educational Services  8.1%  8.4%  0.3% 
Professional and Technical Services  2.7%  3.9%  1.2% 
Finance and Insurance  2.9%  3.1%  0.2% 
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting  2.8%  3.0%  0.2% 
Health Care and Social Assistance  2.7%  2.6%  ‐0.1% 
Information  2.3%  2.0%  ‐0.3% 
Utilities  1.7%  1.7%  0.0% 
Manufacturing  2.2%  1.7%  ‐0.5% 
Administrative and Waste Services  1.6%  1.7%  0.1% 
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing  1.8%  1.6%  ‐0.2% 
Other Services, Ex. Public Admin  1.4%  1.6%  0.2% 
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation  1.8%  1.4%  ‐0.4% 
Transportation and Warehousing  0.9%  0.9%  0.0% 
Wholesale Trade  0.7%  0.7%  0.0% 
Mining  0.2%  0.1%  ‐0.1% 
Management of Companies and Enterprises  0.1%  0.1%  0.0% 
  100.0%  100.0%   

Source: QCEW 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    26 
<<Exhibits - Page >>60



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

2008 Ouray County Employment & Unemployment 
 

Period 
Civilian  

Labor Force  Employment  Unemployment 
Unemployment  

Rate (%) 

January  2,925  2,824  101  3.5 

February  2,833  2,724  109  3.8 

March  2,866  2,759  107  3.7 

April  2,847  2,739  108  3.8 

May  3,105  2,987  118  3.8 

June  3,575  3,454  121  3.4 

July  3,611  3,495  116  3.2 

August  3,555  3,442  113  3.2 

September  3,320  3,210  110  3.3 

October  3,201  3,074  127  4.0 

November  3,098  2,958  140  4.5 
Source: LAUS 

 
Workers Commuting into Ouray County 

 
1990 – 2000 Trend 
Projected to 2009  # commute  % commute 

1990  221  22.2% 
2000  325  20.2% 
2008  442  18.7% 
2009  460  18.6% 

     
EPS Employer Survey ‐ 2006  310  17.9% 
     
LEHD* ‐ 2006  517  Not specified 
*Longitudinal Employer Household Dynamics, Census Bureau 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    27 
<<Exhibits - Page >>61



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Unemployment 

4.5

4.0

3.3
3.23.2

3.4

3.83.8
3.7

3.8

3.5

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

2000 2.92.82.12.02.12.02.12.52.83.53.84.0

2001 4.03.93.02.42.12.12.52.73.13.63.43.6

2002 4.64.83.73.53.13.43.84.14.84.24.44.9

2003 4.24.33.93.93.53.84.15.05.36.05.55.3

2004 4.34.63.83.32.93.33.44.24.74.75.15.0

2005 3.13.83.33.02.72.93.13.84.44.34.44.4

2006 2.93.12.52.72.82.83.03.53.93.63.73.8

2007 3.43.43.02.82.62.72.83.03.03.23.13.4

2008 4.54.03.33.23.23.43.83.83.73.83.5

DecemberNovemberOctoberSeptemberAugustJulyJuneMayAprilMarchFebruaryJanuary

 
Source: LAUS 

Unemployment 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

J
u
n
e

M
a
y

A
p
ri
l

M
a
rc

h
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

J
a
n
u
a
ry

200820072006200520042003200220012000

O uray

Southwest

C o lorado

 
 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    28 
<<Exhibits - Page >>62



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Ouray County Sales 
  2007  2008 

Single‐Family     
Average  $569,375  $500,724
Median  $397,000  $374,000
N  131  57 
     

Condo/Townhome   
Average  $329,767  $312,040
Median  $330,000  $295,000
N  15  26 
     

Mobile*     
Average  $50,000  $50,457 
Median  $50,000  $50,000 
N  2  7 
     

Overall     
Average  $538,072  $411,195
Median  $379,450  $310,000
N  148  90 

Source: County Assessor website 
 

Current Listings – Ouray County 1.16.09 
Average  $690,326
Median  $495,000
High  $7,200,000
Low  $139,000
N  195

Source: MLS 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    29 
<<Exhibits - Page >>63



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
 

Current Listings by Price Range– Ouray County 1.16.09 
Current Listings  #  % 

$100,000‐$199,999  11 5.6%

$200,000‐$299,999  28 14.4%

$300,000‐$399,999  36 18.5%

$400,000‐$499,999  35 17.9%

$500,000‐$599,999  17 8.7%

$600,000‐$699,999  17 8.7%

$700,000‐$799,999  11 5.6%

$800,000‐$899,999  7 3.6%

$900,000‐$999,999  8 4.1%

$1,000,000‐$1,499,999  10 5.1%

$1,500,000‐$1,999,999   8 4.1%

$2,000,000 or more  7 3.6%

  195 100.0%

 
 

Adjustments to Need Estimates 

 
Catch Up Need  EPS Estimate ‐ 2006  Adjustments 
From unfilled jobs  55 FTE 

= 39 units 
1 pt increase in unemployment 
= ? change in unfilled jobs 

Commuting  310 commuters 
= 220 households 
X 50%** 
= 110 units 

460 commuters 
= 225 households* 
X 50%** 
= 113 units 

Total  Catch Up Need  149 units   
     
Keep Up Need     
From new jobs    1,233 more jobs 

= 881 units 
961 more jobs 
= 471 units* 

Not served by market  20% – 30% 
=176 – 264 units 

58% 
= 273 units 

From Retirement  N/A  ? 
*Based on 1.2 jobs per employee and 1.7 employees per unit – general rule in mountain towns.  ** 
No basis for assumption 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    30 
<<Exhibits - Page >>64



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

APPENDIX C 
STRATEGIC PLAN MODEL SUMMARY 

 

Model Summary  Income 
Total 
Units  Ridgway  Ouray 

Ouray 
County 

Catch‐Up Goal     50  28  14  9 
Rehab/Weatherization  Low/Mid  21  7  7  7 
Tax Credit Apts  Low  27  18  9  0 
 Catch Up     48  25  16  7 
           
Keep‐Up Goal     160  88  45  27 
Residential Linkage  Low  7  3  1  3 
Commercial Linkage  either/both 3  60  7  20 
Inclusionary Zoning  Mod/Mid  104  72  8  24 
Total     115  135  16  47 
 
 
 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    31 
<<Exhibits - Page >>65



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 

Appendix D 
 
AUTHORITY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO IMPOSE REQUIREMENTS ON DEVELOPMENT TO 

ADDRESS THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING  
 
 
 

Prepared for:  Ouray County Multi‐Jurisdictional Housing Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
BARBARA J.B. GREEN 
SULLIVAN GREEN SEAVY 
2969 BASELINE RD. 
BOULDER, CO 80303 
303 355 4405 
lawgreen@earthlink.net
 
March 4, 2009 
 
 

 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    32 
<<Exhibits - Page >>66

mailto:lawgreen@earthlink.net


    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
AUTHORITY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO IMPOSE REQUIREMENTS ON DEVELOPMENT FOR 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
 
I.  Introduction. 
 

Several communities in Colorado have developed affordable housing programs that 
include inclusionary zoning and fee requirements.  Inclusionary zoning is a requirement 
imposed on new residential development that mandates that a certain portion of the units 
constructed be “affordable” to some segment of the local population.  Some communities give 
the developer the option to satisfy this obligation by dedicating land to the local government 
for the construction of affordable housing or by paying fees in lieu of constructing new units.  
Fees often consist of a charge that is levied per square foot of new construction and are 
referred to as linkage fees. Under Colorado law, there is no express statutory authority to 
implement a program which imposes requirements that are designed to address the need for 
affordable housing caused by new construction. Nor are there any Colorado cases that directly 
address the authority of local governments to implement such programs.  Such authority, 
however, arguably falls within the scope of local government land use and zoning powers.  In 
addition, some linkage fees may be authorized under the Impact Fee Statute.  Each member of  
the Ouray County Multi‐Jurisdictional Housing Authority should consult with its attorney prior 
to enacting any affordable housing requirements. 
 
 
II.  Authority Derived from General Land Use Authority 
 

A.  Inclusionary Zoning. 
No Colorado statute directly confers express authority on local governments to impose 

requirements on new development to address the need for affordable housing.  Arguably, 
however, that authority is implied by the General Assembly’s grant of authority to regulate the 
use and development of land.  Under this point of view, inclusionary zoning, and fees assessed 
in lieu of inclusionary zoning, are efforts to reverse the impact of exclusionary land use policies 
that have diminished the supply of affordable housing and created an imbalance between jobs 
and housing availability. (These policies have come to be called “exclusionary zoning” because 
they have effectively excluded affordable housing, exacerbating patterns of racial and economic 
segregation.)  Inclusionary zoning and the fees assessed in lieu of such zoning thus are an 
exercise of zoning and land use power in furtherance of the general welfare.   

Although Colorado courts have never considered whether local government authority 
extends to programs designed to mitigate the impact of new development on the need for 
affordable housing, such programs have been upheld in other jurisdictions as a proper exercise 
of land use authority. For example, a court found that a requirement that developers pay into 
an affordable housing fund was authorized by the same land use authority that allows local 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    33 
<<Exhibits - Page >>67



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

governments to enact “inclusionary” zoning ordinances.1 The United States Supreme Court has 
takes an expansive view of zoning and land use power so long as it serves the general welfare.2  
And housing needs are related to the general welfare under zoning laws.3  

B.  Local Government Planning and Zoning Powers 

The General Assembly has delegated broad land use and zoning authority to local 
governments.  The County Planning and Building Codes empower counties to plan and zone all 
or any part of the unincorporated territory within its jurisdiction to provide for its physical 
development.4 Similarly, the governing body of each municipality is empowered to regulate and 
restrict the use of land.5   Local governments also have broad authority to address growth‐
related impacts.  For example, the General Assembly enacted the Land Use Enabling Act in 
recognition that "rapid growth and uncontrolled development may destroy Colorado's great 
resource of natural scenic and recreational wealth." 6 Further, “the policy of this state is to 
clarify and provide broad authority to local governments to plan for and regulate the use of 
land within their respective jurisdictions." 7  Colorado's Land Use Act contains a finding and 
declaration that "the rapid growth and development of the state and the resulting demands on 
its land resources make new and innovative measures necessary to encourage planned and 
orderly land use development" and "to provide for the needs of . . . residential communities.8  
Finally, the legislature also promotes the policy of having development help pay its own way. 9

The provision of affordable housing is clearly among the areas of concern delegated to 
local governments.  For example, counties may plan for the “general character, location, and 
extent of community centers, townsites, housing developments, whether public or private, the 
existing, proposed, or projected location of residential neighborhoods and sufficient land for 
future housing development for the existing and projected economic and other needs of all 
current and anticipated residents of the county or region. . .”10  Statutes also require that a 
municipality's land use plan address the "harmonious development of the municipality and its 
environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best promote health, safety, 
order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in the 
process of development, including . . . affordable housing."11 Given the broad scope of land use 
authority granted to local governments, it is reasonable to assume that local governments have 

                                                 
1  See Holmdel Builders 11 Association v. Township of Holmdel, 121 N.J. 550 (N.J. 1990) (development fees for 
housing are the “functional equivalent of mandatory set‐asides” for affordable housing under zoning authority). 
2  See Village of Belle Terre v. Boraas, 416 U.S. 1, 39 L.Ed. 2d 797 (1974).   
3  Berman v. Parker, 348 U.S. 26, 33, 75 S.Ct. 98,102, 99 L.Ed. 27, 28 (1954).  
4 C.R.S. § 30‐‐28‐‐101 to ‐‐‐209 
5 C.R.S. § 31‐‐23‐‐301 et seq. 
6 Theobald v. Bd. of County Comm'rs, 644 P.2d 942, 947 (Colo.1982). 
7  C.R.S. § 29‐‐20—102. 
8  C.R.S. § 24‐65‐102. 
9 See Board of County Comm'rs v. Bainbridge, Inc., 929 P.2d 691, 698 (Colo.1996); Bennett Bear Creek Farm Water 
& Sanitation Dist. v. City & County of Denver, 928 P.2d 1254, 1268 (Colo.1996).  
10 C.R.S. § 30‐28‐106(3)(a)(VII).. 
11  C.R.S. § 31‐23‐207. 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    34 
<<Exhibits - Page >>68



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

the power to use their zoning authority to enact inclusionary zoning requirements and linkage 
fees to provide affordable housing necessitated by development.12

C.  Methodology  

  1.  Reasonable relationship to a legitimate governmental purpose.   
 

Assuming that an affordable housing requirement  is  legislatively‐adopted as an 
exercise of local government zoning and land use authority, the requirement should be 
upheld if it is reasonably related to a legitimate governmental purpose. Even where the 
reasonableness  of  a  land  use  ordinance  is  fairly  debatable,  it will  be  upheld  by  the 
court.13   The general purpose of a valid housing  requirement would be  to protect  the 
general welfare by providing for affordable housing. 
 

2.  Methodology 

  a.  The Rough Proportionality Test does not apply to a legislatively 
adopted housing fee.   The so‐called “rough proportionality test” is a reference to a test 
first established by the United States Supreme Court in Nollan v. California Coastal 
Commission14 and Dolan v. City of Tigard15 to address development exactions.  Exactions 
are conditions of approval on land use permits that require the dedication of land to the 
public. Such "development exactions will be deemed takings requiring just 
compensation unless they satisfy a two part test: there must be an `essential nexus' 
between the legitimate government interest and the exaction demanded; and there 
must be `rough proportionality' between the governmental interest and the required 
dedication." 16  

In 1999, the General Assembly enacted the Takings Act which addresses 
regulatory takings associated with exactions as described in Nollan and Dolan. The Act 
requires a local government when imposing “conditions upon the granting of land‐use 
approvals” that require the dedication of real property or payment of money “in an 
amount that is determined on an individual and discretionary basis” to demonstrate 
that “there is an essential nexus between the dedication or payment and a legitimate 
local government interest, and the dedication or payment is roughly proportional both 
in nature and extent to the impact of the proposed use or development of such 
property.”17 The Act does not apply “ to any legislatively formulated assessment, fee, or 

                                                 
12  See e.g. Droste v. Board of County Commissioners, 159 P.3d 601 (Colo. 2007)(General Assembly’s grant of land 
use authority necessarily implies authority to impose moratorium). 
13 See Nopro Co. v. Town of Cherry Hills Village, 180 Colo. 217, 504 P.2d 344 (1972). 
14  483 U.S. 825 (1987). 
15  512 U.S. 374 (1994). 
16  See Krupp v. Breckenridge Sanitation Dist., 19 P.3d 687, 695 (Colo. 2001); Wolf Ranch, LLC v. City of Colorado 
Springs, ___ P.3d___ (Case No. 07CA2184). 
17 § 29‐20‐203(1), C.R.S. 2008.  

Rees Consulting, Inc.    35 
<<Exhibits - Page >>69



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

charge that is imposed on a broad class of property owners by a local government.”18  
Colorado courts are clear that legislatively‐adopted fee is not the kind of land use 
decision that would obligate the local government to perform the type of individualized 
impact assessment imposed by the rough proportionality test.19

  b.           The Housing Fee should be reasonable. There are no cases in 
Colorado that dictate how the amount of inclusionary requirements or linkage fees 
should be determined.  For  charges that are intended to defray the cost of providing 
services, the court has held that “the amount of the fee must be reasonably related to 
the overall cost of the service.”20 and “[m]athematical exactitude is not required, 
however, and the particular mode adopted by the governmental entity in assessing the 
fee is generally a matter of legislative discretion.21  This type of test probably would 
apply to any affordable housing requirement. 

      II.  The Impact Fee Statute 

 
In addition to being authorized by general land use and zoning authority, certain linkage 

fees may be authorized under the Colorado Impact Fee Statute.22  ( Currently, Gunnison 
County’s workforce housing fee is being challenged under this statute.  The issues in that case is 
whether Gunnison County’s fee was properly calculated and whether the fee is an unlawful 
tax.) The Impact Fee Statute authorizes local governments to adopt impact fees to defray 
impacts on capital facilities.  A capital facility is defined as any improvement or facility that (a) is 
directly related to any service that a local government is authorized to provide; (b) has an 
estimated useful life of five years or longer; and (c) is required by the charter or general policy 
of a local government pursuant to a resolution or ordinance.23

A.  Summary of the Impact Fee Statute 

The Impact Fee Statute sets forth the requirements for a valid fee: 

(1) The impact fees must be “[l]egislatively adopted” C.R.S. § 29‐20‐104.5(1)(a); 
(2) They must be “[g]enerally applicable to a broad class of property” C.R.S. § 29‐20‐

104.5(1)(b); 
(3) They must be “ [i]ntended to defray the projected impacts on capital facilities caused by 

proposed development” C.R.S. § 29‐20‐104.5(1)(c);  

                                                 
18 Id. 
19 See Krupp and Wolf Ranches, supra, at note 16. 
20   Krupp at 693‐694. 
21  Id. 
22 C.R.S. 29‐20‐104.5 
23 C.R.S. §  29‐20‐104.5(4) 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    36 
<<Exhibits - Page >>70



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

(4) ) The “reasonable impacts of the proposed development on existing capital facilities” 
must be quantified and established “at a level no greater than necessary to defray such 
impacts directly related to proposed development” and not imposed fee “to remedy any 
deficiency in capital facilities that exists without regard to the proposed development.”  
C.R.S. § 29‐20‐104.5(2) and  

(5) The impact fees must “include provisions to ensure that no individual landowner is 
required to provide any site specific dedication or improvement to meet the same need 
for capital facilities for which the impact fee or other similar development charge is 
imposed.” C.R.S. § 29‐20‐104.5(3). 

 
     B.  Supporting Rationale for a Housing Fee under the Impact Fee Statute 

 
  Where a local government relies on the Impact Fee Statute to authorize a linkage fee, 
the amount of the legislatively‐adopted fee should be supported by a study that quantifies the 
projected impacts of development on the need for affordable housing.  The study must ensure 
that the local government sets the fee “at a level no greater than necessary to defray such 
impacts [on the availability of affordable housing] directly related to proposed development.”24   
 
  1.  No individualized determination required. 
 

The Impact Fee Statute does not require the local government to perform an 
individualized determination of the impacts of any particular development proposal, it simply 
requires quantification of the impacts of development in general. An individualized 
determination would be required only when the amount of the fee is “determined on an 
individual and discretionary basis. . .” 25 In other words, the local government would not be 
required to analyze the impacts of a particular development on the availability of affordable 
housing unless the fee were being imposed on an ad hoc basis to a particular development 
rather than through a legislatively formulated assessment that is imposed on a broad class of 
property owners by a local government.26 The reasonableness of the costs to be recovered 
through the housing fee should be evaluated in relation to the impacts of all development on 
the availability of affordable housing.27

 
  2.  Methodology. 

 
The Impact Fee Statute does not dictate a particular methodology which the local 

government must apply in support of any impact fee.  However, in the case of a linkage fee, a 
reasonable approach would be to determine the number of workers that would be generated 
by new development, calculate the demand for affordable housing units associated with those 

                                                 
24 Id at ‐104.5(2) 
25 C.R.S. § 29‐20‐203 (1) 
26 See  Wolf Ranch, LLC v. City of Colorado Springs, __ P.3d __,(Colo. App. 2008) (imposition of legislatively‐adopted 
fees not the type of land use decision that would trigger an individualized impact assessment). 
27 Carolynne White, A Municipal Perspective on Senate Bill 15: Impact Fees, 31 Colo. Law. 93 (May 2002). 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    37 
<<Exhibits - Page >>71



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

workers, and then set the fee on the basis of the cost to provide those units.  The local 
government must be careful that the fee is not used to address the need for affordable housing 
that already may exist in the community without regard to proposed development.  Thus, the 
local government should set the amount of the fee to meet some portion of the need for 
housing generated by new development so that there is no argument that it is using the fee to 
make up for existing deficiencies in the supply of affordable housing.  

 
 

III.  Conclusion 
 

Although there is no express statutory authority for a local government to impose 
requirements on new development that are designed to address the need for affordable 
housing, such authority arguably can be found within the zoning and land use powers that have 
been granted to local governments.  Under this analysis, the inclusionary requirement would be 
a simple exercise of zoning power and the linkage fee would be characterized as a few in lieu of 
inclusionary zoning. This approach has been upheld in other jurisdictions.  The Impact Fee 
Statute may also provide authority to impose a linkage fee.  As an exercise of zoning authority, 
a housing requirement should be reasonable and bear a reasonable relationship to the cost of 
providing affordable housing caused by new development.  Under the Impact Fee Statute, the 
local government must quantify the reasonable impacts of proposed development and the 
linkage fee can be no greater than the amount necessary to defray the impacts of proposed 
development on the availability of affordable housing.   

 
The County and each municipality enacting an affordable housing requirement should 

be sure to cite to all of the various authorities in state statute when it adopts the resolution or 
ordinance enacting the housing program.  In addition, a study that draws the link between new 
development and the need for affordable housing should be conducted.  At a minimum, the 
study should satisfy the requirements of the Impact Fee Statute if there will be a linkage fee.  
To be conservative, the study should be designed to satisfy the “rough proportionality” test 
even though that test applies only to exactions and the payment of money demanded on an ad 
hoc basis.  By satisfying this more stringent test, the housing requirements should withstand 
judicial scrutiny.  We will be preparing this type of study for the Ouray County Multi‐
Jurisdictional Housing Authority. 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    38 
<<Exhibits - Page >>72



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Appendix E 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN   
THE CITY OF OURAY, COLORADO  

THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, AND 
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF OURAY COUNTY 
ESTABLISHING A MULTIJURISDICTIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
 
  THIS  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  is made and entered  into  this_____ day of 
____________, 2007, by and between the CITY OF OURAY, COLORADO (hereinafter “Ouray”), a 
Colorado municipal corporation, the TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO (hereinafter “Ridgway“), 
a Colorado home rule municipality, and THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF OURAY 
COUNTY, COLORADO (hereinafter “Ouray County”), a Colorado county, collectively referred to 
in this Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
  WHEREAS,  the Parties wish  to encourage and support a coordinated effort  to provide 
housing  that  is  affordable  to  residents of  their  respective  jurisdictions  in  a manner  that will 
preserve the regional community; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that formation of a multijurisdictional housing 
authority is an appropriate and effective method for pursuing the affordable housing objectives 
stated above; and  
 
  WHEREAS,  the Parties are each authorized by Article XIV, Section 18 of  the Colorado 
Constitution  and  the  Multijurisdictional  Housing  Authority  Act,  Section  29‐1‐204.5,  C.R.S. 
(hereinafter the “Act’) to contract with each other to establish a separate governmental entity 
known as a multijurisdictional housing authority; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish a multijurisdictional housing authority by and 
subject to the provisions of this IGA. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE,  in  consideration of  their mutual  covenants  and  the benefits  to be 
received by each of them, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 
  1. CREATION, NAME, BOUNDARIES, PURPOSE, STATUS 
 
    1.1   Creation;  Name.  The  Parties  hereby  establish  a  multijurisdictional 
housing authority named the “Ouray County Housing Authority” (the “Authority”).  
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    39 
<<Exhibits - Page >>73



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

    1.2   Boundaries. The boundaries of  the Authority  shall be  coterminous with 
the boundaries of Ouray County, Colorado. 
 
    1.3  Purposes. The Authority  is established  for  the purposes of effecting  the 
planning,  financing,  acquisition,  construction,  reconstruction,  repair,  maintenance, 
management and operation of existing and new affordable housing  together with any other 
purposes  deemed  appropriate  by  the  Authority  as  are  now  or  subsequently  permitted  or 
authorized for multijurisdictional housing authorities by applicable law. 
 
    1.4  Type of  Entity.  The Authority  shall be  a political  subdivision  and public 
corporation of the State of Colorado and separate from the City of Ouray, the Town of Ridgway, 
and Ouray County and  shall be a  validly  created and existing political  subdivision and public 
corporation  of  the  State  of  Colorado.  It  shall  have  the  duties,  privileges,  immunities,  rights, 
liabilities, and disabilities of a public body, political and corporate. The Authority may deposit 
and  invest  its moneys  in  the manner  provided  in  Section  43‐4‐616,  C.R.S.  The  provisions  of 
Articles  10.5  and  47  of  Title  11,  Colorado  Revised  Statutes,  shall  apply  to  moneys  of  the 
Authority. The Authority shall be an Enterprise as that term  is defined  in the Taxpayer’s Bill of 
Rights, Article 10, Section 20 of the Constitution of Colorado.  In order to retain  its Enterprise 
status  under  Colorado  law,  the  Authority  shall  not  receive  more  than  10%  of  its  annual 
revenues in grants from all Colorado state and local governments combined.  
 
    1.5  Functions‐General. The Authority  shall have any and all powers, duties, 
rights and obligations as such are set forth in the Act except as specifically provided herein. The 
Authority shall also have those duties and powers stated below, and any others delegated to 
the  Authority  by  the  Parties  to  this  IGA.  The  power  of  the  Authority  to  levy,  within  the 
boundaries of the Authority, a sales tax, a use tax, and/or ad valorem tax and/or development 
impact fee for affordable housing is subject to specific provisions to be negotiated between the 
Parties  in  the  form  of  a  future  Intergovernmental  Agreement  and  any  applicable  statutory 
requirements.  No  action  by  the  Authority  to  establish  or  increase  any  tax  or  development 
impact  fee  shall  take effect unless  first  submitted  to a vote of  the  registered electors of  the 
Authority in which the tax or development impact fee is proposed to be collected. 
 
    1.6  No  Waiver  of  Governmental  Powers.  Nothing  contained  in  this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver by the City of Ouray, the Town of Ridgway or Ouray County 
of any of their respective or joint planning, zoning, land use or other governmental authority or 
powers.  All  projects  of  the  Authority  shall  be  subject  to  the  planning,  zoning,  sanitary,  and 
building  laws,  ordinances,  and  regulations  applicable  to  the  locality  in  which  a  project  is 
situated.  
 
  2. DUTIES OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
  The Authority shall undertake any and all duties and or responsibilities as may from time 
to time be assigned to it and funded by one, two or all of the Parties.  
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    40 
<<Exhibits - Page >>74



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

  3. POWERS OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
  In addition to any other powers provided by applicable law, the Authority shall have the 
following powers: 
 
    3.1  To  plan,  finance,  acquire,  construct,  reconstruct  or  repair,  maintain, 
manage  and  operate  housing  projects  and  programs  pursuant  to  a multi‐jurisdictional  plan 
within the means of families of low or moderate income. 
 
    3.2  To  plan,  finance,  acquire,  construct,  reconstruct  or  repair,  maintain, 
manage,  and  operate  affordable  housing  project  or  programs  for  employees  of  employers 
located within the jurisdiction of the Authority.  
 
    3.3.  To  identify the need for affordable housing for the population segments 
identified by the Authority residing, or needing to reside in Ouray County. 
 
    3.4  The power, but not the duty or obligation, to develop creative financing 
and  construction methods, as well as  incentives,  in order  to encourage  the public or private 
sector to provide affordable housing for families and individuals in Ouray County. 
 
    3.5  To  plan,  finance,  acquire,  construct,  reconstruct  or  repair,  maintain, 
manage,  own,  operate,  rent  and/or  sell  housing  projects  to  provide  affordable  residential 
facilities and dwelling accommodations  intended for use as the sole place of residence by the 
owners or  intended occupants, subject to the applicable governmental requirements  (such as 
zoning,  review and approval processes) of  the  jurisdiction  in which  the particular property  is 
located. 
 
    3.6  To  make  and  enter  into  agreements,  including,  without  limitation, 
contracts with local, state or federal agencies, private enterprises, and nonprofit organizations, 
also involved in providing such housing or the financing for such housing.  
 
    3.7  To employ agents and employees. 
 
    3.8 To cooperate with state and federal governments  in all respects concerning 
the financing of such housing projects. 
 
    3.9  To purchase, acquire, obtain options for, hold, lease (as lessor or lessee), 
sell or otherwise dispose of any  real or personal property, commodity, or service  from  firms, 
corporations, the City of Ouray, the Town of Ridgway, Ouray County and other governmental 
entities or any other person or entities.  
 
    3.10  To  condemn  property  for  public  use,  provided  such  property  is  not 
owned by any governmental entity or any public utility and devoted to public use pursuant to 
state  authority;  and  provided,  further,  both  that  the  vote  of  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    41 
<<Exhibits - Page >>75



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Authority to condemn is unanimous and the Authority has received the prior written consent to 
the condemnation from the governing body or bodies of the local government or governments 
having jurisdiction over the property to be condemned.  
 
    3.11  To  incur  debts,  liabilities,  or  obligations;  to  issue  bonds  or  notes  (as 
provided below); to borrow money, secure mortgages, obtain grants, gifts or otherwise obtain 
funds,  all  for  the purpose of  implementing,  completing  and operating housing projects.  This 
does not  constitute  general  authority  to encumber or pledge  any  revenues or  assets of  any 
participating government without that entity’s written consent.  
 
    3.12  To sue and be sued in its own name. 
 
    3.13  To have and use a corporate seal. 
 
    3.14  To  fix, maintain,  and  revise  fees,  rents,  prices,  security  deposits,  and 
charges for functions, services, or facilities provided by the Authority.  
 
    3.15  To  adopt,  by  resolution,  regulations  respecting  the  exercise  of  the 
Authority’s powers and the carrying out of its purposes.  
 
    3.16  To  exercise  any  other  powers  essential  to  the  provision  of  functions, 
services or facilities by the Authority. 
 
    3.17  To  do  and  perform  any  acts  and  things  authorized  by  this  IGA  under, 
through, or by means of any agent, or by contracts with any person, firm or corporation.  
 
    3.18  To  establish  enterprises  for  the  ownership,  planning,  financing, 
acquisition, construction, reconstruction or repair, maintenance, management, or operation, or 
any  combination  of  the  foregoing,  of  housing  projects  or  programs  subject  to  the  terms 
specified in the Act.  
 
    3.19  To exercise any additional general powers granted  to multijurisdictional 
housing authorities by applicable law, except as specifically provided herein.  
 
    3.20  Subject  to the specific provisions under Sections 29‐1‐204.5 (3) (f.1), (f.2) 
and (f.5), C.R.S., and to specific provisions to be negotiated among the Parties in the form of a 
future  Intergovernmental  Agreement,  the  power  to  levy  a  sales  tax,  a  use  tax  and/or  ad 
valorem tax and/or development impact fee for affordable housing; provided, however, that no 
action of  the Authority  to establish or  increase any  tax or development  impact  fee shall  take 
effect unless first submitted to a vote of the registered electors of the Authority  in which the 
tax or development impact fee is proposed to be collected.  
 
  4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    42 
<<Exhibits - Page >>76



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

    4.1   Number of Directors and Their Appointment 
    (a)  Board of Directors. The governing body of the Authority shall be its Board 
of  Directors  (the  “Board”)  consisting  of  five members.  One member  shall  be  appointed  by 
Ouray; one member shall be appointed by Ridgway; one member shall be appointed by Ouray 
County; and two members (“Joint Members”) shall be appointed by the members appointed by 
Ouray,  Ridgway  and  Ouray  County.  The  appointment  of  Joint  Members  shall  be  limited 
exclusively  to persons nominated by Ouray, Ridgway or Ouray County after a  request by  the 
Authority to all three governments for nominations.  
    (b)  Qualifications. Each Director shall be a resident of Ouray County. 
    (c)  Term. With respect to the initial Board of Directors, two Directors shall be 
appointed  for  a  one  year  term,  and  three  for  two  year  terms.  Thereafter  the  terms  for  all 
Directors appointed shall be two years from the date of appointment or until the appointment 
of a successor. There shall be no terms limits for Directors.  
    (d)  Quorum; Voting. A majority of Directors shall constitute a quorum, and a 
majority of the quorum shall be necessary for any action taken by the Board of Directors.  
    (e)  Duties. The general power and authority of the Authority shall be vested 
in the Board. The Board shall elect the officers of the corporation as specified below. The Board 
shall approve a budget for the continued operation of the Authority. As provided in Sections 29‐
1‐204.5(2)(b)(IV),  C.R.S.,  the  Board  shall  comply with  the  provisions  of  parts  1,  5,  and  6  of 
Article I, Title 29 of the Colorado Revised Statutes which, respectively, are known as the Local 
Government Budget Law of Colorado, the Colorado Local Government Uniform Accounting Law, 
and the Colorado Local Government Audit Law. 
    (f)  Vacancies. Any vacancy on the Board shall be filled by the governmental 
entity that appointed the departing Director, or, in the case of a Joint Member, by vote of the 
remaining Board of Directors subject to selection procedures described in Section 4.1 (a). If the 
vacancy being filled is an unexpired term, the appointee shall serve the remainder of that term.  
    (g)  Removal.  Members  of  the  Board  shall  serve  at  the  pleasure  of  their 
appointing governments, or, in the case of Joint Members, at the pleasure of the Board.   
  (h)  Compensation. Board members  shall not be  compensated  for  their  services as 
Directors or officers; however, they may be reimbursed  for their expenses and may receive a 
per diem travel allowance as determined by the Board.  
     
    4.2 Officers.  The  officers  of  the  Authority  shall  consist  of  a  President,  a  Vice 
President, and a Secretary/Treasurer. No person shall hold more than one office. 
    (a)  Appointment. The officers shall be appointed by the Board and shall hold 
office for one year or until their successors are elected and qualified. 
    (b)  President.  The  President  shall  preside  at  all meetings  of  the Authority. 
Except  as  otherwise  authorized  by  resolution  of  the  Authority,  the  President  shall  sign  all 
contracts, deeds and other instruments made by the Authority. At each meeting the President 
shall submit such recommendations and information as he/she may consider proper concerning 
the business, affairs and policies of the Authority.  
    (c)  Vice  President.  The  Vice  President  shall  perform  the  duties  of  the 
President in the absence of incapacity of the President; and, in case of vacancy in the office of 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    43 
<<Exhibits - Page >>77



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

the President,  the Vice President  shall perform  such duties as are  imposed on  the President 
until such time as the Board selects a new President. 
    (d)   Secretary/Treasurer.  The  Secretary/Treasurer  shall  keep  the  records  of 
the Authority; shall act as secretary to meetings of the Authority; shall have the custody of all 
funds of the Authority; shall keep regular books of accounts for the same; and shall otherwise 
perform all duties  incident to the office. Any and all duties of the Secretary/Treasurer may be 
assigned to an Executive Director, if one.  
     
    4.3  Duties.  The  officers  of  the  Authority  shall  perform  the  duties  and 
functions of  their  respective offices,  as prescribed  in  this Agreement;  comply with  the  Local 
Government Budget Law of Colorado, the Colorado Local Government Uniform Accounting Law, 
and the Colorado Local Government Audit Law; and perform such other duties and functions as 
may from time to time be required by the provisions of this IGA, resolutions of the Directors, or 
by other rules and regulations as may be adopted by the Authority.  
 
    4.4  Appointment of an Executive Director. The Board may hire an Executive 
Director and  shall establish  the  compensation, duties and  responsibilities of  such position,  if 
created. 
 
    4.5   Conflicts  of  Interest.  No  member  of  the  Board  nor  any  immediate 
member of the family of any such member shall acquire or have any interest, direct or indirect, 
in: (a) any property or project acquired, held, leased or sold by the Authority; or (b) any entity 
with  whom  the  Authority  has  contracted  to  plan,  finance,  construct,  reconstruct,  repair, 
maintain, manage or operate any property, project or program related to the Authority. If any 
Board member has  such  an  interest, whether direct or  indirect, he or  she  shall  immediately 
disclose  the  same  in writing  to  the Board of Directors,  and  such disclosure  shall be entered 
upon the minutes of the Board. Upon such disclosure, such Board member shall not participate 
in any discussion of or action by the Board affecting the project, property, or contract. 
 
  5. BONDS, NOTES AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS 
 
    5.1  Not Obligations of Parties. The bonds, notes and other obligations of the 
Authority shall not be the debts, liabilities, or obligations of Ouray, Ridgway, or Ouray County or 
any other governmental entities that may become members of the Authority in the future.  
 
    5.2  Authority  to  Issue  Bonds.  To  carry  out  the  purposes  for  which  the 
Authority  was  established,  the  Authority  is  authorized  to  issue  bonds,  notes,  or  other 
obligations  payable  solely  from  the  revenues  derived  or  to  be  derived  from  the  functions, 
services, or  facilities of  the Authority or  from any other available  funds of  the Authority. The 
bonds, notes, or other obligations issued by the Authority shall, as nearly as may be practicable, 
be  substantially  the  same as  those provided by  law  for any of  the contracting parties  to  this 
IGA; provided, however, that bonds, notes or other obligations so issued shall not constitute an 
indebtedness  of  Ouray,  Ridgway,  or  Ouray  County within  the meaning  of  any  constitution, 
home  rule  charter  or  statutory  limitation  or  any  other  provision.  Each  bond,  note  or  other 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    44 
<<Exhibits - Page >>78



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

obligation  issued under  this subsection shall  recite  in substance  that  the bond, note or other 
obligation,  including  the  interest on  it,  is payable solely  from  the  revenues or other available 
funds of  the Authority pledged  for  its payment, and  that  the bond, note or other obligation 
does  not  constitute  a  debt  of Ouray,  Ridgway,  or Ouray  County within  the meaning  of  any 
constitution, home rule charter, statutory limitations or provisions. Notwithstanding anything in 
this  Section  5  to  the  contrary,  such  bonds,  notes,  and  other  obligations may  be  issued  to 
mature at such times not beyond forty (40) years from their respective  issue dates, shall bear 
interest  at  such  rates  and  shall  be  sold  at  such  prices,  at,  above,  or  below  their  principal 
amount, as shall be determined by the Board.  
 
    5.3  Indenture. The  resolution,  trust  indenture, or other  security agreement 
under which any bonds, notes or other obligations are  issued shall constitute a contract with 
the holders thereof, and it may contain such provisions as shall be determined by the Board to 
be appropriate and necessary in connection with their issuance and to provide security for their 
payment, including, without limitation, any mortgage or other security interest in any revenues, 
funds,  rights  or  properties  of  the  Authority.  The  bonds,  notes  and  other  obligations  of  the 
Authority and the income there from shall be exempt from taxation (except inheritance, estate, 
and transfer taxes) pursuant to Section 29‐1‐204.5 (7.3), C.R.S. 
 
  6. REVENUES 
 
  Subject to the limitations herein contained, the Parties may make payments to the  
Authority  from  their  funds  for services  rendered or  facilities provided by  the Authority, or as 
contributions to defray the cost of any purposes set forth herein. 
 
  7. BUDGET.  
 
  The Authority shall annually prepare a budget pursuant to the terms and provisions of 
the  Local  Government  Budget  Law  of  Colorado.  In  expending  the  budget,  the  Board  (or 
Executive Director, as the case may be) shall, insofar as practical, devote the time and moneys 
among  the Ouray,  Ridgway  and Ouray  County  functions  as  shown  on  said  budget. All work 
allocation  among  Authority  personnel  shall  be  the  responsibility  of  the  Board,  or  Executive 
Director, as the case may be. The Authority shall be required to annually obtain the approval of 
the budget (as well as any substantial amendments thereto) by the City Council of the City of 
Ouray, Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, and the Board of County Commissioners of Ouray 
County.  
 
  8. ACCOUNTING. 
 
  With  respect  to  accounting,  reporting,  auditing  and  operational  procedures,  the 
Authority shall follow the provisions and guidelines of the Colorado Local Government Uniform 
Accounting Law and the Colorado Local Government Audit law.  
 
  9. LEGAL ASSISTANCE. 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    45 
<<Exhibits - Page >>79



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
  Legal  assistance  shall be provided  for Ouray programs, Ridgway programs  and Ouray 
County programs by the City Attorney of Ouray, the Town Attorney of Ridgway, and the Ouray 
County Attorney, respectively. In addition, the Authority may retain counsel for the provision of 
necessary legal services for the operation of the Authority.  
 
  10. INSURANCE. 
 
  The  Authority  shall  purchase  and maintain  at  all  times  an  adequate  policy  of  public 
entity  liability  insurance, which  insurance shall at a minimum provide the amount of coverage 
described  in  Section  24‐10‐115(1),  C.R.S.,  including  errors  and  omissions  coverage.  The 
Authority may purchase such additional insurance as the Board shall determine. The Authority’s 
employees  acting  within  the  scope  of  their  employment  shall  be  indemnified  pursuant  to 
Section 24‐10‐110, C.R.S. 
 
  11. MODIFICATION OF THIS IGA. 
 
  This  Intergovernmental Agreement may be modified by written amendment approved 
by the governing bodies of all the contracting parties, acting separately. 
 
  12. TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
    12.1  Term.  The  term  of  this  IGA  shall  be  from  the  date  first written  above 
through December  31,  2007,  and  shall  automatically  renew  for  successive  one‐year  periods 
thereafter  upon  the  annual  appropriation  of  funds  by  Ouray,  Ridgway  and  Ouray  County. 
However, any of the contracting Parties may withdraw from this  IGA and membership on the 
Board of Directors, for any reason, upon thirty (30) days written notice.  
 
    12.2  Termination.  The  withdrawal  of  any  two  (2)  contracting  Parties  shall 
terminate  this  IGA.  Subject  to  the  limitations  in  Section  12.3,  this  Agreement  may  be 
terminated at any time by written agreement of all of the contracting Parties. 
 
    12.3 Limitations. This Agreement may not be terminated or rescinded: (a) as long 
as  the Authority has bonds, notes, or other obligations outstanding unless provisions  for  full 
payment of such obligations, by escrow or otherwise, has been made pursuant to the terms of 
such obligations; and  (b) until  the completion of  the disposition of assets of  the Authority as 
provided for in Section 13.  
 
  13. DISPOSITION OF AUTHORITY ASSETS UPON TERMINATION. 
 
  In the event of termination of this IGA, which termination may only occur in accordance 
with the requirements and  limitations of Paragraph 12 above, and the resulting dissolution of 
the Authority, the assets of the Authority shall be distributed as follows: 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    46 
<<Exhibits - Page >>80



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

    (a)  All assets which can be  identified which were acquired by contributions 
from Ouray, Ridgway or Ouray County shall be returned to the contributing Party if said assets 
are still in existence.  
    (b)  If identifiable assets contributed to the Authority are not in existence, the 
contributing party shall have the option of receiving the fair market value of each asset at the 
time of disposal by the Authority in either cash or assets of the Authority.  
    (c)  All assets acquired by the Authority after the date of this IGA from funds 
provided by the Parties shall be distributed to the Parties on the basis of the appraised value of 
said  assets  at  the  time  of  termination  and  in  the  same  proportion  as  the  respective 
contributions of funds by the Parties for acquisition of each asset.  
    (d)  The Parties may agree in writing to dispose of any assets of the Authority 
in any other acceptable manner. 
    (e)  If  the  Parties  cannot  agree  on  the  disposition  of  any  assets  of  the 
Authority within  sixty  (60) days,  said assets  shall be  subject  to an  independent appraisal and 
shall be  sold at public auction with  the deed  restriction  (if any)  intact as  soon as practicable 
with the proceeds allocated to Ouray, Ridgway and Ouray County in the same proportion as the 
total contribution of funds by the respective Parties for acquisition of the asset. 
    (f)   In the event that a municipality or county shall have been a member of 
the Authority and contributed assets or funds during that membership but is not a member at 
the  time  of  termination  of  the  Authority,  such municipality  or  county  shall  enjoy  the  same 
rights to distribution of assets afforded by this Section 13 to those governments participating at 
the time of termination.  
 
  14. ADDITIONAL PARTIES. 
 
  The Authority may be increased to include one or more additional municipalities and/or 
counties,  if each additional municipality and/or county and Ouray, Ridgway and Ouray County 
agree  to  an  amendment  of  this  IGA  authorizing  the  addition  of  the  municipalities  and/or 
counties and making required amendments to this IGA to provide for their inclusion, including, 
if agreed to, representation on the Board of Directors.  
 
  15. NOTICES. 
 
  Any formal notices, demand or request given under this IGA shall be in writing and shall 
be  deemed  properly  given  if  deposited  in  the  United  States  Mail,  postage  prepaid,  and 
addressed as described below:  
 
  To the City of Ouray:        City Administrator 
              City of Ouray 
              Post Office Box 468 
              Ouray, CO  81427 
 
  To the Town of Ridgway:      Town Manager 
              Town of Ridgway 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    47 
<<Exhibits - Page >>81



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

              Post Office Box 10 
              Ridgway, CO  81432 
 
  To Ouray County        County Administrator 
              Ouray County 
              Post Office Box C 
              Ouray, CO  81427 
  16. INTERPRETATION 
 
  Subject  to  the  express  limitations  contained  herein,  this Agreement  shall  be  liberally 
construed to permit the Authority, the Parties hereto, and the Board to exercise all powers that 
may  be  exercised  by  a multijurisdictional  housing  authority  pursuant  to  the  Act,  and  other 
applicable  law.  In the event of any conflict between the Act or any other applicable  law with 
respect to the exercise of any such power, the provision that permits the broadest exercise of 
the power consistent with the limitations set forth in this Agreement shall control.  
 
  17. GOVERNING LAW. 
 
  The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern the construction and enforcement of this 
Agreement. 
 
  18. SEVERABILITY. 
 
  If any term or provisions of this Agreement shall be adjudicated to be  invalid,  illegal or 
unenforceable,  this Agreement  shall be deemed  amended  to delete  there  from  the  term or 
provision thus adjudicated to be  invalid,  illegal or unenforceable and the validity of the other 
terms and provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this Agreement on the day 
and year above first noted.   
 
 
THE CITY OF OURAY, COLORADO  THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY,COLORADO  
A Colorado Municipal Corporation    A Colorado Home Rule Municipality 
 
By ______________________________  By _________________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:          ATTEST: 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form:        Approved as to form: 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    48 
<<Exhibits - Page >>82



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
City Attorney          Town Attorney 
 
 
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS    ATTEST: 
OF OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
By______________________________        ________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
________________________________ 
County Attorney         

Rees Consulting, Inc.    49 
<<Exhibits - Page >>83



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Appendix F 
2009 AREA MEDIAN INCOMES FOR OURAY COUNTY 

 
2009 HUD 1‐person Household 

Target  Low  High  Average 
50% AMI     $22,155    

60‐80% AMI  $26,586  $35,448  $31,017 
81‐100% AMI  $35,891  $44,310  $40,101 
101‐120% AMI  $44,753  $53,172  $48,963 
121‐150% AMI  $53,615  $66,465  $60,040 
       

2009 HUD 2‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $25,320    
60‐80% AMI  $30,384  $40,512  $35,448 
81‐100% AMI  $41,018  $50,640  $45,829 
101‐120% AMI  $51,146  $60,768  $55,957 
121‐150% AMI  $61,274  $75,960  $68,617 
       

2009 HUD 2.5‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $26,903    
60‐80% AMI  $32,283  $43,044  $37,664 
81‐100% AMI  $43,582  $53,805  $48,694 
101‐120% AMI  $54,343  $64,566  $59,455 
121‐150% AMI  $65,104  $80,708  $72,906 
       

2009 HUD 3‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $28,485    
60‐80% AMI  $34,182  $45,576  $39,879 
81‐100% AMI  $46,146  $56,970  $51,558 
101‐120% AMI  $57,540  $68,364  $62,952 
121‐150% AMI  $68,934  $85,455  $77,194 
       

2009 HUD 4‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $31,650    
60‐80% AMI  $37,980  $50,640  $44,310 
81‐100% AMI  $51,273  $63,300  $57,287 
101‐120% AMI  $63,933  $75,960  $69,947 
121‐150% AMI  $76,593  $94,950  $85,772 
 
 
 
 
 
       

Rees Consulting, Inc.    50 
<<Exhibits - Page >>84



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

2009 HUD 5‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $34,182    
60‐80% AMI  $41,018  $54,691  $47,855 
81‐100% AMI  $55,375  $68,364  $61,869 
101‐120% AMI  $69,048  $82,037  $75,542 
121‐150% AMI  $82,720  $102,546  $92,633 
       

2009 HUD 6‐person Household 
Target  Low  High  Average 

50% AMI     $36,714    
60‐80% AMI  $44,057  $58,742  $51,400 
81‐100% AMI  $59,477  $73,428  $66,452 
101‐120% AMI  $74,162  $88,114  $81,138 
121‐150% AMI  $88,848  $110,142  $99,495 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    51 
<<Exhibits - Page >>85



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Appendix G 
PROPOSED 2009‐2010 OCHA BUDGET  

AND JURISDICTIONAL STAFF CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

 Total Estimated Budget (OCHA Staff, Start Up, 2010 operations)  1/3 distributions by jurisdictions 

Payroll  Estimated Total  Ouray   Ridgway   Ouray County 

Worker's Compensation  $500   $167   $167   $167  

Medicare  $800   $266   $266   $266  

Retirement Benefit          

Health Insurance (medical, dental, vision)          

State Unemployment Tax (SUTA)  $300   $100   $100   $100  

Total Payroll (less services)  $1,600   $533   $533   $533  
         

1st year Capital Investments (2010)  Estimated Total  Ouray   Ridgway   Ouray County 

Office Space and Supplies             

Desk and Chair  $500   $167   $167   $167  

Phone, Long Distance Services, Fax, Copier  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Postage  $300   $100   $100   $100  

Misc Office Supplies & Expenses  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Purchase Checks  $100   $33   $33   $33  

Computer Related Investments             

Computer Hard & Software, Installation & Setup  $1,250   $416   $416   $416  

Internet Setup and Service (DSL) incl email  $200   $67   $67   $67  

Website Development Services  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Web Domain Name Purchase  $40   $13   $13   $13  

Purchase Financial Mgmt System (Q‐books)  $350   $117   $117   $117  

Misc Expenditures             

IGA Amendments (change request, record fees)  $480   $160   $160   $160  

Total Capital Investments  $6,220   $2,071   $2,071   $2,071  
         

Annual Operating Expenses  Estimated Total  Ouray   Ridgway   Ouray County 

Insurance (D&O, General Liability)  $3,000   $999   $999   $999  

Equipment Maintenance & Repair  $500   $167   $167   $167  

Software Support Services  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Web Domain Annual Rental Fees  $15   $5   $5   $5  

Website Hosting ($300/yr) and Maintenance  $1,500   $500   $500   $500  

Email Annual Rental Fees  $60   $20   $20   $20  

Annual Internet Service Provider Fees  $600   $200   $200   $200  

Financial Audit (annual)  $6,000   $1,998   $1,998   $1,998  

Board Education & Training  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Staff Education & Training  $1,000   $333   $333   $333  

Rees Consulting, Inc.    52 
<<Exhibits - Page >>86



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

Office Space, Storage, Cleaning  $6,000   $1,998   $1,998   $1,998  

PO Box Rental Fees  $78   $26   $26   $26  

Legal Services  $5,000   $1,665   $1,665   $1,665  

Dues and Memberships  $500   $167   $167   $167  

Total Operating Expenses  $26,253   $8,742   $8,742   $8,742  
         

Service Fees/ Program Development  Estimated Total  Ouray   Ridgway   Ouray County 

Rehabilitation and Weatherization  $5,700   $1,898   $1,898   $1,898  

Rehabilitation and Weatherization Grant Match  $25,000   $8,325   $8,325   $8,325  

IZ, Linkage Fees and Incentives  $10,620   $3,536   $3,536   $3,536  

Linkage Fee Study Grant Match  $2,000   $666   $666   $666  

Homebuyer & Renter Education and Outreach  $1,560   $519   $519   $519  

Promotional Materials and Handouts for Outreach  $250   $83   $83   $83  

Total Program Services  $45,130   $15,028   $15,028   $15,028  
         

Estimated Budget Total (2010):  $79,203   $26,375   $26,375   $26,375  

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    53 
<<Exhibits - Page >>87



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 
Estimated Hours and Expenditures for OCHA Staff Services (2009 ‐ 2010)  Hours/Year  Estimated Cost 

Grants       

Complete & Submit Grant/Loan Applications: Rehab  10  $300  

Administer Rehab Revolving Loan or Grant Fund  45  $1,350  

Complete & Submit Grant Applications: Linkage Study  10  $300  

Administer Linkage Fee Grant Funds  30  $900  

Financial Management       

Setup Financial Management System  8  $480  

Maintain Financial Management System  208  $6,240  

Establish Bank Acct & Fee Collection System  10  $300  

Marketing and Outreach       

Public Relations  36  $1,080  

Assist with Web Site development and updates  24  $720  

Annual Reporting  16  $480  

Amendments to IGA  16  $480  

Board Meeting Support Services  36  $1,080  

Program Development: Rehab & Weatherization       

Set Up Program  80  $2,400  

Marketing, Outreach, Public Education  104  $3,120  

Develop Unit Tracking System  6  $180  

Program Development: IZ, Linkage Fees, Incentives       

Draft Code: Inclusionary Zoning  96  $2,880  

Facilitate Linkage Fees study w/contractor  16  $960  

Draft Code: Linkage Fees  32  $960  

Draft Code: Development Incentives  32  $960  

Develop Deed Restrictions/Administrative Guidelines  80  $2,400  

Develop Unit Tracking System  6  $180  

Annual Update of Income, Home Prices, Fees In Lieu  8  $240  

Development Review / Negotiation  48  $1,440  

Applicant Prequalification/ Qualification/ Selection  20  $600  

Program Development: Homebuyer and Renter Education & Outreach 

Establish Resources for Housing Assistance  4  $120  

Update Resources for Housing Assistance  2  $60  

Identify Speakers, Set Agenda, Manage Event  40  $1,200  

Event Promotion (fliers, PR, etc.)  6  $180  

     

Estimated Staff Totals 2009/ 2010:  1029  $31,590  

     

Assumed hourly wage staff person:  $30    

Assumed hourly wage for Contract Services:  $60    

Rees Consulting, Inc.    54 
<<Exhibits - Page >>88



    Final Plan 6/22/09 

 

Estimated Jurisdictional Staff Administration Hours  Total Est. 
Hours  Ouray   Ridgway  

Ouray 
County 

IZ Code Drafting (2009)  24  8  8  8 

Linkage Fee Code Drafting (2010)  24  8  8  8 

Housing Rehab & Weatherization Program Assistance  60  20  20  20 

Grant Writing / Grant Assistance  15  5  5  5 

General Organizational Development  30  10  10  10 

Total Staff Administration Hours (2009 ‐ 2010)  153  51  51  51 

 

Rees Consulting, Inc.    55 
<<Exhibits - Page >>89



 

 

 
 
 
Regional Housing Needs Assessment 
Ouray and San Miguel Counties 
 
 
 
 
September 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
RRC Associates and Rees Consulting, Inc. 
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>90

hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 8



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  

Table of Contents 
 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Purpose of the Study ................................................................................................................................. 1 

Area Covered ............................................................................................................................................ 1 

Organization of the Report ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Acknowledgments ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

Abbreviations ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

Sources and Methodology ........................................................................................................................ 4 

1. Economic and Demographic Framework .............................................................................................. 6 

A. Population Estimates and Characteristics ......................................................................................... 6 

2010 Census Estimates ......................................................................................................................... 6 

5- and 10-Year Trends in Population .................................................................................................... 7 

Population Forecasts ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Number and Size of Households ........................................................................................................... 8 

Household Composition ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Income Levels ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

B. Economic Indicators ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Job Estimates ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

Jobs/Housing Relationship .................................................................................................................. 15 

Employment ........................................................................................................................................ 15 

Employment by Industry ..................................................................................................................... 18 

Employment Patterns ......................................................................................................................... 19 

Employees per Household .................................................................................................................. 21 

Wages .................................................................................................................................................. 22 

Seasonality in Employment ................................................................................................................. 23 

Employment Projections ..................................................................................................................... 24 

C. Commuting ......................................................................................................................................... 26 

Where Employees Live ........................................................................................................................ 26 

Where Residents Work ....................................................................................................................... 27 

Where Employees Want to Live .......................................................................................................... 28 

Commuter Characteristics .................................................................................................................. 29 

Mode of Travel .................................................................................................................................... 31 

2.  Housing Inventory ............................................................................................................................... 34 

Number of Housing Units – Total and Occupied .................................................................................... 34 

Primary/Vacation Home Relationship .................................................................................................... 35 

Rate of Growth in Housing Units ............................................................................................................ 36 

Tenure ..................................................................................................................................................... 36 

Unit Type ................................................................................................................................................. 37 

Bedrooms ................................................................................................................................................ 38 

<<Exhibits - Page >>91



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  

Age of Housing ........................................................................................................................................ 38 

Deed/Occupancy-Restricted Housing Inventory..................................................................................... 39 

Ouray County ...................................................................................................................................... 39 

San Miguel County .................................................................................................................................. 40 

Bedroom Mix – Deed Restricted Units ............................................................................................... 44 

Deed-Restricted Units – Approved but Not Built ................................................................................ 46 

Employer-Assisted Housing .................................................................................................................... 47 

Section 8 Vouchers ................................................................................................................................. 47 

3A .  Homeownership Market Conditions ................................................................................................... 48 

Historical Residential Sales ..................................................................................................................... 49 

Number of Units Sold .......................................................................................................................... 49 

Market Prices ...................................................................................................................................... 50 

Deed-Restricted Sales ......................................................................................................................... 52 

Availability of Homes .............................................................................................................................. 56 

Deed-Restricted Listings ..................................................................................................................... 61 

3 B. Rental Market Conditions .................................................................................................................... 62 

Number of Rental Units .......................................................................................................................... 63 

Rental Units by Type ............................................................................................................................... 63 

Rents ....................................................................................................................................................... 64 

Deed/Occupancy-Restricted Rentals ...................................................................................................... 66 

Apartment Complexes ............................................................................................................................ 67 

Rental Vacancies ..................................................................................................................................... 70 

4.  Housing Problems ............................................................................................................................... 72 

Opinions about Workforce Housing ....................................................................................................... 72 

Satisfaction with Housing........................................................................................................................ 74 

Current Housing Conditions .................................................................................................................... 77 

Affordability ............................................................................................................................................ 79 

Have Moved or Plan to Move ................................................................................................................. 82 

Housing-Related Employment Problems ................................................................................................ 83 

Perceptions ......................................................................................................................................... 84 

Impacts of Recession........................................................................................................................... 84 

Work Performance .............................................................................................................................. 85 

Unfilled Jobs ........................................................................................................................................ 86 

Foreclosures ............................................................................................................................................ 87 

5.  Special Needs ...................................................................................................................................... 91 

Seniors ..................................................................................................................................................... 91 

Spanish-Speaking Population .................................................................................................................. 95 

Very Low Income Residents .................................................................................................................... 96 

6. Housing Gaps and Estimated Need ......................................................................................................... 97 

Housing Gaps .......................................................................................................................................... 97 

Rental Gaps ......................................................................................................................................... 97 

Gaps in Homeownership ..................................................................................................................... 98 

<<Exhibits - Page >>92



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  

Need for Additional Units ....................................................................................................................... 99 

Current Shortfall ................................................................................................................................. 99 

Additional Demand by 2015 ............................................................................................................. 101 

Project-Specific Housing Demand ......................................................................................................... 103 

Housing Demand from Existing Residents ............................................................................................ 104 

Housing-Related Preferences................................................................................................................ 107 

Location ............................................................................................................................................. 107 

Unit Type ........................................................................................................................................... 108 

Bedrooms and Bathrooms ................................................................................................................ 109 

Amenities .......................................................................................................................................... 110 

7. Key Findings and Conclusions ............................................................................................................... 113 

Overview ............................................................................................................................................... 113 

Economic and Demographic Framework .............................................................................................. 114 

Population Estimates and Characteristics ......................................................................................... 114 

The Economy ..................................................................................................................................... 115 

Jobs/Housing Relationship and Commuting ..................................................................................... 115 

Housing Inventory ................................................................................................................................. 116 

Homeownership Market Conditions ..................................................................................................... 117 

Market Sales and Prices .................................................................................................................... 117 

Deed-Restricted Sales and Prices ...................................................................................................... 118 

Free Market Availability and Costs ................................................................................................... 118 

Deed-Restricted Availability and Costs ............................................................................................. 119 

Rental Market Analysis ......................................................................................................................... 119 

Housing Problems ................................................................................................................................. 121 

Perceptions ....................................................................................................................................... 121 

Physical Conditions ........................................................................................................................... 121 

Affordability ...................................................................................................................................... 121 

Forced to Move ................................................................................................................................. 122 

Employment-Related Problems ........................................................................................................ 122 

Foreclosures ...................................................................................................................................... 122 

Special Needs ........................................................................................................................................ 122 

Gaps and Estimated Needs ................................................................................................................... 123 

Gaps between Housing Costs and Incomes ...................................................................................... 123 

Need for Units to Address Shortfall .................................................................................................. 124 

Additional Demand by 2015 ............................................................................................................. 125 

Demand from Existing Residents ...................................................................................................... 125 

Housing-Related Preferences ............................................................................................................ 126 

Development Opportunities ................................................................................................................. 126 

8. Community Resources and Financial Tools ........................................................................................... 128 

Local Housing Programs ........................................................................................................................ 128 

Mortgage Availability ............................................................................................................................ 131 

Down Payment Assistance .................................................................................................................... 134 

<<Exhibits - Page >>93



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  

Homebuyer Education .......................................................................................................................... 134 

Housing Rehabilitation and Weatherization ......................................................................................... 135 

9.  Action Plan ........................................................................................................................................ 136 

A. Opinions about Affordable Housing ............................................................................................. 136 

Comments from Key Stakeholders ................................................................................................... 136 

Comments from Employers .............................................................................................................. 137 

Comments from Households ............................................................................................................ 137 

B. Analyst’s Recommendations ......................................................................................................... 139 

C. Affordable Housing Development Model ..................................................................................... 141 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>94



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 1 

Introduction 
 

Purpose of the Study 
 

The San Miguel Regional Housing Authority sponsored this comprehensive analysis of housing needs in 

both San Miguel and Ouray counties with funding from a grant awarded to San Miguel County.  The 

primary objectives of this study are: 

 

• To update the gap between current affordable housing options and the number and type 
needed by households in both counties; 
 

• To provide a means to test absorption scenarios for the purpose of planning and constructing 
the right type and quantity of affordable housing; 

 
• To define the impacts of the commuter population into both counties from adjacent 

communities; and 
 

• To recommend strategies to guide decision making regarding the removal of regulatory barriers, 
resource allocation and development, and local policy/program changes. 
 

Area Covered 
 

This report covers all of Ouray and San Miguel counties.  The term “San Miguel Balance” refers to the 

unincorporated areas of the county plus the small municipalities of Ophir and Sawpit. 

 

Organization of the Report 
 

This study is being funded by a grant from the Colorado Division of Housing and conforms to the 

Division’s template for content and format.  It is organized into nine sections as follows: 

1. Economic and Demographic Framework, which provides population and household estimates, 

examines growth and describes the demographics of households in Ouray and San Miguel 

Counties, and includes data on number of jobs, growth in jobs, wages paid and commuting. 

 

2. Housing Inventory, which provides information on the number, type, occupancy/use, tenure, 

size, growth rate and ownership of housing units in Ouray and San Miguel Counties.   

3A.  Homeownership Market Analysis, which considers the number of sales, historic and current 

home prices and the availability of homes by price and area.  

3B. Rental Market Analysis, which covers the inventory of rental units, rents and vacancy rates.    

<<Exhibits - Page >>95



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 2 

4. Housing Problems, which examines perceptions, satisfaction levels, affordability, physical 

conditions, employment-related housing problems and foreclosures.   
 

5. Special Needs, which provides information on seniors, Spanish-speaking residents and very low 

income households. 
 

6. Housing Gaps and Estimated Need, which examines the price gaps in both rental and ownership 

housing and forecasts housing demand by 2015 based on three scenarios for job growth.   

Information is also provided on the housing-related preferences of residents. 
 

7. Conclusions 
 

8. Community Resources and Financial Tools, which considers down payment assistance, mortgage 

availability, homebuyer education, and local housing programs including sources of revenue and 

land availability.  
 

9. Action Plan Input and Analyst’s Recommendations, which provides public comments about 

housing, analyst’s recommendations and an Excel-based model used to estimate the number of 

units that will likely be produced to meet identified needs.  

 

The appendices contain survey samples, comments received from the employer and household surveys, 

calculation of affordable prices for all income levels, and detailed data by community on homes listed 

for sale. 

 

Acknowledgments 
 

This study was directed by a task force with representatives from participating jurisdictions.  Members 

of this task force include: 

 

Lynn Black, San Miguel County 

Jennifer Coates, Town of Ridgway 

Shirley Diaz, San Miguel Regional Housing Authority 

Mike Fedel, Ouray County 

John Ferguson, City of Ouray 

Lance McDonald, Town of Telluride 

Lynn Padgett, Ouray County 

Greg Sparks, Town of Mountain Village 

Kerry Welch, Town of Norwood 

 

Interviews were conducted of town and county staff, mortgage lenders, realtors, property managers, 

transit operators, major employers and non-profit organizations to obtain information relevant to this 

study. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>96



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 3 

Persons interviewed include:  

 

Mike Bard 

Lynn Beck 

John Bennett 

Lynn Black 

Yvette Booth 

Patty Brenneis 

Nick Bullen 

Mark Castrodale 

Jennifer Coates 

Jean Casolari 

Mike Davenport 

Teddy Errico 

Mike Fedel 

Allen Gerstle 

Roxanne Grammer 

Chris Hawkins 

Ryan Hein 

Diane Kipfer 

Nina Kothe 

Lance McDonald 

Sheryl Miller 

Don Mitchell 

Ginger Perkins 

Dave Riley 

Jim Riley 

Dave Ramirez 

Jo Rosenquist 

Sue Rovito 

Mike Rozycki 

Kiera Skinner 

Luke Skinner 

Colleen Trout 

Jason White 

DeLanie Young 

Daniel Zemke 

 

Abbreviations 
 

Abbreviations used in this report include: 

 

ACS – American Community Survey 

AMI -- Area Median Income 

CDOH -- Colorado Division of Housing 

CHFA – Colorado Housing and Finance Authority 

DOLA – Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

HUD – US Department of Housing and Urban Development 

QCEW -- Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages 

SMRHA – San Miguel Regional Housing Authority 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>97



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 4 

Sources and Methodology 
 

Four distinct surveys were conducted to generate information for this needs assessment: 

 

1. Household Survey, which was either mailed to all households in the two counties for which 
addresses could be obtained or hung on the doors of apartment units in all major complexes.  A 
total of 1,190 responses were received. The 323 responses from Ouray County represented 16% 
of the households in the county.  The 767 responses from San Miguel County represented 22% 
of the county’s households. 
 

Household Survey Responses 

 

 # Responses % Responses 

Ouray 69 6.0 

Ridgway 147 12.9 

Ouray County - unincorporated 107 9.4 

Ouray County Total 323 28.3 

   

Ilium, Ophir, Placerville, Sawpit 97 8.5 

Lawson Hill 53 4.6 

Mountain Village 131 11.5 

Norwood 124 10.8 

Telluride 267 23.4 

San Miguel County - unincorporated 95 8.3 

San Miguel County Total 767 67.1 

   

Other 53 4.6 

Total 1,143 100% 

Missing 47  

Total 1,190  
 

 

 

2. Employer Survey, a web-based survey which employers of all types are requested to complete 
through email notifications by chambers of commerce and the SMRHA.  A total of 88 responses 
were received, representing 3,014 peak season employees. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>98



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 5 

Employer Survey Responses 

 

Employer Survey Ouray County San Miguel Co. Total 

# Employer Responses 19 67 88 

# Full Time Employees 328 1,388 1,716 

# Peak Season Employees 63 1,235 1,298 

# Total Employees 391 2623 3,014 

 
 

3. Commuter Survey distributed on commuter vans and buses, at employee parking lots and at 
construction sites to gain crucial information on employees who commute for work and the 
impact they have on housing demand.  A total of 123 responses were received through this 
survey.  These responses were merged with responses from commuters who completed the 
household survey to analyze commuting.   

 
Commuter Survey Responses 

 

Place of Residence % Responses 

Montrose 39.0 

Norwood 22.8 

Other 12.2 

Ophir/Rico/Dolores/Cortez 8.9 

Ridgway 6.5 

Ouray 5.7 

Telluride/Mountain Village/Lawson Hill 4.1 

Nucla/Naturita 0.8 

 100% 

n = 123 

 
 

4. Key Participant Survey in which elected officials and members of the community who have an 
interest in housing provided input through an on-line survey key to the development of viable 
solutions to housing needs.   

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>99



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 6 

1. Economic and Demographic Framework 
 

This section of the report is divided into three main parts: 

 

A. Population Estimates and Characteristics; 

B. Economic Indicators; and 

C. Commuting. 

 

A. Population Estimates and Characteristics 
 

2010 Census Estimates 

 

According to the 2010 Census, 11,795 residents live in the two-county region.  San Miguel County has 

62% of the population while Ouray County has 38%.   Many of the region’s residents reside in rural 

unincorporated areas.  Nearly 57% of Ouray County’s residents live in the unincorporated area.  In San 

Miguel County, relatively fewer residents reside in unincorporated areas but, at 41%, the population in 

rural areas is larger than in any of the five municipalities.   

 

2010 Population Estimates by County and Municipality 

 

 Population % of County % of Regional 
Total 

OURAY COUNTY 4,436 100% 37.6% 

Ouray 1,000 22.5% 8.5% 

Ridgway 924 20.8% 7.8% 

Unincorp. Area 2,512 56.6% 21.3% 

    

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 7,359 100% 62.4% 

Mountain Village 1,320 17.9% 11.2% 

Norwood 518 7.0% 4.4% 

Ophir 159 2.2% 1.3% 

Sawpit 40 0.5% 0.3% 

Telluride 2,325 31.6% 19.7% 

Unincorp. Area 2,997 40.7% 25.4% 

    

Total 2 County Region 11,795  100.0% 

Source: 2010 Census 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>100



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 7 

Telluride is the largest community, Mountain Village is second, and Ouray ranks third followed closely by 

Ridgway.  Norwood is about half the size of Ouray and Ridgway.  The populations of Ophir and Sawpit 

are so small that survey responses from these communities have been combined with responses from 

Illium and Placerville in this report. 

 

5- and 10-Year Trends in Population 

 

Population growth in Ouray County is outpacing San Miguel County – nearly 18% compared to 11% 

between 2000 and 2010.  The following table compares estimates published by the Colorado 

Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) and the US Census.   DOLA’s population estimates for 2007 through 

2010 are higher than reported by the Census for 2010.  DOLA estimates through 2009 indicated that the 

population continued to grow each year.  With job losses and out migration of the labor force, which is 

covered later in this section of the report, population losses likely occurred.   

 

Population Growth 2000 – 2010 

 

Year San Miguel 
County 

Ouray 
County 

2000 Census 6,612 3,769 

2006 DOLA 7,326 4,348 

2007 DOLA 7,601 4,526 

2008 DOLA 7,683 4,710 

2009 DOLA 7,688 4,712 

2010 DOLA 7,897 4,837 

Change 2006 - 2010 7.8% 11.2% 

   

Census 2010                7,359                 4,436  

Change 2000 - 2010 11.3% 17.7% 

Source: DOLA and 2010 Census 

<<Exhibits - Page >>101



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 8 

 

Population Forecasts 

 

DOLA projects the same rates of population growth for Ouray and San Miguel counties through 2015.  

The forecasted rate of 17% growth over the next five years seems high in comparison to the growth that 

occurred during the last 10 years.  Adjustments in these projections are likely now that 2010 Census 

data has been released. 

 

5-Year Population Forecasts 

 

 San Miguel 
County 

Ouray 
County 

2010 7,897 4,837 

2011 8,117 4,972 

2012 8,366 5,137 

2013 8,669 5,307 

2014 8,953 5,485 

2015 9,231 5,651 

Change 2010 - 2015 16.9% 16.8% 

Source: DOLA 

 

Number and Size of Households 

 

As of 2010, a total of 5,476 households resided in the two-county region, 37% or 2,022 households in 

Ouray County and 63% or 3,454 households in San Miguel County.   Households include families, non-

related individuals living together and single persons living alone.  The average household size was 

slightly larger in Ouray County (2.18 persons per unit) than in San Miguel County (2.13 persons per unit). 

Notable variations within the region: 

 

 Households in Mountain Village are generally much smaller than elsewhere in the region (an 

average of 1.76 persons per unit) due to a disproportionately high percentage of studio and one-

bedroom rental units, which is examined in the Housing Inventory section of this report; 

 

 The two smallest municipalities, Norwood and Ophir, have larger households than average for 

the region – 2.41 and 2.69 respectively.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>102



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 9 

 

Households and Average Number of Persons per Household 

 

 Total 
Population 

Group Qtr. 
Population 

Household 
Population 

Occupied 
Housing Units 

Persons per 
Household 

OURAY COUNTY 4436 18 4418 2022 2.18 

Ouray 1000 10 990 457 2.17 

Ridgway 924 0 924 404 2.29 

Unincorp. Area 2512 8 2504 1161 2.16 

      

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 7359 17 7342 3454 2.13 

Mountain Village 1320 0 1320 751 1.76 

Norwood 518 0 518 215 2.41 

Ophir 159 0 159 59 2.69 

Sawpit 40 0 40 18 2.22 

Telluride 2325 0 2325 1086 2.14 

Unincorp. Area 2997 17 2980 1325 2.25 

Sources: 2010 Census for population and occupied housing units; DOLA for population in group quarters; RRC/Rees 

calculations for persons per household. 

 

Household Composition 

 

Household composition varies between the two counties.  In Ouray County, couples without children 

comprise over half of all households. In San Miguel County, relatively more households consist of one 

person living alone and couples with children.  Renters in San Miguel County are far more likely to live 

with unrelated roommates than renters in Ouray County. 

 

Household Composition by County and Own/Rent 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

Adult living alone 16.4 40.4 22.9 21.9 37.9 29.9 

Single parent with child(ren) 2.5 6.7 3.6 4.1 5.6 4.8 

Couple, no child(ren) 64.6 19.2 52.3 38.5 24.1 31.3 

Couple with child(ren) 12.1 24.0 15.4 29.7 12.4 21.1 

Unrelated roommates 1.4 1.0 1.3 3.5 15.3 9.4 

Family members & roommates 0.7 6.7 2.3 0.3 2.4 1.3 

Immediate & extended family  2.1 1.9 2.1 2.0 2.4 2.2 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>103



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 10 

Income Levels 

 

According to HUD, incomes are approximately 20% higher in San Miguel County than Ouray County, and 

the difference between the two is increasing based on a five-year trend.  According to HUD, incomes in 

the region increased in the last five years by 5% in Ouray County and 7.7% in San Miguel County.  

Incomes reported by HUD for 2010 were the same as for 2009.  While it is changing this year, in the past 

it has been HUD’s policy not to report decreases in the area median income since doing so would 

disqualify residents living in units with income restrictions and force apartment properties to lower rents 

under programs like the Low Income housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program and Section 8 rent subsidy 

program.   Because of this practice, income data from the household survey is a more accurate source of 

information, especially during recessionary periods.  

 

Median Family Income by County, 2006 – 2010 

100% AMI for 4-person households 

 

Year Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

2006 $60,300  $71,300  

2007 $60,300  $71,700  

2008 $61,400  $74,000  

2009 $63,300  $76,800  

2010 $63,300  $76,800  

Change 2006 - 2010 5.0% 7.7% 

Source: HUD 

 

According to the household survey, incomes in Ouray County and San Miguel are more closely aligned 

than the HUD estimates indicate.  Separately, renters and owners have higher median and average 

incomes in San Miguel County than in Ouray County but, because there are proportionately more 

owners in Ouray County (73% in Ouray County compared to 50% in San Miguel County), the overall 

median and average figures are higher in Ouray County.   The relationship between the income levels of 

owners and renters in San Miguel County is typical with renters making about half as much as owners 

but in Ouray County, the owners have incomes that are nearly 2.5 times as high as renters.   

 

Household Incomes -- Average and Median 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Average $90,878 $36,943 $74,951 $96,915 $48,672 $71,773 

 Median $75,000 $33,860 $60,000 $80,000 $40,000 $54,137 
Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>104



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 11 

Household Income Distribution 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Less than $10,000   7.9 2.8   5.8 2.9 

$10,000 - $14,999 3.2   2.6 1.8 4.7 3.2 

$15,000 - $24,999 3.8 30.3 11.1 5.9 15.0 10.9 

$25,000 - $34,999 5.0 11.9 7.0 4.2 12.2 8.7 

$35,000 - $49,999 10.4 31.4 15.7 9.4 24.0 17.0 

$50,000 - $74,999 25.7 10.8 21.7 21.4 20.3 20.3 

$75,000 - $99,999 16.9 1.0 12.5 20.2 10.1 14.7 

$100,000 - $149,999 20.2 5.9 15.8 21.1 5.5 13.5 

$150,000 or more 14.9 1.0 10.8 16.0 2.4 8.8 

     TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Household incomes vary by community.  Averages are higher than the medians in every area since they 

are influenced by some homeowners with very high incomes.   Mountain Village has the highest average 

due to some high-income residents but its median income is in line with the rest of San Miguel County.  

Incomes are lowest in Norwood. The median figures are typically the best to use when considering 

housing affordability since they are less influenced by high outliers than averages. 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>105



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 12 

2010 AMI’s by Household Size and County 
 

   Persons in household    
Ouray County 1 2 3 4 5 6 

201% - 250% $111,000 $126,750 $142,500 $158,250 $171,000 $183,750 

151% - 200% $88,800 $101,400 $114,000 $126,600 $136,800 $147,000 

121% - 150% $66,600 $76,050 $85,500 $94,950 $102,600 $110,250 

101% - 120% $53,280 $60,840 $68,400 $75,960 $82,080 $88,200 

81% - 100% $44,400 $50,700 $57,000 $63,300 $68,400 $73,500 

51% - 80% $35,500 $40,550 $45,600 $50,650 $54,700 $58,800 

31% - 50% $22,200 $25,350 $28,500 $31,650 $34,200 $35,750 

≤30% $13,300 $15,200 $17,100 $19,000 $20,550 $22,050 

San Miguel County       

201% - 250% $134,500 $153,750 $173,000 $192,000 $207,500 $222,750 

151% - 200% $107,600 $123,000 $138,400 $153,600 $166,000 $178,200 

121% - 150% $80,700 $92,250 $103,800 $115,200 $124,500 $133,650 

101% - 120% $64,560 $73,800 $83,040 $92,160 $99,600 $106,920 

81% - 100% $53,800 $61,500 $69,200 $76,800 $83,000 $89,100 

51% - 80% $43,050 $49,200 $55,350 $61,450 $66,400 $71,300 

31% - 50% $26,900 $30,750 $34,600 $38,400 $41,500 $44,550 

≤30% $16,150 $18,450 $20,750 $23,050 $24,900 $26,750 

Source: HUD/CHFA 
 

HUD’s AMI figures for 2010 were applied to household survey data to generate estimates of the 

percentage of households in both counties that fall into standard AMI categories.  The results are similar 

in both counties.  Renters are far more likely to have incomes in the lower ranges than are owners.   
  

Households by AMI 
 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
AMI Categories Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

30% or less 3.2 13.9 6.7 4.2 13.7 9.0 

30.1% - 50% 4.7 24.6 10.9 6.2 15.1 11.4 

50.1% - 80% 11.4 37.7 18.1 9.8 33.9 22.1 

80.1% - 100% 11.7 14.9 12.2 16.5 9.7 12.7 

100.1 to 120% 7.6 1.0 5.6 10.8 9.2 9.7 

120.1 to 150% 15.1 1.0 11.6 15.5 10.7 12.8 

150.1% - 200% 16.4 5.0 13.3 20.0 3.2 11.7 

200.1% - 250% 11.7 1.0 8.5 5.9 3.0 4.5 

More than 250% 18.2 1.0 13.1 11.0 1.6 6.1 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>106



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 13 

 

Note that the distribution is not evenly divided at 100% AMI.  This is primarily due to the application of 

HUD AMI’s, which are based on median family incomes, to all households, family and non family. 

Roughly half of the households in both counties report that their income has stayed about the same 

since the economic boom of 2007/08.  Nearly 42% in San Miguel County and 39% in Ouray County 

report that their income has decreased.   

 

Changes in Household Income since 2007/08 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Stayed the same 61.3 29.6 52.4 46.9 49.2 47.9 

Increased 8.1 8.4 8.3 8.9 11.5 10.2 

Decreased 30.5 62.0 39.3 44.2 39.3 41.8 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

The decreases in income were sizeable.  The average amount of the drop was approximately $33,000 in 

Ouray County and $43,000 in San Miguel County. 

 

Decreases in Household Income, Averages and by Range 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Under $1,000 11.4 2.6 7.3   2.2 1.1 

$1,000 - $4,999 8.3   4.5 3.6 1.4 2.9 

$5,000 - $9,999 9.1 17.6 13.1 5.1 20.7 12.6 

$10,000 - $49,999 50.5 64.7 56.8 55.6 57.5 56.9 

$50,000 or more 20.6 15.1 18.3 35.7 18.3 26.6 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average Decrease $37,013 $28,262 $33,086 $56,844 $29,956 $43,012 

Source: Household survey 

 

B. Economic Indicators 
 

When reviewing the following estimates for jobs and employment, please note that the estimates are 

not the same type of measurement and are not interchangeable.  Employment and related measures 

including labor force and unemployment are based on where employees live.  Job estimates, however, 

are based on the location of employment.  The two measurements generally track but are not the same 

due to commuting in both directions.  Both estimates are only available at the county level. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>107



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 14 

Job Estimates 

 

The average job count in 2010 was approximately 8,590 in the two-county region.  Of these, 27% were 

in Ouray County and 73% were in San Miguel County.  The number of jobs has declined nearly 17% since 

peaking in 2007.  Ouray County was hardest hit in relative terms by the recession’s impact on jobs with a 

loss of 573 jobs, which equated to a drop of 20%.  San Miguel County lost 1,155 jobs, a decrease of 

15.5%. 
  

Total Estimated Jobs by County, 2006 – 2010 
 

 Ouray Co. San Miguel Co. Total 
2006 2,769 7,019 9,788 

2007 2,865 7,454 10,319 

2008 2,846 7,197 10,043 

2009 2,549 6,527 9,076 

2010 2,292 6,299 8,590 

Change 2007-2010 -573 
20.0% 

-1,155 
15.5% 

-1,729 
16.8% 

Source: DOLA for 2006 – 2009; Rees calculation for 2010 based on percentage change in 

employment from Colorado Dept of Labor & Employment. 

 

Of employers surveyed, 32% in Ouray County reported that the number of persons they employed 

decreased since the 2007/08 peak.  In San Miguel County, 43% reported fewer employees.  On average, 

the number of employees decreased by 18% in Ouray County and 31% in San Miguel County.   A few of 

the employers surveyed reported increases in the number of persons they employed during the past 

three years. 
 

Employer Reports on Changes in Jobs 
 

  Ouray Co. San Miguel Co. 

Stayed about the same 53% 45% 

Decreased by approximately __ % 32% 43% 

Increased by approximately __ % 16% 12% 

  100% 100% 

Amount Decreased   

Less than 10% 50% 24% 

11% to 25% 17% 24% 

26% to 50% 33% 41% 

51% to 75%   7% 

More than 25%   3% 

Average 18% 31% 

Source: Employer survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>108



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 15 

Jobs/Housing Relationship 

 

The ratio of total jobs to occupied housing units is used to examine the balance or lack thereof between 

housing and jobs.  High numbers indicate there are too many jobs relative to the number of housing 

units and typically represent the need to import workers.  Low numbers indicate what is often termed 

“bedroom communities” where more residents live than work and residents commute out for jobs. 

The relationship between jobs and housing varies between the two counties.  

 

The ratios show that San Miguel County is an employee importing area where there are more jobs for 

employees than housing.  Ouray County has a ratio that indicates the number of housing units should 

probably be sufficient for its employees not taking into account that employees who work in other 

counties reside in Ouray County.  Montrose and Pitkin counties are used for comparison.  Montrose 

represents a typical relationship between housing and jobs where commuting in relative terms is 

limited.  Pitkin County represents an imbalance where there are too few occupied housing units relative 

to jobs. 

 

Jobs to Housing Ratio 

 

 Total Jobs Occupied Housing Units Jobs to Housing Ratio 

Ouray County 2,292 2,022 1.13 jobs:unit 

San Miguel County 6,299 3,454 1.82 jobs:unit 

2-County Region 8,590 5,476 1.57 jobs:unit 

    

Comparisons    

Montrose County 19,802 16,484 1.20 jobs:unit 

Pitkin County 16,822 8,152 2.06 jobs:unit 
Sources: DOLA for jobs, 2010 Census for occupied housing units. 

 

Employment 

 

From 2000 through 2007 the size of the labor force and the number of residents employed increased in 

both counties.  The peak year in both counties for employment and the labor force was also 2007.  Since 

then, employment has decreased as has the size of the labor force, an indication of out migration when 

residents were unable to find work.  Compared to peak levels, in 2010: 

 

 In San Miguel County, an average of 839 fewer residents were employed, the labor force shrunk 

by 662 and the unemployment rate more than doubled to 7.2%. 

 

 The trends were the same in Ouray County with 553 fewer residents employed, a drop in the 

labor force of 450 and a rise in unemployment to 7.6%. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>109



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 16 

Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment Estimates, 2000 – 2010 

 

Ouray County Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment 
Rate (%) 

2000 2,203 2,145 58 2.6 

2001 2,338 2,269 69 3.0 

2002 2,443 2,343 100 4.1 

2003 2,446 2,336 110 4.5 

2004 2,679 2,570 109 4.1 

2005 2,961 2,857 104 3.5 

2006 3,044 2,947 97 3.2 

2007 3,086 2,992 94 3.0 

2008 3,030 2,917 113 3.7 

2009 2,884 2,713 171 5.9 

2010 2,636 2,439 197 7.6 

Change: 
2007 - 2010 

450 553 -103 -5 

     

San Miguel 
County 

Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment 
Rate (%) 

2000 4,734 4,592 142 3.0 

2001 4,930 4,742 188 3.8 

2002 5,041 4,787 254 5.0 

2003 4,928 4,650 278 5.6 

2004 5,041 4,799 242 4.8 

2005 5,260 5,032 228 4.3 

2006 5,510 5,319 191 3.5 

2007 5,717 5,533 184 3.2 

2008 5,542 5,326 216 3.9 

2009 5,192 4,864 328 6.3 

2010 5,055 4,694 361 7.2 

Change: 
2007-2010 

662 839 -177 -4 

Source: Colorado Dept of Labor and Employment 

 

The recession in 2008 impacted both counties in ways not felt in the past two decades.  While there 

were periods of flat growth during the past 20 years, 2008 was the first time since the 1980’s that 

employment declined in Ouray County.   Employment exhibited the same general pattern in San Miguel 

County but was more volatile with small drops in employment in 1996 and 2003.   

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>110



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 17 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

201020092008200720062005200420032002200120001999199819971996199519941993199219911990

Ouray County Annual Employment  and Unemployment

Employment Unemployment

Source: LAUS
 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

201020092008200720062005200420032002200120001999199819971996199519941993199219911990

San Miguel County Annual Employment and Unemployment

Employment Unemployment

Source: LAUS
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>111



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 18 

Employment by Industry 

 

The recession did not impact all sectors of the economy the same.  Job losses were greatest in 

construction, finance, real estate, accommodations/food service and wholesale trade.  Sectors that 

experienced gains included education, the arts and health services.  Data also showed gains in 

government jobs in Ouray County through 2009 and in San Miguel County through 2008 but a decrease 

in 2009.  The decline in government jobs continued into 2010 with cuts in municipal, county and school 

district employment.  

 

In Ouray County, the largest employment sector in 2009 was Accommodations and Food Service.  The 

number of jobs in this sector decreased nearly 29% between 2005 and 2009.  Construction had led with 

the most jobs in 2007 and 2008 but the number of construction-related jobs dropped 25% in one year 

between 2008 and 2009.   

 

Ouray County Estimated Jobs by Industry 

 

 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Change 
2005 - 2009 

Estimated Total Jobs 2,584 2,769 2,865 2,846 2,549 -1.35% 

Accommodations & Food Service 579 537 521 484 413 -28.67% 

Agriculture * 127 118 118 114 N/A 

Arts 68 89 73 101 103 51.47% 

Construction * 484 531 537 404 N/A 

Finance activities 52 74 82 75 69 32.69% 

Government 329 359 375 384 388 17.93% 

Health Services 82 92 96 100 104 26.83% 

Information 32 35 30 34 17 -46.88% 

Manufacturing 47 55 50 46 55 17.02% 

Mining 6 4 3 13 11 83.33% 

Other services 157 174 172 168 159 1.27% 

Professional and business services 173 * 281 218 224 29.48% 

Real estate 158 * 136 161 139 -12.03% 

Retail Trade 219 258 262 266 237 8.22% 

Transportation and warehousing 8 15 12 24 11 37.50% 

Wholesale trade 21 * 28 21 18 -14.29% 

Source: DOLA  

 

In San Miguel County, estimates indicate a loss of 376 construction jobs since the peak, which equates 

to a 29% drop (from 1,303 jobs in 2007 to 927 in 2009).  The total construction job estimate and the 

number of jobs lost were likely understated since some of the workers employed by out-of-town 

contractors were probably reported as employed in the company’s home county.  The percentage 

<<Exhibits - Page >>112



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 19 

decline was in line with statewide trends as reported in the March 15, 2011 Denver Business Journal.  

The article cited the Associated General Contractors of America for figures showing that employment in 

the construction industry in Colorado dropped 33% between January 2007 and 2011. 

 

San Miguel County Estimated Jobs by Industry 

 

 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Change 
2005 - 2009 

Estimated Total Jobs 6,819 7,019 7,454 7,197 6,527 -4.28% 

Accommodation and food 1,142 1,112 1,059 1,059 1,040 -8.93% 

Arts * * 643 531 537 N/A 

Construction 1,089 1,211 1,303 1,248 927 -14.88% 

Education 96 92 103 130 124 29.17% 

Finance activities 152 132 131 129 107 -29.61% 

Government 789 814 839 851 836 5.96% 

Health Services 217 212 225 244 240 10.60% 

Information * 125 151 139 117 N/A 

Manufacturing 132 134 179 147 123 -6.82% 

Mining 121 129 175 133 67 -44.63% 

Other services 471 494 485 525 523 11.04% 

Professional and business services 411 436 484 426 395 -3.89% 

Real estate 627 675 695 619 569 -9.25% 

Retail Trade 486 522 527 529 462 -4.94% 

Transportation and warehousing 55 53 55 64 55 0.00% 

Wholesale trade 42 39 34 37 31 -26.19% 

*Estimates not disclosed.  Estimates by sector do not equal total estimated jobs since some sectors are not disclosed. 

 

Employment Patterns 

 

The household survey asked a series of questions about employment, retirement, number of jobs held 

and employment characteristics.   

 

The vast majority of households in San Miguel County include at least one person who is employed.  

Overall, less than 7% of households do not include an employee.  In Ouray County, nearly 17% of 

households do not have employees.  Owner households are more likely than renters to have no 

employees.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>113



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 20 

Persons Employed in Household 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

# of 
Employees 

Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

0 24.0 1.2 16.9 11.6 1.7 6.6 

1 35.9 69.8 46.4 34.6 49.3 42.0 

2 38.0 29.1 35.3 50.8 41.1 45.9 

3 2.1 0.0 1.4 3.0 7.9 5.5 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Ouray County has proportionately more retirees than San Miguel County – 27% of households include at 

least one retired member compared with 10% in San Miguel County. 

 

Persons Retired in Household 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
# of Retirees Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

0 62.3 97.7 73.3 83.7 95.7 89.7 

1 21.5 1.2 15.2 10.6 4.3 7.5 

2 16.2 1.2 11.6 5.6 0.0 2.8 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Multiple job holding is common in both counties.  Of persons who work, approximately 28% in Ouray 

County and 25% in San Miguel County hold two or more jobs.  On average, persons who work hold 1.26 

jobs in Ouray County and 1.31 jobs in San Miguel County.   These figures are important because they are 

used to calculate housing demand generated by jobs.  They include full- and part-time jobs; they do not 

represent full-time equivalents (FTE’s).   Dividing total annual average jobs by the average number of 

jobs held per employee results in an estimate of 1,819 employees working in Ouray County and 4,808 

employees working in San Miguel County. 

 

The number of jobs held is in line with other mountain resort communities where the average usually 

falls between 1.2 and 1.3.  The averages are higher than reported for the Telluride region in 2000 when 

the average for the ski season was 1.23 jobs per employee.  

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>114



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 21 

Jobs Held, Total and Average 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

Total Jobs Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

1 78.7 72.5 77.7 77.2 71.1 74.8 

2 18.8 21.7 19.1 19.2 23.9 20.8 

3 2.5 2.9 2.5 2.4 3.9 3.1 

4   2.9 0.7 1.2 0.6 1.1 

5         0.6 0.2 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average 1.24 1.36 1.26 1.27 1.36 1.31 

Source: Household survey 

 

The household survey asked participants to indicate which, if any, of the following described their 

employment.  As has been known but not well documented, 31% of Ouray County’s employees and 28% 

of San Miguel County’s employees are primarily self employed.  

 

Employment Characteristics 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

I am primarily self-employed 28.4 38.3 30.5 27.4 28.6 27.8 

I work primarily/ exclusively out of my home 17.4 15.7 17.0 12.7 14.0 13.2 

I work as much as I want to work 26.4 40.6 29.3 18.4 55.1 31.0 

I am under-employed & need additional work 8.4 73.0 21.6 6.2 26.0 13.0 

None of the above/Missing 52.4 32.6 48.3 16.6 20.9 18.1 

Total 133.0 200.2 146.7 81.3 144.6 103.1 

Source: Household survey.  Multiple response question; total exceeds 100%. 

 

Nearly 22% of employees surveyed in Ouray County indicated they are under employed and need 

additional work.  This percentage was significantly smaller in San Miguel County (13%).  Renters were far 

more likely than owners to be in need of additional work. 

 

Employees per Household 

 

In Ouray County there are 1.2 employees on average per household when all households are considered 

and 1.5 when only households with employees are included.  In San Miguel County, where there are 

relatively fewer retirees, the averages are 1.5 for all households and 1.6 for employee households.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>115



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 22 

Employees per Household 
 

Employees per Ouray County San Miguel County 
All Households Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

None/Missing 23.9 1.7 17.8 11.6 1.6 6.4 

1 35.9 69.4 45.8 34.4 49.4 41.8 

2 38.0 28.9 35.0 50.9 41.2 46.5 

3 2.1   1.4 3.1 7.8 5.3 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average # 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.5 

Employee Households Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

1 47.2 70.6 55.7 38.9 50.2 44.7 

2 50.0 29.4 42.6 57.5 41.9 49.6 

3 2.8   1.7 3.6 7.9 5.7 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average # 1.6 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 

Source: Household survey 

 

Wages 
 

Wages are nearly 20% higher in San Miguel County than in Ouray County based on 2010 averages -- 

$682 compared to $574.  The average wage decreased $58 between 2008 and 2009 in San Miguel 

County, a drop of 4.2%.  The average weekly wage rose very slightly in Ouray County through 2009, 

however, before dropping $18 in 2010.   The data show both counties lost employers – 25 in Ouray 

County and 58 in San Miguel County. 
 

Average Wages, 2000 – 2010 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Year #  Employers Avg. Wage #  Employers Avg. Wage 

2010 322 $574 649 $682 

2009 339 $592 674 $709 

2008 347 $586 707 $740 

2007 345 $563 707 $717 

2006 321 $546 682 $645 

2005 305 $515 663 $604 

2004 283 $543 636 $574 

2003 281 $572 610 $537 

2002 262 $494 589 $560 

2001 245 $451 573 $539 

2000 240 $416 557 $510 

Source: QCEW Annual Averages, Colorado Department of Labor and Employment 

<<Exhibits - Page >>116



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 23 

 

Seasonality in Employment 

 

Both counties have seasonality in employment but the pattern differs.  In Ouray County, employment is 

highest in the summer month and lowest in the winter.  In 2009 approximately 790 more persons were 

employed in July than in December.   

 

8.8 9

7.3

6.2 6 6

6.8

7.5

8.3 8.5
8.1 8.1

7.1
6.6

5.5

4.8 4.7
5

5.9 6.1

7.3
7

6.2
5.6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Ouray County Labor Force and Unemployment

Employment Unemployment Unemployment Rate (%)

Source: LAUS

U
n

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

nt
 R

at
e

Lab
o

r Fo
rce

 
 

 

San Miguel County has two peak periods – the ski season and summer with short, sharp drops during 

the spring and fall months.  In 2010, about 100 more residents worked during the peak winter season 

than in July, when summer employment is at its highest.   In 2009, however, winter peak employment 

surpassed summer peak employment by over 900 employees.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>117



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 24 

6.7

10.5

8.5

6.1
5.8 5.7

6.6

11

9.5

5.6 5.4 5.5 5.5

8

6.9

4.8
5.1

5.6

6.7

11.2

9.2

5.1 4.9

4.2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

San Miguel County Labor Force and Unemployment

Employed Unemployed Unemployment Rate (%)

Source: LAUS

U
n

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

nt
 R

at
e

Labor
Fo

rce

 
 

 

Employment Projections 

 

DOLA projects a 26% increase in jobs in both counties between 2010 and 2015, which seems to be 

unrealistically high given that most economists are forecasting a slow economic recovery. 

 

Job Projections 

 

 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020 
Ouray County      

Total Jobs 2,106 2,570 2,744 3,470 4,156 

Change  22.0% 6.8% 26.5% 19.8% 

San Miguel County      

Total Jobs 6,398 6,836 7,379 9,317 11,125 

Change  6.8% 7.9% 26.3% 19.4% 

Source: DOLA 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>118



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 25 

Employers were surveyed about the number of persons they plan to employ in the future.  The majority 

in both counties reported that they expect employment to stay about the same for the next year. In 

Ouray County, proportionately more reported they expect to reduce the number of employees.  

Employers in San Miguel County are also more optimistic about plans for employment in the next five 

years.  Approximately 57% plan to increase the number of persons they employ compared with only 

35% in Ouray County. 

   

Future Employment Plans 

 

 
In 1 Year 

Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

Increase # of employees 16% 11% 

Reduce # of employees 21% 9% 

Stay about the same 63% 80% 

  100% 100% 

In 5 Years   

Increase # of employees 35% 57% 

Reduce # of employees 6% 2% 

Stay about the same 59% 41% 

  100% 100% 
Source: Employer survey 

 

Telluride Ski and Golf, the largest employer in the region, plans a slow, steady increase in employment 

of about 1.5% per year.  No strategic operational changes are planned that would impact their 

employment patterns.  No major development plans are in the pipeline that would create additional 

jobs.   

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>119



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 26 

C. Commuting 
 

Employers provided information on where 1,721 or approximately 57% of their employees reside.  

Employers were knowledgeable about where their year-round employees live but, in some cases, 

seasonal employees maintain a permanent residence elsewhere and their employers are unsure about 

where they stay while working on a seasonal basis.  This information is used to show where employees 

live and where residents work. 

 

Where Employees Live 

 

 Of persons employed in the Telluride region (Telluride, Mountain Village and Lawson Hill), 70% 

reside in the region while 30% commute in, 8% from Norwood, 7% from Montrose, 4% from 

Ridgway and 1% from Ouray. 

 

 Norwood houses the highest percentage of its employees – 81% of the persons who work in 

Norwood also live in Norwood.  

 

 The community of Ouray, like the Telluride region, houses 70% of its employees. 

 

 58% of the employees working in Ridgway also live there, whereas one-third commute in from 

Montrose. 

 

Where Employees Live by Where They Work 
 

 Place of Work 

 
 
Place of Residence 

Telluride, 
Mtn Village, 
Lawson Hill 

Ophir, Ilium, 
Placerville, 

Sawpit 

Norwood Ouray Ridgway TOTAL 
employees 

both counties 

Telluride, Mtn Village, Lawson Hill 70% 4% 2% 0% 1% 50% 

Norwood 8% 21% 81% 0% 0% 11% 

Ouray  1% 0% 0% 70% 7% 7% 

Ophir, Ilium, Placerville, Sawpit 6% 0% 0% 1% 1% 4% 

Rico, Dolores, Cortez 2% 5% 0% 0% 0% 2% 

Nucla, Naturita, Redvale, etc 1% 19% 12% 0% 0% 2% 

Ridgway 4% 9% 1% 17% 58% 10% 

Montrose 7% 4% 0% 13% 33% 11% 

Other 1% 38% 4% 0% 1% 1% 

TOTAL - ALL EMPLOYEES 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Employer survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>120



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 27 

While there is extensive commuting within each county, like from Norwood to the Telluride region, an 

examination of commuting into each county from elsewhere is useful for estimating housing demand.  

In Ouray County, nearly 25% of employees commute in, mostly from Montrose.  In San Miguel County, 

proportionately fewer employees commute in from outside of the county (15.5%) since down-valley 

communities within the county provide employees for up-valley jobs. 

 

By applying the percentage of employees who commute in to each county to total employee estimates 

(total jobs divided by the average number of jobs held per employee), it follows that approximately 450 

employees commute into Ouray County from homes outside of the county and 745 employees 

commute into San Miguel County, on average.  

 

Inter-County Commuting 

 

 Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

Work in County 331 1,375 

Live in County 249 1,163 

Commute In 82 212 

Percent Commute In 24.8% 15.5% 

   

Total Jobs 2,292 6,299 

Jobs per Employee 1.26 1.31 

Total Employees 1,819 4,808 

Number Commute In 450 745 

Source: Employer survey 

 

Where Residents Work 

 

The following table provides information on where residents work.  The numbers should be read 

horizontally.   

 

 99% of the employees who live in the Telluride region also work there.  There is very little out 

commuting from Telluride, Mountain Village and Lawson Hill to jobs elsewhere. 

 

 46% of the employees who live in Norwood also work in Norwood but 46% commute out to jobs 

in the Telluride region. 

 

 84% of Ouray’s residents who work do so in Ouray while 9% hold jobs in Ridgway and 7% 

commute to Telluride for work. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>121



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 28 

Where Residents Work 

 

 Place of Work 

 
 
Place of Residence 

Telluride, 
Mtn Village, 
Lawson Hill 

Ophir, Ilium, 
Placerville, 

Sawpit 

Norwood Ouray Ridgway Other TOTAL 

Telluride, Mtn Village, 
Lawson Hill 

99% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 

Norwood 46% 6% 46% 0% 0% 2% 100% 

Ouray  7% 0% 0% 84% 9% 0% 100% 

Ophir, Ilium, Placerville, 
Sawpit 

94% 3% 0% 1% 1% 0%  
100% 

Ridgway 27% 1% 0% 15% 57% 0% 100% 

Other 68% 0% 19% 0% 4% 9% 100% 

TOTAL - ALL 
EMPLOYEES 

70% 3% 7% 9% 10% 1% 100% 

Source: Employer survey 

 

Where Employees Want to Live 

 

The household survey was used to compare where employees work to where they most want to live.  Of 

the employees who work in Ouray County, approximately 40% want to live in Ridgway, 26% want to live 

in unincorporated areas of the county and 17% want to live in Ouray.  The remaining 18% would rather 

live in a neighboring county and commute in for work.  Many employees want to live in Ouray County 

but not in the same town where they work.  Survey data suggest intra-county commuting will remain 

common. 

 

Ouray County Employees – Where Want to Live 

 

 Place of Work 

Preferred Place to Live OURAY OURAY COUNTY-
Unincorporated 

RIDGWAY OVERALL 
Ouray Co. 

Ouray 42.1 8.9 3.1 17.2 

Ouray Co.- unincorporated 22.4 48.2 13.7 25.6 

Ridgway 19.7 19.6 61.1 39.5 

San Miguel County 14.5 17.9 19.1 14.0 

Other 1.3 5.4 3.1 3.7 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>122



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 29 

Approximately 89% of the employees who work in San Miguel County want to live in the county.  Like in 

Ouray County, many employees would like to live nearby but not in the same community as where they 

work.  Telluride has the highest percentage of employees who want to live in the town – 60%. 

 

San Miguel County Employees – Where Want to Live 

 

 Place of Work 

Preferred 
Place to Live 

LAWSON 
HILL 

MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE 

NORWOOD SAN MIGUEL 
CO. -

Unincorporated 

TELLURIDE ILLIUM, OPHIR, 
PLACERVILLE, 

SAWPIT 

OVERALL 
San 

Miguel 
Co. 

Lawson Hill 14.3 3.9 5.0 7.6 4.2 6.1 4.0 

Mountain Village 7.9 17.0 1.0 5.4 5.9 4.5 8.0 

Norwood 9.5 5.5 68.0 13.0 4.5 19.7 10.4 

San Miguel 
County - 
unincorporated 

17.5 10.3 8.0 25.0 9.7 12.1 9.9 

Telluride 36.5 45.7 4.0 23.9 60.0 25.8 49.8 

Ilium, Ophir, 
Placerville, 
Sawpit 

9.5 4.8 5.0 10.9 6.4 24.2 6.8 

Ouray County 1.6 4.8 5.0 9.8 4.9 4.5 5.3 

Other 3.2 8.0 4.0 4.3 4.3 3.0 5.7 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Commuter Characteristics 

 

A large sample of nearly 400 employees who commute was also obtained through survey responses 

from 1,190 households and a survey distributed primarily to employees commuting on buses and vans, 

from which 123 responses were received.  Commuting was defined as employees who live and work in 

different communities.  These employees provide insight as to why they now commute and what would 

entice them to move to the community where they now work. 

 

Among commuters: 

 

 56% own their homes; 

 

 75% live in single-family homes; 

 

 64% are couples with or without children; and 

 

 The median household income is $45,000. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>123



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 30 

The primary reason why employees commute rather than live in the community where they work is the 

price of housing.  Community character is a distant second.  The unacceptability of deed restrictions is a 

very minor consideration mentioned by only 8% of the commuters surveyed.  The location where 

spouses/partners work also matters to very few. 

 

 
Source: Household and commuter survey 

 

Many employees are not interested in moving to the community where they work.  Interest levels vary 

widely according to where employees now live.  Employees living in rural, unincorporated areas are 

more likely to be interested in moving than employees who live in a town.  Employees living in Montrose 

are the least likely to want to move.  According to interviews and commuter surveys in Spanish, this is 

due in part to the Hispanic community in Montrose and the services there, including public education, 

available to Spanish-speaking persons. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>124



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 31 

Interest in Moving to Community Where Work 

 

 Where Employees Live 

What housing option would 
entice you to move to your 
community of work? 

Rico/ 
Dolores/ 
Cortez 

Ridgway Montrose Norwood Ouray Ouray Co 
Unincorp 

San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Illium, 
Ophir, 
Placerville, 
Sawpit 

A single family home 27.3 30.8 23.9 41.4 30.0 48.5 64.5 86.5 

A condo, TH, duplex 0.0 15.4 2.2   12.1 3.2 1.9 

A place to rent 18.2 23.1 15.2 13.8 40.0 30.3 12.9 11.5 

Other 0.0   6.9   16.1  

I am not interested in moving 
to the community where I 
work 

54.5 30.8 58.7 37.9 30.0 9.1 3.2  

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household and commuter surveys 

 

While a single-family home would entice many employees to move, others are looking for places to rent.  

Few are interested in moving to live in a condo, townhome or duplex.  For commuters who would be 

enticed to move by a single-family home, the median price would need to be $250,000.  The median 

rent would need to be $600 per month to attract renters. 

 

The following table also suggests that the distance traveled is not a key variable in the desire of 

commuters to move to the community where they work.  Employees who are not interested travel the 

farthest, on average. 

 

Interest in Moving to Community Where Work by Miles Traveled 

 

 Average Miles 
A single family home 26 

A condo, townhome, or duplex 21 

A place to rent 41 

Other 27 

I am not interested in moving to the community where I work 53 

Source: Household and commuter surveys 

 

Mode of Travel 

 

The most frequently used mode of travel between work and home is driving alone.  Of commuters 

surveyed, 61% drive alone at least one day per week.  This compares with 13.7% who take a bus, the 

mode of travel used least by commuters. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>125



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 32 

Mode Used to Get to Work – Commuters 

 

Days per Week Drive Alone Carpool 2-4 
people 

Carpool 5+ 
people 

Bus 

0 39.0 70.0 84.1 86.3 

1 13.8 7.6 1.8 2.0 

2 5.0 4.6 0.8 1.1 

3 7.3 3.3 1.6 1.7 

4 5.4 7.6 8.4 2.7 

5 24.5 5.3 3.1 6.2 

6 3.7 1.2 0.3  

7 1.3 0.5 0.0  

 100% 100% 100% 100% 

% Use at Least 
Once per Week 

 
61.0% 

 
30.0% 

 
15.9% 

 
13.7% 

Source: Household and commuter surveys 

 

Responses to the household survey on the mode used to travel to work revealed that driving alone is 

the most frequently used form of transportation in all areas except Mountain Village and Telluride 

where walking or biking far outweigh traveling by car. 

 

Mode Used to Get to Work – All Residents; Average Days per Week 

 

 Ouray Ridgway Ouray 
Co 

Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Walk or bike 2.0 1.4 0.3 2.5 0.7 3.8 0.4 

Drive Alone 2.0 2.7 2.9 1.7 3.0 0.9 3.1 

Carpool 
 2-4 people 

0.2 0.4 0.7 0.3 0.8 0.1 0.9 

Car/van pool  
5+ people 

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Bus 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.6 0.2 

Other 0.4 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.1 0.3 0.2 

Source: Household survey 

 

The following map illustrates the cost of commuting to and from Telluride based on one 

person driving alone.  While housing is less expensive in neighboring communities, the 

combined cost of housing and transportation costs often makes commuting an unaffordable 

alternative to living near work.  If an employee working in Telluride spends 30% of their 

income for housing in Montrose, they must spend about an equal amount commuting. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>126



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 33 

Commuting Costs 
 

 

 

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>127



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 34 

2.  Housing Inventory 
 

This chapter of the report provides information on the housing inventory in Ouray and San Miguel 

counties including: 

 

 Number of total residential units and number of units occupied by residents; 

 Primary/vacation home relationship; 

 Rate of growth in housing; 

 Tenure, which is the mix between owner and renter occupied units; 

 Age of housing; 

 Type of housing units;  

 Deed restricted housing inventory by jurisdiction, tenure and bedrooms; and 

 Availability of Section 8 rent subsidy vouchers. 

 

Number of Housing Units – Total and Occupied 
 

The two-county region has a total of 9,721 residential units.  Just over two thirds are in San Miguel 

County.  Mountain Village and Telluride are almost tied as the largest communities in terms of total 

units, but Telluride has 1.4 times as many occupied units as Mountain Village.  In both Ouray and San 

Miguel counties, there are more total and occupied units in unincorporated areas than in any of the 

communities. 
 

Housing Units by Area and Occupancy 
 

 Total Housing 
Units 

Occupied 
Housing Units 

Other/Vacant 
Housing Units 

Vacancy 
Rate 

OURAY COUNTY 3,083 2,022 1,061 34.4% 

Ouray 800 457 343 42.9% 

Ridgway 511 404 107 20.9% 

Unincorp. Area 1,772 1,161 611 34.5% 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 6,638 3,454 3,184 48.0% 

Mountain Village 2,066 751 1,315 63.6% 

Norwood 249 215 34 13.7% 

Ophir 64 59 5 7.8% 

Sawpit 23 18 5 21.7% 

Telluride 2,070 1,086 984 47.5% 

Unincorp. Area 2,166 1,325 841 38.8% 

Total – 2 County region 9,721 5,476 4,245 43.7% 

Source: 2010 Census 

<<Exhibits - Page >>128



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 35 

Primary/Vacation Home Relationship 
 

The Census Bureau classifies units that are vacation accommodations or second homes to be vacant.  

Even if owners or short-term renters were in the units at the time that the Census was conducted, the 

units were not classified as occupied unless they were occupied by local residents.  Vacancy rates are 

high in both counties due to vacation homes.  The overall vacancy rate for housing units in the region is 

nearly 44%.   Of the vacant units, 81% in Ouray County and 75% in San Miguel County were reported by 

the American Community Survey as being for seasonal, recreational or occasional use.  

 

The vacancy rate is highest in Mountain Village, followed by Telluride then Ouray.  A comparison of the 

vacancy rates from 2000 and 2010 shows that the percentage of units occupied by local residents is 

decreasing in all of Ouray County and in much of San Miguel County although the relationship between 

occupied homes and vacant/vacation homes in Telluride has remained steady.  The 2010 Census 

confirms the trend toward proportionately more vacation homes as reported in the 2008 interim report 

for the Alternative Futures for the Telluride Region Project by the Graduate School of Design at Harvard 

University and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.  Given that buyers of vacation homes drive 

prices upward beyond the level affordable to local wage earners, this trend is significant particularly for 

Ouray County where homes prices have been lower in the past. 

 

Vacation/Vacant Units by Area, 2000 and 2010 Compared 

 

 2000 2010 

OURAY COUNTY 26.56 34.4% 

Ouray 35.85 42.9% 

Ridgway 10.38 20.9% 

Unincorporated 26.35 34.5% 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 41.99 48.0% 

Mountain Village 49.12 63.6% 

Norwood 24.42 13.7% 

Ophir 9.09 7.8% 

Sawpit 33.33 21.7% 

Telluride 47.73 47.5% 

Unincorporated 35.73 38.8% 
Sources: 2000 and 2010 Census 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>129



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 36 

Rate of Growth in Housing Units 
 

Most of the communities in the two-county region experienced strong rates of residential growth 

between 2000 and 2010.  The total number of units more than doubled in Mountain Village.  Ridgway 

had the second highest rate of growth at nearly 61%.  Telluride had the lowest rate of growth in total 

residential units – 6.8%.  Norwood was an exception to the growth trend with a loss of nine units 

according to the Census. 

 

Total Housing Units by Area, 2000 – 2010 

 

 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Change 
2000 - 2010 

OURAY COUNTY 2,146 2,810 2,909 2,978 3,017      3,083  43.7% 

Ouray 583 691 712 719 722          800  37.2% 

Ridgway 318 503 532 549 556          511  60.7% 

Unincorp. Area 1,245 1,616 1,665 1,710 1,739      1,772  42.3% 

SAN MIGUEL CO. 5,197 6,117 6,272 6,420 6,541 6,638 27.7% 

Mountain Village 1,022 1,414 1,510 1,587 1,639 2,066 102.2% 

Norwood 258 282 284 286 287 249 -3.5% 

Ophir 55 69 72 72 72 64 16.4% 

Sawpit 18 19 19 19 20 23 27.8% 

Telluride 1,938 2,138 2,157 2,197 2,241 2,070 6.8% 

Unincorp. Area 1,906 2,195 2,230 2,259 2,282 2,166 13.6% 

Sources: DOLA 2006 – 2009, Census 2000 and 2010 

 

Total housing unit estimates published by DOLA were provided for 2006 through 2009.  The estimates 

where higher for 2009 than the Census found in 2010 in Ouray County as a whole, in unincorporated San 

Miguel County and in the communities of Ridgway, Norwood, Ophir and Telluride.  The comparison is 

provided in case the DOLA estimates have been used for planning or other purposes and need to be 

adjusted to reflect the latest, more accurate Census figures. 

 

Tenure 
 

The mix between owner-occupied and renter-occupied units varies and is difficult to estimate given 

available information.  The American Community Survey provides estimates on tenure but the margins 

of error are too high for use at this time.  Over time, the sample size will improve, and the ACS should 

become a reliable source for information on the mix between owners and renters. 

 

To estimate tenure, three sources were compared: the 2000 Census, 2009 ACS and 2010 estimates 

published by ESRI, a private firm that provides demographic estimates primarily to support business 

<<Exhibits - Page >>130



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 37 

location decisions.  The estimates were similar for many of the jurisdictions but varied widely for the 

towns of Mountain Village and Telluride.  In consultation with task force members, ESRI was chosen as 

the source for all areas except the two towns.  In Mountain Village, where the majority of occupied units 

are deed restricted, data on those units was used to estimate owner/renter mix. The result was the 

same as the ESRI estimate.  In Telluride, a census conducted by Town staff in 2000 was revisited in light 

of housing development that has occurred in the past 10 years and determined to be the best source for 

owner/renter mix. 

 

The following table contains the results of this exercise.  The percentage and number of units is provided 

for both counties and communities.  In Ouray County, approximately 73% of occupied units are owner 

occupied.  In San Miguel County, the split is about even due to a high percentage of renters in both 

Mountain Village and Telluride. 

 

Tenure by Area, Percent and Number of Units 

 

 Occupied 
Housing Units 

Own 
% 

Own 
# 

Rent  
% 

Rent 
# 

OURAY COUNTY 2,022 73%          1,482  27%             540  

Ouray 457 70%             322  30%             135  

Ridgway 404 69%             280  31%             124  

Unincorp. Area 1,161 76%             880  24%             281  

      

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 3,454 50%         1,743  50%          1,711  

Mountain Village 751 48%             359  52%             392  

Norwood 215 68%             147  32%               68  

Telluride 1,086 42%             456  58%             630  

San Miguel Balance 1,402 56%             781  44%             621  

Sources: 2010 Census for occupied units; ESRI and Town of Telluride data for tenure percentages; 

RRC/Rees calculations 

 

Unit Type 
 

Approximately 83% of the households in Ouray County and 53% of the households in San Miguel County 

reside in single-family homes.  San Miguel County has proportionately more households living in 

apartments, townhomes and condominiums while Ouray County has more mobile home occupants.  

“Other” includes rooms without kitchens. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>131



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 38 

Occupied Unit Type by County and Own/Rent 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

Single family house 93.7 53.9 83.2 72.0 33.0 52.8 

Apartment 0.4 25.5 7.0 0.3 43.2 21.5 

Townhouse/duplex 1.4 7.8 3.1 6.8 5.5 6.2 

Condo 0.7 2.0 1.0 18.1 9.3 13.7 

Alley structure/shed 0.0 1.0 0.3 0.3 2.3 1.3 

Mobile home 2.8 9.8 4.7 1.4 0.3 0.9 

Other 1.1 0.0 0.8 1.1 6.4 3.7 

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Bedrooms 
 

Occupied residential units in Ouray County are more likely to have three or more bedrooms than are 

homes in San Miguel County (67% compared with 42% in San Miguel County).  In relative terms, more 

residents of San Miguel County live in studios or one-bedroom units (27% compared with 7% in Ouray 

County). 

 

Number of Bedrooms by County and Own/Rent 

 

  Ouray County San Miguel County 

Bedrooms Own Rent Overall Own Rent Overall 

0 0.0 1.1 0.3 0.3 2.4 1.3 

1 2.8 18.5 6.6 9.2 42.4 25.5 

2 22.6 35.9 25.9 28.7 34.6 31.6 

3 54.0 38.0 50.1 40.5 14.0 27.5 

4 18.1 4.3 14.8 17.5 4.8 11.3 

5+ 2.4 2.2 2.4 3.7 1.8 2.8 

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Age of Housing 
 

Information is provided on the age of housing in the two-county region since age is often an indication 

of the condition and energy efficiency of housing, and the need for rehabilitation.  The age of residential 

units is similar in both counties with approximately 21% being built prior to 1970.  These units, if not 

<<Exhibits - Page >>132



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 39 

already renovated, are likely in need of it.  Housing construction was booming in the past two decades in 

both counties with more than twice as many units built as during the 20-year period between 1970 and 

1990.  
  

Residential Units -- Date of Construction 
 

Year Built Ouray County San Miguel County 

 # % # % 

pre-1970 656 21.0% 820 21.5% 

1971-1980 397 12.7% 403 10.6% 

1981-1990 398 12.7% 509 13.4% 

1991-2000 749 24.0% 1096 28.8% 

2001-2009 869 27.8% 982 25.8% 

Unknown 55 1.8% 0 0.0% 

Total: 3124 100.0% 3810 100.0% 

Source: County Assessor data compiled by the Town of Ridgway 

Deed/Occupancy-Restricted Housing Inventory 
 

Occupancy of affordable housing and price in many cases are controlled over time by either deed 

restrictions and/or requirements associated with project financing.  There are also units that were built 

to be affordable through incentives and/or size restrictions that may not have specific limitations on 

occupancy but due to their location and design primarily house lower income residents.  For simplicity, 

all units with occupancy, employment, residency and/or income restrictions and units for which 

incentives were provided are referred to as deed restricted in this report. 

 

Ouray County 

 

The inventory of deed-restricted housing in Ouray County includes the following units and lots: 

 

 10 single-family homes in the River Park subdivision in Ridgway.   The initial sales price was 

determine by the developer’s cost for land and improvements, as approved by the Town 

Manager.  The deed restriction imposes a 3.2% annual appreciation for the first five years that 

steps up through year 10 to 10%.  The price caps expire after 10 years provided that the home is 

owned by one owner during that period.  If owners fail to own their homes for 10 consecutive 

years, the price caps start over again at the date of purchase.  One member of the household 

must earn the majority of their income in Ouray County or from an Ouray County employer.  

There are no income limits.  Plan check fees, building permits and excise taxes were waived. 

 

 2 lots in the Parkside subdivision in Ridgway which are planned for development with tri-plexes 

for a total of six units. 
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>133



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 40 

 A four-plex parcel in the Preserve subdivision in Ridgway which has received preliminary plat 

approval, but not final approval.  The parcel cannot yet be sold or developed. 
 

 Approximately 16 accessory dwellings in Ridgway with a maximum size of 800 square feet for 

which no tap fees were required and water/sewer service is discounted.  
 

 One duplex and six accessory dwelling units in Ouray. 

 

San Miguel County 
 

As of April, the deed-restricted inventory in San Miguel County included a total of 1,124 units.  This total 

does not include the 30 units at Telluride Apartments since they cannot be occupied.  Redevelopment of 

the site to increase the number of units is planned.   
 

Deed-Restricted Inventory by Jurisdiction 
 

Area Owner Renter Total  DR % of Occupied 
Units 

Mountain Village 93 416 509 67.5% 

Norwood  30 30 14.0% 

San Miguel County 202 73 275 20.8% 

Telluride 106 204 310 28.5% 

Total 401 723 1,124 32.4% 

Percent of Total 35.7% 64.3% 100%  
Source: SMRHA 
 

Two-thirds of the occupied housing units in Mountain Village are deed restricted.  In Telluride, 29% of 

the units that are occupied by local residents are deed restricted.  In unincorporated San Miguel County, 

21% of occupied units are restricted under the County’s regulations.  This percentage is based on deed-

restricted units in the Telluride region compared to all occupied units throughout unincorporated San 

Miguel County.  County-wide, nearly one-third of all occupied units are deed restricted. 

 

The split between owner and renter occupancy of deed-restricted units may change over time due to 

several factors: 
 

 Employee condominiums developed under Mountain Village’s Employee Housing Restrictions 

can be owner or renter occupied.  Units for which the SMRHA has current leases have been 

included under the renter column.  

 

 Some units that are now vacant and are listed for sale or in foreclosure; these units have been 

included in the owner category.  
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>134



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 41 

 A few units in Telluride intended for owner occupancy are now rentals due to financing and 

other issues but will likely be sold to owner occupants in the future; they are now listed under 

the renter column. 
 

 A few of the units under the renter column are also vacant, primarily due to turnover.  More 

information on rental vacancies is provided in section 3B Rental Market Conditions. 

 

San Miguel County – Unincorporated 

 

Through a combination of inclusionary zoning requirements, densities granted through the PUD process, 

Land Use Code provisions that allowed accessory dwellings and, since 2007, an Affordable Housing 

Impact fee, a total of 275 deed restricted units have been built in San Miguel County.  Of these, nearly 

three-fourths are owner occupied.  Of total units, half are in the Lawson Hill PUD.  Occupancy of the 46 

accessory dwelling has not been monitored and is uncertain.  With the adoption of the Affordable 

Housing Impact Fee, the County will now allow accessory units without requiring a deed restriction.  
 

Deed-Restricted Units in Unincorporated San Miguel County 
 

County R-1 Deed Restriction Owner Renter 

    Aldasoro PUD  16  

    Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) –  various locations  46 

    San Bernardo PUD 23  

    San Bernardo PUD Employee Apartments  1 

    Q lots 1  

    Ridgeview (commercial/residential)  1 

    Sunshine Valley 4 2 

    Two Rivers 28  

    Lawson Hill PUD  120 19 

 Live/Work  4 

Affordable Housing Covenant Guidelines   

    Rio Vistas II 10  

Sub-Total 202 73 

Total 275 

Source: SMRHA 

 

Mountain Village 
 

To date, 537 deed-restricted units have been developed in Mountain Village through a combination of 

zoning regulations, incentives, funds and land:  Specifically: 
 

 Zoning that calls for employee housing to be provided for 15% of the person equivalent density 

in the town.  
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>135



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 42 

 Density bonuses that have resulted in the development of 133 condominiums or apartments 

and 19 dorm units.   
 

 Incentives in the form of reduced building permit and tap fees. 
 

 An allocation of sales tax receipts for housing. 

 

More detail on these programs and the recently adopted Comprehensive Plan is provided in the 

Community Resources and Financing Tools section of this report. 
 

Mountain Village Deed Restricted Inventory 
 

 Owner Renter 

LOT 20-Castellina   1  

Cassidy Ridge 3  

Lot 600A - Elkstone 1  

Coyote Court 10  

Big Billies  149 

Village Court Apartments  221 

Bear Creek Lodge  2 

Boulders   9 5 

Capella  10 

La Chamonix 1  

Fairway Four 17 7 

Franz Klammer 3 3 

Mountain Village Firehouse  3 

Northstar 2 1 

Parker Ridge  [2 units sold in foreclosure in ’09 & ’10] 17 2 

Pennington  1 

Prospect Creek 9 5 

Prospect Plaza 6 1 

See Forever (one unit taken by bank) 1 2 

Spring Creek 8 2 

Timberview 2  

La Tramontana 1 1 

Tristant 1  

Lot 17 Emp. Apt  1 

Lot 28 Lumiere 1  

Sub-Totals 93 416 

Total-Mountain Village 509   

 

Since they cannot be occupied due to mold, the 30 units at Telluride Apartments have been excluded 

from this inventory.

<<Exhibits - Page >>136



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 43 

Norwood 

 

One 30-unit rental project in Norwood is income restricted under Low Income Housing Tax Credit 

(LIHTC) guidelines to households with incomes no greater than 50% AMI.  The restrictions will expire in 

roughly 20 to 30 years. 

 

Telluride 

 

Telluride has an inventory of 310 deed-restricted units that fall into four categories: 

 

1. Affordable housing units required by mitigation; 

2. Employee housing units produced with incentives; 

3. Town-constructed units developed with its Affordable Housing Fund; and  

4. Low-income apartments developed by the Telluride Housing Authority using tax exempt bond 

financing. 

 

Telluride Deed Restricted Inventory 

 

 Owner Renter 

 Affordable Housing Units - Mitigation   

    AHU (various locations)* 20 22 

    Creekside (under private management)  26 

    Telluride Medical Center 1  

Deed Restricted/Price-capped – Other     

    Fino 2  

    Cribs (Popcorn Alley) 3  

Town Constructed (w/ School District and County partnerships)   

    Telluride Family Housing (TFH)/Block 24 7  

    Wilkin Court 13  

    Mendota 16  

    Entrada 17  

    Gold Run 18  

Employee Dwelling Units (EDU) – various locations 9 22 

Shandoka Apartments(25 Units are under EDU DR)  134 

Sub-Total 106 204 

Total 310 

*Based on current occupancy, not long-range intended use. 

 

Roughly two thirds of total units, or an estimated 204 units, are renter occupied.  This percentage will 

shift slightly over time as units that were intended for owner occupancy were initially rented when, for 

various reasons, they could not be sold.  The count under each category is as follows: 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>137



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 44 

1. Affordable Housing Units (AHU’s) -- Mitigation requirements imposed on all new residential and 

commercial development in Telluride has resulted in the construction of 70 AHU’s.  Of the total, 

22 are owner occupied and 48 are rented.  The mix between owner and renter occupancy 

changes because either use is allowed for some units and units intended for homeownership 

may be rented when financing and other obstacles preclude their sale.   AHU’s built prior to 

2007 have income limits of 200% AMI, although the maximum rents allowed are based on the 

guidelines that applied at the date of construction, with most allowing a 2.5% annual increase.  

Units built in 2007 and since have income caps of 120% AMI or 150% AMI.  Rents for these units 

are typically higher than charged for the older units with 200% AMI limits. 

 

2. Employee Dwelling Units (EDU’s) are primarily accessory dwellings built usually with some type 

of incentive from the Town of Telluride – tap fee waivers, building permit reductions, density 

bonuses or some other type of variance.  The 31 EDU’s are not price/rent capped and have 

flexible occupancy restrictions so that they can be rented by seasonal employees.   Most are 

rentals (22 units), but nine are owner occupied.  A few are provided to employees as a housing 

allowance by their employers with no or very low rents.   

 

3. Town Constructed Units - The Town has constructed 68 homes in five projects, all of which are 

intended for owner occupancy.  The subsidies to make these homes affordable have come from 

the Town’s Affordable Housing Fund (see Community Resources and Financing Tools), the school 

district which partnered on three projects, and San Miguel County which participated in the 

most recent project to be completed, Gold Run.   

 

4. Low Income Apartments –The 134 apartments at Shandoka were developed in four phases.  Tax 

exempt bonds were the primary source of financing, with income restrictions imposed on the 

units at 80% AMI.   

 

Bedroom Mix – Deed Restricted Units  

 

The following information on bedroom mix is based on a large sample of the deed-restricted units in San 

Miguel.  The number of bedrooms is not known on many of the scattered accessory dwelling units and 

employee apartments.   Overall, the deed restricted inventory is very diverse, with units ranging from 

small studios to single-family homes with five bedrooms. Bedroom mix varies by jurisdiction.  The 

distinct approaches to affordable housing have resulted in distinct inventories. 

 

 Mountain Village has a high proportion of small units – 46% are studios and 21% have one 

bedroom.  This is primarily due to Big Billies, which houses seasonal employees. 

 

 Units in the unincorporated San Miguel County generally tend to be larger than elsewhere – 

52% have three or more bedrooms. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>138



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 45 

 Telluride has a range of sizes, with two bedrooms comprising the highest percentage (41%) of 

units. 

 

Bedroom Mix by Location 

 

Location/Project Name # of 
Units 

Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR* 

Mtn Village       

Big Billies 149 149     

Village Court 221 78 78 53 12  

Employee condos/apts 139 1 35 52 39 12 

Total 509 228 113 105 51 12 

Percent of Total 100% 44.8% 22.2% 20.6% 10.0% 2.4% 

San Miguel Co**       

Owner Occupied 199 0 12 73 89 25 

Renter Occupied 24  9 13 2  

Total 223 0 21 86 91 25 

Percent of Total 100%  9.4% 38.6% 40.8% 11.2% 

Norwood       

Cottonwood Creek 30     30 

Total 30     30 

Percent of Total 100%     100% 

Telluride       

Shandoka 134  43 61 26 4 

Creekside 26  20 6   

Other Units 124 4 35 49 31 5 

Total 284 4 98 116 57 9 

Percent of Total 100% 1.4% 34.5% 40.8% 20.1% 3.2% 

       

County Total 1,046 232 232 307 199 76 

Percent of Total 100% 22.2% 22.2% 29.3% 19.0% 7.3% 

*Includes three units with five bedrooms. Note: number of bedrooms is only known for 1,046 of the 1,124 

total deed-restricted units. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>139



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 46 

Deed-Restricted Units – Approved but Not Built 

 

A total of 208 deed-restricted units have been approved but not yet constructed.  Of them, 99% will be 

in Mountain Village and unincorporated San Miguel County with 103 units approved in each jurisdiction.  

The count could change.  Some parcels are in foreclosure and/or listed for sale.  New owners could 

propose changes to existing development plans.   

 

Approved Units by Location and Project 

 

   Approved, Not Built 

Mountain Village  

Lots 109R/110 Mtn Village Hotel 1 

Lots 122/123R 2 

Boulders   8 

Spring Creek 4 

Timber View 6 

Lot 60 – RAB La Chamonix 1 

LOT 126R/152R 17 dorms + 5 apts 

LOT 165(Unit 23)-Cortina  2 

Lot 71R 1 

Lot 30 2 dorms 

Lot 644 54 

Sub-Total 103 

San Miguel County  

Aldasoro PUD  8 

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU)  1 

San Bernardo PUD Employee Apartments 7 

Q lots 33 

Lawson Hill PUD  7 

Live/Work-Lot L (29), C (12) & E (6) 47 

Sub-Total     103 

Town of Telluride  

AHU Owner-occupied – mitigation units to be built 2 

  

Ridgway  

Parkside Subdivision 6 

  

2-County Regional Total 208 

 

In addition to these approved units, two projects have received preliminary approvals:  Sunshine Valley 

in San Miguel County for 13 units and a four-plex lot in the Preserve subdivision in Ridgway. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>140



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 47 

Employer-Assisted Housing 
 

Of the households surveyed in San Miguel County, 10.7% of renters and 0.9% of owners indicated that 

their employers provide or subsidize their housing.  These households could be living in deed-restricted 

or free-market units. 

 

Section 8 Vouchers 
 

The SMRHA administers the Section 8 rent subsidy voucher program for San Miguel County.  As of the 

end of 2010, the agency administered 55 vouchers with a wait list of 32 applications.  The wait list is now 

closed.  Applications are not being accepted until such time as the list nears the length estimated to take 

two years to exhaust.  Just over half of the vouchers are utilized in Norwood and 41% are utilized in the 

Telluride/Mountain Village area.  Approximately 94% are held by households with extremely low 

incomes (≤ 30% AMI).  Nearly 54% of Section 8 clients are working, 13% are disabled and 12% are living 

on social security. 

 

For Ouray County, Section 8 vouchers are administered by the Montrose Housing Authority, which is 

located in Olathe nearly one hour north of Ouray.  The number of vouchers is very small and varies 

depending upon holders moving into and out of the county.  The Ouray County social services office 

would like for the vouchers to be administered locally so that households in need could apply and be 

recertified without the burden of traveling to Olathe.   

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>141



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 48 

3A .  Homeownership Market Conditions 
 

This section of the report consists of two major parts which examine: 

 

 Historical Sales including 5-year trends in number of units sold, median and average prices, sales 

by price range, price by number of bedrooms in the unit and prices per square foot; and 
 

 Availability of Homes including number of listings, both free market and deed restricted, by 

price. 

 

All information is provided by location with county totals or averages.  Information for both sales and 

listings is provided separately for market units and deed-restricted units.   

 

Historical sales prices and the prices of homes listed for sale are expressed in terms of AMI, which is 

defined in the Demographic and Economic Framework section of this report.  The maximum amounts 

that households in each AMI category can afford were calculated based on a series of assumptions.  

Homes sold or listed for sale were then placed into the price ranges corresponding to each AMI 

category.  The following table shows the calculation of the maximum purchase prices in both counties. 

 

Calculation of Maximum Affordable Purchase Prices by AMI for 2-Person Households 

 

AMI Ranges 51% - 80% 81% - 100% 101% - 120% 121% - 150% 151% - 200% 201% - 250% 

Ouray County             

Monthly income $3,379  $4,225  $5,070  $6,338  $8,450  $10,563  

Affordable housing pmt $1,014  $1,268  $1,521  $1,901  $2,535  $3,169  

taxes/ins/HOA $203  $254  $304  $380  $507  $634  

Principle/ interest $811  $1,014  $1,217  $1,521  $2,028  $2,535  

Amt can borrow $151,074  $188,890  $226,667  $283,334  $377,779  $472,205  

10% down $16,786  $20,988  $25,185  $31,482  $41,975  $52,467  

Max. Purchase Price $167,860  $209,877  $251,853  $314,816  $419,754  $524,672  

San Miguel County             

Monthly income $4,100  $5,125  $6,150  $7,688  $10,250  $12,813  

Affordable housing pmt $1,230  $1,538  $1,845  $2,306  $3,075  $3,844  

taxes/ins/HOA $246  $308  $369  $461  $615  $769  

Principle/ interest $984 $1,230 $1,476 $1,845  $2,460  $3,075  

Amt can borrow $183,301  $229,127  $274,952  $343,690  $458,253  $572,797  

10% down $20,367  $25,459  $30,550  $38,188  $50,917  $63,644  

Max. Purchase Price $203,668  $254,585  $305,502  $381,878  $509,170  $636,441  

Sources: HUD for AMI figures; Rees calculations. 

 

AMI’s vary by household size.  The affordable purchase price calculations used in this report are based 

on the AMI for two-person households.   This was done for a combination of reasons, the primary one 

<<Exhibits - Page >>142



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 49 

being the average size of households in the region – 2.18 in Ouray County and 2.13 in San Miguel 

County. (See the Economic and Demographic Framework section of this report for the average number 

of persons per household in each community.)  Given today’s tough mortgage underwriting standards, it 

is appropriate to be conservative rather than aggressive in estimating affordable price levels.  Therefore, 

the following other assumptions used in these calculations: 

 

 Affordable housing payments equal 30% of gross household income. 

 

 Taxes, property insurance and HOA fees total 20% of the affordable monthly payment. 

 

 The interest rate is 5% on a 30-year fixed rate mortgage. 

 

 The down payment is 10%. 

 

The resulting purchase prices are maximums.  To provide housing affordable for all of the households in 

any of the AMI categories would require that they be priced at the maximum amount for the next 

lowest AMI category.  Using the previous table, households in Ouray County with incomes at 100% AMI 

would generally be able to afford a home priced up to $209,877; however, households with incomes at 

the low end of the AMI range (80% AMI) could only afford around $167,860. 

  

The maximum affordable purchase prices for households ranging in size from one to five persons and 

with incomes ranging from 30% to 250% AMI have been provided in the appendix to this report. 

 

Historical Residential Sales 
 

Number of Units Sold 

 

During the past five years the homeownership market has gone from being very active with a high 

volume of sales to being very slow with the number of sales dropping 62%.  The number of homes sold 

in Ouray County peaked in 2007 at 63 units.  The following year, the number of sales reached their peak 

in San Miguel County at 324 total units.  In both counties, 2009 was the slowest year.  The market 

showed improvement in 2010 with a 36% increase in total sales in the two-county region.  The rebound 

was strongest among market units in San Miguel County, with a 46% gain in the number of homes sold. 

 Sales of market units in both counties and of deed-restricted units in Mountain Village, Telluride and 

San Miguel County exhibited the same general trend.  In this five-year period, the number of units sold 

in Ouray County equaled about 15% to 20% of the sales volume in San Miguel County. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>143



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 50 

 
Source: Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS and County Assessor records 

 

Market Prices 

 

Prices peaked in both counties in 2007 with an overall median of $547,115 in Ouray County and 

$1,237,500 in San Miguel County.   The median price hit its lowest point in 2009 in San Miguel County at 

$992,500, a drop of nearly 20% from the peak.    While the prices on many individual units continued to 

fall into 2010, the overall median price in San Miguel County rose back above the $1 million mark.  In 

Ouray County, prices continued to drop in 2010 with a 26% decrease in the median price from the 2007 

peak.   

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>144



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 51 

Median Market Prices by Location, 2006 – Feb. 2011 

 

Ouray County 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Jan/Feb 

Ouray $197,000 $347,500 $256,350 $345,000 $23,000*  

Ridgway $335,000 $385,000 $295,000 $314,000 $279,250  

Unincorporated $418,000 $460,000 $525,000 $415,000 $387,500 $435,000 

Total $375,109 $547,115 $470,651 $435,375 $406,910 $435,000 

       

San Miguel County       

Mountain Village $1,311,000 $1,775,000 $1,716,000 $1,624,000 $1,395,103 $975,000 

Norwood $181,300 $215,000 $198,500 $119,500 $230,500  

SM Balance $591,500 $610,000 $590,000 $570,500 $643,500 $373,913 

Telluride $910,000 $1,104,762 $795,000 $837,500 $845,000 $2,140,000 

Total San Miguel $918,269 $1,237,500 $1,018,590 $992,500 $1,035,000 $982,500 
Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS 

*Only 2 mobile home sales in Ouray in 2010, one for $13,000 and one for $33,000. 

 

Prices in most of the region’s communities mirrored the overall county trends with peak prices in 2007 

or 2008, followed by decreasing prices through 2009 or 2010.  There has been extensive variation in 

prices in the two-county region, however: 

 

 Norwood has been by far the least expensive place to buy a home in either county with a 

median price of $230,000 in 2010. 

 

 Mountain Village has had the most expensive homes in the region with a median that peaked at 

$1,775,000 in 2007 before declining to just under $1.4 million in 2010. 

 

 The median price in Telluride topped $1 million in 2007 but dropped to $795,000 in 2008, a 

decrease of 28% in one year. 

 

 Prices have been slightly higher in Ridgway than Ouray, but with few sales, the relationship in 

price between the neighboring towns is difficult to quantify. 

  

An examination of sales prices by AMI shows that there is a clear imbalance between incomes and home 

prices in both counties.  Expressed in terms of AMI, prices in Ouray County are very similar to those in 

San Miguel County with very few sales at prices affordable for households at 100% AMI. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>145



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 52 

 In Ouray County, less than 7.1% of homes sold were affordable to households with incomes 

equal to or less than 100% AMI.   Opportunities for homeownership improved above 120% AMI 

but nearly 34% of units sold in the past five years required incomes in excess of 200% AMI. 

 

 In San Miguel County, over 70% of the homes sold required incomes of 200% AMI or more.  Only 

7% of the total sales were at prices affordable for households with incomes at or under 100% 

AMI, most of which were in Norwood. 

 

Free Market Sales by AMI, 2006 – Feb. 2011 

 

Ouray County 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Jan/Feb 

Total percent 
of total 

<=30% 2 0 0 0 2 0 4 1.9% 

31% - 50% 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 1.0% 

51% - 80% 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 1.0% 

81% - 100% 2 1 2 2 0 0 7 3.3% 

101% - 120% 4 4 5 1 2 0 16 7.6% 

121% - 150% 11 10 11 4 10 0 46 21.9% 

151% - 200% 25 21 6 5 2 1 62 29.5% 

201% - 250% 9 10 5 1 4 0 27 12.9% 

Over 250% 7 15 10 6 5 1 44 21.0% 

Total 63 61 39 20 25 2 210 100.0% 

San Miguel Co 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
Jan/Feb 

Total percent 
of total 

<=30% 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0.2% 

31% - 50% 3 1 0 1 1 0 6 0.6% 

51% - 80% 10 12 4 4 5 2 37 3.8% 

81% - 100% 5 10 5 1 2 1 24 2.4% 

101% - 120% 12 12 4 3 12 0 43 4.4% 

121% - 150% 17 9 12 10 6 4 58 5.9% 

151% - 200% 33 27 12 14 11 0 97 9.9% 

201% - 250% 26 17 12 6 11 0 72 7.3% 

Over 250% 171 194 92 65 107 13 642 65.4% 

Total 277 282 141 106 155 20 981 100.0% 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS 

 

Deed-Restricted Sales 

 

The SMRHA provided information on the sale of 138 deed-restricted homes in San Miguel County over 

the past five years (2006 through 2010).  This equated to an average of nearly 28 units per year.  These 

<<Exhibits - Page >>146



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 53 

figures include sales of new units and re-sales of existing homes.  It does not include sales of 

unimproved lots and two quit claim deeds.  

 

Of the total, 61 units (44% of sales) were in Telluride, 38 (28%) were in Mountain Village and 39 (28%) 

were in the unincorporated county.  Of the 138 sales, 62 (45%) were for units with price-capped deed 

restrictions. 

 

Deed Restricted Sales by Location, 2006 – 2010 

 

 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total % of 
Total 

Mountain Village 10 15 6 5 2 38 28% 

SMC Price Capped 1 1    2 1% 

SMC R-1 10 17 3 4 3 37 27% 

Telluride 18 9 4 13 16 60 44% 

Telluride EDU   1   1 .7% 

Grand Total 39 42 14 22 21 138 100% 

Source: SMRHA using County Assessor records 

 

The 5-year trend in number of sales mirrors the same general pattern as the free market, although the 

volatility has not been as extreme.  Sales peaked in 2007 at 42 units, dropped to only 14 units in 2008 

then rebounded to 21 units in 2010, a decrease of 50% in number of units sold.  

 

On average, prices of deed-restricted units without price caps have been much higher than homes with 

price caps.   Mountain Village had the highest average over the past five years of $415,842. 

Homes without price caps or subsidies in unincorporated San Miguel County had the second highest 

average at $387,972. 

 

The average among price-capped units in Telluride was $236,997 or about 57% of the average for sales 

in the past five years in Mountain Village.  The price of the one unit that sold in Telluride without a price 

cap was much higher -- $440,000.  The figures for priced-capped units included the initial sales of units 

that the Town built and subsidized with its Affordable Housing Fund. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>147



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 54 

Average Prices of Deed Restricted Sales, 2006 – 2010 

 

 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 5-Yr 
Average 

Mountain Village $383,600 $398,613 $581,783 $301,220 $495,000 $415,842 

SMC Price Capped $177,268 $316,697    $246,983 

SMC  R-1 $409,440 $380,008 $451,167 $380,484 $308,333 $387,972 

Telluride $224,526 $197,331 $192,851 $275,247 $253,299 $236,997 

Telluride EDU   $440,000   $440,000 

Overall Average $311,516 $346,000 $432,543 $300,284 $284,180 $328,339 
Source: SMRHA using County Assessor records 

 

Even though the sample of sales in 2008 through 2010 is small, the overall averages for those years 

show a general trend in the prices of deed-restricted units.  Prices escalated into 2008, reaching an 

average high of $432,543, then declined over 34% in 2009 and 2010 to an overall average of $284,180.  

The pattern varied somewhat by area: 

 

 In Mountain Village, the average price in 2009 dropped 48% from the 2008 peak before 

increasing in 2010 due to one sale for $765,000. 

 

 In unincorporated San Miguel County, the average price in 2010 was 32% less than the 2008 

peak price.  
 

 Average prices in Telluride did not follow this pattern.  The four units that sold in Telluride in 

2008 when other units were at their peak had an average price of less than $193,000.  The 

average price in 2010 was 31% higher. 
 

In terms of affordability, a wide range of pricing has provided homes that are affordable for all AMI 

categories.  Approximately 28% of the deed-restriction units sold have been affordable for households 

with incomes equal to or less than 100% AMI, and nearly half have been affordable for households in 

the 100% to 150% AMI range.   The remaining 23% have had prices affordable for households with 

incomes greater than 150% AMI.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>148



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 55 

Deed-Restricted Sales in San Miguel County by AMI 

 

 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total % of Total 

31% - 50%  1   2 3 2.2% 

51% - 80% 7 4 2 5 2 20 14.5% 

81% - 100% 6 4 2 1 3 16 11.6% 

101% - 120% 11 5 1 3 5 25 18.1% 

121% - 150% 7 15 1 11 8 42 30.4% 

151% - 200% 6 10 4 2  22 15.9% 

201% - 250% 1 2 1   4 2.9% 

Over 250% 1 1 3  1 6 4.3% 

Total 39 42 14 22 21 138 100.0% 

Source: SMRHA using County Assessor records 
 

The following table provides information on the 10 deed-restricted units in the River Park subdivision in 

Ridgway.  They all sold in two years for roughly half the price of other homes in the subdivision.  When 

four of the units resold approximately two years later, prices had escalated approximately 13%.  The 

average price for free-market sales in River Park peaked in 2007 then dropped 18% by 2010. 

 

Deed-Restricted Sales in Ouray County 

 

River Park 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 

Deed Restricted      

# Sales/Resales 5 5 2 2  

Avg. Price $182,000 $197,500 $205,700 $221,450  

Market      

# Sales/Resales 2 5 4  3 

Avg. Price $334,450 $330,480 $460,725  $378,067 

Source: Ouray County Assessor 

<<Exhibits - Page >>149



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 56 

Availability of Homes 
 

The inventory of residential units listed for sale through the MLS in both counties is very large.  A total of 

741 units were listed for sale in Ouray County and San Miguel County as of February 26, 2010.  The exact 

number of listings varies daily but with few sales since 2007, the inventory has been large for three 

years.   While listings for sale by owner are not included in these figures, the sample is large and 

adequately represents the vast majority of homes on the market.  

 

Based on the number of market sales in 2010 (180 units or 15 sales per month), current listings equal a 

50-month or 4+ year inventory.  When the estimated time it will take to sell homes listed is greater than 

one year, it is generally considered to be a buyer’s market.  An inventory of less than six months is a 

seller’s market.  Based on the current inventory, it will be a long time before conditions return to a 

seller’s market.  Tables with all listings by price range and unit type are provided in the appendix to this 

report. 

 

Residential Listings as of February 26, 2010 

 

 Market Deed 
Restricted 

Total 

Ouray County    

Ouray 6  6 

Ridgway 35  35 

Unincorporated County 70  70 

Ouray County Total 111  111 

San Miguel County    

Mountain Village 240 15 255 

Telluride 180 1 181 

Norwood 17  17 

San Miguel Balance 156 21 177 

San Miguel Total 593 37 630 

    

2-County Total 704 37 741 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS and SMRHA 

 

The average prices of units listed for sale do not appear to reflect a saturated market with competitive 

pricing.  They generally exceed the prices of units sold in the past two years.  

  

<<Exhibits - Page >>150



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 57 

Average List Prices for Free-Market Units by Unit Type 

 

 Single Family Multi Family 

Ouray County   

Ouray $395,800 $799,000* 

Ridgway $464,677 $180,125 

Unincorporated $1,132,316 $265,000 

San Miguel County   

Mtn Village $5,413,962 $1,939,061 

Norwood $198,747 N/A 

Telluride $2,399,971 $1,048,902 

SM Balance $2,182,663 $273,200 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS. *Figure represents the 

price for one unit. 

 

A comparison of 2010 sale prices to 2011 list prices on a per-square-foot basis provides the most direct 

evaluation because variation by unit type and size is eliminated.  In 2010, homes sold in Ouray County 

averaged $221 per square foot.  The average price for units listed is 28% higher at $283.  In San Miguel 

County, the average price of $735 per square foot for homes listed for sale is 37% higher than the 

average of $536 per square foot for homes sold in 2010. 

 

Market Price per Square Foot, 2010 Sales and 2011 Listings Compared 

 

 2010 Sales 2011 Listings 

Ouray County   

Ouray $187 $230 

Ridgway $198 $216 

Unincorp $249 $321 

Total Ouray County $221 $283 

San Miguel County   

Mountain Village $544 $839 

Norwood $138 $139 

SM Balance $347 $528 

Telluride $582 $832 

Total San Miguel $536 $735 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS.  

 

The average list price for a three-bedroom home in Ouray County is just over $600,000. In San Miguel 

County, it is nearly $1.5 million. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>151



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 58 

Average Market List Price by Number of Bedrooms 

 

 1-bdrm 2-bdrm 3-bdrm 4-bdrm 5-bdrm 6-bdrm 

Ouray County       

Ouray  $317,500 $649,000 $422,500   

Ridgway $146,848 $236,728 $332,333 $744,500 $585,000 $489,000 

Unincorporated $689,000 $620,000 $690,766 $1,070,933 $3,456,667 $4,447,500 

Total $237,207 $435,095 $601,282 $929,391 $2,738,750 $3,128,000 

San Miguel County       

Mountain Village $1,067,253 $1,071,019 $2,091,269 $3,038,682 $4,725,962 $6,242,357 

Norwood  $193,250 $163,829 $213,950 $257,750  

SM Balance $361,600 $608,505 $833,349 $2,271,258 $4,482,913 $4,703,750 

Telluride $441,033 $845,968 $1,445,261 $2,565,607 $3,662,667 $4,259,286 

Total San Miguel $650,428 $850,863 $1,459,529 $2,664,642 $4,168,692 $5,386,315 
Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS.  

 

While the recession has greatly improved availability for persons seeking to buy a home, affordability 

has not greatly improved.  Of the 110 free-market homes listed for sale in Ouray County: 

 

 Only ten units or 9.1% of the total are affordable for households with incomes at or below 100% 

AMI.   All of these units are in Ridgway. 

 

 In unincorporated Ouray County, incomes in excess of 250% AMI are needed to afford 61% of 

the 70 units listed for sale.  Only nine units were listed for sale at prices affordable to 

households with incomes between 100% and 150% AMI. 

 

 In the City of Ouray, only six units were listed for sale, half of which were priced to require an 

income of over 200% AMI.   Only one unit was listed that was affordable for households with 

incomes of less than 150% AMI. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>152



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 59 

Ouray County Market Listings by AMI 

 

AMI Category Ouray Ridgway Unincorp Total 

<=30% 0 0 0 0 

31% - 50% 0 0 0 0 
51% - 80% 0 6 0 6 

81% - 100% 0 3 1 4 

101% - 120% 1 3 3 7 

121% - 150% 0 5 6 11 

151% - 200% 2 12 6 20 

201% - 250% 2 2 11 15 

Over 250% 1 3 43 47 

Total 6 34 70 110 

     

<=30% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

31% - 50% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
51% - 80% 0.0% 17.6% 0.0% 5.5% 

81% - 100% 0.0% 8.8% 1.4% 3.6% 

101% - 120% 16.7% 8.8% 4.3% 6.4% 

121% - 150% 0.0% 14.7% 8.6% 10.0% 

151% - 200% 33.3% 35.3% 8.6% 18.2% 

201% - 250% 33.3% 5.9% 15.7% 13.6% 

Over 250% 16.7% 8.8% 61.4% 42.7% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS.  

 

In San Miguel County, only 6% of the 593 homes listed for sale (37 units) were priced at levels affordable 

for households with incomes equal to or less than 100% AMI.  Over 73% of residential listings were at 

prices that need incomes in excess of 250% AMI in order to be affordable.  

  

 Norwood has by far the most affordable housing in the two-county region in both relative and 

absolute terms.  Of the 17 units listed for sale, all are affordable for households with incomes 

below 120% AMI. 

 

 Mountain Village has the most expensive housing listed for sale in the two-county region with 

88% requiring incomes over 250% AMI to be considered affordable.  

 

 While 12% of the homes listed for sale in Telluride were affordable for households in the 151% 

to 200% AMI range, incomes greater than 250% AMI were needed to afford 69% of the 180 

units listed.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>153



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 60 

 

 In unincorporated San Miguel County, seven units were listed at prices affordable for 

households making 80% AMI or less, making it the most affordable option after Norwood.  

Nearly 63% of the 156 units listed for sale, however, were at prices affordable that required an 

income greater than 250% AMI.  

 

San Miguel County Market Listings by AMI 

 

 
AMI 

Mtn Village Telluride Norwood San Miguel 
Balance 

Total 

31% - 50% 0 0 2 1 3 

51% - 80% 3 2 8 6 19 

81% - 100% 0 5 6 4 15 

101% - 120% 6 8 1 4 19 

121% - 150% 3 11 0 9 23 

151% - 200% 6 22 0 20 48 

201% - 250% 10 8 0 14 32 

Over 250% 212 124 0 98 434 

 240 180 17 156 593 

 
AMI 

Mtn Village Telluride Norwood San Miguel 
Balance 

Total 

31% - 50% 0.0% 0.0% 11.8% 0.6% 0.5% 

51% - 80% 1.3% 1.1% 47.1% 3.8% 3.2% 

81% - 100% 0.0% 2.8% 35.3% 2.6% 2.5% 

101% - 120% 2.5% 4.4% 5.9% 2.6% 3.2% 

121% - 150% 1.3% 6.1% 0.0% 5.8% 3.9% 

151% - 200% 2.5% 12.2% 0.0% 12.8% 8.1% 

201% - 250% 4.2% 4.4% 0.0% 9.0% 5.4% 

Over 250% 88.3% 68.9% 0.0% 62.8% 73.2% 

 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS.  

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>154



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 61 

Deed-Restricted Listings 

 

Of the 37 deed-restricted units listed for sale in San Miguel County, the average price was $379,508.  

The least expensive unit listed for $139,999 while the most expensive was listed at $750,000.  Based on 

the rate of sales in 2010 of 1.75 units per month, listings as of February equaled a 21-month inventory.  

Telluride is the only area where there are fewer units listed for sale than have historically sold in one 

year.  In 2010, 16 deed-restricted units were sold in Telluride, which equated to 1.3 sales per month.  

Only two deed-restricted units were listed for sale as of February, which equaled a 1.5-month inventory.  

 

Average and Median Prices for Deed-Restricted Listings 

 

 Mean Median Minimum Maximum N 

Mountain Village $445,300 $409,000 $170,000 $750,000 15 

San Miguel County $337,257 $305,000 $139,999 $725,000 21 

Telluride $265,434 $265,434 $250,968 $279,900 2 

Total San Miguel Co. $379,508 $355,000 $139,999 $750,000 37 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS and SMRHA 

 

As with deed-restricted units sold in the last five years, the AMI category with the most listings is 121% 

to 150% AMI followed by 101% to 120% AMI.   

 

Deed Restricted Listings by AMI, February 2011 

 

 Mountain 
Village 

SM Balance Telluride Total Percent of 
Total 

51% - 80% 1 5 0 6 15.8% 

81% - 100% 1 0 0 1 2.6% 

101% - 120% 1 6 1 8 21.1% 

121% - 150% 4 5 1 10 26.3% 

151% - 200% 4 3 0 7 18.4% 

201% - 250% 1 1 0 2 5.3% 

Over 250% 3 1 0 4 10.5% 

Total 15 21 2 38 100.0% 

Source: Telluride Association of Realtors Flex MLS and SMRHA 

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>155



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 62 

3 B. Rental Market Conditions 
 

This chapter of the report provides information on rental market conditions in the region.  It includes: 

 

 Renter-occupied units by type; 

 Rental units by type; 

 Rents by AMI and average rates and area; 

 Deed/occupancy-restricted rentals;  

 Apartment complexes; and 

 Rental vacancy rates. 

 

In this section of the report, information is provided on the affordability of both market and deed-

restricted rents.  The following table provides maximum affordable rent rates by AMI for both counties.  

The rates are based on the 30% rule – that the maximum contract rent equals no more than 30% of 

gross household income.  The amounts listed are the maximums for each AMI category.  For example, 

households in Ouray County with incomes in the 51% to 80% category could afford rents ranging from 

$634 to $1,014 per month.  The AMI’s for two-person households were used in these calculations in 

accordance with the average size of households in the region – 2.18 persons per household in Ouray 

County and 2.13 in San Miguel County. 

 

Maximum Affordable Rents by AMI for 2-Person Households 

 

Ouray County Household 
Incomes 

Max. Affordable 
Rents 

151% - 200% $101,400 $2,535 

121% - 150% $76,050 $1,901 

101% - 120% $60,840 $1,521 

81% - 100% $50,700 $1,268 

51% - 80% $40,550 $1,014 

31% - 50% $25,350 $634 

≤30% $15,200 $380 

San Miguel County   

151% - 200% $123,000 $3,075 

121% - 150% $92,250 $2,306 

101% - 120% $73,800 $1,845 

81% - 100% $61,500 $1,538 

51% - 80% $49,200 $1,230 

31% - 50% $30,750 $769 

≤30% $18,450 $461 

Source: CHFA and RRC/Rees calculations 

<<Exhibits - Page >>156



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 63 

Number of Rental Units 
 

There are approximately 2,250 renter-occupied units in the two-county region.  The number fluctuates 

and is increasing as units listed for sale are purchased as rental investments or are rented when owners 

are unable to sell them. 

 

San Miguel County has a much higher percentage of renter-occupied units (50%) than Ouray County 

(27%).  Telluride has the highest percentage (58%), while the unincorporated area of Ouray County has 

the lowest (24%). 

 

Renter-Occupied Units 

 

 Occupied 
Housing Units 

Rent  
% 

Rent 
# 

OURAY COUNTY 2,022 27%             540  

Ouray 457 30%             135  

Ridgway 404 31%             124  

Unincorp. Area 1,161 24%             281  

    

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 3,454 50%          1,711  

Mountain Village 751 52%             392  

Norwood 215 32%               68  

Telluride 1,086 58%             630  

San Miguel Balance 1,402 44%             621  

Sources: 2010 Census for occupied units; ESRI and Town of Telluride data 

for tenure percentages; RRC/Rees calculations 

 

Rental Units by Type 
 

The majority of renters in Ouray County live in single-family homes.  With only one apartment complex, 

only 26% live in apartment units.  In San Miguel County, the relationship is reversed with about 43% of 

renters residing in apartment units and 33% living in single-family homes.   

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>157



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 64 

Renter-Occupied Units by Type 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel 
County 

Single family house 53.9% 33.0% 

Apartment 25.5% 43.2% 

Townhouse/duplex 7.8% 5.5% 

Condo 2.0% 9.3% 

Alley structure/shed 1.0% 2.3% 

Room without kitchen 0.0% 3.5% 

Mobile home 9.8% 0.3% 

Other 0.0% 2.9% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 

Source: 2011 Household survey 

Rents 
 

In both counties, the majority of rental units are affordable for low-income households (≤ 80% AMI).  In 

Ouray County, 77% of all rental units rent for rates that are affordable for households with incomes no 

greater than 80% AMI; 10% are affordable for extremely low income households (≤ 30% AMI).  In San 

Miguel County, nearly 90% of deed-restricted rentals have rents that make them affordable for 

households with incomes equal to or less than 80% AMI.  Nearly 45% are affordable for the 31% to 50% 

AMI range.  Free market rents are higher in San Miguel County, but 55% are still affordable for low-

income households.  One-third rent for rates that are affordable for the 81% to 120% AMI ranges. 

 

Rents by AMI 

 

AMI Ouray County San Miguel 
Market 

San Miguel 
Restricted 

≤30% 10.1 2.9 8.0 

31% - 50% 26.2 12.4 45.1 

51% - 80% 40.6 40.0 36.3 

81% - 100% 13.1 20.0 8.8 

101% - 120% 8.6 12.9 1.8 

121% - 150% 0.7 7.1  

151% - 200% 0.7 3.5  

>250%  1.2  

 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>158



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 65 

An examination of average rents overall and by number of bedrooms illustrates the difference 

in rates between the two counties, and between free market and restricted rentals in San 

Miguel County.  The difference between market rents in the two counties is large – the overall 

average in Ouray County equals about 64% of the average in San Miguel County.  Rents for 

deed/occupancy restricted units in San Miguel County are much lower (about 35%) than market 

rents. 

  

Average Rents Overall and by Number of Bedrooms 

 

Bedrooms Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
Market 

San Miguel 
Restricted 

Studios* $700 $1,063 $637 

One $494 $1,023 $697 

Two $717 $1,311 $966 

Three $986 $1,568 $1,324 

Four* $1,250 $1,926 $1,022 

Overall Average $810 $1,261 $817 

Source: Household survey 

*Note: Small sample size. 

 

In all areas, rents for deed/occupancy restricted units are lower than free market rents.  The difference 

is most pronounced in Mountain Village where market rents are highest in the region and the average 

for market rental units is 2.3 times the average for restricted units.  

 

Average Rents by Community 

 

 Free 
Market 

Restricted Overall 

Ouray $718 N/A $718 

Ridgway $951 N/A $951 

Ouray Co Unincorp $738 N/A $738 

Mtn Village $1,735 $739 $872 

Norwood $730 $709 $726 

Telluride $1,435 $940 $1,243 

San Miguel Balance $1,142 $760 $1,099 

Source: Household survey 

 
 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>159



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 66 

Deed/Occupancy-Restricted Rentals 
 

A total of 725 renter-occupied units in San Miguel County, or 42% of the total, have some type of 

occupancy restriction.  Of these, 80% have restrictions with income limits that were either imposed as a 

condition of financing and/or by local deed restrictions.    The remaining 20% have some type of 

occupancy restriction associated with employment, but no income limits.  Approximately 52% of units 

are restricted for households with incomes no greater than 80% AMI.  There are no units with 

restrictions in the 101% to 120% AMI, but 42 in Telluride with Tier 3 deed restrictions allow occupancy 

by households with incomes up to 200% AMI.  

 

Deed-Restricted Rentals by AMI 

Ranges represent the maximum income allowed; 

Households with incomes lower than specified are income eligible. 

 

Project Name # of Units Up to 
50% 

51%- 
80% 

81% - 
100% 

101% - 
120% 

121% -
150% 

151% - 
200% 

No Limits 

Mtn Village         

Big Billies 149 46 103      

Village Court 221  66 155     

Mtn V. Firehouse 3       3 

Scattered EHR units 43       43 

Telluride         

Shandoka 134  134      

Creekside 26      26  

AHU - Mitigation 22    6  16  

EDU 24       24 

Norwood         

Cottonwood Creek 30 30       

San Miguel County         

ADUs 46       46 

Lawson Hill PUD 19       19 

Other Locations 8       8 

Total 725 76 303 155 6 0 42 143 

% of Total  10.5% 41.8% 21.4% 0.8% 0.0% 5.8% 19.7% 

Sources: SMRHA and property manager interviews. 

 

The income restrictions do not reflect the rents that are charged.  In most cases, rents are lower than 

that which residents earning the maximum allowed income could afford.  

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>160



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 67 

Apartment Complexes 
 

All of the apartment complexes in San Miguel County have some type of occupancy restriction.  The one 

complex in Ouray County does not.  

  

Big Billies 

 

This project provides primarily seasonal worker housing with 149 small studio apartments that are all 

income restricted and an on-site manager’s unit with two bedrooms.  The income restrictions were 

imposed through Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing.   Of the total, 15 units serve 45% AMI, 31 

are restricted at 50% AMI and the remaining 103 units have a 60% AMI cap. 

 

The project is owned and managed by Telluride Ski and Golf.  Without kitchens, the units do not appeal 

to year-round residents.   Redesign of the units to increase their size and provide kitchens has been 

considered, but is not economically feasible.  The owners would welcome opportunities to better utilize 

this housing asset, although the income restrictions significantly limit who can reside in the units.  One 

option under consideration is conversion of the property to a hotel and construction of replacement 

units that are more livable. 

 

Cottonwood Creek Estates 

 

All of the homes in this 30-unit project in Norwood are restricted for households with incomes equal to 

or less than 50% AMI ($38,400 for a family of four).  The project was financed in the late 1990’s through 

the Low Income Housing Tax Credit program and built by a developer out of Florida.  Local authorities do 

not have the ability to modify the income restrictions, which have proved to be a major impediment to 

Cottonwood Creek’s success.  Many applicants have incomes over the maximum allowed.  

 

All of the units are single-story detached homes with four bedrooms.  They are located on small lots 

along two streets on the south side of Norwood.  Each home has a one-car attached garage and 

washer/dryer hookups.  A park with nice playground funded in part by Cottonwood Creek’s developer is 

located between the subdivision and Town Hall.  The location and unit quality are both good. 

 

Rents are $749 per month, which is far less than the $1,113 maximum allowed for the project.  Given 

the income limits, most households with two income earners do not qualify to rent at Cottonwood 

Creek.  As such, the property primarily serves single-parent families and persons with disabilities, most 

with very low incomes.  Of the 20 households residing at Cottonwood Creek, 14 hold Section 8 rent 

subsidy vouchers.  Local officials are frustrated that the project does not offer free market units for 

moderate- and middle-income families, as they believed would be the case.  

 

Opportunities for better utilization of this housing asset are limited, but not eliminated, by the income 

restrictions.  Units could be specifically marketed to seniors.  The elderly population is growing in the 

<<Exhibits - Page >>161



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 68 

County and there is no housing in either San Miguel or Ouray County specifically designed and built for 

seniors.  Though they likely do not need four bedrooms, the single-story designs and handicapped 

accessibility make them appropriate for seniors.  Persons with physical disabilities are also a potential 

target market for the property.  

 

Creekside 

 

Creekside is a 26-unit apartment project near Shandoka on the southwest side of Telluride.  Most of the 

units (20 of the 26) have one bedroom and the other six have two.  The property has two central laundry 

facilities. 

 

Creekside was built to satisfy mitigation requirements.  As such, all of the units are income restricted for 

households with income at or under 200% AMI; however only one unit is rent capped.  Eligibility is 

determined by SMRHA. 

 

The majority of the apartments are occupied by couples, two of which have one child.  Couples even live 

in most of the one-bedroom units.   The rest of the units are mostly occupied by singles living alone.  

Creekside has very few roommate households.   Because the project accepts dogs, it has always been 

popular. 

 

Northridge 

 

This 24-unit apartment project is located on the northeastern edge of Ridgway.  It is the only apartment 

complex in Ouray County.   Half of the units have two bedrooms.  The rest have one or three bedrooms.  

About half of the residents work in the area, while the other half commute to the Telluride area for 

work.  

 

There are no income restrictions or other eligibility requirements at Northridge.  The rents charged are 

what the market will bear.  Lower rents in Montrose limit the rates that can be commanded in Ridgway.  

Current rents are $150 per month lower than the rates charged before the recession.  Despite high 

vacancies and the need to lower rents, the project’s no dog policy has been maintained. 

 

Shandoka Apartments 

 

This 134-unit project is located on the southwestern side of Telluride.  It was developed in four phases 

over approximately 15 years and is now managed by the Town of Telluride.  All of the units are income 

restricted, most at 80% AMI.  Rents vary based upon unit size.  Apartments with lofts are roughly $50 

more per month. 

 

The one-bedroom units have been the easiest to rent.  Two-bedroom units are the second most popular 

unit type. The larger units have been more difficult to lease since the number of families looking to rent 

<<Exhibits - Page >>162



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 69 

apartments is limited, and households consisting of three or more roommates tend to have incomes 

above the maximum allowed.  Shandoka has a no-dogs policy. 

 

Village Court 

 

This 221-unit project is located in Mountain Village.  It was developed in phases, with the initial units 

built over 20 years ago, making it the oldest apartment complex in the area.  The property is now 

managed and maintained by the Town of Mountain Village.  It serves both year-round and seasonal 

employees with both six-month and one-year leases.  The majority of the units are under one-year 

leases. 

 

The property offers a mix of unit types ranging from studios to three-bedroom apartments.  The 

property has central laundry facilities, a playground and on-site day care. One building with 18 units was 

vacated during the 2010/11 season due to water damage.  Most tenants in that building were relocated 

to other apartments in the project.   A grant for $880,000 has been awarded by the Colorado Division of 

Housing to rehabilitate the property.   

 

In practice, all of the units at Village Court are income restricted.  In accordance with HUD financing, 66 

of the 221 units can only be occupied by households with incomes no greater than 80% AMI based on 

household size.  The Town of Mountain Village applies a maximum income restriction of 100% AMI to 

the other units though exceptions are allowed, such as when an employer leases an apartment for their 

employees.  If the leasing entity has an income over 100% AMI, a higher rent is charged.   For employees 

with incomes under 100% AMI, rents are generally set at the 50% to 60% AMI range. 

 

Rents by Project 

 

 Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 

Big Billies $600; $700     

Cottonwood Crk     $749 

Creekside  $645 - $985 $1,200 - $1,284   

Shandoka  $719 - $780 $971 - $1,027 $1,289 - $1,319 $1,573 

Northridge  $650 $750 $850  

Village Court* $665 - $718 $824 - $906 $1,019 – 1,097 $1,187 - $1,267  

Source: Interviews 

*The rates for studios and two-bedroom units include full utilities, but residents in one- and three-bedroom 

apartments must pay for their electricity. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>163



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 70 

Rental Vacancies 
 

The overall vacancy rate among apartment complexes is about 5%.  However, vacancies among 

apartment complexes in the two-county region vary.  In the Telluride region, projects were at or near 

full occupancy levels during the ski season, with an extremely low vacancy rate of 1.1%.  All of them, 

with the exception of Big Billies, have maintained high occupancy rates year round during the past two 

recessionary years.  Big Billies, which was not designed for year-round living, continues to exhibit its 

seasonal fluctuations with high vacancies at all times other than during the ski season. 

 

The two projects located outside of the Telluride region have struggled to maintain sustaining 

occupancy levels.   Northridge in Ridgway has had high vacancies since the economic downturn, while 

Cottonwood Creek has never performed well primarily due to its 50% income limits in combination with 

large units appropriate for multiple income earners. 

 

Vacancies by Project 

 

Project Name # of Units # Vacant % Vacant 

Big Billies 149 0 0 

Village Court 221 4 1.8% 

Shandoka 134 2 1.5% 

Creekside 26 0 0 

Cottonwood Creek 30 10 33% 

Northridge 24 13 54% 

Total 584 29 5.0% 

 

Greater detail is provided on occupancy levels by project: 

 

 Village Court – This property has maintained high occupancy levels even during the recession of 

the past two years.  Four units were vacant as of the end of January, which equates to a vacancy 

rate of less than 2%.  Two applications for units that allow dogs were on file, but dogs are not 

allowed in the units that were vacant.   

 

 Big Billies - All units were occupied in January, as is usually the case during the ski season, but for 

much of the rest of the year the units sit empty.  

  

 Cottonwood Creek Estates  --  Of the 30 homes, 10 were available for lease as of January. 

 

 Creekside -- This property is performing well with 100% of the units occupied and a wait list that 

was 1.5 pages long in January. 

   

<<Exhibits - Page >>164



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 71 

 Northridge -- According to the property owner, occupancy levels at Northridge have fluctuated 

from about 50% in the winter to 75% in the summer months during the past year.  As of March, 

only 11 of the 24 unit were occupied for a vacancy rate of 54%.  Vacancies are lowest among the 

two-bedroom units, which has typically been the case.   

 

 Shandoka  - As of the end of January, two units were available for rent.  Occupancy levels have 

been running at about 97% in 2010/11, but historically the project has maintained full 

occupancy.  The project’s wait list typically has 10 to 20 applicants, many of which are 

requesting in-house transfers.  Many of the residents who want to move from one apartment to 

another have been living with roommates and prefer to live alone, or have been living alone and 

instead want to live with roommates to reduce housing expenses.   

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>165



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 72 

4.  Housing Problems 
 

This section of the report examines and quantifies multiple indicators or housing problems including: 

 

 Opinions about the extent to which workforce housing is a problem; 

 Satisfaction with housing; 

 Current housing conditions; 

 Affordability; 

 Have moved or plan to move; 

 Housing-related employment problems; and 

 Foreclosures. 

 

Opinions about Workforce Housing 
 

Based on 1,190 responses to the household survey, the majority of residents in both counties feel that 

the problem of finding affordable housing for persons who work in the region is either the most critical 

or one of the more serious problems.  Residents of San Miguel County are more likely to feel workforce 

housing is a critical or serious problem (67%) than residents of Ouray County (54%).  The proportion of 

residents who do not believe that workforce housing is a problem is about equal in the two counties at 

between 3% and 4%. 

 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>166



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 73 

Renters in both counties are more likely than homeowners to feel that workforce housing is a problem.  

 

Severity of Workforce Housing Problem by Own/Rent 

 

Ouray County Own Rent 

It is the most critical problem 8.3 17.6 

One of the more serious problems in the region 44.2 41.2 

A problem among others needing attention 35.9 41.2 

One of our lesser problems 6.5  

I don't believe work force housing is a problem 5.1  

 100% 100% 

San Miguel County   

It is the most critical problem 8.8 24.6 

One of the more serious problems in the region 45.2 56.0 

A problem among others needing attention 37.5 15.3 

One of our lesser problems 4.7 1.8 

I don't believe work force housing is a problem 3.8 2.4 

 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Residents of Telluride are more likely than residents living elsewhere in the two-county region to feel 

that workforce housing is a critical or serious problem.  Residents of Norwood are the least likely to feel 

workforce housing is a problem. 

 

Severity of Workforce Housing Problem by Area 

 

 Ouray Ridgway Ouray Co 
Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Most critical problem 11.8 13.6 10.3 15.8 5.3 20.3 16.2 

More serious problem 43.4 43.2 44.6 55.3 36.8 50.0 50.0 

A problem among others 38.2 34.1 36.6 22.4 44.7 23.1 28.6 

A lesser problems 5.3 5.7 4.0 3.3 7.9 4.2 2.1 

Not a problem 1.3 3.4 4.5 3.3 5.3 2.4 3.1 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>167



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 74 

Satisfaction with Housing 
 

Residents of Ouray County are more likely than residents of San Miguel County to be very satisfied with 

their current residence (70% compared to 55%).  Satisfaction levels are much higher among 

homeowners in both counties than among renters.   In both counties, 2.3% of the households 

responding are very dissatisfied, which equates to 47 households in Ouray County and 79 households in 

San Miguel County. 

 

Satisfaction with Current Residence by County and Own/Rent 

 

Ouray County Own Rent Overall 

Very satisfied 84.3 30.4 70.1 

Somewhat satisfied 9.8 47.1 19.6 

Somewhat dissatisfied 5.2 15.7 8.0 

Very dissatisfied 0.7 6.9 2.3 

 100% 100% 100% 

San Miguel County   

Very satisfied 71.3 38.1 55.0 

Somewhat satisfied 22.1 49.7 35.7 

Somewhat dissatisfied 5.2 8.9 7.0 

Very dissatisfied 1.4 3.3 2.3 

 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Satisfaction levels are highest in Norwood and lowest in Mountain Village, although the percentages are 

very similar throughout the two-county region. 

 

Satisfaction with Current Residence by Area 

 

 Ouray Ridgway Ouray 
Co 

Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Very satisfied 64.6 71.4 71.5 45.1 65.9 51.4 59.8 

Somewhat satisfied 28.0 19.8 15.8 41.8 31.7 38.8 31.1 

Somewhat dissatisfied 4.9 6.6 10.1 9.8 2.4 7.0 6.8 

Very dissatisfied 2.4 2.2 2.6 3.3  2.8 2.4 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>168



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 75 

There is a correlation between satisfaction with current residence and incomes.  The average household 

income for residents who are very satisfied is approximately $85,000, while the average is slightly less 

than $40,000 for residents who are very dissatisfied.  

 

Satisfaction with Current Residence by Income 

 

 Avg. Household 
Income 

Very satisfied $85,014 

Somewhat satisfied $57,781 

Somewhat dissatisfied $61,945 

Very dissatisfied $39,738 

Source: Household survey 

 

There is also a correlation between satisfaction levels and length of residency.   Newcomers who have 

lived in the region for one year or less tend to be more dissatisfied than others.  It appears that the first 

year of residency is the most difficult in terms of finding housing that meets needs and desires.  After 

the first year, residents tend to have similar satisfaction levels. 

 

Satisfaction with Current Residence by Length of Residency 

 

 Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
to 1 year 

1 to 5 
years 

5 to 10 
years 

10 to 20 
years 

More 
than 20 

years 

Very satisfied 16.7 48.4 54.5 52.7 61.4 67.8 

Somewhat satisfied 42.9 19.4 36.8 38.8 30.0 22.9 

Somewhat dissatisfied 31.0 22.6 4.8 6.7 7.2 7.5 

Very dissatisfied 9.5 9.7 3.8 1.8 1.4 1.7 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Responses concerning reasons for dissatisfaction were similar in the two counties in terms of general 

ranking; however, in San Miguel County “too expensive” was the most frequently cited reason, whereas 

“high utility bills” was the top reason in Ouray County. 

 

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>169



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 76 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

Renters are more likely to be dissatisfied due to poor maintenance and overcrowding than are 

homeowners. 

 

Reasons for Dissatisfaction by Own/Rent 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel 
County 

 Own Rent Own Rent 

Too expensive 50.4 33.5 34.8 64.5 

High utility bills 73.4 51.7 24.3 15.4 

Other 26.7   53.0 26.8 

Poor maintenance 9.8 24.3 14.9 34.9 

Disturbance from nearby short-term rentals 10.2 24.2 16.8 12.3 

Overcrowded 6.7 18.2 7.4 16.5 

In undesirable location 6.4   12.3 9.7 

Too far from work 3.4 9.0 8.6 12.5 

 186.9% 160.8% 172.0% 192.6% 

Source: Household survey.  Multiple response question; totals exceed 100%. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>170



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 77 

In both counties, approximately 58% of residents report that their satisfaction with their residence has 

stayed about the same in the last three years.  Renters in Ouray County were the most likely to indicate 

that their level of satisfaction has decreased. 

 

Changes in Satisfaction in Past Three Years 

 

Ouray County Own Rent Overall 

Increased - I am more satisfied 27.4 28.2 27.7 

Decreased - I am less satisfied 7.0 32.0 14.0 

Stayed about the same 65.6 39.8 58.4 

 100% 100% 100% 

    

San Miguel County Own Rent Overall 

Increased - I am more satisfied 24.0 20.4 22.3 

Decreased - I am less satisfied 13.4 23.3 18.8 

Stayed about the same 62.6 56.3 58.9 

 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Current Housing Conditions 
 

Survey participants were asked to rate 11 aspects of where they currently reside on a scale of 1 to 5, 

where 1 equals poor and 5 equals excellent.  A comparison of the average ratings in the two counties 

shows little variation.  Quality of schools and safety/security both rated very high.  Residents of Ouray 

County gave higher ratings to yard size, privacy, size of home and exterior appearance, while San Miguel 

County residents gave higher scores to community amenities and proximity to services. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>171



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 78 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

Renters generally rated all aspects of where they currently live lower than homeowners.  The exceptions 

were “community character” and “proximity to services.” 
 

Conditions Where Currently Live by Own/Rent 
 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent Own Rent 

CONDITION OF HOME 4.2 3.2 4.0 3.5 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY 3.7 2.4 3.4 2.9 

EXTERIOR APPEARANCE 4.1 3.3 3.8 3.4 

SIZE OF HOME 4.0 3.1 3.6 3.0 

PRIVACY 4.3 3.4 3.8 3.4 

YARD/ LOT SIZE 4.4 3.5 3.6 2.8 

SAFETY/ SECURITY 4.4 3.8 4.3 3.8 

QUALITY OF SCHOOLS 4.1 3.9 4.3 4.1 

COMMUNITY AMENITIES 3.7 3.3 3.8 3.6 

COMMUNITY CHARACTER 4.2 3.8 4.0 4.0 

PROXIMITY TO SERVICES 3.3 3.2 3.6 3.6 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>172



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 79 

While residents in both counties gave above average ratings overall to the 11 conditions tested, the 

following table provides the percentages for ratings of 1, which equals “poor,” or 2.   Energy efficiency 

was rated “poor” by a relatively high percentage of residents in all communities.  Yard size, privacy and 

size of home received a higher percentage of “poor” ratings in Mountain Village and Telluride than in 

the other communities. 

 

Poor (1 or 2) Ratings by Community 

 

 Ouray Ridgway Ouray Co 
Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

CONDITION OF HOME 8.3 10.2 9.0 5.5 5.3 9.8 7.3 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY 23.2 21.1 23.7 17.8 24.4 31.8 23.6 

EXTERIOR APPEARANCE 7.3 14.1 10.0 14.9 7.3 16.2 9.6 

SIZE OF HOME 13.3 7.6 7.1 25.7 10.0 26.3 20.8 

PRIVACY 14.8 10.0 5.9 22.4 10.0 29.2 10.0 

YARD/ LOT SIZE 19.5 13.3 6.3 53.1 7.3 47.3 20.6 

SAFETY/ SECURITY 1.3 4.5 3.6 3.4 2.6 7.0 4.6 

QUALITY OF SCHOOLS 2.6 4.8 4.2 2.7 12.8 2.2 3.6 

COMMUNITY AMENITIES 11.0 6.8 20.5 14.1 22.5 2.9 22.8 

COMMUNITY 
CHARACTER 

4.8 3.3 12.6 9.7 10.3 4.2 10.2 

PROXIMITY TO SERVICES 16.5 17.2 24.3 10.0 26.8 3.8 34.4 

Source: Household survey 

 

Affordability 
 

The affordability of housing is typically assessed based on the percentage of household income that it 

takes to cover the monthly rent or mortgage payment.   As a general rule, housing is considered to be 

affordable when the cost is no more than 30% of income.  In Ouray County, 30% of households, or 

approximately 610 households, spend more than 30% of their income on housing and are considered to 

be cost burdened.  The percentage is higher in San Miguel County (44% or 1,513 households) where 

housing costs are higher. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>173



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 80 

Affordability of Housing by County 

 

Housing Payment as a 
Percentage of Income 

Ouray County San Miguel 
County 

Overall 

Under 20% 33.3 29.6 30.7 

20-30% 36.5 26.6 29.6 

30-35% 6.8 9.2 8.4 

35-40% 9.4 8.7 8.9 

40-50% 6.3 9.6 8.6 

Over 50% 7.8 16.3 13.7 

 100% 100% 100% 

Total Cost Burdened 30.2 43.8 39.6 

Source: Household survey 

 

In relative terms, Telluride has more cost burdened households than other communities in the region, 

followed by the balance of San Miguel County, then Mountain Village. 

 

Affordability of Housing by Area 

 

Housing Payment as 
a Percentage of 
Income 

Ouray Ridgway Ouray 
Co 

Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Under 20% 38.5 30.2 33.0 34.4 45.5 21.5 31.2 

20-30% 35.9 34.9 36.6 25.8 18.2 31.1 24.7 

30-35% 5.1 7.0 7.1 4.3 13.6 5.9 14.0 

35-40% 12.8 9.3 8.9 8.6 4.5 11.9 7.0 

40-50% 2.6 7.0 7.1 9.7  8.9 10.8 

Over 50% 5.1 11.6 7.1 17.2 18.2 20.7 12.4 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Total Cost Burdened 
25.6% 34.9% 30.4% 39.8% 36.4% 47.4% 44.1% 

Source: Household survey 

 

There is a direct relationship between income levels and the percentage of income spent on housing.  

Lower income households tend to spend proportionately more of their income on their monthly housing 

payment than do residents with higher incomes. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>174



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 81 

Housing Affordability by Income 

 

Housing Payment 
as a Percentage 

of Income 

Average 
Household 

Income 

Under 20% $105,785 

20-30% $69,362 

30-35% $55,969 

35-40% $52,040 

40-50% $36,917 

Over 50% $27,375 

Source: Household survey 

 

Utilities add to the cost of housing.  The average monthly cost of utilities ranges from $200 for renters in 

San Miguel County to $315 for renters in Ouray County, where nearly 19% indicated that their utilities 

cost $500 or more per month. 

 

Monthly Cost of Utilities 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Under $50 1.2 3.5 1.6 1.9 5.3 3.3 

$50 - $99 2.5 8.2 3.9 2.6 20.1 10.0 

$100 - $149 9.4 7.1 9.0 11.8 11.4 11.8 

$150 - $199 12.9 18.5 13.9 13.9 16.7 15.0 

$200 - $249 19.8 21.1 19.5 21.5 14.8 18.3 

$250 - $299 12.8 4.6 11.5 9.9 5.2 8.0 

$300 - $349 13.1 3.4 11.4 13.6 9.4 12.2 

$350 - $399 5.1 2.4 4.4 5.8 6.0 5.8 

$400 - $449 11.6 8.0 11.2 8.2 3.8 6.2 

$450 - $499 0.7 4.8 1.5 2.0 2.6 2.2 

$500 or more 11.1 18.5 12.2 9.0 4.7 7.2 

     TOTAL 100 100 100 100 100 100 

     Average $286 $315 $290 $274 $200 $244 

Source: Household survey 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>175



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 82 

Have Moved or Plan to Move 
 

One indication that housing is not affordable or satisfactory is when residents move.  When residents 

cannot find places to live that meet their needs and incomes, they often have to find an alternative 

place to live.  Of the households surveyed, 29% had moved within the past three years.  The most 

frequently cited reason for moving was “to find less expensive housing,” followed by “to find the type of 

home I desire.”  Also, nearly 18% indicated they had been displaced or forced to move. 

 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

There is some variation within the region.  Residents in Ouray and Ridgway were significantly more likely 

than those in other communities to move in order to live in a community that they preferred; a high 

percentage of residents in Mountain Village and Norwood indicated they moved for employment; and 

residents in Norwood, Telluride, other San Miguel and unincorporated Ouray County were likely to have 

moved to find less expensive housing. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>176



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 83 

 

Reasons for Moving by Area 

 

 Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Ouray Ridgway Ouray Co 
Unincorp 

To find less expensive housing 16.2 34.4 32.2 31.9 9.8 19.9 32.2 

To find the type of home I desire 12.8 13.9 23.3 24.5 29.5 22.9 27.8 

For employment 36.3 31.1 17.2 21.2 9.8 13.8 18.9 

To live in a community  I prefer 10.2 7.9 28.1 14.2 43.7 38.7 23.9 

Other 18.5 23.6 20.2 17.1 17.0 33.6 12.1 

Displaced/forced to move 16.2 17.5 16.1 16.4 19.6 19.3 18.9 

To live in a more rural location 4.0 9.1 5.4 15.2   17.9 34.5 

To live closer to work 18.1   16.0 13.5 26.8 11.2 9.3 

 132% 137% 158% 153% 156% 177% 177% 

Source: Household survey 

 

The majority of residents in both counties plan to continue to live in the area for a long time; at least 10 

years.   

Plans to Move 

 

 Ouray 
County 

San 
Miguel 
County 

Overall 

Less than 6 months 0.3 2.7 1.8 

6 months  to 1 year 1.9 6.4 4.7 

1 to 5 years 15.6 17.3 16.7 

5 to 10 years 16.9 16.9 16.9 

10 to 20 years 19.1 24.2 22.3 

More than 20 years 46.2 32.6 37.6 

 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Housing-Related Employment Problems 
 

Because workforce housing is a key component of economic sustainability and employers are valuable 

sources of information when estimating both current and future housing demand, this part of the report 

provides an in-depth examination of results from the employer survey. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>177



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 84 

Perceptions 

 

Most employers in both counties feel that affordable/employee housing for local residents is a problem, 

although employers in San Miguel perceive it to be a more critical problem.  In Ouray County, 84% of 

employers indicated housing is a problem among others that need attention or one of the more serious 

problems in the area.  In San Miguel County, 90% of employers indicated affordable/employee housing 

is a problem.  

 

Employer Perceptions about Housing Problems 
 

 Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

The most critical problem in this region 0 15% 

One of the more serious problems 42% 42% 

A problem among others which also need attention 42% 33% 

One of our lesser problems 11% 6% 

I don’t believe it is a problem 5% 4% 

Source: Employer survey 

 

Based on interviews, there appears to be a general sense that seasonal employees who live in the area 

only part of the year can find housing that is acceptable to them.  They have few possessions, are usually 

young and single, will live without a kitchen and have Big Billies as an option.  Plus, the number of 

employees who move into the area to work seasonal jobs has decreased since 2008.  With the loss of 

construction and other jobs, seasonal jobs have been largely filled by year-round residents. 

Housing suitable for year-round residents is more difficult to find.  Low-income rentals are available, but 

rentals for mid-level management are harder to find.  Demand for housing within Telluride can never be 

satisfied given limited land availability, so sites nearby should be considered.  Commuting to more 

distant communities like Ridgway is too far and negatively impacts employee performance.  Employers 

feel that short-range commuting is much more desirable with far fewer negative impacts on employee 

performance. 

 

Impacts of Recession 

 

Employers were asked about measures they have taken in the past two recessionary years that could 

have impacted the ability of their employees to afford housing.  The results suggest that the recession 

has hard hit many employers and their employees.   Overall 65% have reduced the hours their 

employers work, 59% have frozen wages/salaries and 20% have reduced wage rates.   
 

<<Exhibits - Page >>178



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 85 

Impacts of Recession 

 

 Overall Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

Reduction in hours employees work 65% 61% 66% 

Wage/salary freezes 59% 56% 59% 

Lay offs/elimination of jobs 40% 17% 46% 

Cut backs in benefits - insurance, 
vacations, etc 

23% 17% 25% 

Reduction in wage rates paid 20% 6% 25% 

Other 14% 11% 15% 

Reduction/elimination of housing 
assistance 

5% 6% 5% 

Reduction/elimination of transportation 
subsidies 

2%   3% 

Total  228% 172% 243% 

Source: Employer survey.   Multiple response question; totals exceed 100%. 

 

Results are similar in both counties concerning cut backs in hours and wage freezes, the two most 

frequent impacts, but proportionately more employers in San Miguel County indicate they had to 

eliminate jobs and reduce wage rates. 

 

Eliminating ski passes was the most frequently mentioned of the “other” measures employers took due 

to the recession. 

 

Work Performance 

 

When asked about how the cost or lack of housing has affected the performance of their employees, 

37% overall and 41% of the employers surveyed in San Miguel County cited displeasure with wage rates.  

Tardiness from long commutes was also cited by 23% overall.  Employers in San Miguel County were 

much more likely to indicate problems with employee work performance related to housing than were 

employers in Ouray County.  Overall, 36% indicated housing has not affected performance, but that 

varies widely – 63% in Ouray County compared to 29% in San Miguel County.  Among the “other” 

performance problems mentioned, turnover, on-the-job fatigue and forced commuting were the most 

often cited. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>179



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 86 

How Housing Has Affected Work Performance 

 

 Overall Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

Displeasure with wage rates due to 
high housing costs 

37% 16% 41% 

Tardiness from long commutes 23% 5% 29% 

High turnover 20% 11% 20% 

Other 17% 16% 18% 

High absentee rate 9% 5% 9% 

I don't believe housing has affected 
employee performance 

36% 63% 29% 

 141% 116% 145% 

Source: Employer survey.  Multiple response question; totals exceed 100%. 

 

Unfilled Jobs 

 

One measure of unmet housing demand is unfilled jobs.  If employers cannot recruit employees to fill 

positions, housing is often the primary reason when housing costs are high relative to income.  If 

housing availability is limited, it follows that additional units are needed for jobs to be filled.   

 

Estimate of Unfilled Jobs 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel 
County 

Employers unable to fill jobs 16% 17% 

# Unfilled jobs 6 50 

# Persons employed by 
employers that were surveyed 

391 2,961 

% of employees 1.5% 2.0% 

Total jobs in county 2,292 6,299 

Estimated unfilled jobs 34 126 

Source: Employer survey; DOLA 

 

The percentage of employers who responded that they were unable to fill jobs is much lower than in 

previous years when the economy was in better condition.  While 17% of the employers surveyed in San 

<<Exhibits - Page >>180



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 87 

Miguel County noted inability to fill jobs in 2010, approximately 60% in 2000 and 23% in 1996 were 

unable to fill jobs (note figures for 1996 and 2000 covered only the Telluride region).  

 

Employers were also asked how many employees left or could not accept a job because of housing.  

Overall, 27% indicated they had one or more employees who left or declined a job.  The average number 

was 1.7 employees. 

 

Foreclosures 
 

Foreclosures are up sharply in both counties.  In Ouray County: 

 

 The number of filings increased from 10 in 2008 to 59 in 2010, an increase of nearly 500%.   The 

peak year however was 2009, with 68 filings.   

 

 The rate of completed foreclosures was the fourth highest among Colorado counties in 2010 – 

one for every 165 households or 0.61%.  This is in contrast to 2008 when Ouray County’s rate of 

one per 947 households was one of the lowest completed foreclosure rates in the state. 

 

 The number of completed foreclosures grew to almost equal the number of filings in 2010 as the 

cases filed in 2009 moved through the system to auction.   With the decline in filings in 2010, 

the number of completed foreclosures should decline in 2011 or 2012. 

 

In San Miguel County: 

 

 The number of filings rose from 35 in 2008 to 108 in 2010, an increase of just over 200%. 

 

 The completed foreclosure rate increased from one per 881 households in 2008 to one per 505 

households in 2010.   

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>181



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 88 

 

Foreclosures Filed and Completed 

 

 Foreclosures 
Filings 

Foreclosures 
Completed/Sales 

Deed Restricted 
Filings 

Foreclosure Rate* 

Ouray County     

2008 10 2  947 

2009 68 38  N/A 

2010 59 55  165 

     

San Miguel County     

2008 35 3 2 881 

2009 97 37 8 N/A 

2010 108 46 12 505 
Source: San Miguel County Treasurer; DOLA.  *Number of households per completed foreclosure.  

 

The total in 2010 for Colorado was one completed foreclosure per 415 households.  The rate in San 

Miguel County is better than for the state as a whole, but the rate for Ouray County is worse. 

 

Foreclosures were filed on a total of 33 residential deed-restricted properties from 2008 through the 

first two months of 2011.  This figure includes seven lots.  Of the 26 units, four were accessory dwellings 

where the foreclosure was on the entire property.    

 

The number of foreclosure filings has increased each year from only two in 2008 to 14 in 2010.  Six were 

filed in the first two month of 2011.  If this rate continues, filings will total 36 in 2011, which is more 

than in the past three years combined.  This trend is in line with the predictions of mortgage lenders 

who expect significant increases in foreclosures in the next year. 

 

Of the total: 

 

 Nearly one-third (10) were withdrawn; 

 

 Seven are currently owned by banks; 

 

 Four were sold to employees; and 

 

 Eight are still in process. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>182



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 89 

Deed-Restricted Foreclosures 

 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 - 
Jan/Feb 

Total 

Total Filings 2 11 14 6 33 

# lots 0 3 2 2 7 

# units 2 8 12 4 26 

      

Deed Restriction      

Mtn. Village 2 7 6 1 16 

SMC  4 6 4 14 

Telluride   2 1 3 

      

Action/Status      

Withdrawn 1 3 6  10 

Owned by Bank  3 4  7 

Sold to employee 1 2 0 1 4 

Sold to SMC  2 1  3 

Sold to Other  1   1 

In Process   3 5 8 

Source: San Miguel County Assessor records researched by SMRHA. 

 

San Miguel County purchased two units and one lot to preserve their deed restrictions.  Both of the 

homes are now listed for sale.  

 

The vast majority of the deed restricted filings (30 out of 33, or 91%) have been on units which do not 

have initial or resale price caps or limits on the amount that owners can borrow.  

 

 About half (16 of the 33 filings) were on units or lots in Mountain Village; 

 

 14 foreclosures filed were on properties in unincorporated San Miguel County; 

 

Three were on units under Telluride’s price-capped deed restrictions but only one was for a unit actually 

located in town, and it was withdrawn.  Foreclosures were filed on two units at Brown Homestead, 

which were built off site to satisfy the Town’s mitigation requirements.  One is now bank owned and the 

other is scheduled for sale in May.  

 

Based on two recent sales, banks are heavily discounting deed-restricted units they own in order to sell 

them.  A unit in Mountain Village that was bank purchased for $287,724 sold for $163,900, or 57% of 

what they paid for it.  Another Mountain Village unit was purchased by a bank for $292,716 then sold 

for $142,800, which equates to 49% of the cost. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>183



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 90 

 

Foreclosures have been rising and, as predicted by multiple mortgage lenders, are likely to rise.  One 

lender used the term “explode” while another said foreclosures are “ready to blossom”.    They see that 

many residents have managed to make their housing payments for the past two years but are 

exhausting their ability to do so and, with no way to sell their homes for what they are not worth, will be 

forced to walk away.  

 

According to the household survey, 10% of the homeowners in San Miguel County are in default or at 

risk of default on their mortgage and 15% of renters are behind on their rent.  In Ouray County, fewer 

owners indicated they were in default, but over 20% of renters were behind on rent. 

 

In or At Risk of Default 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

 Own Rent Own Rent 

In default on my mortgage or behind on rent 1.1 1.0 2.3 2.9 

At risk of default on mortgage/behind on rent 3.2 20.4 7.5 12.1 

Not at risk 95.7 78.6 90.2 85.0 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>184



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 91 

5.  Special Needs 
 

This section of the report examines seniors, the Spanish-speaking population and very low income 

residents in both counties.  Due to the severity of the climate in the region, homelessness is not an 

issue.  While some employees camp during the summer on nearby public lands, camping is usually a 

choice.  The disabled population is very small also due primarily to the climate.  The impediments to 

mobility present such challenges that persons with physical disabilities do not move into the area and 

persons who become disabled typically are forced to move away.  

 

Seniors 
 

Both counties have a relatively small population of persons who are age 65 or older.  The senior 

population is larger in Ouray County – 527 persons or 11.7% of the population.  In San Miguel County, 

only 303 persons or 4.1% of the population are seniors.  

 

Senior Population by Gender 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Male Female Total Male Female Total 

65 and 66 years 66 56 122 28 30 58 

67 to 69 years 77 65 142 28 39 67 

70 to 74 years 54 87 141 72 50 122 

75 to 79 years 45 36 81 13 4 17 

80 to 84 years 4 5 9 22 4 26 

85 years and over 13 19 32 4 9 13 

Total 259 268 527 167 136 303 

Percent of Total 12.4% 11.0% 11.7% 4.3% 3.9% 4.1% 

Source: ACS 

 

The Director of the Department of Social Services that covers both counties indicated that seniors 

generally fall into two categories: 

 

 Old timers who have lived in the area for all or most of their lives, the majority of whom want to 

move to warmer climates where medical services are available; and 

 

 Retirees who have move to the area and are active and generally affluent. 

 

As employees age and retire, a third category of seniors could emerge who could benefit from 

specialized housing.  Given the cold, snow, lack of oxygen and distance to a hospital, however, older 

seniors will likely consider options for living elsewhere, at least during the winter months.   

<<Exhibits - Page >>185



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 92 

The majority of seniors now living in both counties live with family members – approximately 82% in 

Ouray County and 77% in San Miguel County.   Seniors who live alone are typically the most likely 

candidates for housing specially designed and managed for seniors.  In Ouray County, 96 seniors live 

alone.  In San Miguel County, 70 persons age 65 or older live alone.  In both counties, the majority of 

seniors who live alone are women. 

 

Household Status of Senior Population 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
  Number Percent Number Percent 

Total 527 100% 303 100% 

In family households 431 81.8% 232 76.6% 

Live Alone 96 18.2% 70 23.1% 

Male 43 8.2% 32 10.6% 

Female 53 10.1% 38 12.5% 

Source: ACS 

 

Most seniors are satisfied with their housing, more so in Ouray County than in San Miguel County.  In 

both counties, satisfaction levels are higher among seniors than non-senior households.  The high cost of 

utilities was the most frequently cited reason for dissatisfaction. 

 

 
Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>186



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 93 

 

The majority of seniors live in housing that is affordable given their incomes.  Approximately 69% spend 

30% or less of their income on housing.  Nearly 20%, however, are severely cost burdened by housing 

payments that equal or exceed 50% of their incomes. 

   

Affordability of Housing 

 

Percent of Income 
Spent on Housing 

Senior Non Senior 

Under 20% 37.8 29.7 

20-30% 31.4 29.4 

30-35% 2.5 9.1 

35-40% 5.8 9.2 

40-50% 3.1 9.3 

Over 50% 19.4 13.3 

 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Seniors are less likely than the rest of the population to want to move.   Approximately 83% in Ouray 

County and 79% in San Miguel County indicated they want to stay in their current home for at least the 

next five years. 

 

Desire to Move in Next Five Years 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Senior Not Senior Senior Not Senior 

Stay in current home 82.6 66.0 78.5 46.6 

Move into different home 17.4 34.0 21.5 53.4 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Seniors in Ouray County have a higher median income than non-senior households, which is usually not 

the case.  The data suggest that Ouray County has a relatively high number of affluent retirees.  In San 

Miguel County, the difference in income is more typical.  The median household income for persons age 

65 or older is about 9% lower than non-senior households.   

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>187



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 94 

Household Incomes Compared – Senior and Non-Senior Households 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Household Income Senior Not Senior Senior Not Senior 

Under $25,000 9.0 19.3 24.2 16.2 

$25,000 - $49,999 18.3 24.4 22.3 26.1 

$50,000 - $74,999 32.4 17.7 19.0 20.5 

$75,000 - $99,999 18.1 10.4 3.7 15.9 

$100,000 - $124,999 7.6 12.2 13.4 9.3 

$125,000 - $149,999 4.6 4.9 1.9 4.1 

$150,000 - $174,999 4.6 4.9 2.8 2.7 

$175,000 - $199,999 0.8 1.1 4.7 0.7 

$200,000 - $224,999   3.4 5.4 1.3 

$225,000 - $249,999   0.8 1.4 0.6 

$250,000 - $499,999 3.1 0.9 1.3 2.1 

$500,000 - $999,999 1.4     0.5 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Median Income $63,500 $53,591 $50,000 $54,743 

Source: Household survey 

 

San Miguel County has proportionately more low-income seniors than Ouray County, probably due to 

the “old timers” living in the west end of the county. 

 

AMI of Senior Households 

 

 Ouray 
County 

San Miguel 
County 

30% or less AMI 4.6 12.2 

30.1% - 50% AMI 4.5 15.6 

50.1% - 80% AMI 14.0 18.7 

80.1% - 100% AMI 18.8 9.2 

100.1% - 120% AMI 6.7 9.8 

120.1% - 150% AMI 15.9 1.8 

150.1% - 200% AMI 12.0 15.2 

200.1% - 250% AMI 9.2 4.2 

More than 250% AMI 14.4 13.3 

 100% 100% 

% Low Income (≤80% AMI) 23.1% 46.5% 

Source: Household survey 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>188



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 95 

There is no senior housing in either county.  San Miguel County attempted the construction of a senior 

apartment project in Norwood approximately 15 years ago, but found that most of the seniors in the 

area wanted to move to a warmer climate.  The site for the project was later donated to Habitat for 

Humanity.  An attempt to convert a hotel in Norwood into senior residences also failed.  The units were 

ultimately occupied by oil/gas industry employees working temporarily in the area. 

 

A concerned citizen is now exploring the feasibility of an elder co-housing project, preferably 

somewhere around Norwood where residents could garden and grow some of their own food.  The 

demand for this type of housing has not been documented.  

 

Spanish-Speaking Population 
 

According to the 2010 Census, the Hispanic/Latino population in the two counties is relatively small, but 

is much larger in San Miguel County than in Ouray County.  

 

Hispanic/Latino Population Estimates 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Total Population 4,436 7,359 

Hispanic/Latino Population 196 630 

Percent Hispanic/Latino 4.4% 8.6% 
Source: 2010 Census 

 

One Telluride provides a variety of programs and services to facilitate immigrant integration in the 

Telluride area, including a walk-in resource center, English as a second language courses, 

interpretation/translation services, a Parents as Teachers program, an after school activity-based 

Spanish program and others.  They report: 

 

 Their clients typically learn about housing opportunities through word of mouth.  They generally 

know what is available and where they can live.  

 

 The passage of federal and state legislation requiring residency documentation for subsidized 

housing has forced some Spanish-speaking employees to move to Norwood, Ridgway or 

Montrose where free-market rentals are more affordable.  

 

 Transportation limits housing choice.  Many Spanish-speaking residents do not have cars and 

work jobs with odd hours, making it impossible for them to utilize public transit. 

 

 Translation and interpretation services are used for housing-related tasks, including talking with 

landlords and reviewing lease documents. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>189



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 96 

 The general population has decreased as solo men who worked construction have left the area 

in search of employment.  Most families appear to have remained intact.  School enrollment has 

held steady at 12% to 15%.  

 

 Conflicts between Latinos and others living in dense multi-family housing situations are not 

common.   

 

Very Low Income Residents 
 

The Department of Social Services that serves both Ouray and San Miguel counties has reported a sharp 

increase in programs that serve very low income residents.  The increase has been largely attributed to 

job losses among members of the workforce, rather than increases in special needs populations.  The 

number of food stamp recipients more than doubled in both counties.  

 

Food Stamp Recipients 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
2008 56 58 

2010 140 120 

Percent Increase 150% 107% 
Source: Department of Social Services 

 

The number of households receiving help with their utility bills through the Low Income Energy 

Assistance program also doubled.  In March 2009, 76 households in San Miguel County received this 

assistance.  The number had grown to 157 households by March 2011. 

 

Throughout this report, the housing needs of very low income residents are examined.  Findings include: 

 

 Nearly 14% of the renters in both counties have incomes no greater than 30% AMI. 

 

 A gap between rents and income exists for households with incomes equal to or less than 30% 

AMI.  

 

 Other than a few mobile homes, none of the units sold in the past five years and none of the 

homes listed for sale are affordable for households with incomes at or less than 50% AMI. 

 

 The average income for households that are severely cost burdened by housing payments that 

exceed 50% of their income is $27,375. 

 

 Section 8 rent subsidy vouchers, which are utilized by very low income households, are fully 

subscribed and the wait list has been closed. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>190



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 97 

6. Housing Gaps and Estimated Need 
 

This section of the report consists of four parts: 

 

A. Housing Gaps, which compare rents and sale prices to the incomes of residents, expressed as a 

percentage of the AMI. 

 

B. Need for Additional Units, which generates estimates of the current short fall in units and the 

number of units for which demand will be created by the year 2015. 

 

C. Demand from Existing Residents, which examines the demand on ownership and rental housing 

from existing residents who want to move into homes other than where they now live. 

 

D. Preferences, which provides information from the household survey on unit type, amenities and 

location, intended to support design and development decisions. 

 

Housing Gaps 
 

This part of the report compares housing costs to incomes to determine where proportionately they 

align.  Rents, sale prices and incomes are all expressed as AMI’s.  See Section 3 of this report for 

information on how housing costs are equated to AMI. 

 

Rental Gaps 

 

Rents tend to be affordable for renters at most income levels.  The exception in both counties is the 

category of extremely low income households (incomes ≤ 30% AMI).  In San Miguel County, market 

rents are also too high for households in the 30% to 50% AMI category but there are proportionately 

more deed/occupancy restricted units serving this income group than in the population. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>191



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 98 

Gaps in Rental Housing 

 

 AMI Categories 

Ouray Co. 30% or 
less 

30.1% - 
50% 

50.1% - 
80% 

80.1% - 
100% 

100.1 to 
120% 

120.1 to 
150% 

150.1% - 
200% 

>200% 

Renter AMI’s 13.9 24.6 37.7 14.9 1.0 1.0 5.0 2.0 

Rents 10.1 26.2 40.6 13.1 8.6 0.7 0.7  

Gap -3.8 1.6 2.9 -1.8 7.6 -0.3 -4.3 -2 

San Miguel Co.         

Renter AMI’s 13.7 15.1 33.9 9.7 9.2 10.7 3.2 4.6 

Market Rents 2.9 12.4 40 20 12.9 7.1 3.5 1.2 

Gap -10.8 -2.7 6.1 10.3 3.7 -3.6 0.3 -3.4 

DR Rents 8 45.1 36.3 8.8 1.8    

Gap -5.7 30.0 2.4 -0.9 -7.4    

Source: Household survey 

 

Gaps in Homeownership 

 

Home prices in both counties have been and, based on for-sale listings, will continue to be beyond the 

price that is affordable for most residents.  In Ouray County: 

 

 Units sold in the past five years proportionately matched the incomes of homeowners starting 

at the 100% to 120% AMI range.   

  

 The prices of current listings are not in line with incomes until the 150% to 200% AMI range. 

 

In San Miguel County: 

 

 The prices of free-market units sold in the past five years did not proportionately align with 

incomes until the 200% to 250% AMI level. 

 

 The gap in market units listed for sale compared to incomes does not go away until over 250% 

AMI. 

 

 The prices of deed-restricted units sold more closely matched the income distribution of owners 

in the county, with the proportionate gap disappearing at the 100% to 120% AMI range. 

 

 The gap exists between the price of deed-restricted units listed for sale and owner incomes 

disappears at the 100% to 120% AMI category.  

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>192



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 99 

Gaps in Homeownership 

 

 AMI Categories 

Ouray Co. 30% or 
less 

30.1% - 
50% 

50.1% - 
80% 

80.1% - 
100% 

100.1 - 
120% 

120.1 - 
150% 

150.1% - 
200% 

200.1% - 
250% 

> 250% 

Owner AMI's 3.2% 4.7% 11.4% 11.7% 7.6% 15.1% 16.4% 11.7% 18.2% 

Units Sold 5 Yrs 1.9% 1.0% 1.0% 3.3% 7.6% 21.9% 29.5% 12.9% 21.0% 

Gap -1.3% -3.7% -10.4% -8.4% 0.0% 6.8% 13.1% 1.2% 2.8% 

Listings 0.0% 0.00% 5.5% 3.6% 6.4% 10.0% 18.2% 13.6% 42.7% 

Gap -3.2% -4.7% -5.9% -8.1% -1.2% -5.1% 1.8% 1.9% 24.5% 

          

San Miguel Co.          

Owner AMI's 4.2% 6.2% 9.8% 16.5% 10.8% 15.5% 20.0% 5.9% 11.0% 

Market Units 
Sold -  5 Yrs 

0.2% 0.6% 3.8% 2.4% 4.4% 5.9% 9.9% 7.3% 65.4% 

Gap -4.0% -5.6% -6.0% -14.1% -6.4% -9.6% -10.1% 1.4% 54.4% 

DR Units Sold – 5 
Yrs 

0.0% 2.2% 14.5% 11.6% 18.1% 30.4% 15.9% 2.9% 4.3% 

Gap -4.2% -4.0% 4.7% -4.9% 7.3% 14.9% -4.1% -3.0% -6.7% 

Market Listings 0.0% 0.5% 3.2% 2.5% 3.2% 3.9% 8.1% 5.4% 73.2% 

Gap -4.2% -5.7% -6.6% -14.0% -7.6% -11.6% -11.9% -0.5% 62.2% 

DR Listings 0.0% 0.0% 15.8% 2.6% 21.1% 26.3% 18.4% 5.3% 10.5% 

Gap -4.2% -6.2% 6.0% -13.9% 10.3% 10.8% -1.6% -0.6% -0.5% 

Source: County Assessors, MLS, household survey.  Note: Prices based on AMI for two-person households. 

 

Need for Additional Units 
 

The need for additional units to house the workforce will primarily be fueled by persons who move into 

the area to live closer to the jobs they now hold, to fill unfilled positions or to fill new jobs that will be 

created in the next five years.    

 

Current Shortfall 

 

Housing problems exist in both counties including households that are dissatisfied with their housing 

and/or are cost burdened by their housing payment relative to their income.  Building additional units to 

address all of the existing problems is not necessary, however.  A sufficient number of units should be 

available to adequately accommodate the workforce and to bring housing supply in line with housing 

demand so that market forces and competition cause prices to drop and, in theory, problems to correct.  

The two factors used to determine the number of additional housing units needed to address existing 

shortfalls are: 1) the number of unfilled jobs; and 2) the number of commuters who want to move to be 

closer to their jobs.    

<<Exhibits - Page >>193



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 100 

The resulting estimates are price sensitive.  They indicate the demand for additional units that are priced 

to be affordable and acceptable to job candidates and in-commuters.  Development of additional units 

priced similarly to units that are currently available in each county would not be responsive to this 

demand.   For commuters to be enticed to move, roughly two-thirds would want a single-family home 

with the median price of $250,000.  About one-third would want a rental unit with a median rent of 

$600 per month.   Information is not available on the type and cost of housing that job candidates would 

need in order to be enticed to fill vacant positions.  Lower prices/better values that currently exist would 

likely be required. 

 

Demand from Unfilled Jobs and In-Commuting 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 

Unfilled Jobs 34 126 

Jobs per employee 1.26 1.31 

Additional employees needed 27 96 

Employees per household 1.5 1.6 

Additional housing units needed 18 60 

   

In Commuters 450 745 

% Want to move 40% 56% 

# Want to move 180 417 

Employees per household 1.5 1.6 

Additional housing units needed 120 260 

Source: Household and commuter surveys, RRC/Rees calculations 

 

In Ouray County, employees needed to fill vacant positions create demand for 18 units while in-

commuters generate demand for 120 units.  High vacancies among existing apartment units, a large 

inventory of units for sale and a relatively high number of units in foreclosure suggest that market forces 

may drive down rents and sale prices to the extent that the existing shortfall may be adequately 

addressed by existing units as they become more affordable. 

 

In San Miguel County, 60 units are needed to attract employees to fill vacant positions and 260 are 

needed to house in-commuters who want to move into the county.  Rental vacancy rates are very low 

(except at one unique complex in Norwood), only nine deed-restricted units are listed for sale at prices 

affordable for households with incomes at or below 120% AMI and free-market prices remain far above 

levels that are affordable for most residents.  These indicators suggest a more aggressive and immediate 

approach for addressing the estimated shortfall would be appropriate. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>194



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 101 

Additional Demand by 2015 

 

Demand for additional units to house the workforce will be generated in the future primarily by job 

growth.  The rate at which new jobs will be created over the next five years, however, is an unknown 

and difficult to forecast based on the volatility in jobs and employment during the past five years.  As 

such, three scenarios have been developed for each county based on three different annual rates for job 

growth -- 0.5%, 1.5% and 3%.  Job growth will likely fall within the range bracketed by these scenarios. 

 

Demand estimates are generated for each county as a whole.  Demand is then allocated among the 

communities/areas within each county based on where current employees most want to live.  While 

new residents may have somewhat different location preferences, community character will not change 

significantly in the foreseeable future and the preferences of existing employees is the best indication of 

where future employees will want to live. 

 

Between 31 and 193 additional units should be needed by 2015 to house growth in the workforce in 

Ouray County.  Of these units, 40% should be located in Ridgway, 26% in unincorporated Ouray County 

and 17% in Ouray.  Not all of the demand should be addressed within Ouray County, however, based on 

where employees what to live.  Approximately 18% would prefer to live in either San Miguel or 

Montrose counties. 

Ouray County - Employee Housing Demand Forecasts for 2015 

 

 Scenario 1 2 3 
Annual Growth in Jobs  0.5% 1.5% 3.0% 

Jobs 2010       2,292       2,292       2,292  

Jobs 2015       2,350       2,469       2,657  

Difference = New Jobs             58          177          365  
     

Jobs per Employee  1.26 1.26 1.26 

Additional Employees  46 140 290 

     

Employees per Household  1.5 1.5 1.5 

Additional Housing Demand  31 94 193 

Avg Units per Year  6.1 18.7 38.6 
     

Distribution by Area Where Want 
to LIve 

   

Ouray 17.2% 5 16 33 

Ouray County - unincorporated 25.6% 8 24 49 

Ridgway 39.5% 12 37 76 

San Miguel, Montrose, Other 17.7% 5 17 34 

Total 100% 31 94 193 

Source: Household survey and RRC/Rees calculations 

<<Exhibits - Page >>195



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 102 

In San Miguel County, new job growth should generate demand for 76 to 479 additional housing units 

by 2015.  The majority of this demand (89%) should be addressed in San Miguel County based on 

existing employee preferences.  Since 50% of employees working in San Miguel County want to live in 

Telluride, about half of the new units for which demand will be generated should be built in Telluride (38 

to 239 units).  With 8% of employees preferring to live in Mountain Village, six to 38 units should be 

developed there.  The others should be dispersed throughout San Miguel County. 

   

San Miguel County - Employee Housing Demand Forecasts for 2015 

 

 Scenario 1 2 3 
Annual Growth in Jobs  0.5% 1.5% 3.0% 

Jobs 2010         6,299           6,299       6,299  

Jobs 2015        6,458           6,786       7,302  

Difference = New Jobs            159              487       1,003  

     

Jobs per Employee  1.31 1.31 1.31 

Additional Employees  121 372 766 

     

Employees per Household  1.6 1.6 1.6 

Additional Housing Demand  76 232 479 

Avg Units per Year  15.2 46.5 95.7 

     

Distribution by Area Where Want 
to Live 

1 2 3 

Lawson Hill 4.0% 3 9 19 

Mountain Village 8.0% 6 19 38 

Norwood 10.4% 8 24 50 

San Miguel County – unincorp. 9.9% 8 23 47 

Telluride 49.9% 38 116 239 

Ilium, Ophir, Placerville, Sawpit 6.8% 5 16 33 

Ouray County/Other 11.0% 8 26 53 

 100% 76 232 479 

Source: Household survey and RRC/Rees calculations 

These estimates should be considered conservative since they are based solely on new job creation.  

Employees recruited to fill existing jobs now held by residents who will retire in the next five years and 

continue to reside in their homes will also generate demand for additional units.  These estimates do 

not include demand created by persons who move into the area but do not work, nor demand for 

vacation/second homes.  

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>196



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 103 

Project-Specific Housing Demand 
 

Job generation rates developed through surveys of employers in Ouray and San Miguel counties as well 

as other mountain counties and communities in Colorado, Wyoming and Idaho can be used to estimate 

the impact on workforce housing demand associated with proposed developments.   Use of the merged 

database with a sample from nearly 1,800 employers of various types and 142 lodging establishments is 

recommended over the much smaller sample from San Miguel and Ouray counties. 

 

Multiple formulas are possible for using these figures to estimate housing demand.  One approach is to 

multiple the square footage proposed by 4, the overall median, then divide by 1,000 SF to generate the 

total number of permanent, on-site jobs that the development will generate.  This figure is then divided 

by the 1.3, the average number of jobs per employee and by 1.6, the average number of employees per 

unit to determine housing demand.  

Commercial Job Generation Rates 

  Merged Database San Miguel/Ouray 2011 

  
Type of Employer 

Median 
Jobs/1000 SF 

# Cases Median 
Jobs/1000 SF 

# Cases 

Bar/restaurant 8.13 222 7.00 9 

Construction 6.67 170 4.00 5 

Education 1.60 46 0.90 1 

Finance/banking 2.90 62 1.80 1 

Government 2.47 82 3.16 3 

Legal profession 4.80 51 2.50 1 

Medical profession 2.88 22 2.50 1 

Other professional services 3.64 267 3.69 4 

Personal services 4.98 14 1.61 2 

Retail sales 3.13 437 2.36 16 

Service 3.33 112     

Recreation/attractions/amusements 4.35 70 3.00 1 

Other 3.75 209 5.00 10 

Utilities 1.44 8     

Manufacturing 1.80 15     

Warehouse /storage 1.73 2     

Transportation 4.00 9     

Total 4.00 1,798 3.35 54 

  Jobs/Room # Cases Jobs/Room # Cases 

Lodging/hotel/housekeeping 0.50 109 0.43 7 

Property Management 0.42 33   

Total 0.49 142 0.43 7 

Source: Employer surveys 

<<Exhibits - Page >>197



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 104 

 Housing Demand from Existing Residents 
 

The majority of any new units that may be developed in the next five years will likely be purchased or 

rented by existing residents who want to move into homes other than where they now live.  While new 

jobs will be the primary driver of the need for additional units, most of the new employees who move 

into the area will likely move into existing homes that are vacated as existing residents move into new 

units.   

 

Overall 30% of Ouray County’s residents and half of the households in San Miguel County would like to 

move into different homes within the next five years.  Of homeowners, 14% living in Ouray County and 

26% in San Miguel County want to move into a different home.   Nearly three-fourths of the renters in 

both counties want to move. 

Desire to Move within 5 Years 
 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Stay in current home 86.3 27.6 70.6 74.5 25.5 50.2 

Move into different home 13.7 72.4 29.4 25.5 74.5 49.8 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Households in the “move into different home category” include: 

 

 Owners who want to buy a larger or sometimes smaller home or move to a different 

community.  About 80% of owners in both counties who indicated they want to move into a 

different home want to buy. 
 

 Owners who want to rent.  Nearly 10% of the owners who want to move want to become 

renters. 
 

 Renters who want to continue to rent but not the same place – 61% in Ouray County and 39% in 

San Miguel County. 
 

 Renters who want to move into ownership.  While homeownership has been the goal of the 

majority of renters for at least the past two decades (79% of renters in the Telluride region in 

2000 wanted to buy), this is no longer the case.  Approximately 32% of renters in Ouray County 

and only 23% of renters in San Miguel County indicated they want to buy a home in the next five 

years.  
 

 Households who are undecided.   Approximately 9% in Ouray County and 31% in San Miguel 

County indicated they would consider either option.  

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>198



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 105 

 

Own/Rent Preferences – Households Wanting to Move 
 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

BUY only 80.2 31.5 45.4 79.5 23.1 36.4 

RENT only 9.9 60.9 45.7 9.8 38.6 32.5 

Both BUY and RENT 9.9 7.6 9.0 10.8 38.3 31.1 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

The median price that residents of both counties who want to buy within the next five years would like 

to pay is $250,000.   Owners who want to buy a different home are willing to pay more than renters – a 

median of $300,000 in Ouray County and nearly $343,000 is San Miguel County.   Most renters (72% in 

Ouray County and 79% in San Miguel County), however, indicated they would pay in excess of $200,000 

to move into ownership. 

 

Want to Buy by Price 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Under $100,000       12.0 3.4 6.0 

$100,000 - $199,999 8.6 27.8 19.4 6.9 17.6 14.5 

$200,000 - $299,999 28.2 55.4 42.1 15.2 48.0 37.5 

$300,000 - $399,999 26.4 11.2 18.1 29.5 19.1 22.6 

$400,000 - $499,999 13.0   6.3 13.3 5.9 8.2 

$500,000 or more 23.8 5.5 14.1 23.0 5.9 11.2 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

     Average $441,195 $217,351 $323,641 $376,558 $254,952 $292,853 

     Median $300,000 $200,000 $250,000 $342,938 $250,000 $250,000 

Source: Household survey 

 

The median rent that residents who want to rent other than where they are now living would like to pay 

is $650 in Ouray County and $1,000 in San Miguel County.  Owners who want to become renters are 

willing to pay more than renters who want to continue to rent. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>199



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 106 

Want to Rent by Rent Rates 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Under $500   25.4 23.1 5.1 2.8 2.9 

$500 - $749 9.9 44.5 38.4 9.9 27.4 26.8 

$750 - $999 30.1 15.8 18.3 17.4 20.7 19.8 

$1,000 - $1,249 29.8 4.9 9.0 26.7 39.5 38.3 

$1,250 - $1,499       5.1 0.6 0.9 

$1,500 or more 30.1 9.5 11.1 35.8 9.0 11.3 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

     Average $1,065.33 $675.67 $722.50 $1,290.46 $963.26 $985.50 

     Median $1,086.79 $639.44 $650.00 $1,181.54 $900.00 $1,000.00 

Source: Household survey 

 

Average Prices/Rents Desired by Residents Who Want to Live in Different Home 

 

 Average Price Average Rent 
Ouray $244,212 $664 

Ridgway $254,008 $731 

Ouray Co Unincorp $370,688 $552 

Mtn Village $340,467 $1,372 

Norwood $200,000 $663 

Telluride $278,238 $960 

San Miguel Balance $270,492 $843 

Source: Household survey 

 

In San Miguel County, the most frequently cited reason that residents want to rent is because housing 

they want and can afford to buy is not available.  In Ouray County, however, not having a down payment 

was the chief reason, followed by the uncertainty of their economic future.  Other frequently cited 

reasons are primarily financial in nature.  While lack of commitment to the community was referenced 

by 20% of the respondents, not wanting to own a home because it is not their dream was cited by fewer 

than 6% overall.  The unacceptability of deed restrictions was mentioned by 16% in San Miguel County, 

but only 4% in Ouray County. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>200



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 107 

 
Source: Household survey 

Housing-Related Preferences 
 

Location 

 

Most residents of the two-county region live where they most want to live.  The bold figures in the 

following table represent the residents in each community who indicated they want to live in the 

community where they now reside.  For example, 86% of the respondents from Ouray indicated that 

Ouray is where they want to live, while 4.3% would like to move to Ridgway, 8% would like to move to 

an unincorporated area of Ouray County and 1.6% want to live in Telluride. 

 

Telluride has the highest percentage of residents who live where they want to – 97%.  San Miguel 

Balance, which includes Lawson Hill, Ophir, Placerville, Sawpit and Illium, has the lowest – 49%. 

It is clear that there is unmet demand for housing in Telluride created by persons who now live nearby 

and want to move.  Of the residents in the San Miguel Balance area, 44% would like to live in Telluride.  

Of Mountain Village residents, 30% would like to live in Telluride. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>201



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 108 

Where Live Compared with Where Want to Live 

 

 Where Now Live 
 
Where Want to 
Live 

Ouray Ridgway Ouray Co 
Unincorp 

Mtn 
Village 

Norwood Telluride San 
Miguel 
Balance 

Ouray 86.1 2.5 1.5         

Ridgway 4.3 80.3 5.7 1.0 0.9   4.0 

Ouray Co Unincorp 8.0 8.5 86.6 1.0   0.4   

Mtn Village     0.9 58.7 1.8 0.4 2.2 

Norwood         81.4   0.4 

Telluride 1.6 8.7 2.9 30.3 6.8 96.7 44.1 

San Miguel Balance     2.4 9.0 9.1 2.6 49.4 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

Unit Type 

 

For residents who want to move into a different home within the next five years, about 88% in Ouray 

County and 83% in San Miguel County would prefer a single-family home.  In both counties, there is 

clear preference among both owners and renters for a one-story over multi-story home. 

 

1st Preference in Unit Type 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

Single-family one-story home 85.5 48.4 59.1 43.7 52.5 51.3 

Single-family multi-story home 14.5 34.4 28.4 46.0 27.7 31.9 

Condominium   1.2 0.9 2.9 12.2 9.6 

Townhome/duplex   14.8 10.7 4.4 4.7 4.5 

Apartment   1.2 0.9 1.0 2.3 1.9 

Manufactured home       1.9 0.6 0.9 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Source: Household survey 

 

A comparison of first and second choices reveals that townhomes or duplexes would be preferred over 

other unit types if single-family homes are not available at affordable prices. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>202



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 109 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

Bedrooms and Bathrooms 

 

Overall, residents in both counties who would like to move into a different home would like two or three 

bedrooms and two bathrooms.  Owners tend to prefer larger units than renters.  Residents of San 

Miguel County tend to want smaller homes than Ouray County residents. 

 

Number of Bedrooms Desired 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Number Bedrooms Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

1 4.7 22.6 16.8 4.8 12.8 10.9 

2 35.4 30.9 32.8 30.3 48.8 43.6 

3 37.0 24.8 28.5 50.0 34.0 38.5 

4 22.9 19.5 20.6 14.9 3.4 6.4 

5+   2.1 1.4   0.9 0.6 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average 2.8 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.3 2.4 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>203



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 110 

Number of Bathrooms Desired 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Number Bathrooms Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

1 9.3 39.3 29.0 8.3 33.9 27.5 

2 60.8 32.4 41.7 63.5 56.4 58.2 

3 25.2 28.4 27.9 23.8 9.7 13.2 

4 4.8   1.5 4.4   1.1 

 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average 2.3 1.9 2.0 2.2 1.8 1.9 

Source: Household survey 

 

Amenities 

 

Overall, residents in Ouray County placed greater importance on nine potential unit features than did 

residents of San Miguel County, with the exception of pets being allowed.  The relative importance given 

to the optional amenities were similar in both counties, however, with in-unit washers and dryers rated 

highest, followed by energy efficiency/green building. 

 

 
Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>204



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 111 

Renters in general placed less importance on the optional amenities than did homeowners, which is the 

usual pattern. There was little difference, however, between owners and renters concerning unit 

amenities in the relative level of importance they placed on the options.  

 

Unit Amenities by Own/Rent 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY/ GREEN BUILDING 4.1 4.3 4.2 3.9 3.9 3.9 

IN-UNIT WASHER/ DRYER 4.6 4.3 4.5 4.6 4.3 4.4 

GARAGE/ COVERED PARKING 4.4 3.4 4.1 3.8 3.1 3.4 

EXTRA STORAGE 4.2 3.7 4.1 4.2 3.7 3.9 

OFFICE SPACE FOR BUSINESS USE 3.2 2.7 3.1 3.2 2.3 2.7 

WORKSHOP SPACE 3.6 2.7 3.4 3.2 2.5 2.8 

PETS ALLOWED 3.8 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.8 

FULLY OR PARTIALLY FURNISHED 1.9 1.4 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.7 

ON SITE WIRELESS SERVICE 3.8 3.6 3.8 3.6 3.7 3.6 

Source: Household survey 

 

Property managers and realtors frequently mentioned dogs when asked about location preferences.  

Over half of the residents in both counties rated the ability to have pets where they live as extremely 

important.  Results were similar in both counties.  Owners tended to place slightly higher importance on 

their ability to have pets than did renters.  There was very little variation by community; the average 

rating for “pets allowed” ranged from 3.7 to 3.9.  In the San Miguel Balance area, which includes Lawson 

Hill, 54% of households surveyed rated “pets allowed” as extremely important. 

 

Importance of Pets 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
Rating Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

1 - Not At All Important 19.3 21.3 20.0 12.0 15.7 14.2 

2 3.4 1.4 2.8 6.7 5.8 6.3 

3 11.1 12.0 11.0 14.0 13.1 13.6 

4 11.6 19.3 13.5 15.7 11.3 13.9 

5 - Extremely Important 54.7 45.9 52.7 51.5 53.8 52.0 

     TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

     Average 3.79 3.67 3.76 3.87 3.81 3.83 

Source: Household survey 

 

Concerning nine optional neighborhood features that housing survey participants were asked to rate, 

responses were again generally similar in both counties.   Having a private yard or outdoor space was 

<<Exhibits - Page >>205



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 112 

the more important followed closely by views and sense of community.  The only option for which there 

was a significant difference between the two counties was being near public transportation.  It ranked 

slightly above garden space in San Miguel County, with an average of 3.4, compared to a much lower 

average of 2.1 in Ouray County. 

 

 
Source: Household survey 

 

The responses between renters and owners were also similar. 

   

Importance of Neighborhood Features 

 

 Ouray County San Miguel County 
 Own Rent OVERALL Own Rent OVERALL 

PRIVATE YARD/ OUTDOOR SPACE 4.7 4.1 4.6 4.3 3.8 4.0 

CHILD PLAYGROUND 1.8 2.0 1.9 2.2 1.9 2.0 

SHARED COMMON AREAS 2.0 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.0 2.1 

GARDEN SPACE 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.4 3.1 3.3 

LIVESTOCK ALLOWED 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.7 

VIEWS 4.4 3.8 4.2 4.1 3.6 3.8 

NEAR PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 2.1 2.2 2.1 3.3 3.5 3.4 

NEAR TRAILS/ BIKEPATHS 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.8 3.8 3.8 

SENSE OF COMMUNITY 4.0 3.9 4.0 4.1 3.9 4.0 

Source: Household survey 

<<Exhibits - Page >>206



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 113 

7. Key Findings and Conclusions 
 

Overview 
 

This needs assessment documented many changes over the past five years, from the peak of the 

construction boom to the depths of the recession.  It quantified job losses, decreases in household 

income and sharp declines in the housing market.  It also found that housing problems and gaps are still 

widespread, with market prices far above the levels that local income earners can afford.  Employers 

have been forced to take actions as a result of the recession, including reductions in wage rates and 

hours worked, that have impacted the ability of employees to afford housing.  While housing availability 

is not as limited as in the past, prices are still too high for households with incomes under 200% AMI, 

and the inventory of units listed for sale remains very large. 

 

There are many other changes affecting the demand for affordable housing and the type of housing that 

should be developed in the near future.  The number of foreclosures has risen dramatically in both 

counties.  Home mortgages are far more difficult to obtain and the majority of renters no longer want to 

move into ownership.  Rental vacancies are very low in the Telluride region, but not so in the rest of the 

two counties.  Rents are generally affordable, but will likely start to rise as the economy slowly recovers. 

 

The performance of deed-restricted housing has varied.  The units in Telluride, which are price capped, 

mostly subsidized and located where the majority of employees want to live, have held their value and 

are selling.  Units in Mountain Village and unincorporated San Miguel County, however, have declined in 

price, after following the free market upward, leaving many owners with debt that exceeds value, units 

that they cannot sell and increasing risk of default. 

 

Additional deed-restricted units are still needed for commuting employees who want to move closer to 

their work and to attract employees to fill vacant positions.  These units should only be developed, 

however, if they can be priced lower than homes currently available.  Projections have also been 

provided for workforce housing demand that will be generated by 2015, with assumptions ranging from 

conservative to aggressive.   

 

The following pages summarize each of the major sections of this needs assessment.  These conclusions 

are followed by recommendations on actions that could be taken to address identified needs efficiently 

and in ways that are responsive to market conditions and employee preferences. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>207



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 114 

Economic and Demographic Framework 
 

Population Estimates and Characteristics  

 

The two counties share many characteristics but have some notable differences.  There are indications 

that Ouray County is catching up with, or becoming more similar to San Miguel County. 

 

 San Miguel County has about 62% of the population in the two-county region but the population 

has been growing faster in Ouray County (18% compared to 11% in San Miguel County between 

2000 and 2010). 

 

 The average size of households is slightly larger in Ouray County (2.19) than in San Miguel 

County (2.13) and there are notable differences among communities, where Mountain Village 

has smaller households and Norwood and Ophir have larger than average households. 

 

 Household composition varies, with proportionately more couples without children in Ouray 

County and more singles living alone, roommate households and couples with children in San 

Miguel County.  

 

 Ouray County is more likely to have retired residents -- 27% of households include at least one 

retired member compared with 10% in San Miguel County. 

 

 Incomes as reported by the household survey are more similar in the two counties than 

estimated by HUD.  The median income varies from a low of $54,440 in Norwood to a high of 

$84,790 in Mountain Village.  

 

 Nearly 42% of the households in San Miguel County (1,450 households) and 39% in Ouray 

County (789 households) report that their income has decreased since 2007/08.  Among 

households that experienced a decrease in income, the average was $33,000 in Ouray County 

and $43,000 in San Miguel County. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>208



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 115 

The Economy 

 

Both counties were hard hit by the recession.  Since peak employment in 2007: 

 

 Ouray County lost 573 jobs, which equated to a decrease of 20%.  San Miguel County lost 1,155 

jobs, a decrease of 15.5%.  

 

 Of employers surveyed, 43% in San Miguel County and 32% in Ouray County reported a 

decrease in employment since 2007/08. 

 

 The unemployment rate climbed from 3% to 7.6% in Ouray County and from 3.2% to 7.2% in San 

Miguel County. 

 

 Some sectors were impacted more so than others including accommodations and food service, 

finance and real estate.  Construction jobs, which pay some of the highest wages in the region, 

dropped by 29% in San Miguel County and 25% in Ouray County according to reports which 

likely under-estimate the counts.   

 

 Approximately 22% of employees in Ouray County reported that they were under employed and 

need additional work compared with 13% in San Miguel County. 

 

 Employers in both counties expect a slow recovery, with the majority indicating that the number 

of persons they employ will stay about the same in the next year, but 35% in Ouray County and 

57% in San Miguel County plan to increase employment in the next five years. 

 

Jobs/Housing Relationship and Commuting 

 

There is extensive commuting within and between the two counties and, to a lesser degree, to and from 

neighboring counties.   While some commuters could be enticed to move to the community where they 

work with lower priced housing, most could not.  

 

 While San Miguel County has 62% of the region’s population it has 73% of the region’s jobs.  In 

Ouray County, there are approximately 1.13 jobs per occupied housing unit while in San Miguel 

the ratio is 1.82 jobs per unit. 

 

 Based on annual averages, approximately 450 employees travel into Ouray County from homes 

outside of the county and 745 employees commute into San Miguel County. 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>209



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 116 

 The Telluride region and Ouray both provide housing for 70% of their employees while 30% in 

commute.  Of employees who work in Norwood, 81% live there.  Approximately 58% of 

Ridgway’s employees live in Ridgway. 

 

 Most commuters commute year round, and driving alone is the most frequently used mode of 

transportation. 

 

 The reasons why employees commute are varied, with the price of housing being the most 

frequently cited reason, followed by community character.  The majority of commuters do not 

want to move. 

 

Housing Inventory 
 

Following high rates of residential construction throughout most of the past decade, the 2010 Census 

reported the two-county region has 9,721 housing units.   Many of these residential units are not used 

as housing, however, but rather as vacation accommodations.  A large inventory of deed-restricted units 

in the Telluride region has preserved the relationship between primary and second/vacation homes but 

locals are losing out to part-time residents in Ouray County.  

  

 5,476 units, or 56%, were occupied by local residents in 2010.  Most of the remaining units were 

second/vacation homes.  A comparison of the rates from 2000 and 2010 shows that the 

percentage of units occupied by local residents is decreasing in all of Ouray County and in much 

of San Miguel County.  This trend does not bode well for housing affordability in the long term 

since vacation home buyers drive prices upward. 

 

 Both of the counties overall and most of the communities in the two-county region experienced 

strong rates of residential growth between 2000 and 2010.  The rate of growth was much higher 

in Ouray County (44%) than in San Miguel County (28%).  

 

 The split between owners and renters varies between the two counties, with an estimated 

homeownership rate of 73% in Ouray County and 50% in San Miguel County. 

 

 San Miguel County has a large inventory of units that are deed/occupancy-restricted, a total of 

1,124 units or approximately 32% of total occupied units in the county.  Of these: 

 

o Approximately 64% are renter occupied and 36% are owned by their occupants.  While 

most of the units developed in recent years have been intended for owner occupancy, 

some have become rentals when units cannot be sold for various reasons.  

  

<<Exhibits - Page >>210



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 117 

o A wide variety of unit types are provided, ranging from small studios/dorm rooms to 

single-family homes with five bedrooms.   Many are small, however, 44% are studios or 

one-bedroom apartments. 

 

o Mountain Village has the largest inventory (45% of the total), followed by Telluride then 

unincorporated San Miguel County. 

 

 Ouray County has 18 deed-restricted units, including 10 single-family homes in Ridgway with 

temporary price caps and a duplex and six accessory dwelling units in Ouray.  There are no 

deed/occupancy-restricted units in unincorporated Ouray County. 

 

 A total of 208 deed-restricted units have been approved in the two-county region, but not yet 

built.  Plus 13 units in San Miguel County and four units in Ridgway have received preliminary 

approvals.  Construction of all of these units is the responsibility of the private sector, so the 

timing for their development is unknown.  

 

Homeownership Market Conditions 
 

After a steep drop in the number of sales and more moderate decreases in prices, the ownership market 

appears to have reached bottom and started to slowly improve, though less so in Ouray County 

compared with San Miguel County. 

 

Market Sales and Prices 

 

 Homes sales dropped 62% overall from their peak in 2007/08 to their low in 2009.  The market 

rebounded somewhat in 2010 with the number of sales increasing 36% overall in the two-

county region, with growth being the strongest in San Miguel County. 

 

 Home prices peaked in both counties in 2007, with a median of over $1.2 million in San Miguel 

County and nearly $550,000 in Ouray County.  The overall median then decreased about 20% in 

San Miguel County by 2009 before increasing in 2010 to just over the $1 million mark.  The 

median price continued to decline in 2010 in Ouray County to a level about 26% below the peak. 

 

 Despite the decline in prices, homes remain unaffordable for most of the region’s residents.  

Only 7% of the homes sold in the past five years in both counties were affordable for 

households with incomes at or below 100% AMI.  Incomes in excess of 250% AMI were needed 

to afford 21% of the sales in Ouray County and 65% in San Miguel County. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>211



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 118 

Deed-Restricted Sales and Prices 

 

A total of 138 deed-restricted units were sold in the past five years.  These sales exhibited the same 

general pattern as the free market, with some exceptions.  

 

 The number of sales peaked in 2007 at 44, then dropped off sharply in 2008, before returning to 

about 50% of peak volume in 2009 and 2010. 

 

 Median prices decreased over 34%, from an average high of $432,543 at its peak in 2008, down 

to an overall average of $284,180 by 2010. 

 

 Prices for units without price caps were much higher than prices for deed-restricted units with 

price caps.  It should be noted, however, that most of the units sold with price caps were also 

subsidized. 

 

 Units without caps decreased in value (48% in Mountain Village and 32% in unincorporated San 

Miguel County), while units with caps generally held their value, although not all resales were at 

the maximum prices allowed.   

 

 Deed restricted units were affordable for all income levels with 30% priced to be affordable for 

households with incomes in the 120% to 150% AMI range. 

  

Free Market Availability and Costs 

 

The inventory of homes listed for sale is very large – a total of 741 units in the two-county region, which 

equals a 50-month inventory based on the rate of sales in 2010.  Prices have not been heavily 

discounted to sell quickly, however. 

 

 In Ouray County, the average price per square foot for units listed is 28% higher than the 

average for units sold in 2010.  In San Miguel County, the average price of $735 per square foot 

for homes listed for sale is 37% higher than the average of $536 per square foot in 2010. 

 

 The average list price for a three-bedroom home in Ouray County is just over $600,000. In San 

Miguel County, it is nearly $1.5 million. 

 

 Affordability has improved just slightly in Ouray County where six units or 6.3% of the total are 

affordable for households with incomes at or below 100% AMI, all of which are in Ridgway. 

 

 Affordability in relative terms has gotten worse in San Miguel County, where only 4% of the 593 

homes listed for sale (24 units) were priced at levels affordable for households with incomes 

equal to or less than 100% AMI.  

<<Exhibits - Page >>212



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 119 

 

Deed-Restricted Availability and Costs 

 

A total of 37 deed-restricted units were listed for sale as of February, which equates to a 21-month 

inventory.  

 

 The average list price was nearly $380,000.  An income of approximately 190% AMI based on a 

two-person household would be needed to afford this price. 

 

 The AMI category with the most listings is 151% to 200% AMI, followed by 121% to 150% AMI. 

 

 Only six units were listed for sale at prices affordable for households with incomes at or below 

100% AMI. 

 

 While Mountain Village and unincorporated San Miguel County have a large inventory of units 

listed for sale (15 in mountain Village, which equates to a two-year inventory, and 21 in 

unincorporated San Miguel County, which equates to a 2.7 year inventory), only two units were 

listed for sale in Telluride. 

 

Rental Market Analysis 
 

Approximately 540 units in Ouray County and 1,711 units in San Miguel County are renter occupied, for 

a total of 2,251 renter households in the two-county region.   Rental market conditions vary within the 

region.  Very low vacancies strongly suggest the need to develop additional rental units in the Telluride 

region, while high vacancies in Ouray County indicate few if any additional rentals are needed at this 

time. 

 

 About half of the households in San Miguel County are renters compared with 27% in Ouray 

County. 

   

 Renters in San Miguel most often live in apartments, while the majority in Ouray County rent 

single-family homes, a factor that impacts utility costs.  

 

 At last count 725 units with deed or other occupancy restrictions are rentals.  These units equal 

over 42% of total rental units in San Miguel County. 

 

 In both counties, the majority of rental units are affordable for low-income households (≤ 80% 

AMI).  The deed/occupancy restricted units in San Miguel County are the most affordable, 

followed by the rental units in Ouray County, which are all free market.   Free-market rentals in 

<<Exhibits - Page >>213



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 120 

San Miguel County are higher, but, with decreases in rents during the past two years, about 55% 

of units countywide are affordable for low-income households.  

 

 By community, the difference between free-market and deed-restricted rents is more 

pronounced, especially in Mountain Village where market rents are 2.3 times higher than rents 

for units with restrictions.  

 

 Among restricted units, rents are generally set at levels below the maximum affordable rates.  

 

There are six rental complexes in the two counties, five in San Miguel County, all of which are restricted, 

and one in Ouray County that is free market.  Three of the six have remained almost fully occupied even 

during the depths of the recession.   With an extremely low vacancy rate of 1.1% in the Telluride region, 

immediate development of additional rental units serving a mix of income levels appears to be 

warranted before market rents escalate due to demand that exceeds the supply.   

 

Two projects – Big Billies in Mountain Village and Cottonwood Creek in Norwood, have never performed 

well.  The under utilization of these resources should be understood so that the similar development 

mistakes do not occur.   Lessons that can be learned from these two projects include: 

 

 Units with low income restrictions (50% AMI for both projects) should be designed primarily for 

occupancy by one-income households.   Income restrictions have not been a problem at Big 

Billies, where all units are limited to occupancy by one person, but have been a significant 

impediment to lease up at Cottonwood Creek, where all units have four bedrooms.  Units should 

be small or income limits should be higher. 

 

 In rural communities, the market is too small for projects to target only one market segment, 

with all units having the same number of bedrooms.  The projects that have done well offer a 

variety of units. 

 

 Dorm rooms without kitchens are neither cost effective nor well suited for housing seasonal 

workers.   Big Billies is mostly vacant for all months except during the ski season.  Without 

kitchens or units that can be shared by couples, year-round residents are unwilling to live there.  

Seasonal workers, who typically hold some of the lowest wage and most physically demanding 

jobs in the community, are unable to cook full meals.  Building kitchens for individual dorm 

rooms is cost prohibitive, however.  Housing projects in other resorts designed for seasonal 

workers with multiple small bedrooms sharing a full-size kitchen have been able to attract 

residents year round and maintain higher occupancy levels.  

 

The one rental complex in Ouray County has had high vacancy rates during the past two years attributed 

to job losses in the area; competition from units that were built for owner occupancy, but, due to the 

soft market, are now rented out; and from competition from the Montrose area where vacancies have 

<<Exhibits - Page >>214



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 121 

been moderately high and rents low.   As such, development of additional rental units in Ouray County 

does not appear to be warranted at this time, unless they address a unique market segment, like 

extremely low income households. 

 

Housing Problems 
 

This section of the report examined various types of housing problems ranging from perceptions about 

the workforce housing to foreclosures. 

 

Perceptions 

 

The majority of residents in both counties feel that the problem of finding affordable housing for 

persons who work in the region is either the most critical or one of the more serious problems facing the 

area.  Renters overall and residents of Telluride considered the severity of the housing problem to be 

greater than other residents of the two-county region. 

 

While most residents are satisfied with the homes in which they now live, 47 households in Ouray 

County and 79 households in San Miguel County are very dissatisfied with their housing.  Satisfaction 

levels are highest overall in Ouray County and Norwood.  Lower-income households and residents who 

have moved to the area recently tend to be the most dissatisfied. 

 

Physical Conditions 

 

Most residents gave above average ratings to various measurements of the condition of their home, 

neighborhood and community.  Quality of schools and safety/security both rated very high.  Residents of 

Ouray County gave higher ratings to yard size, privacy, size of home and exterior appearance while San 

Miguel County residents gave higher scores to community amenities and proximity to services.  Energy 

efficiency received a relatively high rating of “poor” in all communities.   

 

Affordability 

 

Households are considered to be cost burdened by housing that is not affordable when the rent or 

mortgage payment exceeds 30% of household income.  In Ouray County, 30% of households, or 

approximately 610 households, live in housing that is not affordable.   The estimates are higher for San 

Miguel County - 44% or 1,513 households.   There is a direct correlation between affordability and 

income – the lower the income, the higher the percentage of income that has to be spent on housing. 

Utilities add to the cost of housing, particularly in Ouray County where high utilities are the leading 

cause for dissatisfaction with housing.  Ouray County renters pay, on average, $315 per month for 

utilities. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>215



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 122 

Forced to Move 

 

“To find less expensive housing” was the primary reason why approximately 29% of the residents in 

both counties combined moved within the past three years. 

 

Employment-Related Problems 

 

Employers that completed the on-line survey provided information very valuable to understanding 

housing needs in the two counties.  

 

 Most employers feel that affordable/employee housing is a problem –84% in Ouray County and 

90% in San Miguel County.  Housing for seasonal employees is far less of a concern than for 

year-round residents. 

 

 The recession has hard hit many employers and their employees.   Overall 65% have reduced the 

hours their employees work, 59% have frozen wages/salaries and 20% have reduced wage rates. 

   

 Housing has impacted the work performance of employees in multiple ways – causing 

displeasure with wage rates, tardiness from long commutes, fatigue on the job and high 

turnover. 

 

 While the recession has made it much easier to find employees to fill jobs, approximately 34 

positions in Ouray County and 134 jobs in San Miguel County went unfilled in 2010. 

 

Foreclosures 

   

Residential foreclosures are up sharply in both counties.  From 2008 through 2010, the number of filings 

increased roughly 500% in Ouray County (from 10 to 59) and 200% in San Miguel County (from 35 to 

108).  In 2010, Ouray County ranked fourth in the state in completed foreclosures measured as a 

percentage of households.   

 

Foreclosures were filed on a total of 33 residential deed-restricted properties from 2008 through the 

first two months of 2011.  The number has increased each year from only two in 2008 to 14 in 2010.  Six 

were filed in the first two month of 2011.  If this rate continues, filings will total 36 in 2011, which is in 

line with the sharp upward trend predicted by mortgage lenders.  Of the filings on deed-restricted 

properties, 91% did not have price caps. 

 

Special Needs 
 

Both counties have a relatively small population of persons who are age 65 or older -- 11.7% of the 

population in Ouray County and 4.1% in San Miguel County.   Most seniors are satisfied with their 

<<Exhibits - Page >>216



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 123 

housing and do not want to move.  While neither county has any housing specifically for seniors, the 

demand and feasibility for independent living, assisted living and elder co-housing are uncertain.  

 

There are also few people with disabilities in the region due to the climate-related impediments they 

face. 

 

Homelessness is not a common problem; the severity of the winter makes it impossible to live without 

housing during much of the year. 

 

It appears that the Spanish-speaking population has declined in size with the loss of solo men who work 

construction, but most families seem to have remained intact and school enrollment has held steady.  

Federal and state legislation requiring residency documentation has forced some to move down valley 

where market rents are lower. 

 

The number of very low income households has jumped sharply in both counties due to job losses and 

reductions in income.  The number of households receiving food stamps and help with their utility bills 

has more than doubled.  This suggests the need for emergency housing support, but little is available. 

 

Gaps and Estimated Needs 
 

This section of the report examined the relationship between incomes and housing costs (both rents and 

sale prices), the existing shortfall in affordable housing, demand for additional housing that will be 

generated by job growth between now and 2015, demand from existing residents who want to move 

into different homes, and the housing-related preferences of residents.   

 

Gaps between Housing Costs and Incomes 

 

Home prices in both counties have been and, based on for-sale listings, will continue to be beyond the 

price that is affordable for most residents.  Gaps were identified by comparing the incomes of residents 

to units priced at levels they can afford. 

 

Rents tend to be affordable for renters at most income levels.  The exception in both counties is the 

category of extremely low income households (incomes ≤ 30% AMI).  

  

Home prices remain much higher than affordable for local income earners however.  In San Miguel 

County: 

 

 Gaps exist in the free market up to the 200% to 250% AMI range based on sales during the past 

five years.  Based on units listed for sale, a gap exists until the 250% plus AMI category is 

reached. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>217



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 124 

 Deed-restricted units sold in the past five years have well matched income levels starting at the 

100% to 120% AMI range, with gaps for low-income households.  There are similar gaps in 

current availability when the prices of deed-restricted units listed for sale are compared to 

incomes.   

 

In Ouray County: 

 

 Units sold in the past five years proportionately matched the incomes of homeowners starting 

at the 100% to 120% AMI range.   

  

 The prices of current listings are not in line with incomes until the 150% to 200% AMI range. 

 

Need for Units to Address Shortfall 

 

The need to develop additional units to address the existing shortfall was quantified based on the need 

to provide housing for employees to move into the area to fill vacant jobs and on demand generated by 

in-commuting employees that want to move closer to work.  Based on this methodology, there is unmet 

demand for 138 units in Ouray County and 320 units in San Miguel County.  This demand is price 

sensitive, however.  Available units are generally priced too high.  In commuters would require a median 

price of $250,000 for a single-family home or a median rent of $600 to move closer to their work. 

 

Existing Shortfall in Housing 

 

Source of Demand Ouray County San Miguel County 

Unfilled Jobs 18 60 

In Commuters 120 260 

Total  138 320 

 

In Ouray County, market forces may drive down prices to the extent that the existing shortfall may be 

adequately addressed by existing units as they become more affordable.  High vacancies among existing 

apartment units, a large inventory of units for sale and a relatively high number of foreclosures suggest 

that the bottom in home prices and rents may not yet have been reached. 

 

In San Miguel County, rental vacancy rates are very low (except at one unique complex in Norwood), 

only nine deed-restricted units are listed for sale at prices affordable for households with incomes at or 

below 120% AMI and free-market prices remain far above levels that are affordable for most residents.  

These indicators suggest a more aggressive and immediate approach for addressing the estimated 

shortfall would be appropriate. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>218



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 125 

Additional Demand by 2015 

 

Three scenarios were used to forecast growth in housing demand by 2015 based on variations in job 

growth with annual rates of 0.5%, 1.5% and 3% assumed.  

   

 In Ouray County, between 31 and 193 additional units should be needed by 2015 to house 

growth in the workforce in Ouray County.  Based on the preferences of existing employees, 40% 

should be located in Ridgway, 26% in unincorporated Ouray County, 17% in Ouray and 18% 

outside of the county for employees who prefer to commute. 

 

 In San Miguel County, new job growth should generate demand for 76 to 479 additional housing 

units by 2015.  About half of the new units for which demand will be generated should be built 

in Telluride (38 to 239 units).  The others should be dispersed throughout San Miguel County, 

except for 11% for employees who would rather commute. 

 

Demand from Existing Residents 

 

The majority of any new units developed in the next five years will likely be purchased or rented by 

existing residents who want to move into homes other than where they now live.  Many of the new 

employees moving to the area will occupy homes they vacate.  Overall 30% of Ouray County’s residents 

and half of the households in San Miguel County would like to move into different homes within the 

next five years.  

 

 14% of homeowners in Ouray County and 26% in San Miguel County want to move into a 

different home.   Most of these homeowners want to buy a different home but 10% would like 

to rent.  

 

 Nearly three-fourths of the renters in both counties want to move. Most want to continue to 

rent.  Of renters who want to move, only 32% in Ouray County and 23% in San Miguel County 

indicated they want to buy a home in the next five years.  The main reasons why renters would 

rather continue to rent instead of buying are primarily financial in nature – housing they can 

afford and want is not available, they do not have a down payment or their economic future is 

uncertain. 

 

In both counties, the median price that residents who want to move would pay is $250,000.  The median 

rent desired is $650 in Ouray County and $1,000 in San Miguel County. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>219



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 126 

 Housing-Related Preferences 

 

The household survey generated information on the preferences of residents regarding location, unit 

type, bedrooms and bathrooms, amenities and neighborhood features. 

 

 Most residents of both counties live in the community where they most want to live. There is a 

clear desire, however, by many of the residents who live in Mountain Village, Lawson Hill and 

down valley communities to move into Telluride. 

 

 In both counties, the vast majority of residents who would like to move prefer a single-family 

home and there is clear preference among both owners and renters for a one-story over multi-

story home. 

 

 More residents prefer two bedrooms and two bathrooms than any other size of unit.  Residents 

of Ouray County generally want larger homes than residents of San Miguel County. 

 

 In-unit washers and dryers rated the highest among optional amenities followed by green 

building/energy efficiency.  

 

 Among optional neighborhood features, a private yard or outdoor space rated highest in terms 

of importance, followed closely by views and sense of community.  San Miguel County residents 

rated proximity to public transportation higher, which was the only significant difference 

between the two counties. 

  

Development Opportunities 
 

Market opportunities for the development of for-sale housing are limited at present.  In Ouray County, 

market prices may not have reached bottom, and the high number of foreclosures may force prices 

down on a sufficient number of units to meet existing demand.   

 

In San Miguel County, the large inventory of market and deed restricted units listed for sale, tough 

mortgage lending standards, few renters who want to buy and prices desired that are lower than exists 

even among subsidized units, most development efforts should focus on rental housing. 

    

Telluride is the exception.  The demand for both owner and rental housing in Telluride has not been 

satisfied.  Close consideration should be given to pricing of new for-sale units, however.  Most deed-

restricted units target a fairly narrow segment of the market.  The greatest homeownership market 

potential appears to be for housing in the 80% to 120% AMI range. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>220



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 127 

Multiple factors lead to the conclusion that there is additional demand for ownership units in Telluride: 

 

 Gaps between incomes and deed-restricted prices in all categories up to 120% AMI; 

 

 Approximately 30 deed-restricted units listed for sale nearby at prices affordable for households 

earning about 120% AMI; and 

  

 A median price of $200,000 needed to entice commuters who want to move to live closer to 

their work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>221



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 128 

8. Community Resources and Financial Tools 
 

This section of the report examines the availability of resources in both counties to address housing 

needs including: 

 

 Local housing programs; 

 Mortgages; 

 Down payment assistance programs; 

 Homeownership counseling programs; and 

 Housing rehabilitation programs. 

 

Local Housing Programs 

 

Ouray County 

 

The Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray and Ouray County worked together on the development of a 

detailed Affordable Housing Action Plan in 2008.   Shortly after development of the plan, the recession 

hit Ouray County.  As such, none of the three jurisdictions has provided a budget allocation for 

implementation in 2010 or 2011.  The timeline for the Action Plan has been revised to postpone several 

of the key action items; however, the Housing Authority board has remained active and accomplished 

some of the tasks called for in the Action Plan, including: 

 

 Initiation of a homebuyer education program with sessions in both the spring and fall of 2010. 

 

 Amendments to the Town of Ridgway’s Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) regulations, increasing 

the maximum unit size allowed from 600 to 800 square feet. 

 

 Participation in the Regional Housing Needs Assessment. 

 

 Drafting of language for a Real Estate Transfer Assessment for a Ridgway annexation. 

 

Town of Telluride 

 

The Town of Telluride had regulations, incentives, funds and land that can be used to address affordable 

housing needs.  Specifically: 

 

 Mitigation Requirements placed on all new commercial and residential development that 

require Affordable Housing Units (AHU’s) be developed for 40% or 60% of the employees 

generated by the development.  These requirements were extended to single-family and duplex 

homes in 2010. 

<<Exhibits - Page >>222



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 129 

 

 Incentives for the construction of Employee Dwelling Units (EDU’s) provided under current 

guidelines include tap fee and building permit waivers.  Future utilization of these incentives is 

not expected to be significant now that mitigation requirements apply to single-family homes 

and duplexes; accessory units will now typically fall under AHU requirements. 

 

 Through a public vote in 1994, the Town established an Affordable Housing Fund with revenues 

from a .5% sales tax and use tax, and authorized up to $5 million of debt for housing 

development.  The fund also receives fees paid in lieu for mitigation, reimbursements from the 

sale of homes that the Town builds and a small amount of miscellaneous revenue.  The Town 

receives approximately $520,000 on average each year in tax revenues.  The amount received 

from mitigation varies each year.  2010 was an exceptional year in which a mitigation payment 

of $300,000 was received.  Approximately $270,000 is earmarked for repayment on $3 million in 

bonded indebtedness.  While revenues may be higher in some years, there is a steady stream of 

roughly $250,000 available each year for new projects after payment of debt and the SMRHA. 

 

 The Town has acquired land to meet a variety of civic needs in the future.  One parcel was 

purchased with Affordable Housing Funds and is specifically dedicated to the development of 

eight units of affordable housing.  Plans for this parcel have not been developed.   

 

Town of Mountain Village 

 

The Town of Mountain Village had regulations, incentives, funds and land that can be used to address 
affordable housing needs. Specifically: 
 

 The Town has specific zoning requirements to provide employee housing for 15% of the 8,027 
person equivalent density limitation in the Town, with specific number of required units listed 
on a lot-by-lot basis.  This equates to an ultimate requirement to provide housing for 
approximately 1,204 person equivalents, or 350 condominiums/apartments and 149 dorm units 
(one condominium/apartment unit = three person equivalents; one dorm unit = one person 
equivalent). 
 

 The Town zoning allows for density increases for employee housing above the 8,027 person 
equivalent density limitation in the Town.  To date, 133 condominiums/apartments and 19 dorm 
units have been provided as employee housing “bonus density”.  This added housing has been 
provided by Town construction of units at Village Court Apartments and Coyote Court, the 
provision of additional housing or land for housing through a PUD process (with the housing 
being provided as a public benefit), and by the private sector developers. 

 

 The Town has reduced fees for affordable housing projects, including a reduced building permit 
fee and water and sewer tap incentives. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>223



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 130 

 11.11% of the Town’s sales tax (currently 4.5%) is directed into the Town’s Affordable Housing 
Development Fund.  This fund is used for a myriad of housing projects.  Annual receipts vary.  
For modeling purposes, revenues have been estimated at $260,000 per year. 

 

 The Town’s newly adopted Comprehensive Plan has set forth new goals for employee housing, 
including: 
o Providing housing for 30% of the 8,027 person equivalent density limitation or 2,408 

person equivalents; 
o Land banking for employee housing; 
o Creating enhanced housing regulations; 
o Cooperating on intergovernmental projects; and 
o Encouraging the provision of secondary dwelling units through the creation of new 

incentives. 
 

San Miguel County 

 

San Miguel County has an inclusionary zoning program, affordable housing impact fee, revenues from a 

real estate transfer assessment and incentives for accessory dwelling units, all of which are applicable 

only in the eastern portion of the county (R-1 school district boundaries). 

 

 The County’s inclusionary zoning program has been in place since 1990.   The program was 

initially very effective at producing for-sale housing, but the last PUD to which these regulations 

applied was approved in 1994.  The program is still on the books.  Its rate has been increased 

from 15% to 35%. 

 

 In 2007 the County enacted an impact fee applicable to new development to generate funds for 

affordable housing.  Since the 2008 slow down in construction, revenues have not equaled 

projections, but over $306,000 has been generated to date.  

 

County Affordable Housing Impact Fee Revenues 

 

Time Period Amount Received 

2007 ( 6 months) $33,160 

2008                   $99,757 

2009                   $58,236 

2010                   $109,232 

2011 (2 months) $6,078 

Total to date $306,463 
 Source: San Miguel County 

 

Funds have been used for land acquisition (the Sunnyside parcel) and can be used for other 

capital expenses/development, but cannot be used to purchase homes in foreclosure. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>224



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 131 

 A real estate transfer assessment applies to Lawson Hill, San Bernardo and Aldasoro.  Funds 

from this assessment have been used to support SMRHA and to purchase homes in foreclosure 

with deed restrictions that would otherwise expire.  The fund had reached a level of about 

$900,000, but is now down to approximately $100,000.  It will be replenished upon the sale of 

two homes and a lot that the County now owns. 

 

 Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) were allowed prior to 2007 on five- to 35-acre parcels, 

provided that the units were deed restricted.  For several years, deed-restricted ADU’s were 

required if the primary residence was over 5,000 square feet in size, or an $80,000 fee in lieu 

was paid into the Affordable Housing Fund.  In 2007, with the County’s adoption of an 

Affordable Housing Impact Fee, the ADU regulations were changed to allow the units without 

requiring deed restrictions, which are difficult to enforce. 

 

 The County acquired land for affordable housing using funds from its Impact Fee.  The 4-acre 

Sunnyside parcel is in the Eider Creek area just outside the Town of Telluride.  The sloping parcel 

will be difficult to develop, but may be able to accommodate up to 22 units of affordable 

housing.  Extension of Town water will be required.  The County looks to partner with the Town 

on the project. 

 

Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association (TMVOA) 

 

Revenue from a 3% real estate transfer assessment applicable to properties in Mountain Village is 

allocated by TMVOA to a variety of civic purposes including operation of the gondola and economic 

development activities.  Employee housing is one purpose for which some funds will likely be allocated 

in the future.  As currently envisioned, a committee of TMVOA board members and representatives 

from the Town of Mountain Village will be formed in two to three years to work together on 

development of for-sale homes.  TMVOA owns or is acquiring three parcels for housing development: 

 

1. Timberview (Lot 640BR), which is zoned for eight employee condominium units, two of which 

are built.  The units can be detached as are the two homes already on the site. 

 

2. Sunshine Valley, a parcel in lower Lawson Hill that is zoned for 13 condominium units. 

 

3. Lot C in Lawson Hill, which was purchased in 2007, will be land banked until developed for 

affordable housing. 

 

Mortgage Availability 

 

Multiple lenders provide a full array of mortgage products including conventional Fannie Mae and 

Freddie Mac, FHA, VA, Rural Development, jumbos and, in limited cases, portfolio loans.  Several lenders 

in San Miguel County specialize in deed-restricted units and homes priced at the low end of the free 

<<Exhibits - Page >>225



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 132 

market.   The most active lenders in the two counties include:  Alpine Bank, Bank of America, 

Countrywide and Wells Fargo and the Mortgage Store, a broker with multiple lenders. 

 

Business has been mixed during the past two years.  Refinances have been spurred by low interest rates 

at the same time that sales of free-market units have dramatically declined.  Construction of deed-

restricted projects by the Town of Telluride has generated business.  Tougher lending standards and file 

documentation requirements have, however, made application processing much more time consuming 

and kept mortgage lenders busier with fewer loans.   In general, it is much harder to obtain home loans 

now than prior to the 2007 crisis in the mortgage industry.  

   

The specific limitations and complications associated with home mortgage availability include: 

 

 Declining Home Values/High Loan-to-Value Ratios -- The value of free-market homes in both 

counties has declined since the 2007 peak in home prices (see Sec 3A -- Ownership Market 

Conditions).  Values of deed-restricted units without price caps have also declined.  Mortgage 

lenders estimate that many owners of both free-market and deed-restricted homes that are not 

price capped are now “under water” with mortgages that exceed the value of their property.  

This is a problem not only for owners who purchased near the peak but also for those who took 

equity out of their homes through refinances.  As a result, loan-to-value ratios are too high for 

refinancing, making it impossible to take advantage of low interest rates and reduce housing 

payments.  With the increase in defaults and foreclosures reported in Section 4, Housing 

Problems, values will further decline making it harder to refinance. 

 

 Appraisals Not Supporting Values --With declining property values, appraisals may not conclude 

that purchase prices are justified.  With lengthy loan processing, this problem is exacerbated.  

For example, a San Bernardo condominium appraised for $420,000 in August 2010.  Months 

went by without loan approval so a new appraisal was required in January.  This appraisal 

reported a value of $350,000, which equates to a $70,000 drop in value in less than six months. 

 

 Telluride Deed Restrictions Rejected -- Four years ago, the Town of Telluride changed its deed 

restriction so that provisions survive default and foreclosure.  This was done to protect the 

inventory of affordable housing from the wave of foreclosures sweeping the nation and other 

resort communities.  This change enables the Town to allocate its affordable housing funds on 

new construction rather than on the purchase of homes that are in foreclosure.   FHA, VA and 

USDA, however, have ruled they will not accept deed restrictions that survive foreclosure.  

Mortgage lenders seem to agree that this is a significant impediment for buyers of deed-

restricted units since government insured mortgages are often the best product for borrowers 

with limited funds for down payments.   As a consequence, borrowers of new deed-restricted 

homes in Telluride must have 20% down or be able to qualify for and afford private mortgage 

insurance.  While FHA, VA and USDA loans have rarely been used in the past in Telluride, the 

<<Exhibits - Page >>226



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 133 

recent ruling eliminated several applicants for Mendota and Gold Run units who could not 

obtain conventional mortgages. 

 

 Conventional Mortgage Lenders Limited by Deed Restrictions -- Conventional Mortgages are 

still possible with Telluride’s permanent deed restrictions, yet the number of lenders who can 

offer them is limited because many banks and mortgage companies have inadequate loan 

administration systems for tracking of deed restrictions when loans are sold.   This limits 

competition, consumer choice, and mortgage availability.  

 

 Tough and Time Consuming Underwriting -- The loan packaging and underwriting process is 

now more complicated and time consuming.  While underwriting standards basically adhere to 

“make sense” criteria and the credit ratings required are high but reasonable, income 

documentation and file quality standards are making mortgage applications and processing far 

more time consuming and difficult.  In general, borrowers must have three months of cash 

reserves in addition to closing costs, a good credit score and three open lines of credit that are 

at least 24 months old.  

 

 Condominiums Harder to Finance -- It is getting harder to obtain and maintain condominium 

approvals.  Lenders have historically worked with FHA, USDA and Fannie Mae to obtain project 

approvals required for condominiums.  With lenders spending increased time on loan packaging 

and processing, developers need to assume this responsibility.  This task can take months and, if 

not done early in the development process, can impede loan closings.  Lenders often limit 

exposure and risk by limiting the number or percentage of units on which they will provide 

mortgages in any given project.  Many of the companies that provide private mortgage 

insurance will not provide it for condominiums, thus requiring borrows to come up with 20% 

down.  The financial stability of condominium homeowner’s associations (HOA’s) is also 

becoming a problem due to delinquent dues.  When borrowers default on their mortgages they 

also stop paying their HOA dues, which can result in the condominium project losing its 

approval.  The HOA then raises dues of remaining owners, driving up their monthly costs until 

they are no longer affordable and, in some cases, causing them to default. 

 

Commercial Uses in Mixed-Use Development – Lenders have become less willing to provide 

mortgages for residential units in building with commercial uses.  Most lenders now limit 

commercial uses to 20% of the development yet there have been projects approved where this 

percentage is exceeded. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>227



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 134 

Down Payment Assistance 

 

San Miguel County 

 

The San Miguel Regional Housing Authority has a Down Payment and Closing Cost Assistance program 

administered by Funding Partners, a non-profit agency based on Fort Collins that operates throughout 

much of the state.  The program provides assistance to households with incomes up to 150% AMI, or 

115% AMI if the primary mortgage is FHA insured.  First-time buyers can borrow up to 5% of the 

purchase price or $25,000, whichever is less.   Borrowers who have owned homes previously can borrow 

the lesser of 5% of the purchase price or $10,000.  Borrowers must still provide a minimum of 3% of the 

purchase price from funds acceptable to the primary lender. The assistance is structured as an Equity 

Share Mortgage.  Repayment of principal and a pro rata share of appreciation must be done upon sale 

and is allowed at any time prior to that.  Terms have been changed to 15 years.  A total of 34 loans were 

made from 2001 through 2008, 25 of which have been paid off.  A total of five applications are in 

process, four of which are for buyers at Gold Run.  For 2011, $163,000 is available for loans in San 

Miguel County.  

 

Ouray County 

 

Down payment assistance is available to buyers in Ouray County through the Colorado Housing and 

Finance Authority (CHFA).   CHFA provides fixed-rate financing, homebuyer education and technical 

assistance on affordable housing and economic development.  CHFA partners with local businesses, 

banks and governments, with a goal of creating stronger communities and local economies.  They have 

two programs for down payment assistance: 

 

 CHFA Homeopener Program, which offers fixed interest rate loans to buy a home, and 

offers second mortgages to use for down payment and/or closing cost assistance.  

Income qualifications apply, home buyer education classes are required and you must 

contribute a minimum of $1,000 toward the purchase price. 

 

 CHFA Jumpstart Program, which is a First-Time Homebuyer Tax Credit Program for down 

payment and/or closing cost assistance.  

 

Homebuyer Education 
 

Shirley Diaz, the executive director of the SMRHA, is certified in homebuyer counseling, including pre-

purchase education and foreclosure prevention from Neighborworks, which is recognized by HUD and 

also CHFA.  In 2010 she offered eight classes in San Miguel County which were attended by 34 

households.  Three Homebuyer Education Classes were offered in Ouray County, but were cancelled due 

to lack of interest.  Monthly eight-hour courses will be offered in San Miguel County and two evening 

<<Exhibits - Page >>228



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 135 

workshops are planned for Ouray County in 2011.  One-on-one counseling is also offered, but has not 

been utilized to date.   

 

Housing Rehabilitation and Weatherization 

Grand Junction-based Housing Resources of Western Colorado, with support from the Governor’s 
Energy Office, operates a weatherization program in seven counties, including Ouray and San Miguel.  
Only low income applicants are eligible.   In an effort to improve service delivery, MADA out of 
Montrose is now accepting applications and coordinating the work.  The annual average since 2010 for 
weatherization through this program has been 3.4 units in Ouray County and 1.9 units in San Miguel 
County. 

 
The Delta Housing Authority has a self sustaining allocation of CDBG and HOME funds available for 

housing rehabilitation in Delta, Montrose and San Miguel counties leftover from the now defunct 

WCHDO (Western Colorado Housing Development Organization).  The funds can be used for low income 

homeowners only (incomes no greater than 80% AMI).  In order to access the funds, a jurisdiction in 

Ouray County must enter into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Delta Housing Authority 

but has not done so to date.  An IGA is in place in San Miguel County but the program has not been 

marketed or utilized yet.  It would be administered through the Delta Housing Authority and therefore 

will likely be difficult to access and coordinate given the distance.  The maximum loan is $24,999.  The 

Delta Housing Authority currently has a balance of approximately $200,000 in the revolving loan fund. 

The New Community Coalition (TNCC), a non-profit based in Telluride, has partnered with San Miguel 

Power Association and Colorado Solar Industries Association (COSEIA) to offer rebates via the 

Governor’s Energy Office for Insulation, Solar PV and Solar Hot Water systems.  The “Insulate Colorado” 

program provides homeowners with rebates to insulate and air-seal their homes to help reduce energy 

costs.  Rebates are available up to $500 or 50% of total cost of the project, whichever the lesser.  The 

insulation must be installed by an eligible Colorado contractor.  There are no income restrictions 

associated with this program. 

 

The Town of Ridgway offers sales tax rebates for the purchase and installation of solar electric/ hot 

water systems pursuant to Ridgway Municipal Code §6-1-12.  No income restrictions apply. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>229



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 136 

9.  Action Plan – Input and Recommendations 
 

This section of the report provides support for the development or refinement of plans to address the 

housing problems, gaps and demand identified by this needs assessment.  It consists of three parts: 

 

A. Opinions about affordable housing from the key stakeholder, household and employer surveys; 

 

B. Analyst’s recommendations; and 

 

C. Affordable housing development model that provides estimates of the deed-restricted units 

that will be developed by 2015 through various requirements, incentives and other efforts. 

 

A. Opinions about Affordable Housing 
 

Comments from Key Stakeholders 

 

An on-line survey was conducted at the start of this needs assessment to identify concerns and shape 

the direction of the study.  A total of 26 elected and appointed officials, representatives of community 

organizations with an interest related to housing and concerned citizens completed the survey.   

 

 Many examples were provided of accomplishments including specific projects, the efforts of all 

of the government jurisdictions that have taken action to produce affordable housing, the 

housing authorities in both counties and Habitat for Humanity. 

 

 Comments about lessons learned focused on the high prices of affordable housing, the need to 

partner on development of additional units, deed restrictions, income limits and waivers to 

existing guidelines.  

 

 About the rate at which affordable housing should be developed in the near future, the majority 

of responses (54%) indicated that the pace should be increased to take advantage of low 

construction costs and to stimulate the economy through construction jobs. 

 

 Concerning aspects of existing programs, the majority felt that eligibility criteria, income levels, 

owner/renter mix, location, unit size and unit type should stay the same.  Many specific 

suggestions for changes were offered, however, by respondents who felt changes are needed. 

 

The report from this survey is an appendix to this report. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>230



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 137 

Comments from Employers 

 
The last question on the employer survey was “Do you have comments on affordable housing efforts to 
date or suggestions on how to address housing needs in the future?”  A wide variety of comments were 
received, 24 in all.  While one comment indicated affordable housing is not the problem it was prior to 
the recession, there seemed to be a general consensus that housing for employees remains a significant 
concern and that additional efforts are needed.  For example, one employer wrote, “The affordable 
housing efforts of the Town of Telluride and San Miguel County have been hugely successful and should 
continue.” 
 

Some specific suggestions for future efforts included: 

 

 Lower prices for deed-restricted units. 

 

 Changes to deed restrictions with preferences given to teachers, fire fighters, police and library 

staff.   

 

 Continuation of housing efforts with the two towns and San Miguel County working together in 

providing resources and possible subsidies to encourage and enable our workforce to live in the 

region. 

 

 More affordable housing choices where pets are allowed. 

 

 Rental units. 

 

 Dorms for seasonal workers. 

 

 Housing for seniors and the disabled in the west end of the county. 

 

All comments received are included as an appendix to this report. 

 

Comments from Households 

 

The household survey concluded with a question asking for additional comments or suggestions.  A list 

13 pages long with 300 individual comments was generated in response to this question.  This suggests 

that residents of the two counties are very concerned about affordable housing.  Comments were 

varied, covering many subjects and representing diverse opinions.  Briefly summarized: 

 

 The most frequently mentioned concern by far was the high price of affordable housing, with 

complaints that prices for “affordable” units are not and that housing efforts have been elitist.  

An example: “YOUR (SO CALLED) AFFORDABLE HOUSING IS FAR BEYOND THE AVERAGE 

WORKER'S INCOME.” 

<<Exhibits - Page >>231



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 138 

 

 Many suggestions were given for smaller units and lower prices, although others requested 

larger homes and single-family units.  

  

 Proponents of more affordable housing outweighed opponents who wrote that no more 

affordable housing should be developed or that housing is not government’s responsibility. 

 

 Many suggested building more affordable units now.  One comment was simply “Build.  Build. 

Build.” 

 

 Multiple suggestions were made to build additional rental housing with various reasons given, 

including the number of deed restricted units listed for sale. 

 

 Multiple comments were also received about allowing dogs in affordable housing projects, with 

Shandoka and Lawson Hill specifically named. 

 

 Jobs were mentioned by many – the need for more jobs, better jobs, down valley jobs where 

people live, and jobs that pay wages sufficient to afford housing.   

 

 Concerns about foreclosures were common.  Efforts to stop foreclosures and to change 

restrictions so that units could be more easily sold or rented were requested. 

 

 Approximately 20 comments expressed gratitude for affordable housing efforts.  Several just 

stated “thanks.” 

 

The full list of comments is in the appendix to this report. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>232



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 139 

B. Analyst’s Recommendations 
 

These 12 recommendations have not been prioritized.  The individual jurisdictions, either separately or 

as a region, should develop priorities or determine a plan of action for the next five years. 

 

1. Affordable Housing Database -- A comprehensive database should be developed to monitor and 

manage the large and increasing inventory of deed/occupancy-restricted units in San Miguel County.  

Fields should include type of occupancy; AMI restriction, if any; AMI of occupant; date built; sale 

prices; rents; number of bedrooms; square footage and value of improvements made.  This 

information should be readily available to evaluate the supply as it changes and to determine to 

what extent it serves the needs of residents. 

 

2. Regional Housing Authority – The San Miguel Regional Housing Authority should be expanded to 

also serve Ouray County, where the housing authority is not staffed and has no resources.  This 

action would create administrative efficiencies, avoid duplication of efforts and allow for sharing of 

expertise.   A model for this type of cooperative approach exists with the Department of Social 

Services that serves both counties.   

 

3. Deed Restriction for Ouray County – To avoid the administrative complexities and confusion created 

in San Miguel County, a single deed restriction should be drafted for use throughout Ouray County.  

This should be a goal for 2011 since it requires few resources to accomplish and it would be ideal for 

the restrictions to be agreed upon before additional units are planned. 

 

4. Emergency Housing Assistance – The loss of jobs, reduction in income, doubling of households 

receiving food stamps and utility assistance, and the sharp increase in foreclosures all suggest the 

need for emergency housing assistance.  Providing funds to help with mortgage payments is less 

expensive than acquiring foreclosed properties.   

 

5. Housing Rehabilitation – Households throughout the region and especially in Ouray County could 

benefit from a housing rehabilitation program that results in the reduction of utility costs.  It should 

serve renters as well as owners.  Through the assistance, rents could be fixed at affordable rates for 

a reasonable period of years.  Working with Housing Resources and Montrose-based MADA on 

weatherization should be part of the effort, but additional resources are needed.    

 

6. Rental Development – The Telluride region needs additional rental units.  Planning for their 

development should commence soon given the two to three years it takes between concept and 

completion.  Funding from the Colorado Division of Housing and CHFA should be pursued in order to 

make rents affordable. 

 

7. Regional Approach to Development  – The jurisdictions in the two-county region and especially in 

the Telluride area should take market conditions throughout the region into account when planning 

<<Exhibits - Page >>233



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 140 

the development of new units.  All efforts should not simultaneously target the same population 

segments at the same time. 

 

8. Mortgage Availability – The number of lenders willing to provide mortgages for deed-restricted units 

and the loan products they offer should be monitored to insure that mortgage availability is 

adequate.  Dependency on one or two lenders for conventional loans is not advisable given lack of 

competition and the potential that they might decide they have enough exposure in the area with 

little notice.  Telluride should continue to access the risk of foreclosures among its deed-restricted 

inventory and evaluate if that risk outweighs the limits their survivability clause places on mortgage 

availability. 

 
9. Public Relations and Information Sharing – There are so many “flavors” of deed restrictions in San 

Miguel County that potential buyers cannot readily assess the options they might have.  The various 

deed restrictions, of which there are approximately 10 models, should be succinctly summarized so 

that the public can understand the major differences and long-term ramifications. 

 

10. Changes to Guidelines and Deed Restrictions – Mountain Village, San Miguel County and Telluride 

should revisit their affordable housing guidelines and deed restrictions in light of the information 

contained in this needs assessment.  Revisions and procedural changes should be considered to 

reduce the number of variances being processed.  Limits on debt should be considered for new units 

if their deed restrictions are not price capped.   When income limits are higher than prices (for 

example, a 200% AMI limit with a price affordable at 120% AMI) priority could be given to 

households with incomes that closely align with prices, thus increasing opportunities for lower-

income households. 

 

11. Ties with Economic Development – Since housing that is affordable for the labor force is a key 

ingredient of a sustainable economy, housing and economic development organizations should 

work together.  With shared goals, solutions could be developed with funding sources that are 

specifically for this purpose, such as HUD’s new Rural Innovation Fund, which promotes an 

‘entrepreneurial approach’ to affordable housing and economic development in rural areas.  By 

regularly articulating the interconnectedness of the local economy with adequate housing for the 

workforce, housing efforts will not be sacrificed in the name of economic development. 

 
12. Ouray County Master Plan Update -- Work on the 2008 Ouray County Strategic Housing Plan 

revealed that policies are not in place for the development of affordable housing in the county.  The 

current master plan is 15 years old.  Through the updating process, public opinions and visions could 

be better understood, and all types of land use, including housing, could be comprehensively 

examined.  Affordable housing should not be viewed in isolation, but in the context of where and 

how it might fit in Ouray County. 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>234

http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/grants/nofa10/grpruralinno.cfm


September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 141 

C. Affordable Housing Supply Development Model 
 

As shown on the following table, approximately 208 additional deed-restricted units are likely to be built 

through the year 2015.  These estimates were developed using a combination of factors – historical 

rates of production, opportunities that appear on the horizon at this point in time and speculation about 

how fast the economy and construction activity will rebound.   

Regional 5-Year Affordable Housing Supply Model    

 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total 

New Deed-Restricted Units      

Ridgway       

Parkside    3 3 6 

Preserve    4  4 

Sub-total 0 0 0 7 3 10 

       
Mountain Village       

Timberview    2 2 4 

Adams Ranch Apts   100   100 

Cortina  2    2 

Peaks conference center dorms  4 4  8 

Boulders 0 1 1 2 2 6 

Sub-total 0 3 105 6 2 116 

       
San Miguel County       

Sunnyside    22  22 

DR on Approved Lots   2 2 2 6 

Sub-total 0 0 2 24 2 28 

       
Telluride       

Mitigation Units/ADU's 2 2 2 2 2 10 

Incentive Units/EDU's 1 1 1 1 1 5 

Town Development 3 9 9 9 9 39 

Sub-total 6 12 12 12 12 54 

       
Total New DR Units 6 15 119 49 19 208 

Housing Funds       

Mtn Village Sales tax $260,000 $260,000 $260,000 $260,000 $260,000 $1,300,000 

SMC - Impact fee $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 $450,000 

SMC - RETA $50,000 $50,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $325,000 

Tride -  Affordable Housing Fund $520,000 $520,000 $520,000 $520,000 $520,000 $2,600,000 

Total Housing Funds $920,000 $920,000 $945,000 $945,000 $945,000 $4,675,000 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>235



September 2011 

RRC Associates/Rees Consulting  Page 142 

Mountain Village, San Miguel County and Telluride should receive approximately $4.7 million in revenue 

for affordable housing.  Much of this revenue is already earmarked, however, for debt service and 

existing projects including all of the sales tax devoted to affordable housing in Mountain Village and 

approximately half of the revenue in Telluride’s Affordable Housing Fund.   The amount of funding 

actually available to support new development should total approximately $2 million. 

In addition to the development of additional units, weatherization and rehabilitation efforts that will be 

undertaken by 2015 include: 

 Rehabilitation of 88 units at Village Court Apartments. 

 Reroofing and painting at Shandoka. 

 Rehabilitation of four owner-occupied single family homes  in San Miguel County in 2012. 

 Weatherization of four units in Ouray County and 12 units in San Miguel County by mid 2012.  

Funding is uncertain for future years. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

<<Exhibits - Page >>236



Boulder Regional Housing Partnership: Housing Our Community- 

https://www.housingourcommunity.org/ 

<<Exhibits - Page >>237

https://www.housingourcommunity.org/
hhollenbeck
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 9



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #16 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #17 
 



	

 

Colorado Communities for Climate Action 
February	2019	

	
Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	is	a	coalition	of	counties	and	municipalities	that	advocates	
for	state	and	federal	policies	to	protect	Colorado’s	climate	for	current	and	future	generations.		
	
These	state	and	federal	actions	are	needed	to	complement	the	local	climate	actions	CC4CA	members	
already	have	underway,	which	include	ambitious	goals	to	reduce	carbon	pollution	and	strong	local	
policies	to	meet	those	goals.	But	local	governments	simply	cannot	meet	their	climate	goals	on	their	
own—they	also	need	a	better	framework	of	state	and	federal	climate	policies	to	enable	their	local	
actions	to	be	more	effective.	That	reality	led	to	the	creation	of	CC4CA,	in	which	local	governments	
have	joined	forces	to	work	for	state	and	federal	actions	supporting	and	complementing	local	climate-
protection	actions.	
	
The	coalition	represents	more	than	one-eighth	of	all	Coloradans.	The	24	members	of	CC4CA	are:		

•	Aspen	 	 •	Eagle	County	 •	Nederland	
•	Avon		 	 •	Fort	Collins		 	 •	Northglenn	
•	Basalt	 	 •	Frisco	 	 •	Pitkin	County		
•	Boulder	 	 •	Golden	 	 •	San	Miguel	County	
•	Boulder	County	 •	Lafayette	 	 •	Summit	County		
•	Breckenridge	 •	Longmont	 	 •	Telluride	
•	Carbondale	 	 •	Louisville	 	 •	Vail		
•	Crested	Butte	 •	Mountain	Village	 •	Westminster	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	
Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	has	adopted,	by	unanimous	consent	among	its	members,	a	
policy	agenda	of	steps	that	should	be	taken	at	the	state	and	federal	levels,	often	in	partnership	with	
local	governments,	to	enable	Colorado	and	its	communities	to	lead	in	protecting	the	climate.	The	
agenda	includes	state	legislative	and	executive	branch	policies	and	actions	to:		

•		Extend	current	authorities	and	provide	new	ones	for	local	actions.	
•		Set	new	state	climate-protection	goals.	
•		Define	and	implement	concrete	steps	to	meet	those	goals.	
•		Reduce	carbon	pollution	through	concrete	new	policies	on	electricity	generation,	energy	
efficiency,	transportation,	and	waste	management.		

	
	

For	more	information:		
Jacob	Smith	•	jsmith@cc4ca.org	•	(303)	810-6017	

CC4CA.org	



	

Aspen	·	Avon	·	Basalt	·	Breckenridge	·	Boulder	·	Boulder	County	·	Carbondale	·	Crested	Butte		
Eagle	County	·	Fort	Collins	·	Frisco	·	Golden	·	Lafayette	·	Longmont	·	Louisville	·	Mountain	Village	·	Nederland		

Northglenn	·	Pitkin	County	·	San	Miguel	County	·	Summit	County	·	Telluride	·	Vail	·	Westminster	

	

	

Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	Highlights	
February	2019	

	
Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	is	a	coalition	of	24	counties	and	municipalities	
across	Colorado	advocating	for	effective	state	climate	policy.	Our	members	span	the	
Western	Slope	and	Front	Range;	small	rural	towns	and	major	suburbs;	counties	and	
municipalities;	and	wealthy,	middle	income,	and	low-income	neighborhoods.		
	
New	members	over	the	past	year	include	Avon,	Breckenridge,	Longmont,	and	Northglenn.	
Representing	more	than	one-eighth	of	all	Coloradans,	CC4CA	has	become	an	impactful	
voice	for	clean	air,	climate	action,	and	public	health	protection.		
	
Legislative	Successes	

As	an	increasingly	influential	organization	at	the	Capitol,	CC4CA	regularly	meets	with	state	
legislators,	is	regularly	invited	to	testify	at	legislative	hearings,	and	plays	a	consequential	
role	on	climate-related	legislation:	

• CC4CA	testimony	helped	kill	a	bill	earlier	this	month	that	would	have	rolled	back	
Colorado’s	newly	adopted	“low	emission	vehicle”	standards.	

• Our	testimony	helped	move	another	important	bill,	the	Colorado	Energy	Impact	
Assistance	Act,	out	of	committee	in	the	House,	and	we	are	situated	to	help	secure	its	
passage	in	the	Senate	as	well.	

• CC4CA	is	coordinating	political	and	coalition	strategy	on	Senator	Donovan’s	
greenhouse	gas	inventory	bill,	an	important	priority	for	the	coalition.	

• CC4CA	is	a	key	player	in	the	effort	to	pass	significant	legislation	this	session	on	
greenhouse	gas	emissions.	Local	governments	have	particular	concerns	and	needs,	
and	are	a	powerful	voice	at	the	Capitol;	we	are	working	to	make	sure	this	legislation	
includes	ambitious	carbon	reduction	goals	and	a	tangible	path	for	achieving	them.	

• Less	than	halfway	through	the	session	nearly	a	dozen	bills	have	already	been	
introduced	that	CC4CA	is	engaged	on	We	are	helping	to	kill	those	that	weaken	
climate	policy	in	Colorado,	pass	the	ones	that	strengthen	it,	and	incorporate	
amendments	before	bills	are	adopted	to	make	sure	the	needs	and	perspectives	of	
local	governments	are	incorporated.	

• In	last	year’s	session,	despite	the	split	chambers	and	a	partisan	divide	that	made	it	
very	difficult	to	advance	legislation	on	climate	and	energy	issues,	CC4CA	helped	
secure	passage	of	two	key	energy	storage	bills.	One	established	the	rights	of	utility	
customers	to	install	and	use	battery	storage	to	enhance	their	own	renewable	energy	



systems,	and	the	other	directed	the	Public	Utilities	Commission	to	adopt	rules	that	
address	utility-scale	storage	systems.	

• And	CC4CA	helped	defeat	bills	in	the	last	session	that	would	have	eliminated	tax	
incentives	for	purchase	of	electric	vehicles,	repealed	parts	of	the	state	renewable	
energy	standards,	and	prevented	the	state	from	entering	into	climate	and	clean	
energy	alliances	with	other	states.	

	
Advanced	Clean	Car	Standards	

In	an	effort	that	ran	through	much	of	2018,	CC4CA	played	a	key	role	in	securing	two	critical	
Colorado	Air	Quality	Control	Commission	decisions:	

• CC4CA	led	an	energetic	effort	by	local	governments	to	persuade	Governor	
Hickenlooper	to	consider	adopting	“low	emission	vehicle”	standards,	and	then	
played	a	central	role	in	the	Commission’s	decision	late	last	year	to	actually	adopt	
them.	These	standards,	which	twelve	other	states	have	also	adopted,	will	protect	
Colorado	from	the	EPA’s	planned	weakening	of	federal	emissions	standards.	

• CC4CA	also	worked	hard	–	successfully	–	to	persuade	the	Air	Quality	Control	
Commission	to	begin	a	rulemaking	process	for	the	so-called	“zero	emission	vehicle”	
standards.	The	state	is	expected	to	formally	propose	the	rule	this	spring,	designed	to	
substantially	expand	electric	vehicle	opportunities	in	Colorado.	

And	CC4CA	is	now	playing	a	lead	role	in	the	effort	to	actually	adopt	these	ZEV	standards.	If	
we	are	successful,	electric	vehicles	will	become	more	affordable	and	Coloradans	will	have	
dramatically	improved	access	to	the	full	range	of	electric	vehicle	models	on	the	market,	
including	SUVs,	crossovers,	and	trucks.	These	standards	will	also	help	ensure	that	all	of	
Colorado	–	rural	and	Front	Range	alike	–	will	fully	benefit	from	the	spread	of	electric	
vehicles.	CC4CA	and	its	coalition	partners	in	this	effort	will	remain	heavily	engaged	until	
these	standards	are	adopted.	
	
Pushing	for	Strong	Executive	Branch	Policies	and	Programs	

CC4CA	helped	secure	a	critical	Public	Utilities	Commission	decision	in	February	2019	that	
gives	many	of	our	members	a	better	chance	at	being	able	to	expand	their	use	of	renewable	
energy.	CC4CA	began	establishing	a	credible	presence	at	the	PUC	last	year,	testifying	in	
support	of	Xcel	Energy’s	proposed	plan	to	retire	early	coal-fired	power	plants	and	invest	
instead	in	renewable	sources.	
In	addition	to	our	work	with	the	Colorado	Department	of	Public	Health	and	Environment,	
CC4CA	is	working	with	the	Governor’s	staff,	the	Colorado	Energy	Office,	and	other	state	
agencies.	The	focus	is	finding	and	implementing	opportunities	to	better	prepare	for	the	
local	community	impacts	of	climate	change	and	to	reduce	Colorado’s	carbon	emissions.	
The	new	governor’s	cabinet	and	senior	staff	appointments	include	a	number	of	CC4CA’s	
local	elected	officials,	including	the	new	director	of	the	Colorado	Department	of	Public	
Health	and	Environment,	who	relinquished	her	positions	as	an	Eagle	County	Commissioner	
and	CC4CA	President	in	order	to	take	on	the	new	role.	



The	coalition	has	already	built	a	reputation	as	a	knowledgeable	and	trusted	player,	adding	
to	legislative	proceedings	the	voice	and	experience	of	city	council	and	county	commission	
members,	as	well	as	local	government	policy	and	technical	staff	experts.	Through	
committee	hearing	testimony,	personal	contacts	with	legislators,	and	collaboration	with	
other	organizations,	CC4CA	actively	engages	with	bills	that	advance	a	policy	agenda	
unanimously	adopted	by	the	coalition	to	guide	its	work.		
	
Training	Members	for	Effective	Advocacy	

Over	the	past	15	months	CC4CA	conducted	four	well-attended	regional	training	sessions	
around	the	state	for	elected	officials,	managers,	and	program	staff	of	member	jurisdictions.	
The	sessions	armed	attendees	with	information	and	tools	to	more	effectively	represent	
CC4CA	and	their	individual	local	governments	in	advocating	for	climate	action	at	the	state	
and	federal	levels.		
CC4CA	also	ensures	that	its	members	–	local	elected	officials	and	local	government	staff	–	
have	the	opportunity	to	serve	as	witnesses	during	legislative	hearings,	meet	with	their	
legislators,	testify	during	agency	rulemaking	processes,	speak	to	reporters,	and	publish	
opinion	pieces	in	local	and	statewide	media	outlets.	In	the	past	year	alone,	thirty	CC4CA	
representatives	have	testified,	a	dozen	have	been	quoted	in	news	stories,	and	two	dozen	
have	published	letters	to	the	editor	and	guest	editorials	in	news	outlets.	
	
Building	Strategic	Relationships	

CC4CA	continues	to	build	constructive	relationships	at	multiple	levels.	For	instance:	
• We	offered	every	gubernatorial	candidate	from	both	major	parties	last	year	an	

opportunity	to	meet	and	learn	about	CC4CA	and	the	climate-oriented	concerns	of	
our	local	government	members.	The	candidates	we	ended	up	briefing	included	the	
new	governor	and	helped	us	establish	a	strong	relationship	from	the	very	beginning	
of	his	term.	

• Similarly,	CC4CA	is	meeting	with	every	member	of	Colorado’s	Congressional	
delegation	representing	CC4CA	members.	

• CC4CA	maintains	a	strong	working	relationship	with	other	organizations	
representing	local	government	interests,	including	the	Compact	of	Colorado	
Communities	and	the	Colorado	Municipal	League.	

	
In	just	three	years,	Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	has	evolved	from	an	
interesting	idea	into	an	influential	coalition	shaping	state	climate	policy.	It	can	be	very	
difficult	for	individual	local	governments	to	influence	state	policy	on	their	own,	but	a	
coalition	of	more	than	two	dozen	local	governments	all	speaking	with	one	voice	has	an	
outsized	impact.	
	

For	more	information:		
Jacob	Smith	•	jsmith@cc4ca.org	•	(303)	810-6017	•	CC4CA.org	

	



	

Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	
March	2019	

	
Colorado	communities	with	climate-protection	goals	are	grappling	with	the	reality	that	local	actions	
alone	will	not	achieve	them.	Local	governments	also	need	a	better	framework	of	state	and	federal	
climate	policies	to	enable	them	to	be	more	effective	in	their	own	local	climate	actions.	

	Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	is	a	coalition	advocating	for	state	and	federal	actions	to	
complement	local	climate	protection	action	and	protect	Colorado’s	climate	for	current	and	future	
generations.	The	coalition	is	comprised	of	25	local	governments,	which	together	represent	more	than	
one-eighth	of	all	Coloradans.		

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Current	Policy	Priorities	

Colorado	Communities	for	Climate	Action	
works	to	shape	state	and	federal	climate	
policy.	By	unanimous	consent,	coalition	
members	have	adopted	a	formal	Policy	
Agenda.	The	Policy	Agenda	includes:		
	
•	Actively	supporting	pro-climate	action	
legislation	and	opposing	bills	that	
undercut	state	or	local	climate	authority.	
CC4CA	is	represented	by	Eliza	Schultz	and	
Elisabeth	Rosen	at	the	General	Assembly.	

•	Advocating	for	specific	state	actions	that	
are	sufficient	to	meet	the	climate	goals	
set	by	Colorado	Governor	John	
Hickenlooper	in	2017,	and	also	to	meet	a	
new,	long-term	goal	that	CC4CA	urges	
the	state	to	adopt	of	at	least	an	80	
percent	reduction	in	greenhouse	gas	
emissions	by	2050.		

•	Representing	local	interests	in	state	
agency	proceedings	on	climate	
protection,	energy	efficiency,	and	clean	
energy.	CC4CA	also	advocates	for	
continued	and	strengthened	federal	
climate	actions	and	against	efforts	to	roll	
back	federal	policies	and	programs.	

	

Benefits	of	the	Coalition	

Collaboration		
Working	together	through	Colorado	
Communities	for	Climate	Action,	local	
governments	can	and	do	influence	state	
and	federal	actions	more	than	individual	
jurisdictions	can	alone.	CC4CA	works	for	
strong	collaboration	between	state	and	
local	governments,	maximizing	the	return	
on	local	efforts.		

	
Cost-Effectiveness		
One	obstacle	for	local	governments	
wanting	to	influence	state	and	federal	
policies	is	the	expense	of	advocacy.	
Pooling	resources	to	secure	professional	
representation	is	the	most	cost-effective	
way	to	get	the	professional	services	local	
governments	need	to	be	effective	on	
climate	matters	at	the	state	and	federal	
levels.		
	
Local	Support		
The	coalition	also	offers	networking	
opportunities	to	members	and	produces	
analyses	and	materials	in	support	of	
coalition	and	member	priorities	and	
actions.	

	



Coalition	Members	

The	coalition’s	25	local	government	members	include:		

•	Aspen	 	 •	Crested	Butte	 •	Nederland	
•	Avon		 	 •	Eagle	County	 •	Northglenn	
•	Basalt	 	 •	Fort	Collins	 	 •	Pitkin	County		
•	Boulder	 	 •	Frisco	 	 •	San	Miguel	County	
•	Boulder	County	 •	Golden	 	 •	Summit	County		
•	Breckenridge	 •	Lafayette	 	 •	Telluride	
•	Carbondale	 	 •	Longmont	 	 •	Vail		
•	Clear	Creek	County	 •	Louisville	 	 •	Westminster	

	 •	Mountain	Village	
	

Budget	and	Annual	Dues	
	

CC4CA	members	pay	annual	dues	to	provide	the	resources	for	effective	coalition	operations,	
including	representation	by	professional	advocacy	consultants	in	the	General	Assembly	and	before	
state	agencies.	Dues	are	based	on	population	size.	Within	each	population	category,	local	
governments	have	a	choice	of	dues	amounts	(Base,	Base	Plus,	etc.).	Every	member	of	the	coalition	
has	the	same	voice	and	vote	regardless	of	the	dues	level	they	select.		

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Coalition	Management	
	

The	coalition	is	guided	by	a	steering	committee	comprised	of	representatives	from	member	
jurisdictions	and	an	executive	director,	with	other	committees	of	member	representatives	making	
decisions	on	particular	subjects.	A	unanimous	vote	of	all	members	is	required	to	set	CC4CA’s	Policy	
Agenda.	Eliza	Schultz	of	Schultz	Public	Affairs	and	Elisabeth	Rosen	of	Political	Advocacy,	Inc.	represent	
the	coalition	at	the	state	capitol	and	the	Rocky	Mountain	Climate	Organization	provides	
administrative	and	organizational	support.	

For	more	information:	
Jacob	Smith	•	jsmith@cc4ca.org	•	(303)	820-6017	•	CC4CA.org	

		

	



https://www.coloradopolitics.com/opinion/opinion-kudos-and-encouragement-for-the-state-in-addressing-climate
/article_96f1e086-540d-11e9-b852-d33047ba9799.html

OPINION | Kudos and
encouragement for the state in
addressing climate change
Anita Seitz and Greg Clifton Apr 1, 2019 Updated 2 hrs ago

Colorado Communities for Climate Action is a
coalition of 25 local governments across the
state, more than half of which are Western
Slope communities and nearly two-thirds of
which are rural. As local governments and
local elected officials, we have a unique
perspective on the threats and challenges of
climate change, one that is often overlooked
in the policy debates.

With every passing year, as greenhouse gas
emissions in the atmosphere grow, the
disruptions of climate change become more
severe. The number of days exceeding 100
degrees is growing, and the Denver Metro
region will increasingly feel like El Paso or
Tucson and our mountain towns will
increasingly feel like Santa Fe or Albuquerque.
Bark beetle epidemics will take a larger and
larger toll on our forests. We will see more
heat-related illness and deaths, especiallyAnita Seitz 

OPINION | Kudos and encouragement for the state in addressing... https://www.coloradopolitics.com/opinion/kudos-and-encourag...

1 of 3 4/1/19, 9:07 AM



among our young and our elderly. The
escalating frequency and intensity of extreme
weather events will cost Colorado’s local
governments hundreds of millions of dollars
as roads buckle from the heat; homes,
businesses, and roadways are devastated by
floods; and local water treatment facilities are
forced to bear the costs of major erosion
events following large forest fires.

Climate disruption is also causing growing
challenges for Colorado’s economy. Our
agricultural industry and the many rural
communities tied to it are grappling with less
and less water as it is, and our winter
recreation industry is already suffering from
less snow and a shorter winter season.

The Colorado legislature is currently
considering a wide range of bills that would make an enormous difference to local communities
across the state. Some of these bills would directly reduce the carbon pollution that is causing
climate change while simultaneously reducing other types of air pollution undermining our health and
quality of life. Some would expand access to rooftop solar and solar gardens. Some would help
ensure that everyone in Colorado benefits from the growth in electric vehicles, including our rural
communities and communities of every income range. Still others would set us on track to target the
emissions reductions needed to avoid the worst impacts of climate disruption. At the same time,
many of these bills would save money for Colorado taxpayers, families and businesses.

Our members also understand that the transition to a clean energy economy will be more difficult for
the communities that have long relied on fossil fuel extraction as an economic driver. We are
committed to helping those communities navigate the challenges of this transition, and we support
legislation aimed at doing just that.

Collectively, these bills will help position Colorado to remain economically competitive in the years
ahead while simultaneously strengthening our local communities and preserving our quality of life in
both rural Colorado and on the Front Range.

Greg Clifton

OPINION | Kudos and encouragement for the state in addressing... https://www.coloradopolitics.com/opinion/kudos-and-encourag...

2 of 3 4/1/19, 9:07 AM



CC4CA’s members span the Western Slope and Front Range; small rural towns and major suburbs;
counties and municipalities; and wealthy, middle-income and low-income neighborhoods. Our
coalition’s members all care deeply about protecting a strong economy and quality of life across the
state, and for that reason we encourage the legislature and the governor to assertively lead in
building Colorado’s capability to invest in a clean-energy future.

We appreciate that the legislature and governor are treating these issues as the critical priorities that
they are, and encourage them to follow through on the many important pieces of legislation now
under consideration.

Anita Seitz is mayor pro tem of Westminster and president of Colorado Communities for
Climate Action. Greg Clifton is Vail town manager and steering committee chair for Colorado
Communities for Climate Action.

OPINION | Kudos and encouragement for the state in addressing... https://www.coloradopolitics.com/opinion/kudos-and-encourag...

3 of 3 4/1/19, 9:07 AM



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #18 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #19 
 



TO:  Town Council 
FROM:  Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 
DATE:  March 29, 2019 
RE:  Council Representation on Boards and Committees 
 
 
The Council has asked that I check and ensure all boards and committees with Council 
representation are still active.  All existing boards and committees are active, and desire continued 
Council representation.  
 
Following is the list of boards and the current representative.   
 
I have highlighted in red seats that are now empty.   Comments regarding meeting commitments 
are in blue.   
 
 
Council Appointed Committees, Commissions, Task Forces: 
 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilors Austin, N. Hunter and Mayor Pro 
Tem Johnson  (meets every other month) 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor E. Hunter and Mayor Clark  (meets monthly, could be 
more in 2019 for Master Plan update and implementation; stipend paid by Town) 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor N. Hunter   (meets monthly) 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilors Malone, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Mayor Clark 
(meets annually) 
 
Council Board Appointments: 
 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor E. Hunter; alternate - Town Engineer  (meets as needed, 
usually annually) 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor E. Hunter, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom 
McKenney; alternate-Mayor Pro Tem Johnson   (meets as needed, usually once or twice per year) 
Sneffels Energy Board - Mayor Clark and Public Works Service Administrator; alternate - Mayor 

Pro Tem Johnson (meets quarterly) 
Ouray County Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Advisory Committee - Councilor Heffernan; alternate - 
Town Manager   (meets monthly) 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark  (meets monthly) 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager (meets monthly) 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager; alternate - Town Engineer 

(meets quarterly) 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Community Initiatives FacilitatorPublic Works Services 
Administrator; alternate - Town Manager (meets a few times per year, depending on workload) 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor E. Hunter  (meets as needed, generally 3-4 
times per year) 
 
Council Participation and Liaisons: 
 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Malone  (not a voting member, attends meetings for 
information and liaison purposes) 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds Board - Councilor E. Hunter  (usually meets annually) 


	(03) Consent Agenda
	(04) April 10 tc agenda
	(05) March 13 tc min
	(06) March 12 spec meeting tc min
	(07) Register of Demands
	(08) Agenda Item 5
	(09) Old West Fest
	(10) Agenda Item 6
	(11) Liq License Steps Patio
	(12) Agenda Item 7
	(13) Ord Fee Schedule Update
	CERTIFICATE OF TOWN CLERK

	(14) Agenda Item 8
	(15) Unicas Subdiv  Worswick
	2019.04.10 Public Hearing Notice_Worswick
	Applicant:   Nathan Worswick

	2019.04.10 (Amend Plat True Grit Lot A) Worswick TC Report
	2019.03.26 (Amend Plat True Grit Lot A) Worswick_PC Pkt
	Public Notice
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Plat Map 
	Utiliyt Layout
	Request Letter
	Staff Report


	(16) Agenda Item 9
	(17) Stormwater Master Plan Agrmt
	NOTICE OF AWARD
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	Stormwater Management Plan

	(18) Agenda Item 10
	(19) Cap Assess Facilities Final Doc with Appendices
	2019.04.01 CA Facilities Final Doc without Appendices.pdf
	Appendix A Title Page.pdf
	Appendix A Recommendations.pdf
	Ridgway Recommendations List

	Appendix B Title Page.pdf
	Appendix B Street Options and Cost.pdf
	Op1-all asphalt
	Op2-Collector
	Unit Costs

	Appendix C Title Page.pdf
	Appendix C Funding Sources.pdf
	Appendix D Title Page.pdf
	Appendix D Town Hall Layout.pdf
	Appendix E Title Page.pdf
	Appendix E Repair and Replace schedule.pdf
	Streets
	Vehicles
	Parks
	Buildings
	CIP


	(20) Agenda Item 11
	(21) Artspace final combo
	2019.03.14 (Option to Ground Lease v3 (red) clean for TC April Mtg)
	1. Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto:

	Ex A (2017.10.04 TOR WD S2C property)
	Ex. C (Prop Use Covnt DoLA)

	(22) Agenda Item 12
	(23) Dump Truck Purchase)
	(24) Agenda Item 13
	(25) OCHA Combo final
	2019.04.05 (OCHA Questions for TC Discussion)
	11-08-2018 OCHAC 5 Year Plan Flyer
	11-08-2018 Forum Presentation Agenda
	5 Year Strategic Plan - FINAL

	(26) Agenda Item 14
	(27) Agenda Item 15
	(28) Agenda Item 16
	(29) Agenda Item 17
	(30) CC4CA Final Combo
	CC4CA Description 2019-02
	CC4CA Highlights 2019-02
	CC4CA Prospectus 2019-03
	Colorado Politics Op-Ed  Kudos and encouragement for the state in addressing climate change

	(31) Agenda Item 18
	(32) Agenda Item 19
	(33) TC Representation on boards srp



